
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

REVISED. H.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING*
FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS

9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA

TUESDAY JUNE 3, 2025 AT 6:30 P.M.

A Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge ofAllegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting ofMay 20, 2025.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational. Mayoral Appointments:

1. Ann Adamski, 7825 S. Stonebrook Ct., Aid. Dist. 3-Civic Celebrations Commission
(3 year term expiring 06/30/28).

2. Christopher Doll, 9949 S. 31st St., Ald. Dist. 4-Library Board (3 year term expiring
06/30/28).

3. Lisa Marie Fallico, 11343 W. Mayers Dr., Aid. Dist. 6-Civic Celebrations
Commission (3 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/27).

4. Cathleen Richard, 10252 W. Deerwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 6-Economic Development
Commission ( 1 year term expiring 06/30/26).

5. Judith Williams-Killackey, 4901 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 5-Library Board
(3 year term expiring 06/30/28).

F. Letters.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Powers

Granted by Section 207-15 of the Municipal Code, and Section 66.0701 of the State
Statutes for installation of a water main on the East Frontage Road of South Lovers
Lane Road from a point of connection at the intersection of West Herda Place to a
point of connection at the intersection of South Phyllis Lane and setting a Public
Hearing date for July 1, 2025 at 6:30 p.m.

2. A Resolution to Supersede a State/Municipal Financial Agreement for Improvements
Related to a Wisconsin Department of Transportation project on South Lovers Lane
(USH 45) from West St Martins Road to West Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) and
Increase the amount to $502,500.



Common Council Meetmg Agenda
June 3, 2025
Page 2

3 A Resolution to Supersede a State/Mumcipal Fmancial Agreement for an
Infrastructure Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) ProJect for West Puetz
Road Pathway 111 the amount of $440,000

4 A Resolution for Acceptance of the utility easements for Storm Water Facilities
Mamtenance Agreement, and Storm Water Management Access for Ridgewood
Reserve Subd1vs1on

5 A Resolut10n for Acceptance of the Storm Dramage Easement for Ridgewood
Reserve Subd1vs1on

6 A Resolution for Acceptance of the Samtary Sewer Easement for Ridgewood
Reserve Subdrvs1on.

7 A Resolution Authonzmg Cei1am Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement for
Damian Przybyla at OS. 92nd St (TKN 886-9987-002)

8 An Ordmance to Amend Ordmance 2024-2649, an Ordinance Adopting the 2025
Annual Budget for the Op10id Settlement Fund to Provide Personnel and
Nonpersonnel Appropriations for Eligible Expenses by the Franklm Health
Department

9 A Resolution Authonzmg the Franklm Director of Fmance/Treasurer to Appropriate
the Totality of Natonal Op1o1d Settlement Funds Received to the Franklm Health
Department to Address the Op1o1d Ep1dem1c

10 An Ordmance to Amend Ordmance 2024-2649, an Ordinance Adopting the 2025
Annual Budget for the Health Grant Fund to Provide Resources and Appropnat10ns
for the Approved 2024-2025 Alliance for Wisconsin Youth Mmm Grant.

11 A Resolut10n to extend for one (1) year Resolution No 2024-8153, a Resolut10n
1mposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Spec1al Use for Lake Grove
Place, a multi-family development with 38 dwellmg umts upon property located at
approximately 3709 W. College Avenue (Safan Homes Franklm LLC)

12 A Resolution to amend Resoluton No 2024-8222 imposing conditions and
restnct10ns for the approval of a Special Use for Tsunami Express Car Wash, a
carwash facility located at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road (Tsunami Express Car Wash
Franklm LLC)

13 A Resolution Imposmg Condit10ns and Restrictions for the approval of a Special Use
for an auto supply store use upon property located at 7251 S 27th Street.

14 Promot10n of Mr Joe Ch1tko to Facilities Maintenance Supenntendent and related
benefit adjustments

15 A Resolution authonzmg execut10n of Green Infrastructure Fundmg Agreements
wth the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Dstrict for the 2025 Green Solutions
Program

16 A Resolution to amend Resolution No 2015-7096, a Resolution to adopt Purchasing
Card Policies and Procedures for the Caty of Franklin and prov1de add1tonal Policy
and Procedure Gmdelmes

17 A Resolut10n Approvmg a Partial Property Tax Resc1ss10n and Refund for
(TKN 832-9925-001)

18 A Resolut10n Approvmg a Partial Property Tax Rescission and Refund for
(TKN 928-022-000)



Common Council Meetmg Agenda
June 3, 2025
Page 3

19. An Ordmance to Amend Ordmance 2024-2649, an Ordmance Adoptmg the 2025
Annual Budget for the General Fund to Transfer $10,000 of Severance Payments
Appropriations to the Senor Crt1zen Travel Program

20 Open Record Requests received smce May 1, 2023.
21 Andrew Pelkey Open Records Request for Pubhc Records Related to Common

Council Cons1derat10n of Code of Conduct Complamts and Wis. Stat $ 905 03
Lawyer-Chient Privilege and Wis Stat. $ 19.35(1) Right to Inspection The
Common Council may enter closed sess1on pursuant to Wis. Stat $ 1985(1)£),
cons1dermng finance1al, med1cal, soc1al, or personal hustortes or disc1plunary data of
specific persons, prelimmary consideration of specific personnel problems or the
mvest1gat1on of charges agamst specific persons except where par (b) applies
which, 1f discussed 111 public, would be hkely to have a substantial adverse effect
upon the reputat10n of any person referred tom such histories or data, or mvolved 111
such problems or 111vest1gat10ns, and pubhc records m relation thereto and Wis Stat
$ 905 03 Lawyer-Chent Pnvilege and Wis Stat $ 19 35(1) Right to Inspect10n, and
to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
theremn as 1t deems appropriate

22. Potential commercial/111dustnal/manufactunng development(s) and proposal(s) and
potential development(s) agreement(s) in relation thereto for, mcludmng, but not
l1muted to the propert(1es) at the southwest comer of South Oakwood Park Dnve and
West Ryan Road The Common Council may enter closed sess1on pursuant to Wis
Stat $ 19 85(l)(e), for market competlt10n and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and
consider terms relatmg to potential commercial/industnal/manufactunng
development(s) and proposal(s) and the mnvestung of public funds and governmental
act10ns 111 relat10n thereto and to affect such development(s), mncludmng the terms and
prov1s1ons of potential development agreement(s) for, mncludmng, but not limited to
the prope11(1es) at the southeast comer of South Oakwood Park Dnve and West
Ryan Road, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed there111 as 1t deems appropriate

*H Licenses and Penmts License Committee Meeting of June 3, 2025

Blls
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll

J Adjournment

Supportmg documentation and details ot these agenda items are available at City Hall durmg normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice efforts wl l be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndvduals through appropriate aids and
services For additional mtormation contact the Cit Clerk s office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS

June 5
June 17

Plan Comm1ss1on
Common Council

6 00pm
6 30 p.m



Common Council Meetmg Agenda
June 3, 2025
Page 4

June 19
July 1
July 3
July 4

Plan Comm1ss1on
Common Council
Plan Comm1ss1on
City Hall Closed-Fourth of July

6 OOpm
6 30 p 111

6 OOpm



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

EMERGENCY MEDICAL
SERVICES WEEK
PROCLAMATION

MINUTES
MAY 6. 2025

FRANKLIN SENIOR
TRAVEL PROGRAM
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
AND PUBLIC APOLOGY

SENIOR CITIZEN
TRAVEL PROGRAM

e.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
MAY 20, 2025

MINUTES

A The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
May 20, 2025, and was called to order at 6 30 p m by Mayor
John R Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229
W Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin On roll call, the following
were present Alderman Peccarelh, Alderwoman Eichmann,
Alderman Hasan, Alderman Salous, Alderwoman Day and
Alderman Crang Also mn attendance were D1rector of
Administration Kelly Hersh, City Attorney Jesse A Wesolowski
and City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

B I Citizen comment per1od was opened at 6 30 p m and was closed at
6 40pm

B 2 Mayor Nelson presented a Proclamation m Recognit1011 of
Emergency Medical Services week

C Alderman Hasan moved to approve the mmutes of the Common
Council meetmg of May 6, 2025, as presented Seconded by
Alderman Salous All voted Aye, mot10n earned.

G 17 Alderwoman Day moved to place on file the acknowledgement of
the Caty's apprec1at1on for the Franklin Senior Travel Program and
a formal letter of apology to Mr Ryan was read mnto the record
Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted Aye, mot10n earned

G 18 Alderman Hasan moved to provide a transfer of $10,000 of
add1t10nal fundmg from the Severance Payments Fund to the Semor
Citizen Travel Program wth a budget amendment to come back to
the June 3, 2025 Common Council meetmg Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call, all voted Aye Motion
earned

HEARING DI A public heanng was called to order on May 20, 2025 at 7 29 pm
on a proposed Future Land Use Map amendment for property
generally located on the south side of Ryan Rd., addressed as O W
Ryan Road (TKN 896-9996-001), for the area consisting of
approximately 66 8 acres designated as Commercial and Business
Park (approximately 50% of the total site) and Areas of Natural
Resource Features Use, to Institutional and Areas of Natural
Resource Features This pubhc heanng 1s bemg held pursuant to
the reqmrements of Wis Stat §66 100 I (4)(d) A map of the
affected property, all apphcat1on matenals and the proposed
ordmance are available at the Department of City Development at
Franklin City Hall The public hearing was closed at 7 30 p m



Common Council Meetmg
May 20, 2025
Page 2

ORD 2025-2680 G 1
FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS FUTURE LAND
USE AMENDMENT

HEARING D2

ORD 2025-2681 G 3
BEAR DEVELOPMENT
FUTURE LAND USE
AMENDMENT

ORD 2025-2682 G 4
REZONE TO R-8
MULTIPLE-FAMILY
RESIDENCE (11590 W
MEADOWVIEW DR)

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Ordmance No 2025-2680, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE
FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE PROPERTY
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF RYAN
RD, ADDRESSED AS OW RYAN RD (TKN 896-9996-001),
FROM COMMERCIAL, BUSINESS PARK AND AREAS OF
NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES TO INSTITUTIONAL
AND AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES
(TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 2,932,763 SQ FEET OR
67 327 ACRES) (CITY OF FRANKLIN DEPARTMENT OF
CITY DEVELOPMENT, APPLICANT) (FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, PROPERTY OWNERS). Seconded by Alderman
Peccarelh All voted Aye, motion carred

A pubhc heanng was called to order on May 20, 2025 at 7 34 p m
on a proposed Future Land Use Map amendment for property
located at 11590 W Meadowvew Drive, contamnmng approximately
7735 acres, from Busmess Park to Res1dental Mult-Fam1ly and
Commercial Thus public hearing 1s bemg held pursuant to the
requirements of WIs Stat $66 1001(4)(d) A map of the affected
property, all applcaton materials and the proposed ordinance are
available at the Department of City Development at Franklm City
Hall The public hearng was closed at 7 34 p m

Alderman Salous moved to adopt Ordmance No 2025-2681, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY
OF FRANKLIN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY
BEARING TKN 891-1081-000 FROM BUSINESS PARK TO
RESIDENTIAL-MULTI-FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL
(11590 W MEADOWVIEW DRIVE) (BEAR DEVELOPMENT,
LLC, APPLICANT) Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted
Aye, motuon carried

Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Ordmance No 2025-2682, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE THE PROPERTY
BEARING TKN 891-1081-000 FROM M-1 LIMITED
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO R-8 MULTIPLE-FAMILY
RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND B-2 GENERAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT (11590 W MEADOWVIEW DRIVE) (BEAR
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT) Seconded by Alderman
Crag All voted Aye, motion carried



Common Council Meetmg
May 20, 2025
Page 3

RES 2025-8320
CERTIFIED SURVERY
MAP LOT 80 AND 81
RYAN MEADOWS

MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

RES 2025-8321
UNDERGROUND
EASEMENT 9600 S 80th

RES 2025-8322
CHANGE ORDER NO 4
DPW EXPANSION
PROJECT

GS

E

G2

G6

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8320, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2-LOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT
80 AND LOT 81 OF RYAN MEADOWS, IN THE NORTHWEST
1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 ALL IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5
NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN (BEAR
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT) (11590 W
MEADOWVIEW DRIVE AND 11433 W RYAN ROAD)
Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann All voted Aye, mot10n
earned

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to confirm the followmg Mayoral
Appomtments·
1. Mike Barber, 7931 S 6lst St, Ald. Dist. 5-Economic

Development Commssion, l year unexpred term exp1ring
06/30/25

2 Make Barber, 7931 S 61st St, Ald DIst 5-Economic
Development Comm1ss1on, l year unexpired term exp1rmng
06/30/26

3 Samuel Berg, 8117 W High St, Ald. DIst I-Technology
Commss1on, 3 year unexpired term exp1ring 04/30/27

4 Jeff Stembach, 8109 S 47th St, Aid Dist 5-Commumty
Development Authonty, 4 year unexpired term exp1rmng
08/30/26

Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann On roll call, all voted Aye
Motion earned

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolut10n No 2025-8321, A
RESOLUTION TO GRANT A DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT
UNDERGROUND TO WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER
COMPANY FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN OWNED PROPERTY
AT 9600 S 80TH STREET, PARCEL 1 OF CSM NO 6114
(TKN 896-9990-001) Seconded by Alderman Crang On roll call
Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman Day,
Alderman Salous and Alderman Crag voted Aye Alderman
Peccarelh abstamed Motton carred.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolut10n No 2025-8322, A
RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO 4 FOR THE
DPW EXPANSION PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$124,086 91 TO CAMOSY INCORPORATED Seconded by
Alderman Salous On roll call, all voted Aye Motion earned



Common Council Meeting
May 20, 2025
Page 4

HEALTH DEPARTMENT
ADMINISTRATIVE
ASSISTANT

SAN IT ARIAN II

RES 2025-8323
CONSERVATION
EASEMENT
8570 S 116" STREET

CONCEPT REVIEW
CONDOMINIUM
DEVELOPMENT AT
12245 W FOREST HOME
AVE

CONCEPT REVIEW
FRANKLIN HIGH
SCHOOL

RES 2025-8324
CONSERVATION
EASEMENT
AMENDMENT AT
FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS

RES 2025-8325
FENCE (9516 S
BERGAMONT DRIVE)

G7 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the revised job
descript1on for Health Department Admmnstrat1ve Ass1stant
Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted Aye, mot10n earned

G 8 Alderwoman Day moved to approve the Samtanan II Job
descript1on and author1ze filling the position wthmn the current
staffing accommodations Seconded by Alderman Hasan All
voted Aye, mot1on carried

G9 Alderman Crag moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8323, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS
PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8570 S 116TH STREET
(MONTGOMERY FAMILY TRUST, PROPERTY OWNER)
Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted Aye; mot10n earned

G10 No action requested No act1on to be taken.

G II No action requested No act1on to be taken

G 12 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolut1on No
2025- 8324, A RESOLUTION TO AMEND A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT, PREVIOUSLY APPROVED
BY RESOLUTION NO 2013-0692, TO ALLOW
GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATION WITHIN EASEMENT
NO 2AND NO 3 UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8222 S
51 STREET (TKN 807-9999-001) (FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, APPLICANT) Seconded by Alderman Craig All
voted Aye; motion earned

Mayor Nelson called a recess at 815p m
Mayor Nelson reconvened at 8 26 p.m

G13 Alderman Crag moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8325, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 30 FOOT LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD
EASEMENT PLAT RESTRICTION, UPON LOT 6 OF THE
RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION (9516 S BERGAMONT
DRIVE) (RYANS MAHONEY & KATHY THOMAS,



Common Council Meeting
May 20, 2025
Page 5

APPLICANTS) Seconded by Alderman Salous. All voted Aye,
mot1on carred

ORD 2025-2683
PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO 44
(HASELOW)

G 14 Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Ordmance No 2025-2683, AN
ORDINANCE TO CREATE SECTION 15-3 0449 OF THE
FRANKLIN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
ESTABLISHING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NO 44 (HASELOW) AND TO REZONE PROPERTY FROM
R-lE COUNTRYSIDE/ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY MULTIPLE
RESIDENCE UPON A SINGLE LOT ESTATE DISTRICT TO
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO 44 (9140 S 5l51

STREET) Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted Aye, mot10n
earned

FIRE DEPARTMENT 2024 G 15
ANNUAL REPORT

RES 2025-8326 G 16
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT WITH CITY
OF MILWAUKEE FIRE
DEPARTMENT

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to accept the City of Franklm Fire
Department 2024 Annual Report and place on file Seconded by
Alderman Hasan All voted Aye, motion earned

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8326,
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FIRE DEPARTMENT
TO PARTICIPATE IN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT FOR REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE,
RESCUE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL EQUIPMENT AND
MATERIALS WITH THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE FIRE
DEPARTMENT and to amend the Resolution to approve the
agreement and author1ze the Mayor, City Clerk and Director of
Fmance and Treasury to execute the agreement Seconded by
Alderman Hasan On roll call, all voted Aye Motion earned

RELEASING CLOSED
LEGAL RECORDS

ATTORNEY CLIENT
PRIVILEGE

G19 Alderman Hasan moved to adopt a resolution affirming the city's
commitment to complance with the Wisconsin puble records law
and establishmg a policy for the release of closed legal records,
affirming the Caty's complance with Wisconsin Public Records
Law and estabhshmg a po hey for the release of legal records from
closed matters, as required under Wis Stat $$ 19 31-19 39 and 111

accordance wth the Caty's designated legal custodianship
respons1bth1ties This action reflects not just a staff
recommendation but a legal obligation to uphold transparency,
statutory compliance, and the public's nght to access records, as
remforced by state law and the Wisconsm Department of Justice
gmdance Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann On roll call,
Alderwoman Eichmann and Alderman Hasan voted Aye
Alderman Peccarelli, Alderwoman Day and Alderman Craig voted
No Alderman Salous abstamed Motion failed

G 20 Alderman Peccarelh moved to table to the June 3, 2025 Common
Counce1l meeting and to have all relevant records disbursed to the



Common Council Meetmg
May 20, 2025
Page 6

ORD 2025-2684 G 21
911 ACCESS IN LODGING
UNITS

Common Council Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann On roll
call, all voted Aye Mot10n earned

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Ordmance No 2025-2684, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 138-25(B)(4) OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO EMERGENCY
TELEPHONE ACCESS IN HOTELS, MOTELS, AND SIMILAR
LODGING ESTABLISHMENTS. Seconded by Alderman
Peccarelh All voted Aye; mot10n earned

SITE ACCESS
AGREEMENT FOR
BALLPARK COMMONS

CLOSED SESSION

G22 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to author1ze the Mayor, DIrector of
Fmance and Treasurer, and City Clerk to execute the Site Access
and Cooperation Agreement between the City of Frankl111, JPM
Acoustics Norse Vibration, and ROC Ventures/Ballpark Commons,
subject to techmcal changes and to have a budget amendment
returned to the June 3, 2025, Common Council meetmg Seconded
by Alderman Salous On roll call, all voted Aye Mot10n earned

G 23 Alderman Craig moved to enter closed sess1on at l O .44 p 111

pursuant to Wis Stat § 1 9 85(l)(g), to confer with legal counsel for
the Common Council who 1s rendering advice concerning strategy
to be adopted by the body with respect to the City of Frankl v
BPC Master Developer LLC' and Mchael Zimmerman, Milwaukee
County Circmt Court Case No 24-CV-74 79 htigat10n and/or
possible ht1gation related to the 2024 shortfall payment under the
TID 5 Development Agreement, and to reenter open sess1on at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therem as 1t
deems appropriate Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all
voted Aye Moton carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann left the meeting at 11 07 p m

Upon reentering open session at 11 07 pm, Alderman Crang
moved to proceed as duscussed mn closed sess1on and to author1ze
Attorney Sadak to proceed as discussed 111 closed session
Seconded by Alderman Hasan On roll call, Alderman Peccarelh.
Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman Day, Alderman Salous and
Alderman Craig all voted Aye Alderwoman Eichmann was absent
Motion earned

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

H

Alderwoman Eichmann returned to her seat at 11 11 p m

Alderman Craig moved to approve the follow111g licenses of the
License Committee Meeting of May 20, 2025



Common Council Meetmg
May 20, 2025
Page 7

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

Grant Extraordmary Entertamment & Special Event & Temporary
Class B Beer License to Scottish Festivals Inc - Scottish Highland
Games, David Berger, 9100 S 76th St - Croatian Park, 6/7/25,
Grant Unlimited Transfer Full-Service Reta1l Outlet License-CIV1c
Celebration 2025 to On Cloud Wme, LLC, DBA On Cloud Wme,
CrvIc Celebration, 9229 W Looms Rd, 7/3-7/5/25, Sale of"Wine"
only, On-Site Contact-John "Randy" Larson,
Grant 2025-26 Entertamment & Amusement License Pendmg
Inspections to Milwaukee County Park, DBA Milwaukee County
Sports Complex, 6000 W Ryan Rd, Richard Becker,

Grant New 2024-25 Operator License to Lauren Lomonte &
Conn1e Young,
Grant New 2025-26 Operator License to Bnanna Garcia,
Sukhmmder Bhatt, Kristy Czernakowski, Nicole Gaus, Joseph
Osvat1c, Samantha Piparo, Peighten Thompson, & Ananna Villa,
Grant New 2024-25 & Renewal 2025-26 Operator License to Julie
Sm1th
Grant New 2024-25 & Renewal 2025-26 Operator License Pending
Update of Apphcat10n to Jamie Hopkms, Stepha111e Johnson,
Mar1jana Knezv1c,
Grant New 2025-26 Operator License Pendmg Update of
Application to Wilham Cody,
Grant Renewal 2025-26 Operator License Pendmg Update of
Application to Justm Hoffmann, Matthew Sane, & Arturo Juarez
Jr, and
Grant Renewal 2025-26 Operator License to Bna Altamore, Amy
Analla, Brandon Bhatti, Tanya Bielmski, Claudia Blue, Wilham
Canales. Ashley Chnsten, Tracey Deak, Susan DeGeorge, Matthew
Engelhardt, Enc Gagliano, Carissa Hagedorn, Jessica Hendren,
Kimberly Hull, Lily Jones, Adam Jubeck, Miranda Krasmnsk1,
Ceciha Lor, Darnel Mackie, Jenmfer Martmez, Nadiya Mashkma,
Bnanna Mayer, Serena Medrano, Susan Mlynczak, Kelly Molma,
Mandy Olemczak, Lisa Oliver, Derek Olszewski, Amta Osvatic,
Jessica Provencher, Amy Randall, Tom Ruyle, Joseph Schauer,
Ryan Scheffler, Bnan Shulta, Amanda Smeg, Nicole Stankowski,
James Talaska, Nicole Tarantmo, Jenmfer Teske, Katelyn
Thousand, Tiffany Torres, Matthew WIsnewska, & Pange Zgner

Seconded by Alderwoman Day All voted Aye, motion earned

Alderman Hasan moved to approve City vouchers with an endmg
date of May 15, 2025 m the amount of$1,174,141 21, and payroll
dated May 16, 2025 m the amount of $462,673 88 and payments of
the vanous payroll deduct10ns in the amount of $263,449 49 plus
City matchmg payments, and estimated payroll dated May 30, 2025
111 the amount of $485,000 00 and payments of the various payroll



Common Council Meeting
May 20, 2025
Page 8

ADJOURNMENT J

deductions m the amount of $621,000, plus Caty matchmng
payments Seconded by Alderman Craig On roll call, all voted
Aye Motion earned

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adJOlirn the meetmg of the
Common Council at 11 12 pm Seconded by Alderman Peccarelh
All voted Aye, motrnn earned



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Appointments

MEETING
DATE

06-03-25

ITEM NUMBER

E.
The Mayor has made the followmg appomtments for Council confirmation

1 Ann Adamsk1, 7825 S Stonebrook Ct , AId Dist. 3-Crv1c Celebrations Comm1ss1on (3 year
term expmng 06/30/28)

2 Christopher Doll, 9949 S 31st St, Ald D1st. 4-Library Board (3 year term expmng 06/30/28).
3 Lisa Mane Falhco, 11343 W Mayers Dr, Ald Dist 6-Civic Celebrations Comm1ss1on

(3 year unexpired term exprmg 06/30/27)
4 Cathleen Richard, 10252 W Deerwood Ln, Ald Dist 6-Economic Development Commiss10n

( 1 year term expmng 06/30/26)
5 Judith Willams-Kllackey, 4901 W Forest Hill Ave., Ald Dist 5-Library Board (3 year term

expmng 06/30/28)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the followmg Mayoral appomtments

1 Ann Adamsk1, 7825 S Stonebrook Ct, Ald Dist 3-Civic Celebrations Commss1on (3 year
term expmng 06/30/28)

2 Christopher Doll, 9949 S 31st St, Ald Dist 4-Library Board (3 year term expmng 06/30/28)
3 LIsa Mane Fall1co, 11343 W Mayers Dr , Ald Dist 6-Cr1c Celebrations Comm1ss1on

(3 year unexpired term expmng 06/30/27).
4 Cathleen Richard, 10252 W Deerwood Ln , Ald DIst 6-Economic Development Comm1ss1on

( 1 year term expmng 06/30/26)
5. Judith Williams-Killackey, 4901 W Forest Hill Ave , Ald Dist 5-Library Board (3 year term

expmng 06/30/28)

ROLL CALL VOTE

CLERKDEPT



Maggie Poplar

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinwt info
Thursday, January 16, 2025 9 54 PM
Lusa Huenmng, Shurley Roberts, Maggie Poplar
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard:
CivicCelebrations:
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority:
EconomicDevelopmentCommission:
EnvironmentalCommission:
FinanceCommittee:
FairCommission:
BoardofHealth:
FirePoliceCommission:
ParksCommission:
LibraryBoard:
PlanCommission:
PersonnelCommittee:
BoardofReview:
BoardofPublicWorks:
QuarryMonitoringCommittee:
TechnologyCommission:
TourismCommission:
BoardofZoning:
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee:
BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

Lisa Mare Fall1co

Skyrayne32@hotmail com

10

6

on

Dog sitter

2020

N/A
Nanny/stay at home mom

2014

1



EndDateandPositionJob2:
CompanyNameJob3:
AddressJob3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:
Address:
PriorityListing:

Whylnterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

Additional Experience:

See Current Results

2020

Lisa Mane Falllco
01/16/2025
Lisa Mare Fall1co
01/16/2025
11343 W Mayers dr Frankhn WI 53132

I have volunteered with the civic celebration for about 5hrs Always working
multiple shifts I enjoy bemng involved with the community I was asked to st in
on committee meetings due to openings, and to see If rt's something lhke I
have been attending meetings for over 6mths now
I have spent the last Syrs being a full time pet sitter for several Franklin
families I'm known as the dog whisperer around Franklin, lol
I stayed home to care for my child who had extra needs I was a nanny to a few
Franklin families who had children with various disabilities

Connecting with people Is what I do best I am an extrovert who loves being in
social sItuatIons My background includes many successful years as a
bartender, followed by several years at a music venue I thrive off people &
community which Is why l have volunteered with the civic committee for
several years I have many great ideas to continue making the Civic celebration
successful

2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

BACKGROUND

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise
Special Assessment Powers Granted by Section 207-15 0f

the Municipal Code, and Section 66.0701 of the State
Statutes for installation of a water main on the East

Frontage Road of South Lovers Lane Road from a point of
connection at the intersection of West Herda Place to a

point of connection at the intersection of South Phyllis Lane
and setting a Public Hearing Date for July 1st, 2025, at 6:30

p.m.

MEETING DATE
6/3/2025

ITEM NUMBER

On March 13, 2024 the City of Franklin opened bids for the water main extension on the east
frontage road of South Lovers Lane Road from South Phyllis Lane to West Herda Place. The
Common Council awarded the project to A.W Oakes and Sons, Inc. at the Common Council
meeting on March 19, 2024 (item G.26) in the amount of $217,472.00. The project work was
completed in 2024.

Pursuant to Municipal Code207-15D. and $ 66.0703(4) of the Wisconsin Statutes, it is necessary
for the Common Council to adopt a preliminary resolution to commence the special assessment
process, with its intension to exercise the powers therefore authorized by Municipal Code $207
150. and $ 66.0703(4) of the Wisconsin Statutes, for the special assessments for the project and
the properties to be specially benefitted thereby.

ANALYSIS
There are a total of eight affected properties adjacent to this water main extension project. One of
the eight properties already has access to public water main and a water lateral. Therefore, there
are only seven benefited properties. Attached is an exhibit of the affected properties.

An Engineer's Report will be created based on the bid costs.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Direct staff to create an Engineer's Report. It is recommended that a public hearing for this project
be arranged for July 1, 2025.

FISCAL NOTE
Funding for this project was included in Fund 46 for Water Extensions. Special assessment for this
project could allocate approximately$ l l 6.876.58 of the project costs.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution 2025- a Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise
Special Assessment Powers Granted by Section 207-15 of the Municipal Code and Section
66.0701 of the State Statutes for installation of a water main on the east frontage road of South
Lovers Lane Road from a point of connection at the intersection of West Herda Place to a point of
connection at the intersection of South Phyllis Lane and setting a Public Hearing Date of July Ist,
2025. at 6:30 p.m.

S&W GEB: EngineeringMNP: DOA KI.



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025---

A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT POWERS GRANTED BY SECTION 207-15 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE

AND SECTION 66.0701 OF THE STATE STATUTES FOR INSTALLATION OF A WATER
MAIN ON THE EAST FRONTAGE ROAD OF SOUTH LOVERS LANE ROAD FROM A
POINT OF CONNECTION AT THE INTERSECTION OF WEST HERDA PLACE TO A

POINT OF CONNECTION AT THE INTERSECTION OF SOUTH PHYLLIS LANE AND
SETTING THE PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR JULY 1ST, 2025, AT 6:30 P M.

WHEREAS. the Common Council has determined that making the following permanent
improvements described in this preliminary resolution is expedient and necessary in the best
interests of the City, its people, and the property affected.

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, that.

The Common Council declares its intent to exercise police powers granted to it by
law and adjudge that it is necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of the public
and affected property owners that a public work of improvement be made for the
installation of water main on the east frontage road of South Lovers Lane Road
from a point of connection at the intersection of West Herda Place to a point of
connection at the intersection of South Phyllis Lane.

2. The Common Council, in this process, exercises its power to levy special
assessments under its police power as authorized in Section 207-15 of the
Municipal Code and Section 66.070 I of the Wisconsin Statutes.

3 The Common Council further declares that all assessments may be paid in one (I)
payment when the work is completed, in the next succeeding tax roll, or in the
number of annual installments as determined by the Common Council.

4. The Common Council further declares that the amount assessed against any
property for this improvement shall be upon a reasonable basis as determined by
the Common Council.

5 The City Engineer and/or his authorized representative is directed to prepare the
report described in Section 207-15E. of the Municipal Code for the installation of
a sanitary sewer in the above location.



2025-RES (Special Assessment-Water Mam on
East Frontage Road of South Lovers Lane Road
Page 2

6 Upon completion of such report, the City Engineer and/or hrs authonzed
representative 1s directed to file a copy thereof 111 the Office of the City Clerk for
public mspect1on

7 The City Clerk 1s directed to schedule and give notice of a Public Heanng [note
set for July 1st, 2025, at 6 30 p m] to be conducted by the Mayor and Common
Council pursuant to Section 207-151 of the Mumcipal Code

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm on this
day of,2025 by Alderperson

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
thus day of,2025

APPROVED.

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Shurley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



~ AFFECTED PARCELS

Legend

Parcels
Tax Parcels

Administrative
Municipal Boundaries

Street Labels
Scale O Street Labels

Scale O Muni Labels

Scale 1 Street Labels

Scale 1 Muni Labels

Scale 2 Street Labels

Scale 2 Muni Labels

Scale 3 Street Labels

Scale 3 Muni Labels

Scale 4 Street Labels

Notes

0 150 300
Ee, ft

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping
site and is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may

or may not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.

MILWAUKEE COUNTY GIS AND LAND INFORMATION



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Supersede a State/Municipal
Financial Agreement for Improvements Related to a
Wisconsin Department of Transportation Project on
S. Lovers Lane (USH 45) from W. St. Martins Road
to W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) and Increase the

Amount to $502,500

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

G.

Background

Wisconsin Department of Transportation (W1sDOT) has planned and completed the des1gn of a project on S.
Lovers Lane (USH 45/STH 100) from W. St Martins Road to W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) [WisDOT project
2040-21-00/70] Construction could be bid as early as February 2026, however, construction is anticipated for
2027 On May 2, 2023, Common Council authorized a State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a
State/Mumcipal Mamtenance Agreement for improvements related to this project in the amount of $307,500
This amount was based on estimated project costs at the time of the agreement A public mvolvement meetmg
was held on January 30, 2024 and further engmeenng on the design from raSmith has essentially been
completed

Thus project wll include a 10 ft multi-use pathway that will complete the mssmng link on USH 45/ STH 100
from S 60 Street and contmued no11h to W College Avenue. The pathway was prevrnusly approved to be
constructed on the west side from W St Martms up to the Monastery entrance then the east side over the
bndge. The 1111tial State/Mumcipal Fmancial Agreement (SMFA) monumented this pathway and was adopted
through Resolution 2023-7980 for an amount of $307,500

Analysis

As the design of the proJect had progressed, the estnnated City costs has been refined and now is estnnated to
be $502,500 The future proJect schedule represents the followmg:

Public Involvement Meetmg #2 to be held 111 May 2025
Utility Relocations 2026
Advanceable let. Feb 1, 2026
Let Sept 15, 2026
Construction 2027

Staff recommends that the budget be mcreased and notes the followmg items·
1 Addition of the trail was at the request of the City and there has been much work Involved mn th1s

1nclus1on to the plans A decs1on to remove the project now would cause even more work on
WisDOT's part that the City would be obligated to compensate based on the previous SMFA

2 This crossing at the monastery will help warrant the crossmg for the monastery use
3 There 1s little change that the City could construct thus trail as easily or as inexpensively as having 1t

incorporated 1n the WsDOT project

Options
A Accept the mcrease amount and authorize the s1gnmg of a new SMFA
B Notify W1sDOT that the mcrease is not acceptable and determme the amount due to compensate for

their efforts already mvested and efforts to remove the path from the project



Fiscal Note
The City wll need to reimburse the pathway costs at 50% ($402,500) of the total estimated costs The
crosswalk and flashmg beacon system that 1s planned at the monastery will need to be reimbursed by the City at
100% ($100,000) These costs are 62% eligible for the use of accumulated park impact fees and have been
added to the Capital Improvement Plan for 2026/2027 The eligible fundmg for park impact fees 1s $311,550
with $190,950 neeclmg to be paid for through local budgeted fundmg.

I

(Opt10n A) Adopt Resolution 2025- a Resolution to Supersede a State/Municipal Fmancial
Agreement for Improvements related to a Wisconsmn Department of Transportation Project on S Lovers
Lane (USH 45) from W St Martuns Road to W Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) and Increase the Amount to
$502,500

Engmeenng Dept- MP/KW

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025---

RESOLUTION TO SUPERSEDE A STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR
IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO A WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROJECT ON S LOVERS LANE (USH 45) FROM W ST MARTINS ROAD TO W
RAWSON AVENUE (CTH BB) AND INCREASE THE AMOUNT TO $502,500

WHEREAS. the Wisconsin Department Transportation (WIsDOT) 1s designing a
transportat10n proJect for S Lovers Lane (USH 45) from W St Martms Road to W Rawson
Avenue (CTH BB) circa 2026-2027, and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklm desires amemt1es to be added for the benefit of a 10 ft
multi-use pathway, and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklm will mamtain these facilities once constructed by the
WsDOT; and

WHEREAS, Resolution 2023-7980 authonzed a State/Mumcipal Fmancrnl Agreement and
a State/Municipal Mamtenance Agreement wnth WIsDOT for thus project m the amount of
$307,500, and

WHEREAS. on Apnl 15, 2025, Common Council discussed an mcrease m the estunated
costs and gave direct1on to WIsDOT to proceed with the project, and

WHEREAS, the plans have progressed to the pomt of estabhshmg a more probable
construct10n costs of $502,500

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Franklm will enter mnto a
State/Municipal Fmnanc1al Agreement with the Wisconsmn Department of Transportation that
supersedes an agreement signed on May 10, 2023

Resolut10n mtroduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
th1s day of>2025.

Passed at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm this __ day
of ,2025---------

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



5/5/25, 12:40 PM Wisconsin Department of Transportation US 45 (Lovers Lane Road) Resurfacing (St. Martins Rd to Rawson Ave) - Milwaukee County

State of Wisconsin
Department of Transportation

o OX [ @

US 45 (Lovers Lane Road)
Resurfacing (St. Martins Rd to
Rawson Ave) - Milwaukee
County

Southeast Region

t

Overview

f.,n,, y RASONAE

...WW0ELFEL RD

The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is proposing a
resurfacing project on US 45 (Lovers Lane Road) between St. Martins
Road and County BB (Rawson Avenue) in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County.

Proposed Project Details
The purpose of the proposed project is to address deteriorating
pavement, outdated traffic signal equipment, drainage maintenance
concerns, and multimodal issues. Improvements include:

• Resurface pavement throughout project limits.
• Replace traffic signals.

https://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/projects/by-region/se/45resurface/default.aspx 1/3



5/5/25, 12:40 PM Wisconsin Department of Transportation US 45 (Lovers Lane Road) Resurfacing (St. Mart ins Rd to Rawson Ave) - Milwaukee County

• Regrade ditches at spot locations.
• Construct a shared-use path along US 45.

Public Involvement
WisDOT hosted a Public Involvement Meeting on Tuesday, January 30,
2024. The meeting was held at the Franklin Public Library at 9151 W.

Loomis Road. Below are the documents provided at the meeting:

• Meeting handout with comment form
• Project Map

Schedule
Construction is tentatively scheduled for 2026.

Status
Design phase - Do you have any comments or questions? We'd like
to hear from you! Please feel free to contact the project representatives
below.

Contacts
Justin Suydam, P.E.
WisDOT Southeast Region
(262) 548-8745
justin.suydam@dot.wi.gov

Caleb Manske, P.E.
raSmith Design Consultant
(262) 317-3332
caleb.manske@rasmith.com

https://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/pro jects/by-region/se/45resurface/default.aspx 2/3



5/5/25, 12.40 PM Wisconsin Department of Transportation US 45 (Lovers Lane Road) Resurfacing (St. Martins Rd to Rawson Ave) - Milwaukee County

https://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/projects/by-region/se/45resurface/default.aspx 3/3



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendatons

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Execute State/Municipal Financial Agreement and
A State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement for Improvements

Related to A Wisconsin Department of Transportation Project On
S. Lovers Lane (USH 45) from W. St. Martins Road to W, Rawson

Avenue (CTH BB) in the amount of $307,500

MTG. DATE
2 23

G.le

BACKGROUND
W1sconsm Department of Transportation (WISDOT) 1s plannng a project on S Lovers Lane (USH
45 I STH 100) from W St. Martms Road to W Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) Construction could
be bid as early as May 2026, however construction 1s anticipated 1n 2027 WISDOT 1s progressing
on the des1gn and has a State/Mun1c1pal Financial Agreement and a State/Mun1c1pal Maintenance
Agreement ready for execution.

ANALYSIS
Ths project wll include sidewalk (multi-use pathway) that the City of Franklin wll need to
reimburse at 50% cost There 1s also a crosswalk and flashing beacon system planned at the
monastery that the City will need to reimburse at 100%. The total cost to the City of Franklm 1s
expected to be $307,500

This proJect would complete a m1ssmg lmk m the pathway to be constructed on USH 45 / STH
100 from S 60th Street and continued north to W College Avenue These costs are eligible for
Park Impact Funds

The attached agreements commit Franklm to pay for and mamntamn part1c1patmng elements mn the1r
project

OPTIONS
Execute agreements or change mmd on extension of the pathway

FISCAL NOTE
This $307,500 commitment will be added to the Fund 46 Capital Improvement Plan for 2026

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution 2023- a resolution to execute State/Municipal Financial
Agreement and a State/Mumc1pal Mamtenance Agreement for improvements related to a
W1scons111 Department of Transportation proJect on S Lovers Lane (USH 45) from W St Martms
Road to W Rawson Avenue (CTI-I BB) mn the amount of $307,500

Engmeermg Department GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ---

A RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT AND A
STATE/MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO

A WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT ON
S. LOVERS LANE (USH 45) FROM W. ST. MARTINS ROAD TOW. RAWSON AVENUE

(CTI-I BB) IN THE AMOUNT OF $307,500

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department of Transportation is designing a transportation proJect
for S. Lovers Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) from W. St. Martins Road to W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB)
circa 2026-2027, and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin desires amenities to be added for the benefit of a multi-use
pathway; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin will maintain these facilities once constructed by WisDOT.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Franklin will enter into a
State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for the partial payment and full maintenance of these City
facilities located within the State right-of-way.

Introduced at a regular order meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklm this
day of_ 2023by

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

C \Users\srober ts\AppData\L.ocal\Microsoft\Widows\lNetCache\Content Outlook\GL2WO WFQres Lovers Lane SMF and SMA wth



STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT FOR A STATE- LET

HIGHWAY PROJECT

Date February 24, 2023
1.D 2040-21-00/70
Road Name: USH 45
Title C FRANKLIN, LOVERS LANE ROAD
Limits: ST MARTINS RD TO RAWSON AV (CTH
BB)
County Mlwaukee
Roadway Length. 1 57 miles

The signatory City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Municipality, through 1ts undersigned duly authorized
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of W1sconsm Department of Transportation, heremafler called the
State, to 1mtmte and affect the highway or street improvementheremafter described

The authonty for the Municipality to enter into thus agreement wth the State ts provded by Sect1on 86 25(1), (2),
and (3) of the Statutes

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY·

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request Improvement

Proposed I mprnvement - Nature of work: As detennmed by project scopmg

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality· A nommal amount 1s mcluded to
cover I terns 111 paragraph 4 (to be adjusted m the final plan).

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS
Total Federal/State Municlpal

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

Preliminary Engineenng
Plan Development $ 510,000 $ 510,000 100% $ 0%

1Constructlon
Roadway $ 5,400,000 $ 5,400,000 100% $
New Sidewalk $ 485,000 $ 242,500 50% $ 242,500 50%

Non-Participating $ 65,000 $ $ 65,000 100%

Total Cost Distribution $ 6,460,000 $ 6,152,500 $ 307,500
1 Estimates include construction engineering

Tl11S request shall constitute agreement between the Mumc1pahty and the State, 1s subJect to the terms and
cond1t1ons that follow (pages 2-4), 1s made by the undersigned under proper authonty to make such request for
the designated Muncipahty, upon signature by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State
Mu111c1pal Mamtenance Agreement and delivery to the Municipality. The mutration and accomplishment of the
improvement wll be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or prov1son of nether the
State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any of tts attachments may be changed, waved or terminated orally
but only by an instrument mn writing executcd by both parties to the State/Municipal Financial Agreement

Central File Planming)Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page I of4 ID 2040-21-00/70 - SE Region



Signed for and in behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue Ink)

Name (print) John R Nelson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (print) Karen L Kastenson Title City Clerk

Signature Date

Provisions have been made to pay the labilty thatwill accrue under this contract

Name (orint\ Tom Bakalarski Title· Interim Comotroller and Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (pnnt) Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

Sianature Date

Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Tony Barth Title WisDOT SE Reaion Plannina Chief

Signature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The Murnc1pahty shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State m connection with the improvement
which exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are mnehgible for federal/state financmng Local
participation shall be lmted to the items and percentages set forth m the Summary of Costs table, which
shows Municipal funding participation. In order to guarantee the Mum1c1pal1ty's foregoing agreements to pay
the State, the Muncipalty, through its above duly authorzed officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the
State to set off and withhold the reqmred reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General
Transportation Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Mumcipal1ty.

2 Funding of each project phase 1s subject to inclusion mn an approved program and per the State's Facility
Development Manual (FDM) standards Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing wll be [muted
to participation 1n the costs of the following Items as specified mn the Summary ofCosts

(a) Des1gn engineering and state review services

(b) Real Estate necessitated for the unprovement

(c) Compensable ut1hty adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project

(d) The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excludmng the cost of
parking areas

Central File PlannmgProject Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 2 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70-- SE Region



(e) Storm sewer mamns, culverts, laterals, manholes, mlets, catch basms, and connections for surface water
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer
manhole covers and mlet grates as needed

(f) Construction engmneering Incidental to mnspect1on and supervision ofactual construction work, except for
inspection, stakmg, and testmg ofsamtary sewer and water mam.

(g) Sgnung and pavement markmng necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, including detour
routes

(h) Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construclJon ofnew sidewalk at the
tune of construction Sidewalk 1s considered to be new if it's constructed m a location where it has not
existed before.

(i) Replacement ofexisting dnveways, m kmd, necessitated by the proJect

0) New installations or alterat10n resultmg from roadway construction of standard State street lighting and
traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement ofexisting components

3 Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Mumc1pahty or other utility or
facility owne1 mcludes the following items.

(a) New mstallations of or alteration of samtary sewers and connect10ns, water, gas, electnc, telephone,
telegraph, fire or pohce alarm faclutes, parking meters, and similar ut1ht1es.

(b) New mstallat10n or alteration ofsigns not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic

(c) Roadway and bndge width in excess ofstandards.

(d) Construction mspect10n, stakmg, and matenal testmg and acceptance for construct10n of samta1y
sewer and water mam.

(e) Provde complete plans, specifications, and estimates for samtary sewer and water mam work The
Mun1c1pahty assumes full responsibility for the design, mstallation, mspect10n, testmg, and operation of
the sanitary sewer and water system. This relieves the State and all of its employees from the liab1l1ty
for all smts, actions, or claims resultmg from the samtary sewer and water system construction

(f) Parkmg lane costs.

(g) Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous matenals encountered for city ut1hty construction All
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations

4 As the work progresses, the Municipality will be billed for work completed which is not chargeable to
federal/state funds. Upon completion ofthe project, a final audit will be made to determme the final d1vis1on of
costs

5 1Fthe Municipality should withdraw the project, 1t shall remmburse the State for any costs Incurred by the State
m behalf ofthe proJect.

6 The work wll be administered by the State and may Include 1tems not eligible for federal/state participation

7 The Municipality shall, mn cooperation with the State, assist with publc relations for the project and
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the
community of the nature, extent, and t1mmg of the project and arrangements for handling traffic within and
around the project

8 Basis for local participation:

(a) Funding for prehmmary engmeenng 100% State

Central File Plannmg\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee County Page 3 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70 - SE Region



(b) Funding for construction of standard roadway items - 100% State.

(c) Funding for new sidewalk, 50% State 50% Mumc1pahty. The Mumc1pahty agrees to maintain the multi
use path

(d) Fundmg for non-parhc1patmg items mcludmg ladder crosswalk markmg and flashing beacon systems
100% Mum1crpalty

Comments and Clanficat1on_ This agreement is an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project
1s designed. It 1s understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated
or resolved The purpose of thus agreement is to specify the local and state involvement in fundmg the project
A signed agreement ts required before the State will prepare or participate m the preparation of detaiied designs,
acquire right-of-way, or participate m construction ofa project that merits local involvement.

Central File Plarnung\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee County Page 4of 4 I 2040-21-00/70 - SE Region



STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL
AGREEMENT FOR A STATE- LET

HIGHWAY PROJECT

Date· February 24, 2023
1D 2040-21-00/70
Road Name· USH 45
Title: C FRANKLIN, LOVERS LANE ROAD
Limits ST MARTINS RD TO RAWSON AV (CTH
BB)
County: Milwaukee
Roadway Length· 1 57 miles

The signatory City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Mumc1pahty, through its undersigned duly authonzed
officers 01 officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the
State, to mntate and affect the hghway or street Improvement hereinafter described.

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State 1s provded by Section 86 25(1), (2),
and (3) of the Statutes

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY

Existing Facility - Describe and give 1·eason fo1· request Improvement

Proposed Improvement - Nature ofwork: As determined by project scoping

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality A nommal amount 1s included to
cover items in paragraph 4 (to be adjusted m the final plan)

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS
Total Federal/State Munlclpal

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

Preliminary Engineering
Plan Development $ 510,000 $ 510,000 100% $ - 0%

'construction
Roadway $ 5,400,000 $ 5,400,000 100% $ -
NVew Sidewalk $ 485,000 $ 242,500 50% $ 242,500 50%

Non-Participating $ 65,000 $ - $ 65,000 100%

Total Cost Distribution $ 6,460,000 $ 6,152,500 $ 307,500
1 Estimates include construction eng,neenng

This request shall constitute agreement between the Mumc1pahty and the State, 1s subject to the terms and
conditions that follow (pages 2-4), 1s made by the undersigned under proper authonty to make such request for
the designated Mumcpahty, upon sgnaturc by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State
Municipal Mantenance Agreement and delivery to the Mumcpalty. The 1tiaton and accomplishment of the
Improvement wll be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or provs1on of neither the
State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waved or temmnated orally
but only by an instrument in wntmng executed by both parties to the State/Mum1cipal Financial Agreement

Central Fle Planning)Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 1 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70 - SE Region



Signed for and in behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue ink)

Name (print) John R. Nelson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (print) Karen L Kastenson Title City Clerk

Signature Date

Provisions have been made to pay the liability that will accrue under this contract

Name (pnnt) Tom Bakalarsk Title: Interim Comptroller and Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (pnnt) Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

Signature - .Date

Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Tony Barth Title WisDOT SE Region Planning Chief

Signature Date

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

I. The Municipality shall pay lo the Stale all costs incurred by the Stale in connection with the improvement
which exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are inehgible for federal/state financing. Local
pa111cipatlon shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary of Costs table, which
shows Mumc1pal funding paitic1patton. In order to guarantee the Municipality's foregoing agreements to pay
the State, the Mun1c1pahty, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authonzes the
State to set off and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General
Transpo1tat1on Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Mun1c1pahty

2 Fundmng of each project phase ts subject to inclusion mn an approved program and per the State's Facility
Development Manual (FDM) standards Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financ111g will be limited
to paiiic1pation in the costs of the following items as specified in the Summary ofCosts·

(a) Design engmneenng and state review services.

(b) Real Estate necessitated for the improvement.

(c) Compensable ut1hty ad1ustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project.

(d) The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excluding the cost of
parkmng areas

Central File PlannmgProyect Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 2 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70 - SE Region



(e) Storm sewer mamns, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basms, and connections for surface water
drainage of the improvement; mcludmg replacement and/or adjustments of ex1stmg storm sewer
manhole covers and inlet grates as needed

(f) Construct1on engineering Incidental to inspect1on and supervision of actual construction work, except fo1
mspection, stakmg, and testmg ofsamtary sewer and water main

(g) Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, mcludmg detour
routes

(h) Replacement of ex1stmg sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the
time of construction. Sidewalk 1s considered to be new If it's constructed mn a location where 1t has not
existed before.

(l) Replacement of existing driveways, mn kind, necessitated by the project.

U) New mstallat1ons or alteration resultmg from roadway construction of standard State street hghtmg and
traffic signals or devtces. Alteration may mclude salvagmg and replacement ofexastmng components.

3 Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entrely by the Municipalty or other utlty or
facility owner includes the followmg items:

(a) New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electnc, telephone,
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utiht1es.

(b) New mstallation or alteratton ofs1gns not necessary for the safe and efficient flow oftraffic.

(c) Roadway and bndge width in excess ofstandards

(d) Construction mnspecton, staking, and matenal testing and acceptance for construction of sanitary
sewer and water main.

(e) Provide complete plans, specificattons, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water mam wo1k The
Mumc1pahty assumes full responsibility for the design, mstallation, inspection, testmg, and operation of
the sanitary sewer and water system This relieves the State and all of its employees from the liability
for all suits, actions, or claims resultmg from the samtary sewer and water system construction

(f) Paukmng lane costs

(g) Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous matenals encountered for city utthty construction All
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations

4 As the work progresses, the Muruc1pality will be billed for work completed which 1s not chargeable to
federal/state funds Upon completion ofthe project, a final audit will be made to determine the final drv1son of
costs

5 If the Municipal!ty should withdraw the project, rt shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State
m behalf of the project

6 The work wll be admustered by the State and may include items not elgble for federal/state partuc1pat1on

7 The Munipalty shall, mn cooperation wIth the State, assist with public relations for the project and
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the
community of the nature, extent, and timing of the proJect and ammgements for handlmg traffic withm and
around the proyect

8 Bas1s for local participation

(a) Fundmg for preltmmary engmeenng 100% State

Central File. Plannmg\ProJect Agreement\M1lwaukee County Page 3 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70- SE Region



(b) Funding for constructmn of standard roadway items - 100% State.

(c) Fundmg for new sidewalk, 50% State 50% Municipality. The Mumcipahty agrees to mamtam the multi
use path

(d) Fundmg for non-part1c1patmg items mcludmg ladder crosswalk markmg and flashmg beacon systems
100% Murnc1pahty.

Comments and Clanficatton This agreement s an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project
ts designed It ts understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated
or resolved The purpose ofth1s agreement 1s to specify the local and state Involvement in funding the project
A signed agreement 1s reqmred before the State wll prepare or participate mn the preparation of detailed designs,
acquire right-of-way, or participate mn construction of a proJect that men ts local mvolvement

Central File Planming\Project Agreement\Milwaukee County Page 4 of 4 ID 2040-21-00/70 -- SE Region



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Supersede a State/Municipal
Financial Agreement for an Infrastructure

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Project
for West Puetz Road Pathway in the Amount of

$440,000

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

G..
Background

Im1tual discussions on the Puetz Pathway Tral project began on August 15, 2023 On September 5, 2023,
Common Council directed staff to proceed with project development for Grant applications regarding the W.
Puetz Road Pathway from S 76 Street to W St Martuns Road The project costs at that time were roughly
$2 0 mull1on The Transportaton Alternative Program (TAP) grant became available and staff submitted the
grant application on October 27, 2023 The grant covers sigmficant costs for the project at 80% with 20% bemng
locally funded by the City On May 21, 2024, the City moved to execute a State/Mumcipal Agreement for the
Infrastructure TAP Project 111 the amount of $440,000

Analysis

The 1111tial Agreement dated May 13, 2024, had the followmg
Project Award date: TBD
Commencement deadline: TBD
Completion deadline: TBD

On May 1, 2025, the City received the 1revs1on to the State/Mun1c1pal Agreement to update the following
Project Award date design: August 28, 2024
Project Award date construction: June 4, 2024

Commencement deadline for design: August 28, 2028
Commencement deadline for construction: June 4, 2028

Completion deadline: June 30, 2033

Fiscal Note
The Puetz Pathway trail project has an estnnated design and construction budget of $2,200,000 with $1,760,000
funding from the grant (80%) and the remamnng $440,000 funding from local funding. Thus project 1s eligible
for 62% use of park mmpact fees ($272,800) leaving $167,200 1mpact to the City's future budget $340,000 for
des1gn services have been allocated mn the 2025 budget Future budgets wll represent the construction costs

There is no change to the funding requests and summary of costs on this updated State/Municipal
Agreement. There is only a update to the project deadlines.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Adopt Resolution 2025-__, a Resolution to Supersede a State/Mumcipal F111ancial Agreement for an
Infrastructure Alternatives Program (TAP) ProJect for West Puetz Road Pathway 111 the Amount of
$440.000

Engmneerg Dept-MNP/Finance Dept-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025---

A RESOLUTION TO SUPERSEDE A STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT
FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)

PROJECT FOR WEST PUETZ ROAD PATHWAY IN THE AMOUNT OF $440,000

WHEREAS, Wisconsm Department of Transportation (WisDOT) has awarded the City of
Franklm a Transpoi1atlon Alternatives Program (TAP) Pro.1ect grant for a pathway constructed
along West Puetz Road from West St Martms Road to South 76th Street, and

WHEREAS, thus section of West Puetz Road, covering a distance of 1 3 mules, 1s a crucial arterial
road connecting various neighborhoods and accommodating approximately 750 resident1al homes,
condominiums, and apartment units, and

WHEREAS, a State/Municipal Fmnanc1al Agreement was approved on May 21, 2024, and

WHEREAS, the only updates to the Agreement was related to the execution of dead I me dates

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Franklm will enter 111to a new
State/Municipal Fmnanc1al Agreement for $440,000 with updated deadline dates to supersede the previous
agreement

Resolution mtroduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
th1s day of>2025

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
th1s day of>2025

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Simley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



1t Revision
STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT
FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE
TRANSPORTATION
ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)
PROJECT
Subprogram # 290

Program Name TAP

FFY 2024 Redistribution (Design 01 ID)
2024-2028 TAP (Construction 71 ID)

This agreement supersedes the
agreement signed by the Mumc,pallty 111
June 4 & 6, 2024 and signed by the State
on August 29, 2024

Revised Date May 1, 2025

Date May 13, 2024

I D 2976-04-01/71

WisDOT UEI #: CBE4JHP1S8H7

Project Sponsor UEI #: TBD

FAIN ID: TBD

Project Tit le C FRANKLIN, PUETZ RD
PATHWAY

Locat1on/L1mIt S 76TH ST TO W ST MARTINS
RD

Project Length (if applicable) 1 3 Miles

Project Sponsor City of Franklin

County Milwaukee

MPO Area (if apphcable)· SEWRPC

The signatory, the City of Franklin, hereinafter called the ProJect Sponsor, through its undersigned duly
authorized officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter
called the State, to 1rntIate and effect the transportation project hereinafter described

Wisconsin Statute 85 021 authorizes the State to administer a program to award grants of assistance to certain
political subdvistons, state agencies, counties, local government unts, and Indian tribes consistent with federal
law 23 USC sec 213 (revised to 23 USC sec 133 per the FAST Act of 2015)

The authority for the Project Sponsor to enter into this State/Municipal Agreement with the State Is provided by
Sections 86 25(1), (2) and (3) and Section 66 0301(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY

All components of the project must be defined in the environmental document 1f any portion of the proiect will be
submitted for approval in a federally funded program The Project Sponsor agrees to complete all partIcIpating
and any non-participating work included in this improvement consistent with the environmental document No work
on final engineering and design may occur prior to approval of the environmental document

Existing Facility - Describe and gve reason for request Puetz Road is a busy arterial road wth no shoulders and
ditches which provide an unsafe option for bicycle and pedestrian use

Proposed Improvement - Nature of work Construct a 10ft separated pathway to accommodate bicycle and
pedestrian users

The Project Sponsor agrees to the following State Fiscal Year 2024-2028 TAP project funding condItIons

AI Project Sponsors and processes, including real estate acquisition and environmental documentation, must
comply with A Sponsor's Gwde to Non-Trad1flonal Transportation Project Implementation (Sponsor's Guide) and
the current WisDOT FacIhtIes Development Manual (FOM)

The subJect proiect Is funded with 80% federal funding up to a maximum of $1,760,000 for all federally-funded
project phases when the Project Sponsor agrees to provide funds in excess of the $1,760,000 federal funding
maximum, in accordance wth TAP guidelines Non-participating costs are 100% the responsibility of the Project
Sponsor Any work performed by the Project Sponsor prior to federal authorization Is not ehgIble for federal
funding The Project Sponsorwll be notified by the State when each project phase or ID is authorzed and available
for charging

PuetzPath CFranklm Page 1 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



The project Is subject to a discretionary Disadvantaged Busmess Enterprise (DBE) goal assessment The
Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number for thus project 1s 20 205 - Highway Planning and
Construction

The subject project must be commenced wIthIn four (4) years of the project award date, or the grant Is rescinded
Sec 85 021, Wis Stats

1) For construction projects, a project Is commenced when construction Is begun
2) For planning projects, a planning project is commenced when the planning study Is begun
3) For non-infrastructure projects that do not fall within any of the above categories, a project Is considered

commenced on the date that the State receives the first reimbursement request from the Project
Sponsor, as noted on form DT1713 mn the 'Date Received' field

Project Award date design: August 28, 2024
Project Award date construction: June 4, 2024

Commencement deadline for design: August 28, 2028
Commencement deadline for construction: June 4, 2028

Completion deadline: June 30, 2033

The project commencement deadline is fixed by statute and may not be extended.

The subject project must be completed by June 30, 2033, and the PrQJect Sponsor must submit a project
completion certificate to the State central office on or before this date The State may consider a written request
to extend the completion deadline from the Project Sponsor and may approve such a request In the presence of
extenuating circumstances The wntten request shall explain the reasons for project ImplementatIon delay and
revised timeline for project completion

In the summary funding table below, the federal share of the total estimated cost d1stnbut1on IndIcates the
maximum amount of federal funding available to the project, to be d1stnbuted across federally-funded project
phases The final Project Sponsor share Is dependent on the final federal part1cIpat1on, and the actual costs will
be used mn the final division of costs for billing and reimbursement

SUMMARY OF COSTS

Project
Total Est. Federal Sponsor

PHASE Cost Funds % Funds %
ID 2976-04-01
Design $320 000 $256 000 80%° $64 000 BAL*
Design Review # $20 000 $16 000 80%° $4 000 BAL'

2976-04-01 Subtotal $340,000 $272,000 $68,000
1D 2976-04-71
Participating Construction $1 840 000 $1472000 80% $368 000 BAL
Participating Construction Review # $20 000 $16,000 80%° $4 000 BAL*
Non-Participating Construction $0 0% $0 100%

2976-04-71 Subtotal $1,860,000 $1,488,000 $372,000

Total Est. Cost Distribution $2,200,000 $1,760,000 MAX $440,000 N/A
This project has a TAP federal funding maximum of $1 760 000 Thus maximum is cumulative for
all federally funded project phases
# Revew costs are administered and paid for by WsDOT The Project Sponsor will be billed for any required
local match and for costs beyond the cumulative federal funding

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 2 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



This request 1s subject to the terms and cond1t1ons that follow (pages 3-10) and is made by the undersigned under
proper authority to make such request for the designated Project Sponsor and upon signature by the State shall
constitute agreement between the Project Sponsor and the State No term or prov1s1on of neither this
State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally but only by
an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties to this State/Municipal Agreement

Signed for and in behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign in blue ink)

Name (print) John R Nelson Title Mavor

Signature Date

Name (print) Shirley J Roberts Title Citv Clerk

Signature Date

Prov1s1ons have been made to pay the hab1hty that will accrue under this contract

Name (print) Danielle L Brown Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execution

Name (print) Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

S1anature Date

Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink)

Name Tony Barth Title WisDOT SE Reaion Plannina Chief

Signature Date

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1 All projects must be m an approved Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP) prior to requesting authorization

2 Work prior to federal authorization 1s 1nehg1ble for federal funding The Project Sponsor will be notified by the
State when each project phase or ID 1s authorized and available for charging

3 The 1n1t1at1on and accomplishment of the project will be subject to the apphcable federal and state regulations,
as referenced in the document A Sponsor's Guide to Non-Traditional Project Implementation The Project
Sponsor, throughout the entire project commits to comply with and promote all applicable federal and state
laws and regulations that include, but are not limited to, the following

a Environmental requirements, including but not limited to those set forth mn 23 U S C 139 and the
National Environmental Polley Act (42 USC 4321 et seq)

PuetzPath CFranklin Page 3 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



b Equal protection guaranteed under the U S Constitution, WI Constitution, Title VI of the C1v1I Rights
Act and Wis Stat Sec 16 765 The Project Sponsor agrees to comply with and promote applicable
Federal and State laws Executive Orders regulations, and implementing requirements intended to
provide for the fair and equitable treatment of md1v1duals and the fair and equitable delivery of
services to the public In add1t1on the Project Sponsor agrees not to engage In any illegal
dIscrimmat1on m v1olat1on of applicable Federal or State laws and regulations This includes but Is
not lIm1ted to Title VI of the C1v1I Rights Act of 1964 which provides that "no person In the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from part1c1patIon In, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity recervmng
Federal financial assistance" The Project Sponsor agrees that public funds, which are collected In
a nond1scrim1natory manner, should not be used in ways that subs1d1ze, promote, or perpetuate
Illegal discrimination based on prohibited factors such as race, color, national origin, sex, age,
physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or retaliation

c All applicable DBE requirements that the State specifies

d Federal and state statutes that govern the Transportation Alternatives Program 1nclud1ng 23 USC
sec 213 (revised to 23 U S C sec 133 per the FAST Act of 2015)

4 Add1t1onal applicable state and federal requirements may include, but are not limited to, the following

a Prevailing wage requirements, including but not limited to 23 U S C 113 and Wis Stat Sec 103 50

b Buy America Prov1s1on and its equivalent state statutes, set forth mn 23 U S C 313 and Wis Stat
Sec 16 754

c Compet1t1ve bidding requirements set forth mn 23 USC 112 and Wis Stat Sec 84 06

STATE RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS:

5 Funding for the project is subject to inclusion mn Wisconsin's approved Transportation Alternatives Program
Federal funding will be limited to part1c1patlon m the costs of the following items, as applicable to the project

a The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, and replacement of disturbed driveways In
kmnd

b Storm sewer mains necessary for the surface water drainage

c Catch basins and inlets for surface water drainage of the improvement, with connections to the storm
sewer main

d Construction engmeenng 1nc1dent to inspection and superv1s1on of actual construction work (except
for Inspect1on, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main)

e Signing and pavement marking, including marking of detour routes Detour routes and haul roads
are not eligible on local projects

f New mstallat1ons or alteration of street lighting and traffic signals or devices

g Landscaping

h Preliminary Engineering

State Review Services

Other eligible TAP non-infrastructure items as enumerated in the approved application

6 Project items purchased with federal funding are for the primary use of the Transportation Alternatives
Program

PuetzPath CFranklin Page 4 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



7 State Disbursements

a Payment by the State to the Project Sponsor shall be made on a regular basis upon presentation of
Reimbursement Requests for expenditures incurred during prior periods of the project duration
subject to the allowable maximum payment Exceptions to this schedule will be made as appropriate
In general, State reimbursements will be made after sufficient proof of payment is sent to the state

b A final adjustment of state payments will be made upon completion of the State's audit of the project
If the State's audit establishes that the State paid more than its share of the elIgIble project costs,
the Project Sponsor shall refund to the State upon demand a sum equal to the overpayment

PROJECT SPONSOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS:

8 Work necessary to complete the TAP project to be financed entirely by the ProJect Sponsor or other utIlIty or
facility owner includes the items listed below, when applicable to the project

a New 1nstallat1ons of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone,
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities

b Damages to abutting property after project completion due to change in street or sidewalk widths, grades
or drainage

c Detour routes and haul roads The Project Sponsor ts responsible for determining the detour route

d Real estate for the improvement

e Construction engineering for inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main

f Conditioning, if required and maintenance of detour routes

g Repair of damages to roads or streets caused by reason of their use in hauling materials Inc1dent to the
improvement

h All work related to underground storage tanks and contaminated srnls

1 Street and bridge width in excess of standards, mn accordance with the current WisDOT Fac1l1t1es
Development Manual (FDM)

9 The work eligible for Federal and State participation will be administered by the Project Sponsor The Project
Sponsor Is an eligible recipient of these grant funds pursuant to Wis Stat Sec 85 021 and all applicable
federal laws 23 USC sec 213 (revised to 23 U SC sec 133 per the FAST Act of 2015)

10 Where applicable, all contracts will be let by compet1tIve bid and awarded to the lowest responsible bidder In
accordance with the requirements set forth in 23 U S C 112and Wis Stat Sec 84 06 Where applicable, all
contracts for design related services shall be awarded and administered in accordance with the requirements
of 23 CFR 172 and procedures published in the Wisconsin Department of Transportation FacIlItIes
Development Manual (FDM) Chapter 8, Consulting Services

11 The Project Sponsor must receive, read, and agree to meet the requirements outlined mn the Sponsor's Gude
to Non-Traditional Transportation Project Implementation The Project Sponsor must IndIcate this
understanding and agreement by submitting the Sponsor's Gutde Acknowledgement Form, which must be
accepted by the State before approval of this State/Municipal Agreement shall be granted

12 The Project Sponsor must complete and submit Certification for Non-Traditional Project Administration and
Det,very documentation and this documentation must be accepted by the State, before approval of this
State/Mun1c1pal Agreement shall be granted The Project Sponsor, and all consultants and other entItIes

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 5 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



working on behalf of the Project Sponsor, are required to comply with the federal and state rules and
requirements for projects being administered through a local letting process

13 The project, in accordance with its scope, must employ the services of a registered professional engineer,
architect or landscape architect, to be responsible for design and construction engineering and related
activities

14 A copy of the plans, specIficat1ons, and estimates containing the engineer's, architect's, or landscape
architect's seal as prepared for bidding purposes (In accordance with project scope) must be provided to the
State for approval prior to advertismg the project for bids

15 The improvement will take place mn accordance with the appropriate standards unless an exception to
standards Is granted by the State prior to construction The entire cost of the construction project, not
constructed to standards, will be the responsIb11ity of the Project Sponsor unless such exception Is granted

16 Work to be performed by the Project Sponsor without Federal funding partIcIpatIon, necessary to ensure a
complete improvement acceptable to the Federal Highway AdmInistrat1on and/or the State may be done In a
manner at the election of the Project Sponsor but must be coordinated with all other work undertaken during
construction

47 The Project Sponsor rs responsible for financing administrative expenses related to Project Sponsor
responsibilities

18 The project is subject to a d1scret1onary DBE goal assessment

19 The Project Sponsor will not proceed with any State/Municipal Agreement revisions without first recervmng
prior approval from the State A change order must be executed for revisions to the State/Municipal
Agreement prior to the Project Sponsor's request for reimbursement for the revIsIons

20 If reviews or audits show any of the work to be Ineligible for Federal funding, the Project Sponsor will be
responsible for any withdrawn costs associated wth the ineligible work

21 If the Project Sponsor should withdraw the project, It will reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the
State on behalf of the project upon demand

22 Sponsors of TAP projects w1thIn the Safe Routes to School elig1b11ity category are required to conduct pre
and post project/act1v1ty surveys using the SRTS Parent Survey and Student Tally Sheets The results will be
provided to the State at the conclusion of the project

23 The Project Sponsor will assume all respons1b1hty for retaining a complete project file that includes not only
construction documentation but also copies of letting documents, all Local and State submittals and approvals
contained In these instructions and other pertinent documents to support project procurement, development,
ImplementatIon and cost and any other item required by 49 CFR part 18 and submItt1ng such InformatIon,
upon request, in order to receive reimbursement The Project Sponsor will keep all project records and have
them available for mspect1on by representatives of the Federal Government and the State and will furnish
copies thereof when requested

24 The Project Sponsor shall allow the State and US Department of Transportation auditors to have access to
the Project Sponsor's records and financial statements as necessary for determining the presence of and
comphance with all information and requirements specified m 2 CFR 200 332-(a) as amended effective
November 12, 2020

25 In connection with the performance of work under this State/Municipal Agreement, the Project Sponsor agrees
not to discriminate agamst any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, relIgIon, color,
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined In S 51 01(5), sexual orientation or
national origin This provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following employment, upgrading,
demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or term1natIon, rates of pay or other forms
of compensation, and selection for training, mcludmg apprent1cesh1p Except with respect to sexual
orientation, the Project Sponsor further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure equal employment

PuetzPath CFranklIn Page 6 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



opportunIt1es The Project Sponsor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available for employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the employment officer setting forth the provIsIons of
the nondiscrimination clause

26 The Project Sponsor will include in all contracts executed by them a provIsIon obligating the contractor not to
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, relIgIon, color,
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined in s 51 01 (5), sexual orientation as
defined In s 11132 (13m), or national orgin

27 When applicable to the project, the Project Sponsor will at its own cost and expense

a Maintain all portions of the project that lie within its jurisdiction (to include, but not limited to, cleaning
storm sewers, removing debris from sumps or inlets, and regular maintenance of the catch basins,
curb and gutter, parking lanes, bicycle lanes, trails, and other fac1ht1es, sidewalks and other
pedestrian fac1ht1es, and other project infrastructure) for such maintenance through statutory
requirements in a manner satisfactory to the State, and will make ample provIsIon for such
maintenance each year

b Regulate [or prohibit] parking at all times in the vicinity of the proposed improvements during their
construction

c Regulate [or proh1bIt] all parking at locations where and when the pavement area usually occupied
by parked vehicles will be needed to carry active traffic in the street

d Assume general responsibility for all public information and public relations for the project and to
make fitting announcement to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected
property owners and the community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements
for handling traffic within and around the projects

e Provide relocation orders and real estate plats and easements, as required by the project

f Use the WsDOT Utility Accommodation Polcy unless rt adopts a policy, which has equal or more
restrictive controls

g Provide maintenance and energy for lighting

h Provide proper care and maintenance of all landscaping elements of the project 1nclud1ng
replacement of any plant materials damaged by disease, drought, vandalism or other cause

28 It is further agreed by the Project Sponsor that

a The Project Sponsor assumes full responsIbIhty for the design, installation, testing and operation of
any sanitary sewer and water main infrastructure within the improvement project and relieves the
State and all of its employees from liability for all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary
sewer and water main construction under this State/Municipal Agreement

b The Project Sponsor assumes full respons1b1hty for the plans and special provIsIons provided by
their designer or anyone hired, contracted or otherwise engaged by the Project Sponsor The
Project Sponsor 1s responsible for any expense or cost resulting from any error or omIssIon In such
plans or spec1al provisions The Project Sponsor will reimburse the State tf the State incurs any
cost or expense in order to correct or otherwise remedy such error or omIssIon or consequences of
such error or omsston

c The Project Sponsor will be 100% responsible for all costs associated wth utility Issues Involving
the Contractor, including costs related to utility delays

d All signs and traffic control devices and other protective structures erected on or In connection with
the project including such of these as are installed at the sole cost and expense of the Project
Sponsor or by others, will be In conformity with such "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" as

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 7 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



may be adopted by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials,
approved by the State, and concurred in by the Federal Highway Adm1nistrat1on

29 The subject project must be completed by the proIect completion date, listed on page 2 of this agreement,
and the Project Sponsor must submit a project completion certificate to WisDOT central office on or before
this date The State may consider a written request to extend the completion deadline from the Project
Sponsor and may approve such a request in the presence of extenuating circumstances The written request
shall explain the reasons for project implementation delay and revised tmmeline for project completion

LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS:

30 Respons1b1l1ty for Damage and Tort Claims The Project Sponsor and the Project Sponsor's surety shall
indemnify and save harmless the State, its officers and employees, from all suits, actions or claims of any
character brought because of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons or
property on account of the operations of the Project Sponsor, or on account of or mn consequence of any
neglect 1n safeguarding the work, or because of any act or omIssIon, neglect or misconduct of the Project
Sponsor, or because of any claims or amounts recovered for any infringement by the Project Sponsor of
patent, trademark or copyright, or from any claims or amounts ansing or recovered under the Worker's
Compensation Act, relating to the Project Sponsor's employees, or any other law, ordinance, order or decree
relating to the Project Sponsor's operations So much of the money due the Project Sponsor under and by
virtue of the contract as shall be considered necessary by the State for such purposes, may be retained for
the use of the State, or, in case no money or insufficient money Is retained, the Project Sponsor's surety may
be held until such suit or suits, action or actions, clamm or clamms for inures or damages as aforesaid shall
have been settled and sU1table evidence to that effect furnished to the State, except that money due the
Project Sponsor will not be withheld when the Project Sponsor produces satisfactory evidence that the Project
Sponsor is adequately protected by public liability and property damage insurance The Project Sponsor also
shall comply with all of the above requirements indemnifying and saving harmless the county, town, or
municIpalIty In which the improvement Is made and each of them separately or Jointly and officers and
employees

The State shall not be liable to the Proiect Sponsor for damages or delays resulting from work by third parties
The State also shall be exempt from hab1lIty to the Project Sponsor for damages or delays resulting from
Injunctions or other restraining orders obtained by third parties except where the damage or delay Is a direct
result of an injunction or restraining order obtained by a crtzen's action alleging violations of 42 U SC 4331
- 4332, 23 USC 138 or Public Law 91-646

It shall be the Project Sponsor's responsIb11ity to see that all of the contract operations 1nc1dent to the
completion of the contract are covered by public hab1hty and property damage hab1hty insurance so the general
public or any representative of the contracting authority may have recourse against a responsible party for
mjunes or damages sustained as a result of the contract operations This requirement shall apply with equal
force, whether the work Is performed by the ProJect Sponsor, by a subcontractor or by anyone directly or
1nd1rectly employed by either of them

lt is the express intent of this provision that a Project Sponsor that is a county, town or municipality may and
should contractually pass on this entire ResponsIbI1ity for Damage and Tort Claims prov1s1on to any public
and private entities wth which it may subcontract any of the work covered by this State/Municipal Agreement

a The word "surety" in the above paragraphs refers to the issuer of a payment and performance
bond under Wis Stat Sec 779 14

b Nothing in this section should be construed as a waiver of any statutory defenses that may be
available to any governmental party

31 The Project Sponsor, also known as the primary partIcIpant, as that term Is defined m 49 CFR Part 29,
certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its principals, as that term 1s defined 1n 49 CFR
Part 29

a Are not currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared mel1g1ble or voluntarily
excluded by any State ofWisconsin or Federal department or agency,

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 8 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



b Have not, within a three-year period preceding thus State/Municipal Agreement, been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public (Federal, State or Local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction, vIolatIon of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or comm1ssIon of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, fals1ficat1on or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

c Are not currently 1nd1cted for or otherwise criminally or cIvIlly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or Local) with commIss1on of any of the offenses enumerated above,

d Have not within a three-year period preceding this State/Municipal Agreement had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or Local) terminated for cause or default, and

e That all grantees, contractors, and suppliers, including what Is also known as lower tier
part1cIpants as that term Is used in 49 CFR Part 29 and the Appendix to Part 29 -- Covered
Transactions, have certified in writing that neither they or their principals are currently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment or suspension, have been declared InelIg1ble, or have
voluntarily been excluded from partIcIpating in this or any other Federal, State or Local transaction
by any Federal, State or Local department, agency or official

32 Contract Mod1ficat1on This State/Munrc,pa/ Agreement can only be modified by written instruments duly
executed by both parties No term or provision of nether thus State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its
attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally

33 BIndIng Effects All terms of this State/Municipal Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits
of the legal representatives, successors and executors No rights under this State/Municipal Agreement may
be transferred to a third party This State/Municipal Agreement creates no third- party beneficiary rights to be
held by any person or entity who Is not a party to this State/Municipal Agreement Nor does It accord on any
non-party the right of enforcement

34 Choice of Law and Forum This State/Municipal Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced mn accordance
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin The Parties hereby expressly agree that the terms contained herein
and In any deed executed pursuant to this State/Mumc1pal Agreement are enforceable by an action mn the
C1rcu1t Court of Dane County, Wisconsin

35 Nothing mn this State/Municipal Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of the State's sovereign ImmunIty

PROJECT FUNDING CONDITIONS

36 Non-Appropriation of Fund With respect to any payment required to be made by the Department under this
State/Municipal Agreement, the parties acknowledge the Department's authority to make such payment Is
contingent upon appropriation of funds and required leg1slat1ve approval sufficient for such purpose by the
Legislature If such funds are not so appropriated, either the ProJect Sponsor or the Department may
terminate this State/Municipal Agreement after providing written notice not less than thirty (30) days before
termination

37 Maintenance of Records During the term of performance of this State/Municipal Agreement, and for a period
not less than three years from the date of final payment to the Project Sponsor, records and accounts
pertaining to the performance of this State/Municipal Agreement are to be kept available for inspection and
audit by representatives of the Department The Department reserves the right to audit and inspect such
records and accounts at any time The ProJect Sponsor shall provide appropriate accommodations for such
audit and inspection

In the event that any litigation, clamm or audit is initiated prior to the expiration of said records maintenance
period, the records shall be retained until such litigation, clamm or audit involving the records is complete

Records pertaining to the performance of the State/Mumc1pal Agreement are subject to disclosure pursuant
to Wis Stats Sec 19 31 et seq, and shall be preserved by the ProJect Sponsor

PuetzPath CF ranklin Page 9 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



38 The Project Sponsor agrees to the following State Fiscal Year 2024-2028 TAP project funding condItIons
The maximum participation of federal funding will be limited to 80% of the actual eligible project cost or the
total cost dIstnbut1on of TAP funds shown on page 3 of thus State/Municipal Agreement, whichever Is less
The project federal funding maximum of $1,760,000 1s cumulative for all federal funded project phases

39 Federal RedIstnbut1on Funding If all or part of the federal share to this project consists of Federal
Redistribution Funding, the Project Sponsor understands and agrees that Federal Red1stnbut1on Funding Is
not guaranteed Project Sponsor understands and agrees to potentially receive Federal Red1stnbut1on
Funding, Project Sponsor must meet all applicable state and federal program rules to be considered for
InclusIon In the department's 2024 Federal Red1stnbut1on request

Additional Information relating to the 2024 Federal Redistribution Initiative can be found at the following
webpage https //w1sconsindot gov/Pages/doing-bus/red1stnbut1on aspx Failure to meet or complete with all
applicable state and federal program rules may result m funding being unavailable for the project In the event
funding is not available or 1s not granted to a project (all types) for any reason, Project Sponsor
agrees to bear all project costs incurred and will indemnify and hold harmless the State for any and all costs
or liabilities associated wIth the same

PuetzPath CFranklln Page 10 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution to Execute a
State/Municipal Agreement for an Infrastructure Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) Project for West Puetz Road Pathway

in the Amount of $440,000

MTG. DATE
M> 4

2

BACKGROUND
On September 5, 2023, Common Council
directed Staff to start with project
development for Grant applications in the
Transportation Alternative Program (TAP)
for the Puetz Road Pathway from W St
Martins Road to S. 76" Street. Staff
submitted a TAP grant application on
October 27, 2023 and Common Council
passed a resolution supporting the project on
November 7, 2023 (Resolution No. 2023
8061).

Staff participated on the Advisory Committee on Transportation System Planning and
Programming for the Milwaukee Urbanized Area (Milwaukee TIP Committee) and this project
was recommended for construction funding in the 2027-2028 funding cycles.

On April 3, 2024 (item G 14), Common Council directed staff to proceed with the solicitation of
a design consultant for this project.

ANALYSIS
Staff has been in contact with Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) staff that
administers the TAP program and has been discussing how to implement the project at the earliest
available opportunity There appears to be an opportunity to start the design in the fall of 2024.

The attached State/Municipal Agreement (SMA) allows the project to proceed through the process
of finding a consulting firm for design and permitting, completing the plans, and finding a
contractor

Solicitation of a design consultant is underway, after the solicitation has closed, Staff along with
Aldermen Holpfer and Eichmann will provide WisDOT with a list of selected firms for final
consideration.

Note that the location of the path will be determined in during the design process. Construction is
not likely to occur until 2027, but could advance sooner if the design and permitting is completed
and TAP funding for construction is available prior to 2027

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny SMA for the grant.

FISCAL NOTE
This Puetz Pathway trail project has an estimated design and construction budget 0f $2,200,000
with $1,760,000 grant (80%) and $440,000 (20%) local funding. This project would be eligible
for 62% park impact fees ($272,800) leaving $167,200 impact to the City's budget in 2024, 2025,



and 2026. An amendment to the 2024 budget will be brought to a future meeting when/if a
consultant 1s selected.

RECOMMENDATION
Moton to adopt Resolution 2024- a resolution to execute a State/Mum1c1pal Financial
Agreement for an mfrastructure transportation alternatives program (TAP) project m the amount
of $440,000.

Engmeenng Department· GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 ---
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A

STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT FORAN INFRASTRUCTURE TRANSPORTATION
ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP) PROJECT FOR WEST PUETZ ROAD PATHWAY

IN THE AMOUNT OF $440,000

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department ofTransportation (WisDOT) has awarded Franklin a
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Project grant for a pathway along West Puetz Road
from West St Martins Road to South 76"" Street; and

WHEREAS, this section of West Puetz Road, covering a distance of 1.3 miles, is a
crucial arterial road connecting various neighborhoods and accommodating approximately 750
residential homes, condominiums, and apartment units; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is committed to providing safe and accessible
transportation options for its residents, including pedestrian and bicycle accommodations; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin recognizes the importance of active transportation
infrastructure to enhance the quality of life and promote sustainable development within the
commumty; and

WHEREAS, the overwhelming public support for improved pedestrian and bicycle
accommodations on West. Puetz Road has been demonstrated through public feedback,
community engagement, and surveys.

WHEREAS, this 80% grant requires that the City of Franklin, the project sponsor,
commit to a variety of requirements in this federal program and accept the responsibilities
required to comply with the State and Federal funding agencies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, that it would be in the best interest of the City to enter into a State/Municipal
Financial Agreement for an Infrastructure Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Project for
West Puetz Road pathway in the amount of $440,000.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT
FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE
TRANSPORTATION
ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)
PROJECT
Subprogram # 290

Program Name TAP

Date May 13, 2024

I D 2976-04-01/71

WisDOT UEI #: CBE4JHP1S8H7

Project Sponsor UEI #: TBD
FAIN ID: TBD
Project Title C FRANKLIN, PUETZ RD
PATHWAY

Location/Limit S 76TH ST TO W ST MARTINS
RD

Project Length (if applicable) 1 3 Miles

Project Sponsor City of Franklin

County MIiwaukee

MPO Area (if applicable) SEWRPC

The signatory, the City of Franklin, hereinafter called the Project Sponsor, through its undersigned duly .
authorized officers or officials, hereby requests the State ofW1sconsIn Department of Transportation, hereinafter I
called the State, to 1mbate and effect the transportation project hereinafter described 1

i Wisconsin Statute 85 021 authonzes the State to administer a program to award grants of assistance to certain I
poltcal subdivisions, state agencies, counties, local government units, and Indian tribes consistent wth federal
law 23 USC sec 213 (revised to 23 USC sec 133 per the FAST Act of 2015)

. i
I The authority for the Project Sponsor to enter into this State/Mumc1pal Agreement with the State Is provided by ,

1

•
{ Sections 86 25(1), (2), and (3) and Section 66 0301(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes

!

! NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY

i All components of the project must be defined in the environmental document 1f any portion of the project will be
submitted for approval in a federally funded program The Pro1ect Sponsor agrees to complete all parhcIpatlng ,,
and any non-participating work included n thus improvement consistentwith the environmental document No work
on final engIneenng and design may occur pnor to approval of the environmental document ·

Exastung Facility - Describe and gve reason for request Puetz Road is a busy arteral road wth no shoulders and
ditches which provide an unsafe option for bicycle and pedestrian use

Proposed Improvement - Nature of work Construct a 10ft separated pathway to accommodate bicycle and
pedestrian users

The Project Sponsor agrees to the following State Fiscal Year 2024-2028 TAP proJect funding conditions

All Project Sponsors and processes, 1nclud1ng real estate acquisition and environmental documentation, must I
comply with A Sponsor's Guide to Non-Traditional Transportation Project Implementation (Sponsor's Guide) and
the current WIsDOT Facities Development Manual (FDM)

The subject project is funded wth 80% federal funding up to a maximum of $1,760,000 for all federally-funded
pro1ect phases when the Proiect Sponsor agrees to provide funds mn excess of the $1,760,000 federal funding
maximum, in accordance wth TAP guidelines Non-participating costs are 100% the responsibility of the Project
Sponsor Any work performed by the Project Sponsor pror to federal authorization is not eligible for federal
funding The Project Sponsor will be notified by the State when each project phase or ID Is authorized and available
for charging

PuetzPath CFrankhn Page 1 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



l Theproject is subject to a discretionary Dsadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal assessment The
Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number for ttus project Is 20 205 - Highway Planning and
Construction

The subject project must be commenced within four (4) years ofthe project award date, or the grant 1s rescinded
Sec 85 021, Wis Stats.

1) For construction projects, a project Is commenced when construction Is begun
2) For planning prQJects, a planning project s commenced when the planning study is begun
3) For non-infrastructure projects that do not fall within any of the above categories, a project 1s considered

commenced on the date that the State receives the first reimbursement request from the Project
Sponsor, as noted on form DT1713 mn the 'Date Received' field

Project Award date: TBD

Commencement deadline: TBD

Completion deadline: TBD

The project commencement deadline is fixed by statute and may not be extended.

The subject project must be completed by TBD, and the Project Sponsor must submrt a project completion
certificate to the State central office on or before this date. The State may consider a wntten request to extend the
completion deadline from the Project Sponsor and may approve such a request the presence of extenuating
cIrcumsta nces The written requestshall explain the reasons for project 1mplementabon delay and revised tumelne
for project completion

In the summary funding table below, the federal share of the total estimated cost dIstnbut1on 1nd1cates the
maximum amount offederal funding available to the project, to be distributed across federally-funded project
phases The final Project Sponsor share Is dependent on the final federal particpaton, and the actual costs will
be used mn the final davsion of costs for billing and reimbursement.

SUMMARY OF COSTS

Project
Total Est. Federal Sponsor

PHASE Cost Funds % Funds %
ID 2976-04-01
Design $320,000 $256,000 80% $64,000 BAL'
Design Review # $20,000 $16,000 80%° $4,000 BAL"
ID 2976-04-71
Participating Construction $1,840,000 $1,472,000 80% $368,000 BAL'
Participating Construction Review # $20,000 $16,000 80%° $4,000 BAL*
Non-Participating Construction $0 0% $0 100%

Total Est Cost Distribution $2,200,000 $1,760,000 MAX $440,000 N/A
This project has a TAP federal funding maxamum of $1,760,000 This maximum is cumulative for
all federally funded project phases
# Review costs are administered and pad for by WIsDOT The Project Sponsor will be billed for any required
local match and for costs beyond the cumulative federal funding

This request 1s subject to the terms and condIt1ons thatfollow (pages 3-10) and Is made by the undersigned under
proper authority to make such request for the designated Proiect Sponsor and upon signature by the State shall
constitute agreement between the Project Sponsor and the State No term or prov1s1on of neither this
State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally but only by
an instrument 1n wnting duly executed by both parties to this State/Municipal Agreement

PuetzPath CFranklin Page2 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



Signed for and n behalf of the City of Franklin (please sign ,n blue ink}

Name (pnnt) John R Nelson Title Mayor

Signature Date

Name (pnnt) Shirley J. Roberts Title City Clerk

Signature Date

Prov1s1ons have been made to pay the liability that will accrue under this contract

Name (pnnt) Danielle L Brown Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Signature Date

Approved as to form and execulion

Name (pnnt) Jesse A Wesolowski Title City Attorney

LSignature Date

Signed for and mn behalf of the State (please sign mn blue ink)

Name Tony Barth Title WisDOT SE Region Planning Chief

Signature Date

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

All projects must be in an approved Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or State Transportation
Improvement Program (STlP) prior to requesting authonzat1on

2 Work pnor to federal authorization 1s ineligible for federal funding The Project Sponsor will be notified by the
State when each proiect phase or ID 1s authonzed and available for charging

3 The 1n1t1at1on and accomplishment of the projectwill be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations,
as referenced in the document A Sponsor's Gude to Non-Traditional Project Implementation The Project
Sponsor, throughout the entire project, commits to comply with and promote all applicable federal and state
laws and regulations that include, but are not limited to, the following

a. Environmental requirements, including but not limited to those set forth 1n 23 U.S C. 139 and the
National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C 4321 et seq.)

b. Equal protection guaranteed under the U.S. Constitution, WI Constitution, Title VI of the Cl Rights
Act and Wis. Stat. Sec. 16.765. The Project Sponsor agrees to comply with and promote applicable
Federal and State laws, Executive Orders, regulations, and 1mplement1ng requirements intended to
provide for the fair and equitable treatment of ind1v1duals and the fair and equitable delivery of
services to the public In addition the Project Sponsor agrees not to engage mn any illegal
d1scnm1nat1on in v1olat1on of applicable Federal or State laws and regulations This includes but 1s
not limited to Title VI of the Cl Rights Act of 1964 which provides that "no person mn the United

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 3 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national ongin, be excluded from partIcIpat1on In, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or actvty receiving
Federal financial assistance." The Project Sponsor agrees that public funds, which are collected In
a nondiscriminatory manner, should not be used in ways that subsidize, promote, or perpetuate
illegal discrimination based on prohibited factors such as race, color, national ongIn, sex, age,
physical or mental d1sab1llty, sexual onentatIon, or retaliation.

c All applicable DBE requirements that the State specifies.

d Federal and state statutes that govern the Transportation Alternatives Program 1nclud1ng 23 USC
sec 213 (revised to 23 U S.C. sec 133 per the FASTAct of2015)

4 Add1t1onal applicable state and federal requirements may include, but are not limited to, the following

a Prevalng wage requirements, including but not limited to 23U.SC. 113 and Wis Stat Sec 103 50

b Buy America Prov1s1on and its equivalent state statutes, set forth m 23 U.$.C. 313 and Wis Stat
Sec 16.754

c Compet1t1ve bidding requirements set forth mn 23 U.S.C 112 and Wis. Stat. Sec 84 06.

STATE RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS:

5 Funding for the proy ect Is subject to inclusion In Wisconsin's approved Transportation Alternatives Program
Federal funding will be limited to part1c1pation in the costs of the following items, as applicable to the project

a The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, and replacement ofdisturbed driveways In
kind

b Storm sewer mains necessary for the surface water drainage.

c Catch basins and inlets for surface water drainage of the improvement, with connections to the stonn
sewer main.

d Construction engineering incident to inspection and supervision of actual construction work (except
for inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main).

e Signing and pavement marking, including marking of detour routes Detour routes and haul roads
are not elgble on local projects

New mstallatlons or alteration of street lighting and traffic signals or devices.

g Landscaping

h Preliminary Engneenng.

State Review Servces

Other eligible TAP non-infrastructure items as enumerated in the approved applIcatIon

6 Proiect items purchased with federal funding are for the pnmary use of the Transportation Alternatives
Program.

7 State Disbursements

a Payment by the State to the Project Sponsor shall be made on a regular basis upon presentation of
Reimbursement Requests for expenditures incurred dunng prior periods of the project duration
subject to the allowable maximum payment Exceptions to this schedule will be made as appropriate
In general, State reimbursements will be made after sufficient proof of payment Is sent to the state

PuetzPath CFranklin Page4 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



b A final adjustment of state payments will be made upon completion of the State's audit of the project
If the State's audit establishes that the State paid more than its share of the elIgIble project costs,
the Project Sponsor shall refund to the State upon demand a sum equal to the overpayment

PROJECT SPONSOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS:

8 Work necessary to complete the TAP project to be financed entirely by the ProJect Sponsor or other utIlIty or
fac1l1ty owner includes the ,terns hsted below, when applicable to the project

a New 1nstallat1ons of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electnc, telephone,
telegraph, fire or pohce alarm fac1ht1es, parking meters, and similar ut1lit1es.

b Damages to abutting property after project completion due to change in street or sidewalk widths, grades
or drainage.

c Detour routes and haul roads. The Project Sponsor 1s responsible for determining the detour route

d Real estate for the improvement.

e Construction eng1neenng for inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main

f. Conditioning, if required and maintenance of detour routes.

g Repair of damages to roads or streets caused by reason of their use In hauling materials incident to the
improvement.

h All work related to underground storage tanks and contaminated sods

1 Street and bndge width m excess of standards, mn accordance with the current W1sDOT Fac11it1es
Development Manual (FDM)

9 The work eligible for Federal and State participation will be administered by the Project Sponsor The Project
Sponsor is an elguble recipient of these grant funds pursuant to Wis. Stat. Sec. 85.021 and all applicable
federal laws 23 USC sec. 213 (revsed to 23 U.S.C. sec. 133 per the FAST Act of 2015)

10. Where applicable, all contracts will be let by compet1t1ve bid and awarded to the lowest responsible bidder in
accordance with the requirements set forth m 23 U.S C. 112 and Wis. Stat. Sec 84.06. Where applicable, all
contracts for design related services shall be awarded and administered m accordance with the requirements
of 23 CFR 172 and procedures published m the W1scons1n Department of Transportation Facilities
Development Manual (FDM), Chapter 8, Consulting Services.

11 The ProJect Sponsor must receive, read, and agree to meet the requirements outlined in the Sponsor's Guide
to Non-Traditional Transportation Project Implementation The Project Sponsor must Indicate thus
understanding and agreement by submitting the Sponsor's Guide Acknowledgement Form, which must be
accepted by the State before approval of thus State/Municipal Agreement shall be granted

12 The Project Sponsor must complete and submit Certification for Non-Traditional Project Administration and
De/,very documentation, and this documentation must be accepted by the State, before approval of this
State/Municipal Agreement shall be granted. The Project Sponsor, and all consultants and other entItIes
working on behalf of the Project Sponsor, are required to comply with the federal and state rules and
requirements for projects being admnstered through a local letting process

13 The project, in accordance with ,ts scope, must employ the services of a registered professional engineer,
architect or landscape architect, to be responsible for design and construction engineering and related
activities

PuetzPath CFrankhn Page5 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



14 A copy of the plans, specifications, and estimates containing the engineer's, architect's, or landscape
architect's seal as prepared for bidding purposes (mn accordance with project scope) must be provided to the
State for approval pnor to advertising the project for bids

15 The improvement will take place in accordance with the appropriate standards unless an exception to
standards Is granted by the State pnor to construction The entire cost of the construction project, not
constructed to standards, will be the respons1b1hty of the Project Sponsor unless such exception Is granted

16 Work to be performed by the Project Sponsor without Federal funding part1c1pat1on, necessary to ensure a
complete improvement acceptable to the Federal Highway Adm1nistrat1on and/or the State may be done In a
manner at the election of the Project Sponsor but must be coordinated with all other work undertaken during
construction

17 The Project Sponsor 1s responsible for financing administrative expenses related to Project Sponsor
responsibilities

18 The project Is subject to a discretionary DBE goal assessment.

19 The Project Sponsor will not proceed with any State/Municipal Agreement revisions without first recervmng
pnor approval from the State. A change order must be executed for revisions to the State/Muno1pal
Agreement pnor to the Project Sponsor's request for reimbursement for the revrstons.

20 If reviews or audits show any of the work to be inehg1ble for Federal funding, the Project Sponsor will be
responsible for any withdrawn costs associated with the ineligible work

21 If the PrQJect Sponsor should withdraw the project, 1t will reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the
State on behalf of the proect upon demand.

22 Sponsors of TAP projects within the Safe Routes to School ehg1b1hty category are required to conduct pre
and post proect/actvty surveys using the SRTS Parent Survey and Student Tally Sheets The results will be
provided to the State at the conclusion of the project.

23. The Project Sponsor will assume all respons1b1hty for retaining a complete project file that includes not only
construction documentation but also copies of letting documents, all Local and State subm1ttals and approvals
contained In these 1nstruct1ons, and other pertinent documents to support project procurement, development,
1mplementatIon and cost and any other item required by 49 CFR part 18 and subm1tt1ng such information,
upon request, m order to receive reimbursement The Project Sponsor will keep all project records and have
them available for inspection by representatives of the Federal Government and the State and will furnish
copies thereof when requested.

24 The Project Sponsor shall allow the State and US Department of Transportation auditors to have access to
the Project Sponsor's records and f1nanc1al statements as necessary for determining the presence of and
compliance with all information and requirements specified in 2 CFR 200.332-(a) as amended effective
November 12, 2020.

2 5 In connection with the performance of work under this State/Municipal Agreement, the Project Sponsor agrees
not to d1scnmmate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, rellgIon, color,
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined mn S. 51.01(5), sexual orientation or
national origin This provsion shall include, but not be limited to, the following employment, upgrading,
demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms
of compensation, and selection for trammg, mcludmg apprenticeship. Except with respect to sexual
orientation, the Project Sponsor further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure equal employment
opportunities The Project Sponsor agrees to post m conspicuous places, available for employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the employment officer setting forth the provIsIons of
the nondiscrimination clause

26 The Project Sponsor will include mall contracts executed by them a prov1s1on obhgatmg the contractor not to
d1scnm1nate against any employee or apphcant for employment because of age, race, rel1gIon, color,

PuetzPath CFranklin Page6 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined in s. 51 01 (5), sexual orientation as
defined mn s 111.32 (13m), or national origin.

27 When applicable to the project, the Project Sponsor will at its own cost and expense

a Mamntamn all portions of the project that lie within its junsdiction (to Include, but not limited to, cleaning
storm sewers, removing debris from sumps or inlets, and regular maintenance of the catch basins,
curb and gutter, parking lanes, bicycle lanes, trails, and other fac1ht1es, sidewalks and other
pedestrian fac1ht1es, and other project infrastructure) for such maintenance through statutory
requirements mn a manner satisfactory to the State, and will make ample provIsIon for such
ma Intenance each year.

b. Regulate [or prohibit] parking at all times mn the vicinity of the proposed improvements during their
construction.

c. Regulate [or proh1b1t] all parking at locations where and when the pavement area usually occupied
by parked vehicles will be needed to carry active traffic mn the street.

d. Assume general respons1b1hty for all public information and public relations for the project and to
make fitting announcement to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected
property owners and the community ofthe nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements
for handling traffic within and around the projects

e. Provide relocation orders and real estate plats and easements. as required by the project

f. Use the WisDOT Utility Accommodation Policy unless it adopts a policy, which has equal or more
restrictive controls.

g. Provide maintenance and energy for lighting

h Provide proper care and maintenance of all landscaping elements of the project 1nclud1ng
replacement of any plant materials damaged by disease, drought, vandalism or other cause

28 It Is further agreed by the Project Sponsor that

a. The Project Sponsor assumes full respons1b1hty for the design, installation, testing and operation of
any sanitary sewer and water main infrastructure within the improvement project and relieves the
State and all of its employees from liability for all suits. actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary
sewer and water main construction under this State/Municipal Agreement

b The PrQJect Sponsor assumes full respons1b1hty for the plans and special provIsIons provided by
their designer or anyone hired, contracted or otherwise engaged by the Project Sponsor The
Project Sponsor 1s responsible for any expense or cost resulting from any error or omIssIon In such
plans or special provIsIons. The Project Sponsor will reimburse the State 1f the State incurs any
cost or expense in order to correct or otherwise remedy such error or omIss1on or consequences of
such error or omission.

c. The Project Sponsor will be 100% responsible for all costs associated with utility issues Involving
the Contractor, including costs related to ut1hty delays.

d All signs and traffic control devices and other protective structures erected on or In connection with
the project including such of these as are installed at the sole cost and expense of the Project
Sponsor or by others, will be in conformity with such "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" as
may be adopted by the American Assoc1at1on of State Highway and Transportation Officials,
approved by the State, and concurred in by the Federal Highway Adm1n1strat1on.

29. The subject project must be completed by the project completion date, listed on page 2 of this agreement,
and the Project Sponsor must submit a project completion certificate to WIsDOT central office on or before
this date. The State may consider a written request to extend the completion deadline from the Project

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 7 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



Sponsor and may approve such a request mn the presence of extenuating circumstances. The written request
shall explamn the reasons for project implementation delay and revised timeline for project completion.

LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS:

30 Respons1b1hty for Damage and Tort Claims The ProJect Sponsor and the ProJect Sponsor's surety shall
1ndemn1fy and save hannless the State, its officers and employees, from all suits, actions or claims of any
character brought because of any Inyures or damages received or sustained by any person, persons or
property on account of the operations of the ProJect Sponsor, or on account of or mn consequence of any
neglect In safeguarding the work, or because of any act or omIssIon, neglect or misconduct of the Project
Sponsor, or because of any claims or amounts recovered for any infringement by the Project Sponsor of
patent, trademark or copynght, or from any claims or amounts ansmg or recovered under the Worker's
Compensation Act, relating to the ProJect Sponsor's employees, or any other law, ordinance, order or decree
relating to the Proiect Sponsor's operations So much of the money due the Project Sponsor under and by
virtue of the contract as shall be considered necessary by the State for such purposes, may be retained for
the use ofthe State, or, mn case no money or 1nsuffic1ent money Is retained, the Project Sponsor's surety may
be held until such suit or suits, action or actions, claim or clamms for mnyures or damages as aforesaid shall
have been settled and suitable evidence to that effect furnished to the State, except that money due the
Project Sponsor will not be withheld when the Project Sponsor produces satisfactory evidence that the Project
Sponsor is adequately protected by public hab1hty and property damage insurance. The Proiect Sponsor also
shall comply with all of the above requirements indemnifying and saving harmless the county, town, or
munic1pal1ty In which the improvement Is made and each of them separately or Jointly and officers and
employees.

The State shall not be liable to the ProJect Sponsor for damages or delays resulting from work by third parties
The State also shall be exempt from liability to the ProJect Sponsor for damages or delays resulting from
injunctions or other restraining orders obtained by third parties except where the damage or delay Is a direct
result of an injunction or restraining order obtained by a citizen's action alleging violations of 42 U S.C 4331
- 4332, 23 U.S.C 138 or Public Law 91-646

It shall be the Proiect Sponsor's respons1b1hty to see that all of the contract operations 1nc1dent to the
completion of the contract are covered by public l1ab1l1ty and property damage l1ab1hty insurance so the general
public or any representative of the contracting authonty may have recourse against a responsible party for
InJunes or damages sustained as a result of the contract operations This requirement shall apply with equal
force, whether the work Is performed by the Project Sponsor, by a subcontractor or by anyone directly or
1nd1rectly employed by either of them

It is the express intent of this provision that a Project Sponsor that is a county, town or municipality may and
should contractually pass on this entire Respons1b1hty for Damage and Tort Claims provIsIon to any public
and prvate entities with which it may subcontract any of the work covered by thus State/Municipal Agreement

a. The word, "surety" mn the above paragraphs refers to the issuer of a payment and performance
bond under Wis. Stat. Sec. 779.14.

b. Nothing In this section should be construed as a waiver of any statutory defenses that may be
available to any governmental party

31 The ProJect Sponsor, also known as the primary partIcIpant, as that term Is defined In 49 CFR Part 29,
certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals, as that term Is defined in 49 CFR
Part 29

a. Are not currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 1nehg1ble or voluntarily
excluded by any State ofW1scons1n or Federal department or agency,

b Have not, wthin a three-year period preceding this State/Municipal Agreement, been convicted
of or had a cvl judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a cnmmnal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public (Federal, State or Local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction, v1olat1on of Federal or State antitrust statutes

PuetzPath CFrankhn Page 8 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



or commIssIon of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, fals1ficat1on or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

c Are not currently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or Local) with commIssIon of any of the offenses enumerated above,

d. Have not within a three-year perod preceding this State/Municipal Agreement had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or Local) terminated for cause or default, and

e That all grantees, contractors, and suppliers, 1nclud1ng what Is also known as lower tier
part1c1pants as that term Is used in 49 CFR Part 29 and the Appendix to Part 29 -- Covered
Transactions, have certified m writing that neither they or their principals are currently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment or suspension, have been declared 1nel1g1ble, or have
voluntarily been excluded from partIcIpatIng In this or any other Federal, State or Local transaction
by any Federal, State or Local department, agency or official.

32. Contract Mod1ficat1on This State/Mumc,pal Agreement can only be modified by written instruments duly
executed by both parties. No term or provIsIon of neither this State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its
attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally.

33. 81nd1ng Effects All terms of this State/Municipal Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits
of the legal representatives, successors and executors. No nghts under this State/Municipal Agreement may
be transferred to a third party This State/Municipal Agreement creates no third- party beneficiary rights to be
held by any person or entity who Is not a party to this State/Municipal Agreement Nor does It accord on any
non-party the right of enforcement.

34. Choice of Law and Forum. This State/Municipal Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State ofW1scons1n. The Parties hereby expressly agree that the terms contained herein
and mn any deed executed pursuant to this State/Municipal Agreement are enforceable by an action mn the
Circuit Court of Dane County, Wisconsin.

35. Nothing mn thus State/Municipal Agreement shall be construed as a waver of the State's sovereign immunity.

PROJECT FUNDING CONDITIONS

36. Non-Appropriation of Fund With respect to any payment required to be made by the Department under this
State/Municipal Agreement, the parties acknowledge the Department's authonty to make such payment Is
contingent upon appropriation of funds and required leg1slat1ve approval sufficient for such purpose by the
Legislature If such funds are not so appropriated, either the Project Sponsor or the Department may
terminate this State/Municipal Agreement after providing written notice not less than thirty (30) days before
termination.

37 Maintenance of Records During the term of performance of this State/Municipal Agreement, and for a period
not less than three years from the date of final payment to the Project Sponsor, records and accounts
pe rtainIng to the performance of this State/Municipal Agreement are to be kept available for InspectIon and
audit by representatives of the Department. The Department reserves the right to audit and inspect such
records and accounts at any time. The Project Sponsor shall provide appropriate accommodations for such
audit and inspection.

In the event that any litigation, clamm or audit Is initiated prior to the expiration of said records maintenance
period, the records shall be retained until such litigation, clamm or audit involving the records Is complete.

Records pertaining to the performance of the State/Municipal Agreement are subject to disclosure pursuant
to Wis Stats Sec 19 31 et seq, and shall be preserved by the Project Sponsor.

38. The Project Sponsor agrees to the following State Fiscal Year 2024-2028 TAP project funding cond1t1ons
The maximum participation of federal funding will be limited to 80% of the actual eligible project cost or the

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 9 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



total cost d1stnbut1on of TAP funds shown on page 3 of this State/Municipal Agreement, whichever Is less
The project federal funding maximum of $1,760,000 Is cumulative for all federal funded proJect phases

39. Federal Red1stnbut1on Funding If all or part of the federal share to this project consists of Federal
Redistribution Funding, the Project Sponsor understands and agrees that Federal Redistribution Funding Is
not guaranteed. Project Sponsor understands and agrees to potentially receive Federal Red1stnbut1on
Funding, Project Sponsor must meet all applicable state and federal program rules to be considered for
Inclusion in the department's 2024 Federal Redistnbuton request

Additional information relating to the 2024 Federal Redistnbution Initiative can be found at the following
webpage https //w1scons1ndot.gov/Pages/do1ng-bus/red1stnbullon aspx Failure to meet or complete with all
applicable state and federal program rules may result In funding being unavailable for the project. In the event
funding Is not available or Is not granted to a project (all types) for any reason, Project Sponsor
agrees to bear all project costs incurred and will indemnify and hold harmless the State for any and all costs
or habilities associated with the same.

PuetzPath CFrankl1n Page 10 WISDOT PROJECT 2976-04/01/71 SE Region



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of the utility easements for Storm Water
Fac1hties Maintenance Agreement, and Storm Water Management Access

For Ridgewood Reserve Subdrvrs1on

MTG. DATE
6/3/2025

ITEM NO.

•4.
BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of the Ridgewood Reserve subdrvs1on the easements are required to
construct, mamntamn, and operate Such easements are for the storm water fac1ht1es mamtenance
agreement. and storm water management access

Add1t10nally the City of Franklm, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage D1stnct (MMSD), and
W1sconsm Department of Natural resources (WDNR) reqmre storm water management fac1ht1es
for any developments which meet thresholds as defined in their mdividual ordinances and rules.
These fac1ht1es as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklm
these are typically wet ponds, biofiltrat10n basms, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Mumcipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordmance 1s wntten to not only
Include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity reqmrements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements The fac1litres wthin prvate developments are mvolved m those cred1ts
Therefore, ongomg mamtenance of private fac1lites 1s 1mperatrve

It 1s the responstblty of the development owner, or a subdivuson homeowners assoc1at1on to
mamntamn the storm water facilities m perpetmty per a prescnbed maintenance agreement The
access easement allows for the City the nght of entry m and across the easement area to access the
storm water management faciht1es, and, 1f needed to mspect, mamtam, or repair the fac1ht1es

ANALYSIS
It 1s recommended that the Common Council authonze the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said
agreement and easements, and have them recorded with the Register of Deeds for MIiwaukee
County

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No 2025- a resolution for acceptance of the storm water
fac1ht1es mamtenance agreement and storm water management access for Ridgewood Reserve
Subd1vs1on

Engmeenng Depai1ment RMA



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025 -----

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER FACILITY MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT AND STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS

FOR RIDGEWOOD RESERVE SUBDIVISION
(CERATIVE HOMES, INC.)

WHEREAS, a mamtenance agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation of pr1vate storm water facilities 1n perpetuity, and

WHEREAS, Creative Homes, Inc, Grantor, has agreed to grant the City a perpetual, non
exclusive easement

WHEREAS, storm water fac1litres are required to meet quantity and quality standards,
and

WHEREAS, an access easement 1s required to construct, mamtam, and operate storm
water faculties, and

WHEREAS. It 1s necessary to acquire an access easement on said property, and

WHEREAS, an access easement 1s necessary to allow the City nght of entry 111 and across
the easement area to access the storm water management fac1ht1es.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklm that 1t would be m the best mterest of the City to accept said agreement and easement,
and, therefore the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby author1zed and directed to execute the
agreement and easements, accepting them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk 1s directed to record sand agreement
and easements with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
_day of , 2025, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklm on the
_day of,2025

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Simley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

RIDGEWOOD RESERVE SUBDIVISION

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into thisday of,20_,
by and between CREATIVE HOMES INC.. hereinafter called the "Owner", and the City of Franklin,
hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated in the City
of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, to-wit:

Lots I through 9 and Outlot I in Ridgewood Reserve, a subdivision recorded in the Register of
Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No._._being in the
Southeast I /4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Hereinafter called the "Property".

WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Subdivision known as RIDGEWOOD RESERVE hereinafter called the
·'Plan'', which is expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city, provides
for on-site Storm Water Facilities within the confines of the Property as shown on the plan attached
hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly described on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS. the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners· association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Franklin. require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section
15-8.0600 Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and maintained
on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that on-site stonn water management practices as shown on
the Plan be constructed and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by the Owner in accordance with the
plans and specifications which are identified as part of the storm water management plan
last revised November 25, 2024 and erosion control plan last revised December 11. 2024
approved by the City Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built drawings approved by
the City Engineer. Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed in any ponds without
prior written approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require. but in any event, at least once each year. The Standard
Operation and Maintenance Report attached to this agreement as Exhibit "A" and by this

Q-1



reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular 111spect1ons of the
Storm Water Fac1ht1es The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall keep the Operation
and Mamtenance Reports from past 111spect1ons, as well as a log of mamtenance act1v1ty
1nd1cat111g the date and type of ma111tenance completed of the Storm Water FacI11t1es The
purpose of the 111spect1ons 1s to assure safe and proper functioning of the fac1litres The
Inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, mncludmng but not lmmrted to open swales
(ditches), storm sewers, manholes, 111lets, berms, outlet structures, pond areas and access
roads Defic1enc1es shall be noted 111 the Operation and Ma111tenance Report The Reports
and mamtenance log shall be made available to the City for review

3 The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to 111spect the Storm Water Facil1t1es,
whenever the City deems necessary The purpose of inspection 1s to provide periodic
review by City staff, to Investigate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to crtizen
complamts The City shall provide the Owner, its successors and assigns. copies of the
inspect1on findings and a directive to commence with the repairs tf necessary Corrective
actions shall be taken w1th111 a reasonable time frame as established by the City Eng111eer

4 The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately mamntamn the Storm Water
Facilities, 111clud111g but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water Adequate maintenance is herein defined as
keep111g the Storm Water Fac1lites m good working condrtion so that these storm water
facilities are performing their des1gn functions and are m accordance with the Stormwater
Bas111 Ma111tenance Standards as detailed 111 Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Frankltn
Unified Development Ordmnance, and Section I 3 I 2(2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage DIstr1ct (MMSD) rules, and by thus reference made a part hereof

5 If the Owner, Its successors and ass1gns fails to mamntam the Storm Water Fac1litres m good
working cond1t1on acceptable to the City and does not perform the required corrective
actions mn a time as established by the Crty Engineer mn written notice, the Crty may.

a) Issue a crtatton to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
v10lat1on of Section 15 8.0600 of the Umfied Development Ordmance of the City of
Frankl111 The penalty for such violation of Section 15 8 0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution
Each day that the v10lat1on exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified mn the inspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns. for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged aga111st the Property pursuant to W 1sconsm Statutes Section
66 0627 If the facil1t1es are located on an out lot owned collect1vely by a homeowners
association, the City may specially charge each member of the homeowners
association accordmg to the ownership interest in the facilities located on the
property Tl11S prov1s1on shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any structure
of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for the Storm
Water Fac1lit1es It 1s expressly understood and agreed that the City 1s under no
obhgaton to routinely maintain or repair said storm water management practices and
111 no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such obligat1on on the
City

6 In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and appltcable easements performs work
of an emergency nature, or expends any funds 111 performance of said work for labor, use
of equipment. supplies, materials. and the like, the Owner, its successors and assigns, shall

0-2



reimburse the City upon demand, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all actual
costs incurred by the City hereunder.

7. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm
Water Facilities fal to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that is responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its administrators,
executors. assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including any homeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall provide
the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners association that is
responsible for the Storm Water Facilities.

9. The owner, its successors and assigns, is prohibited from building structures, installing play
equipment, installing plants, changing grades or performing any function that inhibits care
and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities.

I 0. The owner, its successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an individual(s) who will
serve as a contact person(s).

Q-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Cit)- and Owner have set fmth their hands and seals, effective the date
first above written

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF
CREATIVE HOMES INC , Owner

By
Name RICK PRZYBYLA - PRESIDENT

STA TE OF WISCONSIN)ss
COUNTY)

Personally came before me thus day of2) the above named
RICK PRZYBYLA, PRESIDENT ofCREATIVE HOMES,INC , to me known to be the person who
executed the foregoing mstrument and acknowledged the same 111 the capacity mdicated

Notary Public, County, WI
My commuss1on expires

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By
Name John R Nelson
Title Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED
By
Name Simley J Roberts
Title City Clerk

STA TE OF WISCONSIN)ss
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me thus day of2O. the above
named John R Nelson, Mayor and Simley J Roberts, City Clerk, of the above named mu111cipal
corporation, Crty of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of sand mun1c1pal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregomg mstrument as such officers as the
Deed of said mun1c1pal corporation by its authonty and pursuant to the Resolution Ftle No _
adopted by its Common Council on thus day of, 2O

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
My comm1ss1on €XpireS

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklm
Form approved

Jesse A Wesolowski City Attorney

Q-4

____________ (Seal)

____________ (Seal)



EXHIBIT ..A..

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Fax No _

Fax No _

Address _

[,-111a1[
Address _

E-matl _

Sect1on No_

Name of Development--------------------------------
Responsible Part) Name _

Telephone No _
Inspector Name _

Telephone No _

Basm Location General Address _

Normal Pool O Yes O No

Items mspected Checked Mamtenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
I Embankment and Emergency spillway

I Vegetation and ground cover adequate
2 Embankment erosion
3 Animal burrows
4 Unauthonzed plantmgs
5 Crackmg bulgmg or shdmg of dam

I Upstream face
2 Downstream face
1 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4 Emergency spillway
6 Pond toe & chimney dramns functioning
7 Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protection or rmprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear of debns

10 Other (specify)
2 RIser and principal spillway

Type Remforced concrete --
Corrugated metal pipe --
PVC/HOPE --
Masonry

I Low flow onfice obstructed
2 Pnmary outlet structure

1 Debris removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Trash rack mamtenance
I Debns removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debris buildup m low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

0



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

City of Franklin

System Description
The wet detention pond 1s designed to trap a minmmum of 80% of sedmment mn runoff and mamntam

pre-development downstream peak flows The filter strip 1s designed to reduce the sediment 111 runoff off
of the site Storm pipes convey runoff In add1t1on to runoff conveyance, the grass swales also allow for
111filtrat1on and filtering of pollutants especially during smaller storm events The wet pond will trap the
smaller and finer suspended sohds In order for the wet ponds to be effective, the pond size, water level and
outlet structure must be mamntamned

Minimum Maintenance Requirements
To ensure the proper long-term function of the storm water best management practices, the

following actvttres must be completed

Inspect 111Iets. manholes. pipes. and end sections at least twice a year and after heavy ra111fall Repair
any deterioration threatening structural integrity immediately, replace worn or cracked frames and
lids. re-set any shifted frames, repair spalled or cracked mortar, repair or replace cracked nngs.
repair leakmg JOlllts, clean manholes, pipes and storm mnlet inverts of depostted materal, remove
potential sources ofcontammnat1on away from inlets and manholes Remove any obstructions from
end sections, reset end sections that have separated from storm pipe, repair scour areas 1mmediately
Replace missing sol wth clean fill and replace/mnstall end treatment Mrssing armoring wall require
add1t1onal stone. typically one class larger

2 All pond mnlet and outlet pipes must be checked semi-annually to ensure there 1s no blockage from
tloat111g debns or ice, especially 111 front of the dewatering holes and the trash rack on the risers
Any blockage must be removed 11nmediately

3 Grass swales and dramage easements shall be preserved to allow free flow111g of surface runoff 111
accordance with approved grading plans No buldmgs or other structures are allowed 111 these
areas No grading or filling 1s allowed that may mterrupt flows m any way

4 Grass swales, mlets and outlets must be checked after heavy rams (m1111mum ofannually) for signs
of erosion Any erod111g areas must be repaired immediately to prevent premature sediment build
up mn the downstream ponds Eros1on matting 1s recommended for repairing grassed areas

5 No trees are to be planted or allowed to grow on the earthen berms Tree root systems can reduce
soil compaction and cause berm failure The berms must be 111spected annually and any woody
vegetat10n removed

6 Invasive plant and animal species shall be managed mn compliance wth Wisconsmn Administrative
Code Chapter NR 40 Thus may require eradication of invasive species mn some cases

7 Ifthe permanent pool falls below the safety shelf, a review shall be performed to determine whether
the cause 1s ltner leakage or an 111suffic1ent water budget If the cause 1s leakage, the liner shall be
repaired Leakage due to muskrat burrows may require removal of the a111mals, repair of the liner



with clay and embeddmg wire mesh 111 the liner to deter further burrowmg If the permanent pool
cannot be sustamed at the design elevation. benchmg of the safety she Ifmay be necessary

8 If float111g algae or weed growth becomes a nuisance (decay odors, etc ), 1t must be removed from
the ponds and deposited ,vhere 1t cannot dram back 111to the ponds Removal of the vegetation from
the water reduces regrowth the following season (by harvesting the nutrients) Wetland vegetation
must be mamntamed along the waters edge for safety and pollutant removal purposes

9 If mosquitoes become a nuisance, the use ofmosquito larvtctde containing naturally-occurring Bt
so1l bacteria 1s recommended

IO When sediment 111 the pond has accumulated to an elevation of 3 5 feet below the outlet elevation,
1t must be removed All wet portions of the ponds are six feet deep from the mvert of the lowest
dewatermg hole Measurements to check the depth ofsed11nent can be completed by stai1111g at the
elevation ofthe lowest dewatering hole and measuring down to the sediment level w1th1n the ponds
It ant1c1pated that sediment may need to be removed 111 approx11nate 20 year cycles All sediment
must be removed from the site or placed man appropriate upland disposal site and stabilized (grass
cover) to prevent sed11nent from washmg back 111to the pond Meet W1scons111 Adm 1111strat1ve Code
NR 500 for disposal requirements A two foot clay I mer has been mstalled 111 all of the ponds
When perform111g sediment removal, the contractors must review the approved construction plans
for the site to determ111e the ong111al shape of the pond and the ongmal design depth of the pond so
that the excavat10n does not disturb the clay liner An engmeer and/or surveyor with expenence 111

storm water ponds can provide technical ass1stance mn reviewing the plans and providing staking
and elevation guidance durmg excavation Excavation below the orgmnal design depth 1s prohibited
unless a geotechnical analysis 1s completed per Wisconsmn DNR Technical Standard No 1001 and
any changes 111 the design are reviewed and approved by the City of Frankl111

11 No gradmng or filling of the ponds or berms other than for sediment removal 1s allowed, unless
otherwise approved by the City of Franklm

12 Penod1c mowmg ot the grass swales will encourage vigorous grass cover and allow better
inspections for erosion Wanting until after August I wall avoid disturbing nesting wldlife Mowing
around the ponds may attract nuisance populations ofgeese to the property and 1s not necessary or
recommended

13 Any other repair or ma111tenance needed to ensure the contmued function of the storm water
practices or as ordered by the City of Franklin under the provisions listed 111 this Agreement

I4 Aerators/Fountamns - If an aerator or fountain Is desired for visual and other aesthetic effects
(aerators designed to mix the contents of the pond are proh1b1ted) they must meet all of the items
below

I5 Filter Strip Mowing shall be done as needed to reduce the compet1t1on from woody vegetation and
mamntamn vigorous sod After mowing, the cut vegetatton shall be removed 1f th1ck enough to
impede regrowth Mamtenance measures must be adequate to control the establishment and spread
of noxious weeds and other 111vas1ve species Inspect the filter strip after storm events and repair
any gullies that have formed, remove unevenly deposited sed11nent accumulation that will disrupt
sheet flow. reseed disturbed or bare areas. and take other measures necessary to prevent
concentrated flow cond1t1ons through the filter str1p



EXHIBIT ··s-·
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

Project Name Ridgewood Reserve
Stonn Waler Pracl1cc-; Wet detention pond and filter strip
Location or Practu:es Storm \\'ater Management Access Easements

· · · · · · .l. _ y • . WET DETENTION POND

r. I. .
\

y-
/ '/ ,,

'~.....- ,,,.,,,.
°

,,.,,,
\,,, ,,,,

,,,,

I
I
I

FILTERI
\

STRIP.--.,,,

.--
I'



EXHIBIT ··c·

LEGAL DESCRIPTION & DEPICTION OF THE STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENTS

These easements are also recorded by a separate document called "Storm Water
Management Access Easement".

Legal Desrnption of the Storm Water Management Access Easements

That part of Outlot I in Ridgewood Reserve, bemg a Subdivision m the Southeast I /4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Sect1on 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee and State of W1sconsm. bounded and described as follows
Begmning at the Southwest corner of said Outlot I, thence North O I 030'27" West, I 63 70 feet;
thence South 88°37' 15.. West 164 47 feet. thence North 02°21 '50'' West, 16.22 feet, thence
Notth 29°20'3 I'' East, 64 30 feet, thence North 24°29' 18'' East, 24 74 feet, thence North
05°47'39.. East. 11 84 feet, thence North 24°16'02" East, 53 18 feet, thence North 52%08' 14"
East, 20 92 feet, thence North 5992232 East, 17 54 feet, thence North 83°43' I 7" East, 21 05
feet, thence South 68°20'43'' East, 16 50 feet, thence South 42°57' 51'" East, 60 16 feet, thence
North 41 °20"5 l" East. 13 07 feet, thence South 65°52'52'' East, 7.84 feet; thence South
52°35'35'' East. 6 11 feet, thence South 16°12' 01'' East, 6 43 feet, thence South 52°46'07"
West. 14 26 feet, thence South 42°57'51" East, 63 53 feet, thence South 21 °55' 39'' East, 19 16
feet, thence South 00° 18'32" East. 42 42 feet, thence South 76°57'25" West, 23 56 feet, thence
South 88°37' 15·· West. 27 43 feet, thence South 01 °30'27" East, 165 43 feet to a pomt on the
North line of South Ridgewood Drive and a point on a curve, thence northwesterly 20 15 feet
along said North lmne and the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius ts 70 00 feet and whose
chord bears No1th 86°26'58'" West, 20 08 feet to pomt the begmnmg
Contammg 3 I ,826 square feet or O 7306 acre

ALSO

That part of Lots 4. 5 and 6 m Ridgewood Reserve, being a Subdivision mn the Southeast 1/4 of
the Southeast I /4 of Section 9, Township 5 North. Range 21 East, 111 the City of Frankl 111, County
of Milwaukee and State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows
Beginning at the Northeast corner of sard Lot 4, thence South 00°1517" East, 370 53 feet along
the East subdrvrs1on line, thence North 61°05'48" West, 198 93 feet to the South line of South
Ridgewood Drive and a pomnt on a curve, thence northeasterly 15 03 feet along sand South line
and the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius 1s 70 00 feet and whose chord bears North
28° 54'12" East, I S 00 feet, thence South 6105'48 East, 173 38 feet, thence North 00° 15' 1 T
West, 329 69 feet, thence South 88°37'15" West, 52 92 feet, thence North 0122'45° West,
15 00 feet to the Notth lme of aforesaid Lot 4. thence North 88°37' I5" East along said North
1 me 68 22 feet to the pomt of begmnmg
Conta1111ng 8,949 square feet or O 2054 acre

)



EXH 1B IT ··c·
DEPICTION OF THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENTS

POB 112

i;WLAlHil)
LNDS

5

PAR<.tl 1
€ $ Ma.N 46?

I
I
I

-4

,liked
::i....~~--

PARCEL I
5KN0 36

6

15" STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT
6949SQ Fl

0 2054 ACRES
4

15

\
I

I
I
I
I
I
I

o':::ll
22 2'r - :.L

I
f

C1 ·-l.

<') i
1'> 1
I I
I
l 20"
I

PARCEL 1
C 5.MN2 3410

\
\
I
\
\

--- -- - \__ ,
I
I
I
I
I
I

ST0RMWATl:R
MANAGEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT
31 826S0 FT
0 73061\CRES

UNFLATTEDO LANDS

' •'· --\ 1

\
\
I 7\ .

8 \

·,
\

-- 1
I
I

l·'AR('.f 2 I
f 54 4 ) 9±6 ]

I

-r
\
\
I
I
I

\
\
l
I
l

9

L2
p -,- - --,

\
\
\

3

2 I
1 \

POB 111
\ .,..,.-

'-· ---'f
I
I

PA#EL t ]
$4 vO As%

I

i
I
I
I
I
I
I

___.l_.

.J

I
I
I
I
I

-...J
I

t - ---· -.- '

LOT 'i
TJCKAVAY

BROD)k

LOT6
TU/KY

f.lRC.)K

LCH7
TUCK'WAY
HX)k

OLJlt.Oi 2
TUCKAWY
BROOK

OUTLOT 1

I
I

}-

"-y PARC&A
+ CM4.N0 4542 I

(
\
I
\
\
I
\
\
.\-

0 10



EXHIBIT '·C·

DEPICTION OF THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENTS

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING l DISTANCE

LI N01"30'27"W 163 70

L2 s88371W 164 47

L3 N02"21'50 16.22

L4 N29"20'31"E 64 30'

L5 N242918E 24 74'

L6 N0S"47'39"E 11 84'

L7 N24"16'02"E 53.18'

L8 N52"08'14"E 2092'
- ·-·

L9 N59"2232"E 17 54

L10 N83"43'17"E 2105'

L11 682043E 1650'

L12 S42''57' fWF 60.16'
-----

L13 N41 "20'51"E 130T

L14 S65"S2'52"E 7 84'

L15 S52"35'35"E. 611'
·- -·-- ·- · -- --. -

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

L16 $161201E 643'

LH S52'46'07'W 14.26'

L18 $4257'61"E 63 53'

L19 S21 '55'39"E 19 16'

L20 SOO't8'32·E 4242'

L21 S76"5r25'W 23.56'

L22 $883715W 27 43'

L23 S013027"E 165 43'

L24 S00"15'17'E 370 53
- - .. ·---

L25 N61"05'48"w 198.93'

L26 S61'05'48"E 173 38'

L27 N00"15'17'W ' 329 69'

L28 SB8"3715"w 52 92'

L29 N012245w 1'i00'

L30 N88'37'15"E 68 22'

--- ---- --
CURVE TABELE

CURVE NO j LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 I 2015' 7000' N86°26'58"W 2008'

c2 \ 1503' 70 00 N28"54'12E 1500'
--------

February 6, 2025 Pinnacle Engmeermg Group Job #5407 00-WI

t+



STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT

Ridgewood Reserve

THIS EASEMENT 1s made by and between RIDGEWOOD RESERVE HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIA Tl ON, an unmcorporated association and the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a mu111c1pal corporation of
the State of W1scons111, heremafter referred to as "City:' collectively referred to as "Grantees," and
CREATIVE HOMES INC, a W1scons111 Corporation, as owner (1nclud111g successors and assigns of
the Crty as may become applicable mncludmng the hers, executors, administrators, successors and ass1gns of
above owner(s) as may be or may become appltcable), heremafter called --Grantor,'' (1f more than one
grantor 1s ltsted above, said language herem referring thereto shall be mterpreted 111 the plural and refer
J0111tly and severally to such grantors)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner and holder of record Title to certam real property descnbed on
Exhibit "A which rs attached hereto and mcorporated herem (the Prope1ty), and

WHEREAS. the City destres to acquire a non-exclusve easement wtth the right of entry mn and
across a portion of the property as the same Is more particularly hereinafter described, with the right to
build and construct and/or operate, ma111ta111. repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and mspect as may be or
may become appltcable the follow111g fac1ltt1es and appurtenances thereto, here111after collectively called
the ''Fac1ltt1es,'' 111, upon and across sand porton ofthe Property a storm water management basm as shown
on the plan attached hereto as Exh1b1t "B '', and

NOW, THEREFORE, mn constderaton ofthe grant ofthe easement hereinafter described, the mnrtal
Installation and maintenance of the Faculties by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of One
Dollar ($1 00) and other valuable cons1derat1ons to the Grantor, the receipt whereof 1s hereby
acknowledged, said Grantor, bemg the owner and person 111terested m the land here111after described, does
hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part of the Southeast Quarter (SE
1/4) of Section Nme (9), Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-One (21) East, 111 the City of
Franklin. Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. more particularly descnbed on Exh1b1t C attached hereto (the
"Easement Area")

That sad Fac1litres shall be mamntamned and kept in good order and condition by the Assoc1at1on, at
the sole cost and expense ofthe Assoc1at1on The City, at its sole dtscretron, may assume the nghts
of the Association to mamntam the Facilities

2 That 111 and dunng whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work 1s or becomes
necessary 111 construct mg and/or maintaining ofsand Facilities, so much ofthe surface or subsurface
of the Easement Area on the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the Assoc1at1011,
be replaced 111 substantially the same cond1t1011 as 1t was pnor to such disturbance The City, at its
sole d1scret1011, may assume the nghts of the Assoc1atton to construct, reconstruct, enlarge, repair,
or do whatever 1s necessary 111 constructmg and/or ma111ta1n111g such Fac1ltt1es However, the
Grantees shall 111demn1fy and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss, damage, cla1111,
cost, mnyury or h1ability resulting from negligence or willful acts or omisstons on the part of the
Grantees, its agents or employees 111 connection with said work mvolved 111 constructmg and/or
mamntamnmng ofsad Facilities, provided that 1fthe above loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or lab1ltty
results from the JO lilt negligence ofparties hereto then the labtlrty therefore shall be borne by them
in proportion to

N-1



thenr respective degree of negligence, provided further, however, that these prov1stons are subject
to the legal defenses available under law which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled to raise,
excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign mmmunrty "

3 That no structure may be placed" 1th1n the l11rnts of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except that
improvement such as walks. pavements for driveways, parking lot surfacing and landscape planting
may be constructed or placed w1th111 the Easement Area

4 In connection wth the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting said
Easement Area. the Grantor will assume all ltab1ltty for any damage to the Fac1ltt1es 111 the above
descnbed Easement Area The Grantor wtll also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless
from any claims for personal ll1Junes or property damage caused by any negligence or willful acts
or om1ss1ons of the Grantor or persons actmg on behalf of the Grantor, ansmg out of the
construction by the Grantor of any structure or bu1ldmg abuttmg the said Easement Area, and shall
reimburse the Grantees for the full amount of such loss or damage

5 The Grantor shall be responsible for the routme mamtenance of land on which the easement 1s
located

6 The Fac1litres shall be access1ble for maintenance by the Assoc1at1on at all times The Grantor shall
submtt plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the
Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, cond1t1oned or delayed

7 That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or mmus I foot or greater
wthmn the hmm1ts of sand Easement Area Sand alterations shall be made only wth the approval of
the City Engmeer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed

8 The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers. agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area 111 a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area 111 a manner that would
unreasonably mterfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers.
customers, agents, contractors and assigns

9 The Grantees and Grantor each hereby waives all nghts of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have agamst the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or personal
property or to persons covered by such party's msurance, but only to the extent of the waivmg
party's tnsurance coverage, provided, however, that the forego111g waivers shall not 111valtdate any
policy of 111surance now or hereafter issued, 1t be111g hereby agreed that such a waiver shall not
apply 111 any case which would result 111 the 111valtdat1on of any such policy of 111surance and that
each party shall notify the other f such party's insurance would be so 111valtdated

10 Either party hereto may enforce thus easement by appropriate action, and should 1t preval mn such
I 1t1gat1on, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees

11 This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a wnt111g executed and delivered by the
Grantees and Grantor or thell' respective successors and assigns

12 No waiver of, acquiescence 111, or consent to any breach ofany term, covenant, or cond1t1on hereof
shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence 111, or consent to any other, further,
or succeed111g breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or cond1t1on

N-2



13 If any term or prov1s10n of this easement shall, to any extent, be mvalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remaining terms and provtstons of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaining term and provrson shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent penrntted b) applicable law

14 This easement shall be construed and enforced 111 accordance with the mternal la""s of the State of
Wisconsin

15 Upon complet1on of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a storm water management
access by the City, the easement shall be terminated by recordmg a release 111 recordable form with
d1rect1ons for delivery of same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto, whereupon all
rights, duties and lab1litres created shall terminate

N-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

ON THIS DATE OF _________.20__

CREATIVE HOMES, INC.

By
RICK PRZYBYLA - PRESIDENT

STATE OF _._

COUNTY OF _._
ss

Before me personally appeared on the day of, 20. the above
named RICK PRZYBYLA, PRESIDENT of CREATIVE HOMES, INC, to me known to be the
person who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of said Corporation

Notary Public _

My comm1ss1on eXp1res

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By ---------------
John R Nelson, Mayor

By ---------------
Shurley J Roberts. City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On th1s day of D 20 before me personally
appeared John R Nelson and Simley J Roberts who bemng by me duly sworn, did say that they are
respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of the City ofFranklm, and that the seal affixed to said mstrument
1s the corporate seal of said mu111c1pal corporation. and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg
assignment as such officers as the deed of sand municipal corporation by tts authority, and pursuant to
resolution tile No adopted by its Common Council on .20_

Notary Public, MIiwaukee County, W1scons111

][y Comm1SS1On XD1TS

N-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned. Tri-City National Bank, a Wisconsin banking corporation ("Mortgagee"). as
Mortgagee under that certam Mortgage encumbenng the Property and recorded mn the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on_)_aS
Document No. . hereby consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and its addition as
an encumbrance agamst title to the Property

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by Its duly authorized
otlicers. and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed. as of the day and year first above wntten

Tri-City National Bank,
a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By-------------

Name _

Title: _

STATE OF -----~
ss

COUNTY OF _,

On this. the day of, 2_, before me, the undersigned,
personally appeared-----------'' the of Tri-City National Bank. a
Wisconsin bankmg corporation. and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf
of said corporation. by its authonty and for the purposes therein contamed

Name _

Notary Public _

State of _

County of _

My commission expires.

This Instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin

Approved as to contents
City Engineer
Date. _

Approved as to form only
City Attorney
Date: _

N-5



Exhibt A

(Descnpt1on of the Property)

Lots I through 9 and Outlot I 111 Ridgewood Reserve, a subd1v1s1on recorded 111
the Register of Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No.

, bemg 111 the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9,
o

Township 5 North. Range 21 East. City of Frankl 111, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin

February 6, 2025 Pinnacle Engineering Group Job #5407 00-WI
N-6



Exhtbtt B
(Dep1ct1011 of the Factltttes)

P.0•2

IJtiF>l.AfTEJ>
LANDS

I
I
I

--]

PAll(El 1
(' S.M NO !MS1

PARCEL. t
C.UI.N03>'1!6

15" STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT
8.949SQFT

0.2054 ACRES
4

15'

\.

\__I

I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I

s','
L22 2''

f -l
l
I

..., i
:j I

I

-,-
\
\
I
I
\
I
\

---

7

PARCEL I
c,s.t,U1'J J4IO

--,
I
I
I
13
I
I
!203

PO.. m1

/ C1 ··l.__

i
I
l
t

I
\

\
\.--'I

I
I
I
I
I

\
\
I

L2

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

ACCESS EASl!MENT
31 826 SO FT
0. 7306 ACRES

8

2

T
I

9

i
I
I

'I
\
I
I
I

••.- .Jr• .•. -- -·
I

PARE3. 2

I
I I' ~M i.o ,,.!>(,

PAM EL '
$4o 4s

I

OUTLOT 1

I
I
~------

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
f
I
)

.-- I
I
i

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

--'--

l
I
I
I

'~ ....,
I
}...

LOl 5
TU.KA'WAY

» )34

OT.01 2
TUCKY

€111.•f)IJK

IOT6
TUKAAY
990

LOT7
TUCKAWAY

HXw

I
\

.J-

\
\

I
·- ·• -.,.· •· PARC£,. I

1 C.S.M. No. 4s42 l

N-7



Exhibit B

(Depiction of the Facilities)

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

LI N01'30'27"W 163 70

L2 S88"3l'15"W 164 4?

l3 N02"21'50"W 16.22'

L4 N292031"E 64 30'

L5 N24"29'18"E 24 74'

L6 N0S5'47'39E 11 84"

L7 N24"16'02"E 53 18'
-

L8 N52''08'14"E 2092'

L9 N59"22'32"E 17 54'

LlO N83 43'17"E 21 05'

L11 S68"20'43E 16 50'

L12 S42"57'51"E 6016'

L13 N41 "20'51"E 13 07'

L14 $65"5252"E 784'

L15 $52"3535E 6.11'
. -· l --

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

L16 S16'12'01°E 643'

L17 S52''46'07"W 14.26'

l18 S42 57'51°E 63 53'

L19 S21"55'39"E 19 16'

l20 S001832E 42.42'

l21 S76"57'25"W 23 56'

L22 S88°37'15'W 27 43'

L23 013027E 165 43'

L24 SOO 15'17'E 370 53

L25 N6 1"0548"w 198 93'

L26 56170548'E 173 38'

L27 N00"15'17"W 329 69'

L28 S88"37'15-W 52.92'
gee e e. y ·-
l29 N012245"w 15 00'

L30 N88'3715E 68 22'

-·--·- - ·-· --- -- ----
CURVF. TABLE

CURVE NO LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEA.RING CHORD LENGTH

C1 j
2015' 7000' N8626'58"W 2008't

C2 15 03' 700(}' N2854'12E 15 00'

N-8



Exhibnt C

(Descnpt1011 of Easement Area)

Legal Description of the Storm Water Management Access Easements

That part of Outlot Imn Ridgewood Reserve. being a Subdrvusion m the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast I /4 of Section 9. Township 5 North, Range 21 East, 111 the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee and State of W1scons111, bounded and described as follows
Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Outlot I, thence North O I 030'2T West, 163 70 feet,
thence South 883715" West. 164 47 feet, thence North 02°21 '50'' West, 16 22 feet, thence
No1th 29°20'3 I'' East. 64 30 feet. thence No1th 24°29' 18'' East, 24 74 feet, thence North
05°47'39'' East, 11 84 feet, thence North 24°16'02" East, 53 18 feet, thence North 52°0814"
East, 20 92 feet, thence North 59°22· 32'' East, 17 54 feet, thence North 83°43' I 7" East. 21 05
feet, thence South 68°20'43" East, 16 50 feet, thence South 42°57' 51 '' East, 60.16 feet, thence
No1th 41°20'51'" East 13 07 feet, thence South 65°52'52'' East, 7 84 feet, thence South
52°35' 35" East, 6 11 feet, thence South 16° 12· 0 I'' East, 6 43 feet, thence South 52°46'07"
West, 14 26 feet, thence South 42°57" 51'" East, 63 53 feet, thence South 21 °55' 39'' East, 19 16
feet, thence South 00° 18'32" East. 42 42 feet, thence South 76°57'25'' West, 23 56 feet, thence
South 88°37" 15'" West, 27.43 feet, thence South O 1 °30'27" East, 165 43 feet to a point on the
No1th I me of South Ridgewood Dnve and a pomnt on a curve, thence northwesterly 20 15 feet
along said North lmne and the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius 1s 70 00 feet and whose
chord bears N01th 86°26'58'' West 20 08 feet to pomt the begmnmg
Contammng 31.826 square feet or O 7306 acre

ALSO

That part of Lots 4, 5 and 6 1n Ridgewood Reserve, being a Subdrvrs1on m the Southeast 1/4 of
the Southeast 1 /4 of Sect1011 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, mn the City of Frankl 111, County
of Milwaukee and State of W1sconsm, bounded and described as follows
Beg111n1ng at the Northeast corner of said Lot 4, thence South 00° 15' IT East, 370 53 feet along
the East subd1v1s1on !me, thence North 61 °05'48" West, 198.93 feet to the South !me of South
Ridgewood Dnve and a pomt on a curve. thence northeasterly 15 03 feet along said South lme
and the arc of said curve to the left, whose radius 1s 70 00 feet and whose chord bears North
28°5412" East, 15 00 feet, thence South 61 °05 · 48" East, 173 38 feet, thence North 00° 15' 17"
West 329 69 feet, thence South 88°3715" West, 52 92 feet, thence North 01°2245" West,
15 00 feet to the North !me of aforesaid Lot 4, thence North 8893715" East along said North
!me 68.22 feet to the pomnt of begmnmg
Containing 8,949 square feet or O 2054 acre

February 6 2025 Pinnacle Engmneermg Group job #5407 00-WI

N-9
L \ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards Jul 2017\Design Standards tnalrzed for .Jul 2017\20 19 Design Standards

Append N Easement tor storm water management aess #l2 doc



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of the Storm Drainage Easement
For Ridgewood Reserve Subdrvs1on

MTG. DATE
6/3/2025

ITEM NO.

BACKGROUND
The City des1res to acquire a perpetual, non-exclusive easement with the right of entry 1n and
across a portion of the property, a storm dramage system consistmg of an open swale (ditch) and/or
storm sewer and associated manholes and catch basmns mn Ridgewood Reserve Subdrv1son

The City will have the nght to bmld and construct and/or operate, mamtam, repair, enlarge,
reconstruct and mspect as may be or may become applicable

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to accept said
easement, and have 1t recorded with the Register of Deeds of Milwaukee County

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No 2025- a resolution for acceptance of the storm dramage
easement for Ridgewood Reserve Subdrvrs1on

Engmeenng Department RMA



STATE OF WISCONSIN· CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025 -

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT
FOR RIDGEWOOD RESERVE SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, an easement 1s required to build and construct and/or operate, mamta111,
repa1r, enlarge, reconstruct and inspect a storm drainage system cons1sting of an open swale
(ditch) and/or storm sewer and associated manholes and catch basins 111 Ridgewood Reserve
Subdrvs1on, and

WHEREAS, Creative Homes, Inc, Grantor, has agreed to grant the City a perpetual, non
exclusive easement

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Frankl111 that It would be 111 the best 111terest of the City to accept such easement and therefore
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authonzed and directed to execute the easement acceptung 1t
on behalf of the City

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk 1s directed to record smd easement
wIth the Register of Deeds of Milwaukee County

Introduced at a regular meet111g of the Common Council of the City of Franklm the
day of,2025, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2021

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT

Ridgewood Reserve

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a mun1c1pal
corporation of the State of W1scons111, heremafter referred to as "City," and CREATIVE HOMES,
INC, a Wisconsmn Corporation, as owner (mncludmng successors and ass1gn's of the City as may
become applicable mcludmng the heirs, executors, adm1111strators, successors and assigns of above
owner(s) as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (1f more than one
grantor 1s listed above, said language herem referring thereto shall be interpreted mn the plural and
refer JOmtly and severally to such grantors)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner and holder of record Title to certain reel particularly
described on Exhibit "A" which 1s attached hereto and incorporated heremn (the Property), and

WHEREAS. the City desires to acquire a perpetual, non-exclusive easement with the nght
of entry 111 and across a po111on of the property as the same 1s more particularly hereinafter
described, with the right to build and construct and/or operate, ma111ta111, repair, enlarge,
reconstruct, relocate and mnspect as may be or may become applicable the follow111g facil1t1es and
appurtenances thereto, heremafter collectively called the ''Facilities,'' 111, upon and across said
portion of the Property a storm dra111age system cons1st111g of an open swale (ditch) and/or storm
sewer and associated manholes and catch basms, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as
Exhibit "B ", and

WHEREAS, the mnutral construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by
Gran tor at Grantor's expense and the Fac1ht1es shall be the property of the City and be deemed
dedicated to the City upon the City's mnspectuon and approval of the Facilities as Installed, subject
to the terms and conditions set forth below

NOW, THEREFORE, 111 cons1derat1on of the grant of the easement heremafter descnbed,
the int1al mnstallatron and maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the City, and the
payment of One Dollar ($1 00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, the receipt
whereof 1s hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, bemg the owner and person interested 111 the land
heremafter descnbed, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that
part of the Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section Nme (9), Township Five (5) North, Range
Twenty-One (21) East, mn the City of Frankl 111, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly
descnbed on Exh1b1t C attached hereto (the "Easement Area")

That sand Facilities not mcludmng any open swale/ditch shall be mamntamned and kept in
good order and cond1t1on by the City, at the sole cost and expense of the City
Respons1bil1ty for mamta111111g the ground cover and landscaping, mclud1ng any open
swale/d1tch, w1thm the Easement area shall be that of the Grantor (111clud111g he1rs,
executors, adm1111strators, successors, and assigns)

2 That m and dunng whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repa1r work 1s or
becomes necessary mn constructmng and/or maintamnmng of said Facrlrt1es, so much of the
surface or subsurface of the Easement Area on the property as may be disturbed will, at the
expense of the City. be replaced 111 substantially the same condition as 1t was prior

M-1



to such disturbance, except that the City wll mn no case be responsible for replacmg or
paying for replacing any aesthetic plantings, fences, or improvements other than ordinary
lawns or standard walks, roadways, driveways and park111g lot surfacmg which were
required to be removed or were otherwise damaged mn the course of domng the above work.
However, the City shall mndemnfy and save harmless the Grantor from and agamnst any
loss, damage, claim, cost, injury or labtlty resulting from negligence or willful acts or
omissions on the part of the City, its agents or employees mn connect1on with said work
involved mn constructing and/or mamntamnmng of sad Facilities, provided that 1f the above
loss, clamm, cost, damage, mnyury or liability results from the joint negligence of parties
hereto, then the IIabI11ty therefore shall be borne by them 111 proportion to their respective
degree of negligence provided further. however, that these prov1s1ons are subject to the
legal defenses available under law which the City or Grantor are entitled to raise, exceptmg
the defense of so-called "sovereign mmmuntty "

3 That no structure, fence, plantmgs, or other improvements may be placed w1th111 the
l11111ts of the Easement Area by the Grantor except that improvement such as walks,
pavements for driveways and parking lot surfacing, and landscaping may be constructed
or placed wthmn the Easement Area as approved by the City Engineer

4 In connection with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or buildmg abuttmg
said Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all !Jab1hty for any damage to the Facilities
111 the above described Easement Area The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear
and harmless from any claims for personal inJunes or property damage caused by
any negligence or willful acts or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of
the Grantor, ansmg out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or buildmg
abuttung the said Easement Area, and shall reimburse the City for the full amount of such
loss or damage

5 No charges will be made aga111st the prope11y for the cost of ma111tenance or operation of
said Facilities mn the property Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service
connection associated with the services provided by virtue of the Facility, the regular and
customary service connection charge mn effect at the tune of the application shall be charged
and paid The Grantor shall be responsible for the rout111e ma111tenance of land on which
the easement 1s located

6 The City of Franklin shall m no case be responsible for mamntamnmng at 1ts expense any
portion of said storm dramnage services outs1de of the Easement Area and outs1de the lmm1ts
of any adJ0111111g easements

7 The Fac1ht1es shall be accessible for mamtenance by the City at all times The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engmeer for any underground 111stallat1on w1th111
the Easement Area. which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, cond1t1oned or
delayed

8 That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or mmus O 05 foot or
greater within the lmmuts of sad Easement Area Saud alterations shall be made only wth
the approval of the City Engmeer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, cond1t1oned or delayed

9 The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause the1r
employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area
111 a reasonable manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a
manner that would unreasonably mterfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto

M-2



or its employees. officers, customers, agents. contractors and assigns

IO The City and Grantor each hereby waives all nghts of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have agamst the other for an) damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party's msurance, but only to the extent
of the warvmng party 's Insurance coverage, provided, however, that the foregoing wavers
shall not mvalidate any policy of msurance now or hereafter issued, 1t being hereby agreed
that such a waiver shall not apply 111 any case which would result in the 111valtdat1on of any
such policy of msurance and that each party shall notify the other 1f such party· s insurance
would be so mvalidated

11 Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should 1t prevail
111 such lit1gat1on, that pa11y shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable
attorneys· fees

12 This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a wrrtmng executed and
delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and ass1gns

13 No waiver of, acquiescence 111, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition
hereof shall be construed as. or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence 111, or consent to any
other, further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

14 If any term or prov1s1on of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable
under applicable law. then the rema111111g terms and provisions of this easement shall not
be affected thereby. and each such remamnmng term and prov1s1on shall be valid and
enforceable to the fullest extent penrntted by applicable law

15 This easement shall be construed and enforced 111 accordance with the mnternal laws of the
State of W 1sconsm

16 It 1s understood that at some pomt 111 the future all or a portion of the Easement Area may
become portions of public streets, mn which event, mn the City's proceedings for the
acquisition of the portion of the property needed for such streets by purchase, dedicat1on
or by condemnation, said lands shall be considered the same as though this easement had
not been executed or any rights granted thereby exercised

17 That the Grantor shall submit as-but It draw111gs of the mstalled fac1ltt1es for approval to the
City Engmeer, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, cond1t1oned. or delayed

M-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

ON THIS DATE OF , 20_

CREATIVE HOMES, INC.

By:
RIKzVSVL.PRESIDE

STATE OF __,_
ss

COUNTY OF __,_

Before me personally appeared on the day of 2)_, the above
named RICK PRZYBYLA, PRESIDENT of CREATIVE HOMES, INC, to me known to be the
person who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of said Corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC _

My commission expires _

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By:-.,...----------------
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

STATE OF ___..
ss

COUNTYOF -L

On thisday of 2O· before me personally appeared John R.
Nelson and Shirley J. Roberts who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the
Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the
corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing
assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant
to Resolution File No. adopted by its Common Council on _

2O

Notary Public

My commission expires _
M-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned. Tr-City National Bank. a Wisconsin banking corporation
("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certam Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded
111 the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. W1scons111, on _

---'20 __ . 111 Volume of Records, page __. as Document No hereby
consents to the execution of the forego mg easement and its add1t1011 as an encumbrance against
title to the Property

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above
written

Tri-City National Bank
a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By ---------------

Name

Title --------------

STATE OF)
ss

COUNTY OF)

On this, the day of . 20_, before me, the undersigned,
personally appeared. the_of Tr-City National
Bank. a W1scons111 bank111g corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the forego111g
111strument on behalf of said corporation, by its authority and for the purposes theremn contamed

Name _

Notary Public _

State of----------------
County of _

[/]y comm1SS1on €XDIfS

Tl11S mstrument was drafted by the City of Franklm
Approved as to contents

Manager of Franklin Mu111c1pal Water Utility
Date _

Approved as to form only

Date _
City Attorney

M-5



Exhibit A

(Description of the Property)

Lots I through 9 and Outlot I in Ridgewood Reserve, a subdivision recorded in
the Register of Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No.
_______. being in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9,
Township 5 North. Range 21 East. City of Franklin. Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin.

February 6, 2025 Pinnacle Engineering Group job #5407 00-WI

M-6



Exhibit B
(Depiction of the Facilities)

•JNPV\TTCO Lf\MOS

IJNf1I.AflEO
Le4f93

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
J

- 1
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

8
I
I

-----7

5

PARCEL 1
C. S.r.l. lll () 11457

PAR£t. t
C.$M NO, 344

a

4

20 8TORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT
3.874 5Q FT
0.0889 ACRES

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

..l_ -

L23

r

- - - ·- -,- -
I
I
I
I
I
I

C1

.---

L9

-, 20'
I
I
I ClOl
I

PARCH I
CS.M.l\10 '.!410

3
\
\
l

PO.B. #2

\.
\

OUTLOT 1

_.
0.

PAM,EL 2
$M N0 444

2

t• '-,..-,,. ...., 70 ST0RM
\ DRAINAGE 40l EASEMENT
I 13 876 S0 FT
; 0.3185 ACRES 7,·" 8

l

\ \
9 I L\3

1

ran.EL t
1; 5Mt NO 45

20'STORM
DRAlffAGE
EASEMENT

2,081 SO Fl
00476 ACRfS

P0.8.#1

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
Ir
'I
I
)

I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

-1..--

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

- -..J
I

+

LO1
TUCKAWAY
5H2OK

LOTt
TUCKAWAY

SROOK

GT?
'IUCKA.WI\Y

BllOOK

...... .. ... _.,. . I

"- AH;t t II ,.. S.1,1. NO 4,. ,,:; I

()IJl'l<J'I 2
llJCKAWAY
8ROOK

(
\
\
\
I
\
\
\.-

M-7



Exhibit B

(Depiction of the Facilities)

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE
-- -

l1 NOO 1820''W 15260'
,_ , ..

L2 NO5 120"W 23 41'

L3 N52"22'10"E 6946'

L4 N21"28'37"E 18.71'

LS N88"37'1S"E 21 70'

L6 $21"2837W 32 73

L7 S52"22'10-W 8716'

L8 N013027W 193.30

L9 N88"29'33"E 2000'

L10 S01"30'27"E 19507'

Lil S05'27'36"E 122 41'

L12 NT744'20E 106 02'

L1J Nss·35'08"E 86 12
-

LINE TABLE

LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE___ ,,___ ,

L14 N11"!i9'10"W 94 65'
··-· -~- ..... ill ooooo. •"-'•

L15 S11'59't0"E 98 39'

L16 N88"35'08"E 136 37

L17 ' N15"1539"E 42.57'
'

L18 l N61 '05'48"W 155.72
'

L19 S61 •05'48"E 18946'

L20 S00'15'17E 22 90'

L21 N610548"W 24.34'

L22 $15"15'39-W 5260'

L23 S88"35'08"W 255 82'

L24 $774420w 106 51'

L25 N052736W 20 14'
·---~-- __, - -- -· -~-------

CURVE TABLE

CURVE NO LENGTH RADIUS i CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

Cl 2015' 7000' N6"26'58W 2008'

C2 2007' 7000' N78"00'50"E 20 00'

C3 2007' 7000' N28"54'12"E 2000'

M-8



Exhibit C
(Description of Easement Area)

Legal Description of the Drainage Easements:

That part of Out lot I and part of Lots 2. 3. 5. 6. 7 and 8 in Ridgewood Reserve, being a
Subdivision in the Southeast I /4 of the Southeast I /4 of Section 9. Township 5 North. Range 21
East. in the City of Franklin. County or Milwaukee and State of Wisconsin, bounded and
described as follows.
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Lot 2. thence North 06° 18'2o·· West, 152.50 feet
along the West line of said Lot 2 to the point of beginning; thence continuing North 06%18'20
West along said West line 23.41 feet, thence North 52°22' IO'" East, 69.46 feet; thence North
21 °28'3T East, 18.77 feet, thence North 88°37' 15.. East, 21.70 feet; thence South 21 ° 1837
West. 32.73 feet; thence South 52%22'10 West. 87.16 feet to the point of beginning.
Containing 2,081 square feet or 0.0478 acre.
ALSO:
Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Lot 3. thence North 0 I 030' 2T West, 193.30 feet,
thence North 882933" East. 20.00 feet: thence South 0130 27 East, 195.07 feet to the North
line of south Ridgewood Drive; thence Northwesterly 20.15 feet along said North line and the
arc of a curve to the left, whose radius is 70.00 feet and whose chord bears North 86°26'58..
West, 20.08 feet to the point of beginning.
Containing 3.874 square feet or 0.0889 acre.
ALSO
Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Lot 8, thence South 05°27'36.. East, 122.41 feet
along the West line of said Lot 8 to the point of beginning; thence North 77°44'20·· East, I 06.02
feet; thence North 88°35"08'" East, 86.12 feet; thence North 11 °59' IO'" West, 94.65 feet to the
South line of South Ridgewood Drive and point on a curve; thence Northeasterly 20.07 feet
along said South line and said curve to the right. whose radius of 70.00 feet and whose chord
bears North 78%0050" East. 20.00 feet: thence South 1159 10" East 98.39 feet; thence North
883508" East, 136.37 feet: thence North 15°1539 East. 42.57 feet: thence North 61%05'48"
West, 155 72 feet to the South line of South Ridgewood Drive and point on a curve; thence
Northeasterly 20.07 feet along said South line and said curve to the right, whose radius of 70.00
feet and whose chord bears North 28°5412 East. 20.00 feet; thence South 61 °05 '48'" East,
I 89 .48 feet to the East Ii ne of said Lot 5, thence South 00° 15' Ir East along said East I ine 22.90
feet; thence North 61 0548 West. 24.34 feet; thence South 15° 1539 West, 52.60 feet; thence
South 883508" West. 255.82 feet; thence South 77°44'20'" West, I 06.51 feet to the aforesaid
West line of Lot 8, thence North 05° 2736 West along said West line 20.14 feet to the point of
beginning.
Containing 13,876 square feet or 0.3185 acre.

February 6. 2025. Pinnacle Engineering Group job #5407.00-WI
LENGDOCSDesign Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards July 2017Design Standards finalized for July 2017\2019 Design Standards
Appendix M Easement for Storm Drainage - letter size #lL.doc

M-9



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of the Sanitary Sewer Easement
For Ridgewood Reserve Subdrv1s1on

MEETING
DATE

6/312025

ITEM NO.

G. o.
BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of the development of RIdgewood Reserve subdrv1s1on, an easement 1s
required to construct, mamntamn, and operate Such easement is for the sanitary sewer facilities

The samtary sewer facilities on this site mclude a sewer lme and manholes

ANALYSIS
It 1s recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to accept said
san1tary sewer easement, and have 1t recorded with the Register of Deeds of Milwaukee County

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No 2025- a resolution for acceptance of a Sa111tary Sewer
easement for Ridgewood Reserve subdrv1s1on

Engmeenng Department RMA



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN. MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
FOR RIDGEWOOD RESERVE SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, an easement 1s required to construct, maintain and operate public sanitary
sewer for the development of Ridgewood Reserve subdrvs1on, and

WHEREAS, Creative Homes, Inc , Grantor, has agreed to grant the City a perpetual, non
exclusive easement, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklm that 1t would be 111 the best mnterest of the City to accept such Samtary Sewer
Easement Agreement, and, therefore, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authonzed and
directed to execute same on behalf of the City

BE IT FURTHER RESOLYEO, that the City Clerk be and the same 1s hereby directed to
obtain the recording of the Sanitary Sewer Easement 111 the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Introduced at a regular meetmng of the Common Council of the City of Franklm the
day 0f_2025, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Frankl111 on the
day of,2025

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

Ridgewood Reserve

THIS EASEMENT 1s made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal
corporation of the State of W1scons111, here111after referred to as "City," and CREATIVE HOMES,
INC, a W1scons111 Corporation, as owner, (mncludmng successors and assigns of the City as may
become applicable mcludmg the heirs. executors, adm1111strators, successors and assigns of the
above owner(s) as may be or may become appl1cable), hereinafter called "Grantor". (1f more than
one grantor 1s listed above. said language herem referring thereto shall be mterpreted 111 the plural
and refer .10111tly and severally to such grantors)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS. Grantor 1s the owner and holder of record Title to certamn real property
described on Exhibit "A" which rs attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property), and

WHEREAS, the City des1res to acquire a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry mn
and across a portwn of the property as the same 1s more particularly hereinafter described, with
the right to build and construct and/or operate, ma111ta111, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and
111spect as may be or may become applicable the followmg factl1t1es and appurtenances thereto,
hereinafter collectively called the "Facilities," mn, upon and across sad portion of the Property a
santtary sewer, associated manholes, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as "Exh1b1t B, any
Lift Station with auxiliary power enclosed mn an above ground enclosure

NOW, THEREFORE, 111 cons1deratwn of the grant of the easement hereinafter described,
the 1111t1al 111stallat1on and mamtenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the City, and the
payment of One Dollar ($1 00) and other valuable cons1derat1ons to the Grantor, receipt whereof
1s hereby acknowledged. said Grantor, bemg the owner and person mnterested m the land hereinafter
described, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part of the
Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section Nine (9). Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-One (21)
East, mn the City of Franklmn, Milwaukee County, Wisconsmn, more particularly described on
Exhibrt C attached hereto (the "Easement Area'')

That sand Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condrt1on by the City,
at the sole cost and expense of the City Respons1b1ltty for mamtaming the ground cover
and landscapmg ,v1th111 the Easement Area shall be that of the Grantor (including heirs,
executors, admm1strators, successors, and assigns)

2 That 111 and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work 1s or
becomes necessary mn constructing and/or maintaining of satd Facrlttres. so much of the
surface or subsurface of the Easement Area on the property as may be disturbed will, at the
expense of the City. be replaced 111 substantially the same cond1t1on as 1t was prior to such
disturbance However, the City shall mdemmfy and save harmless the Grantor from and
aga111st any loss, damage, claim, cost, mJury or liability resulting from negligence or willful
acts or omissions on the part of the City, 1ts agents or employees mn connection with sand
work mvolved 111 constructmg and/or mamntamnmng of said Facilities, provided that 1f the
above loss, clamm, cost, damage, Injury or lab1lrty results from the jomnt negligence of
parties hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to their
respective degree of negligence, provided further, however, that these provisions are

H-I



subject to the legal defenses available under law which the City or Grantor are entitled to
raise, excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign 1mmun1ty "

3 That no structure may be placed w1th111 the lurnts of the Easement Area by the Grantor
except that improvement such as walks. pavements for driveways and park111g lot surfacing
and landscapmg may be constructed or placed wthin the Easement Area.

4 That, 111 connection with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or build111g
abutt111g said easement area, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the
FacI11t1es 111 the above Easement Area The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear
and harmless from any clamms for personal injuries or property damage caused by any
negligence or willful acts or om1ss1ons of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of the
Grantor, arrsmng out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or build mg abuttmg
the said Easement Area, and shall reunburse the City for the full amount of such loss or
damage

5 That no charges w1 II be made agamst the property for the cost of ma111tenance or operation
of satd Fac1lites m the property Whenever the Grantor makes appl1cation for a service
connect1on associated with the services provided by virtue of the Facility, the regular and
customary service connection charge mn effect at the tune of the application shall be charged
and paid The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on which
the easement 1s located.

6 The Fac1ht1es shall be accessible for ma111tenance by the City at all tunes The Grantor
shal I submit plans for approval to the City Engmeer for any underground 111stallat1on w1th111
the Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. cond1t1oned or
delayed

7 That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or 111111us 1 foot or
greater wthmn the lmmtts of sad Easement Area Saud alterations shall be made only with
the approval of the City Engmeer of the City of Franklm, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed

8 The City and Grantor shall each use. and take reasonable measures to cause their
employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area
111 a reasonable manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area 111 a
manner that vvould unreasonably mterfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or
its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9 The City and Grantor each hereby waives all nghts of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have agamst the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party"s insurance, but only to the extent
of the warvmng party's msurance coverage, provided, however, that the forego mg waivers
shall not mvahdate any policy of 111surance now or hereafter issued, 1t bemg hereby agreed
that such a waiver shall not apply 111 any case which would result 111 the 111vahdat1on of any
such policy of msurance and that each party shall notify the other 1f such party's msurance
would be so mnvaldated

0 Either party hereto may enforce thus easement by appropriate actton, and should rt preval
111 such ht1gat1on. that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable
attorneys· fees

11 This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a wnt111g executed and
delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns

H-2



12 No waiver of, acquiescence 111, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or cond1t1on
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence 111. or consent to any
other. further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or cond1t1on

13 If any term or prov1s1on of this easement shall, to any extent, be 111vahd or unenforceable
under app!Icable law. then the remamning terms and provrstons of this easement shall not
be affected thereby, and each such remaining term and provts1on shall be valid and
enforceable to the fullest extent penrntted by applicable law

14 Tl11S easement shall be construed and enforced 111 accordance with the 111ternal laws of the
State of WIscons1n.

15 Upon completion of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a samtary sewerage
11ft station, the City shall remove the 11ft station, manholes, piping and the enclosure and
cause the prompt restoration to a smooth surface contour and neat cond1t1on restoring the
Easement Area mnto a condition similar to the remaining parcel as described mn Exh1brt "A"

16 Upon completion of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a sanitary se,verage
lift station and the restoration of the Easement Area by the City, the Easement Area, the
easement shall be termmated by recordmg a release 111 recordable form with d1rect1ons for
dell very of same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto, whereupon all nghts,
duties and lab1litres created shall terminate

H-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hands and seals

ON THIS DATE OF,O_

CREATIVE HOMES, INC

STATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OF _

Before me personally appeared on the day of 20, the above
named RICK PRZYBYLA, PRESIDENT of CREATIVE HOMES, INC, to me known to be the
person who executed the foregomng Easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of sand Corporation

Notary Public _

ly comm1ss1on eXpIrS

H-4



CITY OF FRANKLIN

By~--~----------John R Nelson, Mayor

By ~~-~~------------
Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE

On thus day of.,20 before me personally appeared John R Nelson
and Simley J Roberts who bemng by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor
and City Clerk of Franklm, and that the seal affixed to said instrument ts the corporate seal of said
mu111cipal corporation. and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg assignment as such
officers as the deed of said mu111c1pal corporation by its authonty, and pursuant to Resolution File
No adopted by its Common Council on , 20_

Notary Public

My comm1ss1on expires _

H-5



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, Tr-City National Bank. a Wisconsin banking corporation ("Mortgagee"). as
Mortgagee under that certamn Mortgage encumbermg the Property and recorded 111 the Office of
the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, W1scons111. on-----------20 .as Document No,hereby consents to the execution of the foregomg
easement and its add1t1on as an encumbrance agamst title to the Property

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first
above wntten

Tr-City National Bank. a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By _

Name·-------------

Title-------------

STATE OF---------
COUNTY OF-------

)ss
)

On this. the day of , 20_, before me. the undersigned.
personally appeared, the ofTr-City
National Bank, a Wisconsin banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the
foregoing mstrument on behalf of said corporation, by its authonty and for the purposes therem
contained

Name -----------------

Notary Public--------------
State of----------------
County of---------------
My comm1sS1on eXp1re

Tl11S instrument was drafted by the City of Franklm

Approved as to contents
Date -------

Approved as to form only
Date -------

City Engmeer

City Attorney

H-6



Exhibit A

(Descnpt1on of the Property)

Lots I through 9 and Outlot I mn Ridgewood Reserve, a subdrv1ston recorded mn
the Register of Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No
=-- ----,-----c =--=-, ,-- -,-----,, ' bemg 111 the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East City of Frankl 111, Milwaukee County.
W ISCOnSll1

February 6, 2025 Pmnacle Engmeermg Group Job #5407 00-WI

H-7



Exhibit B
(Depiction of the Facilities)

llNPtArtf..O 1.ANOf,

I
I
I
I
l NPLNTEO
I LM 4i'..1&

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

5

Pr.RC:F.I.'
c.sr.c 110 94$7

4

PARCEL 1
5.M4 My 34t4

6

SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT
6793SOn
01559ACRES

i
/.....

/ >•-, .........\ >.
I ''\
\
I
\
I
\-.-,----

t
I
I
I
I
I

ML. 1
I, l!M I( {) 3410

L4

L2 I
20'\

I

3 3 "'_,
i
l
I
l
.i.
c2 '/ ',

P.O.B.11

\
\
I /

\
\

OUTLOT 1

2

I
\
),---"

1
I PAACCL2
] C5.M40 94%6

a ''-.-T \ --I
! I
I \
I \

8 I 7
\9 I

Pf
!..S >A l•O 94Sff

1--

1I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

-.J

LOTS
Hi,'+At4¥
BROC.-;:

o.ntm ~
TUCKAWAY

8RC,!<)K

.--- --

ttn,;
T,J(:KAWA\'

BROl'lK

I.OTl
I\JCMAWAV

ilROOK

r
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
J £xUST; 3Mxny
I S/¢HA+A+-Mt +H --

i- ,-; :'\ sN, •: "'!" 1 AA 1 ;,i,\~ .:s,1 ~ to tit'::\'" .1,u~ ~!! t \
xMG rRfAsfr4

@ <sN"+3Y a s } 1
r::•A t-R -\ ' 4- PO.B.#2 L _+·«MM.+' . 1

::" p~,\ _ _ ,,_·_•--=-----, F ==mi -, i-
} \ • 3 :

-- :...'.y srrsr nun-? I
..,. I M-"M• !f. t3 4F34t

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

r'
\
I

--. »cm
I C SM NO 4542

H-8



Exhtbrt B
(Depiction of the Facilities)

LINE TABLE
LINE NO BEARING DISTANCE

Ll N 01"3027" W 133 84
L2 S 88°37'15" W 60 77'
L3 N 00"15'17" W 25 00'
L4 N 88°37'15" E 221 78'
LS S 76°57'25" W 144 48'
L6 S 01°30'27" E 134 36'
L7 N 00"1513" W 501'
L8 8837'15" W 27 45'
L9 N 7657'25" E 2814'
LlO $0015'13" E 5 69'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE NO LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

Cl 0 36' 70 00' N 69°27'48" W 0 36'
C2 20 64' 70 00' N 78"03'19" W 20 56

H-9



Exhibnt C

(Description of Easement Area)

Legal Description of the Sanitary Sewer Easements

That part of Outlot I and part of Lots 3 and 4 m Ridgewood Reserve, being a Subdiv1s1on m the
Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, 111 the City of
Frankl 111. County of Milwaukee and State of W1scons111, bounded and described as follows
Commenc111g at the Southwest corner of said Lot 4; thence Northwesterly O 36 foot along the
North lmne of South Ridgewood Dnve and the arc of a curve to the left, whose radius 1s 70 00
feet and whose chord bears North 69°2T48'' West, 0 36 foot to the po111t of beg111n1ng, thence
contmnumng Northwesterly 20 64 feet along said North lme and the arc of said curve, whose radius
1s 70.00 feet and whose chord bears North 78°03'19'' West, 20 56 feet, thence North 01°30'27"
West, 133 84 feet, thence South 88°37' 15'' West, 60 77 feet, thence North 00°15'17 West, 25 00
feet to the South lme of satd Outlot I, thence No11h 88°37' 15'' East along said No11h lme 221 78
feet, thence South 76°5T25" West, 144 48 feet, thence South O I 030'27" East, 134 36 feet to the
pomnt of begmnnmng
Contamnmng 6,793 square feet or O 1559 acre
ALSO.
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Outlot 1, thence North 00°15' 13" West. 5 0 I feet
along the East l111e of said Outlot I to the pomt of beginning; thence South 883715° West,
27 45 feet, thence No11h 76°57'25'' East, 28 14 feet to the aforesaid East !me of said Outlot I,
thence South 00° 15' 13'' East along said East line 5 69 feet to the pomt of begmnmg
Contamnmng 78 square feet or O 0018 acre

February 6, 2025 Pmnacle Engmeermg Group Job #5407 00-WI

H-10



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

June 3, 2025

REPORTS & A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to
Accept a Conservation Easement for Damian

RECOMMENDATIONS Przybylo at

0 S 92ND ST (TAXKEY: 886 9987 002)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. 1

The applicant is request release of an existing easement, and recording of a new
easement, to allow for construction of a single-family home on this property, located
at 0 S. 92St. TKN 886 9987 002.

On May 21, 2019, the Common Council accepted a Conservation Easements as part of
the approval of Certified Survey Map No. 9221 to divide property located at 9132 S.
92d St. The Conservation Easement consists of three (3) sections across two lots, and
encompass wetland features and mature woodland.

The proposed revision is to Easement Area C on the property with TKN 886 9987 002
(an address will be assigned when it is developed), which contains mature woodland
and wetland. In order to put in a driveway, the easement must be revised as it does not
allow for this. The applicant has produced an updated Natural Resource Protection
Plan and the new tree survey indicates that the proposed drive location does not
impact wetland areas, or more than the allowable percentage of tree canopy impacts
under UDO Part 4. The request therefore does not require a Natural Resource Special
Exception. Common Council may opt to release a portion of the easement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025-__, to release in part a Conservation
Easement and Accept a Conservation Easement for Damian Przybylo at OS 92ND ST
(TAXKEY: 886 9987 002), subject to technical corrections by City of Franklin staff.

Department of City Development: MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
Draft 05-05-2025

RESOLUTION NO. 2025

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORJZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERYATION EASEMENT FOR DAMIAN PRZYBYLO

ATOS 92ND ST (TAXKEY: 886 9987 002)

WHEREAS, the Common Council having previously approved Certified Survey Map
No. 9221 on May 21, 2019 (RES 2019-7498), and the Plan Commission having conditioned
approval thereof in part upon Common Council approval of a Conservation Easement to
protect the mature woodlands, wetlands, wetland buffers and setbacks, on the site; and

WHEREAS, $15-7.0702.P of the Unified Development Ordinance requires the
submission of a Conservation Easement and Natural Resource Protection Plan in the
Certified Survey Map review process and the Unified Development Ordinance requires
conservation easements to be imposed for natural resource features identified within such
Plan to protect such features, all as part of the approval process for a Certified Survey Map;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has elected to release a portion of the previously
approved easement boundary upon request of Damian Przybylo to allow for impacts to
mature woodland, which do not exceed the standards of UDO Part 4 Natural Resource
Protection, and record a new easement to protect remaining natural resource features; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Conservation Easement and
having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYEO, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Conservation Easement submitted by Damian
Przybylo, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the same is hereby approved,
subject to technical corrections by the City Attorney; and the Mayor and City Clerk are
hereby authorized to execute such Easement as evidence of the consent to and acceptance of
such easement by the City of Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLYEO, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of the Conservation Easement in the Office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of 2025.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT
DAMIAN PRZYBYLO
RESOLUTION NO. 2025
Page 2

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



:m 1SlN\fllnSNO) DNl~33NIDN3 ]~S31VDOSSV ~ H)NAl ci cizt 03 rG z 0
IM 'NIN8J ,;nno D! SlN3WW0) M31A3~ All) ~ 3: ~ ~~ tti

1OT'133IS ON6 S
I

31vO A8
<( ,y uSNOISI 38 'ON uv LI 0 Oo r

::,- z "' V,

AVM3J\IIJO - NVld 311S V, > ± "-
@

I
u- u-

vi
2 vi

N ww 0 <D m0. Ol .,..
_

g< QJ ..,:..,: __J<(
o ..,. ;;::::.Ow ..,. wOo I

I I- a::
;;: 0

~~
<( z....,

<( w w....,
w a:: as

Ol LL a:: <(

eo <(
I-

V) <(

u) A I- z g
::;; CX) z w z <(::, . w ::;;

Q >-v,.:::, ::;; w
V) w V) I- a..u. V) <( <t:o<( w >z

V) w a. £
u, Ro z z b!u0
V) "' 0 F z

uo F <( oz
69g, <( > uo

> a:: .,Ea:: wO w V) E8Ol Ol <( V) z0 w z 0 .Ea5 I a:: 0 (.) -V)
Ol <( (.) z, z z ;;:80a::(.) 0 <( 4: ~ E- (.) V) (.!)
u! oc (.) ::, wz
a:: w a:: ::, a:: g.<5  >-V) O+8o V) z os5 z 0

0 (.) 2wz
....J ....J ....J (.) I .. > <(
<( <( <( I >- wOI
I- I- I- w V) I-::;;(.)
000 a:: 0 OwZ>- I- I- a.. a.. za::::,

I
I

I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

.....,.,
ci
QJ,....
¥-----'-----'l,c I

~ I o
I- / ~

ci /
'5' I
~ I

'w /
m /
21
V)wwg

0z0z0 0 0 0z z z z

I



51'U SJ0"22'J2 SJ\'14'15"E

DELTA SARIGI 3EARIG OUT

Survey No. 24.5014
Page 1 of 2

Line Table

Line Bearing Length

L20 N65'26'16"W 38.71'

L21 NO6'09'31"W 158.01'

L22 N27'42'42"E 83.49'

L23 N23'30'47"w 37.57'

L24 N87'52'26"W 125.23'

L25 N89'32'17"w 89.98'

L26 S39'12'53"W 91.98'

L27 S89'28'33"W 16.43'

L28 N00'31'27"W 629. 77'

L29 N76'30'14"E 225.84'

L30 S58'27'08"E 91.82'

L3I N80'11 '3Q"E 98.26'

Line Table

Line Bearing Length

L32 N88'21'48"E 198.89'

L33 N02'51'01''E 83.88'

L34 N54'58'31"W 203.35'

L35 $89'50'49"w 38.33'

L36 S00'31 '27"E 206.08'

Line Table

Line Bearing Length

L1 NO0'31'27"W 98.97'

L2 N88'20'27"E 149.66'

L3 S30'22'41"E 76.85'

L4 S79'28'13"W 83.53'

L5 N88'59'39"W 84.15'

L6 NO1'42'51"W 87.87'

L7 S89'28'33"W 84.43'

Curve Table

L18

l-ur--

J

588"21 '48''W 556.56'

O' 30'

'l
SCALE: 1 ~ = 30'

c1 128.J9' /85J4.42" $0 48' 23' 128.J9'

Line Table

Line Bearing Length

L8 S30'22'41 "E 262.09'

L9 $59'37'19"w 25.00'

LIO S30'22'41 "E 76.75'

Lll S29'27'09"W 76.15'

L12 $2418'05"W 159.51'

L13 S23'55'01''E 143.59'

L14 $79'51'36"E 43.31'

L15 N04'03'18"W 159.83'

L16 N70'16'24"E 110.24'

L17 S30'22'41"E 485.45'

L18 S88'21'48"W 556.56'

L19 N00'07'19"W 26.93'

C RVE ¥ LE N G TH RAI S CHC RD BEARIG CHOR D LE N G TH

/

559"37'19"W 25.00'

A: 128.39'
R: 8,534.42'
CB: S30"48'32"E
CL: 128.39'
D 00'51'43°

AREA "B"

CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXHIBIT

L32

AREA "C"

AREA "A"

588"21'48"W 308.91'

., i
'.:lj

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
[yrgr"Egg,er,L25 L24
I I (
l v

I3
I
(
I
I
I
5l

I
I
I
3o

"'::;

,,.o· I
-l
-' I

I

January 22, 2025

NW CORNER

Z'!t, eszozrE 14z.66y

A
l,.___(_,._,,_,._,._=_• _

$
3
~I LYNCH & ASSOCIATES
;t ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, UC

5482 S. WESTRIOOEDRIVE
tlEWBERLltl, WI 5J151

440 MILWAUKEEAVENUE
BURlltlGTON. WI 53105



January 22, 2025 CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXHIBIT Survey No. 24.5014
Page 2 of 2

AREA "A" LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

That part of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4) of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), of Section Twenty-one (21) in Township Five (5) North, Range
Twenty-one (21) East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, being more particularty described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest comer of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), said Section 21; thence North 88° 20' 27" East along the North line of said
Southwest One-quarter (1/4), a distance of 33.01 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing North 88° 20' 27" East along said North line, a distance
of 149.66 feet to the Westerty right-of-way line of West St. Martins Road per State Highway Project No. 480-A(1) Right of Way Plans; thence Southeasterty
a distance of 128.39 feet along said right-of-way line on a curve to the right having a radius of 8534.42 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 30 48'
32" East, a chord distance of 128.39 feet; thence South 30° 22' 41" East along said right-of-way line, a distance of 76.85 feet; thence South 79• 28' 13"
West, a distance of 83.53 feet; thence North 88° 59' 39" West, a distance of 84.15 feet; thence North 01• 42' 51" West, a distance of 87.87 feet; thence
South 89° 28' 33" West, a distance of 84.43 feet to the Easterty right-of-way line of South 92nd Street; thence North 00 31'27" West along said
right-of-way line, a distance of 98.97 feet to the point of beginning.

AREA "B" LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

That part of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4) of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), of Section Twenty-one (21) in Township Five (5) North, Range
Twenty-one (21) East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), said Section 21; thence North 88° 20' 27" East along the North line of said
Southwest One-quarter (1/4), a distance of 182.67 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of West St. Martins Road per State Highway Project No. 480-A(1)
Right of Way Plans; thence Southeasterly a distance of 128.39 feet along said right-of-way line on a curve to the right having a radius of 8534.42 feet, the
chord of said curve bears South 30° 48' 32" East, a chord distance of 128.39 feet; thence South 30° 22' 41" East along said right-of-way line, a distance of
362.55 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing South 30° 22' 41" East along said right-of-way line, a distance of 262.10 feet; thence South 59° 37
19" West along said right-of-way line, a distance of 25.00 feet; thence South 30' 22' 41" East along said right-of-way line, a distance of 76.75 feet; thence
South 29' 27' 09" West, a distance of 76.15 feet; thence South 24' 18' 05" West, a distance of 159.51 feet; thence South 23• 55' 01" East, a distance of
143.59 feet; thence South 79 51' 36" East, a distance of 43.31 feet; thence North 04 03' 18" West, a distance of 159.83 feet; thence North 10• 16' 24"
East, a distance of 110.24 feet to said Westerty right-of-way line; thence South 30° 22' 41" East along said right-of-way line, a distance 0f 485.45 feet to
the South line of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4) of said Southwest One-quarter (1/4), thence South 88° 21' 48" West along said South line, a distance of
556.56 feet; thence North 00° 07 19 West, a distance of 26.93 feet; thence North 65 26' 16" West, a distance of 38.71 feet; thence North 06° 09' 31"
West, a distance of 158.01 feet; thence North 27 42' 42" East, a distance of 83.49 feet; thence North 23' 30' 47" West, a distance of 37.57 feet; thence
North 87° 52' 26" West, a distance of 125.23 feet; thence North 89° 32 17" West, a distance of 89.98 feet; thence South 39' 12' 53" West, a distance of
91.98 feet; thence South 89° 28' 33" West, a distance of 16.43 feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of South 92nd Street; thence North 00° 31'27" West
along said right-of-way line, a distance of 629.77 feet; thence North 76' 30' 14" East, a distance of 225.84 feet; thence South 58 27' 08" East, a distance
of 91.82 feet; thence North 80' 11' 30" East, a distance of 98.26 feet to the point of beginning.

AREA "C" PROPOSED LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

That part of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4) of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), of Section Twenty-one (21) in Township Five (5) North, Range
Twenty-one (21) East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, being more particularty described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Southwest One-quarter (1/4), said Section 21; thence South 00° 31' 27" East along the West line of said
Southwest One-quarter (1/4), a distance 0f 1321.37 feet to the South line of the Northwest One-quarter (1/4) of said Southwest One-quarter (1/4); thence
North 88° 21' 48 East along said South line, a distance of 33.01 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing North 88° 21' 48" East along said South
line, a distance of 198.89 feet; thence North 02 51' 01" East, a distance of 83.88 feet; thence North 54• 58' 31" West, a distance of 203.35 feet; thence
South 89° 50' 49" West, a distance of 38.33 feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of South 92nd Street; thence South 00' 31' 27" East along said
right-of-way line, a distance of 206.08 feet to the point of beginning.

i
J

A
lLil

$
3
~I LYNCH & ASSOCIATES
J: ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, LLC

5482 S. WESTRIOGEDRIVE
EW BERLIN, WI53151

440 MILWAUKEE AVENUE
BURLlflGTOII, V\'153105



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2025 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE OPIOID

SETTLEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE
PERSONNEL AND NONPERSONNEL

APPROPRIATIONS FOR ELIGIBLE EXPENSES
BY THE FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT

MEETING DATE
June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
On December 21, 2021, the City approved the Wisconsin Local Government Memorandum of
Understanding, the Wisconsin State-Local Government Memorandum of Understanding, the
Settlement Participation Form for the Distributor Settlement, and the Settlement Participation
Form for the Janssen Settlement all in relation to the opioid crisis litigation. On April 3, 2023.
the City approved the Wisconsin State-Local Government Memorandum of Understanding for
the allocation of Opioid Settlement Proceeds and an Addendum to the Wisconsin Local
Government Memorandum of Understanding. The National Opioid Settlement refers to a series
of agreements reached between state and local governments in the United States and various
entities involved in the prescription opioid supply chain, including manufacturers, distributors,
and pharmacies. These agreements resolve legal claims brought by these governments regarding
the companies' alleged roles in fueling the opioid crisis.

The Franklin Health Department has a proven track record of addressing substance misuse
through intentional, effective, and collaborative efforts. For the past decade, the City of Franklin
and the Health Department have successfully served as the fiscal agent for Volition Franklin's
Drug-Free Communities Grant. During this time, their work has demonstrated strong
commitment and effectiveness in implementing key community strategies for substance misuse
prevention.

Further discussion between the Health, Police and Fire Department's have deemed the Franklin
Health Department to be the department with the best use of the settlement funds that the City
receives. Useful efforts in coordination of eligible uses for the funds will be determined by the
Franklin Health Department to ensure compliance.

FISCAL NOTE
This budget amendment is necessary to allow for appropriations to be spent by the Health
Department as deemed fit per eligibility requirements. Funding available at this time is roughly
$212,000. Requesting a $50.000 appropriation be added to the 2025 budget is sufficient for
potential use. Further budget planning will determine a strategic plan for the overall use of the
funds.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Adopt Ordinance No. 2025-__, an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2024-2649, an Ordinance
adopting the 2025 Annual Budget for the Opioid Settlement Fund to Provide Personnel and
Non-Personnel Appropriations for Eligible Expenses by the Franklin Health Department.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO 2025---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2025 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE
PERSONNEL AND NON-PERSONNEL APPROPRIATIONS FOR ELIGIBLE EXPENSES

BY THE FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklm adopted the 2025 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklm on November 19, 2024, and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has approved the many memorandums of
understandmg surroundmg the national opioid cnsis litigation, and

WHEREAS, the City has moved forward with appropnatmg fundmg for eligible expenses
to be determined by the Franklin Health Department, and

WHEREAS, the Opioid Settlement Fund currently has $212,000 available for use with
annual payments bemg made, and

WHEREAS, until now, the City has not expended any settlement funding, and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Umts should be adjusted for the above items as
hsted below, and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City ofFranklm does hereby ordam as
follows

Section I That the 2025 Opioid Settlement Fund Budget be amended as follows

Opioid Settlement Fund - Fund 13
Personnel Services
Non-Personnel Services

Increase
Increase

$45,000
$5,000

Section 2

Section 3

Sect1on 4

Pursuant to Wis Stat $ 65 90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of thus budget amendment wuthmn fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the Caty's web site

The terms and prov1sons of thus ordinance are severable Should any term or
prov1s1on of ths ordinance be found to be mvahd by a court of competent
Junsd1ction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be 111 force, the remammg terms and provisions shall
remam 111 full force and effect

All ordinances and parts of ordmances 111 contravention to this ordmance are hereby
repealed



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin th1s
day of,2025

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, CIty Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
FRANKLIN DIRECTOROF

FINANCE/TREASURER TO APPROPRIATE THE
TOTALITY OF NATIONAL OPIOID

SETTLEMENT FUNDS RECEIVED TO THE
FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO

ADDRESS THE OPIOID EPIDEMIC

MEETING DATE
06/03/2025

ITEM NUMBER

Background:
The City of Franklm is to receive settlement funds annually through 2038 as a result of litigation against the
pharmaceutical mdustry These dollars have specific reqmrements for use and are to address the Opioid
Epidem1c

The Franklm Health Department has a strong history of addressmg substance misuse prevention 111 mtentional,
effective, and collaboratlve ways Over the last ten years, the City of Franklm and Health Department have
served as the fiscal agent for Volition Franklm' s Drug Free Commumtles Grant Over the course of the last
decade, work under this grant has demonstrated proficiency and dedication m addressmg key strategies for
commumty change to have an impact on substance misuse prevention Multi sector partnerships have been
developed, have grown, and jomt efforts have resulted 111 both local change and recogmtion ofFrankhn's
successful substance misuse prevention work at the State and National level - efforts that are cnt1cal to the
health and safety of our commumty

Recommendation:
It 1s the strong recommendaton from the Franklm Pohce, Health, and Fire Department that the Opioid
Settlement funds be allocated to the Franklm Health Department to contmue efforts focused on opioid misuse
preventon The health department 1s best equipped to lead a comprehensive and coordinated response to the
op1o1d cr1s1s, which 1s why allocating these settlement funds 1s beneficial Without these funds, Vol1t1on
Franklm staff support would end, d1sruptmg the momentum and strategic work plans of local substance
misuse efforts

Fiscal Note:
The City of Franklin has been approved for approximately $650,000 m Opioid Settlement funds to be
distributed through 2038 The City has received fundmg begmmng in September, 2022

Funding received
2022 - $73,237 54
2023 - $19,065 59
2024 - $115,435 77
2025 - $4,646 26 - through May
Total fundmg received through May 2025 - $212,385 16

Thus action does not require new local tax dollars or add1tonal appropriations from the general fund
Appropraton of Op1ond Settlement funds will be the totality of all settlement funds received through 2038
and may be provided for use by the City of Franklin Health Department to address the Opo1d Epdem1e A
budget modificat10n 1s elsewhere on the agenda to allocate fundmg expenditures 111 the 2025 budget



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Moton to adopt Resolution No 2025- ARESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FRANKLIN
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE/TREASURER TO APPROPRIATE THE TOTALITY OF NATIONAL OPIOID
SETTLEMENT FUNDS RECEIVED TO THE FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ADDRESS THE
OPIOID EPIDEMIC



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO 2025

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FRANKLIN DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE/TREASURER TO APPROPRIATE THE TOTALITY OF NATIONAL OPIOID
SETTLEMENT FUNDS RECEIVED TO THE FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO

ADDRESS THE OPIOID EPIDEMIC

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin 1s to receive settlement funds through 203 8 as a result of
ltagat1on against the pharmaceutical industry, and

WHEREAS, these dollars have specific reqmrements for use and are to address the Op101d
Epidemic, and

WHEREAS, the Franklin Health Department has a strong history of addressmg substance
misuse prevention 111 mtentlonal, effective, and collaborative ways, and

WHEREAS, over the last ten years, the City of Franklm and Health Department have
served as the fiscal agent for Voht1on Franklm's Drug Free Commumt1es Grant, and

WHEREAS, over the course of the last decade, work under this grant has demonstrated
proficiency and dedication m addressmng key strategies for community change to have an 1mpact
on substance misuse prevention, and

WHEREAS, multi sector paitnershtps have been developed, have grown, and JOll1t efforts have
resulted 111 both local change and recognition of Franklin's successful substance misuse prevention work
at the State and National level efforts that are crrtcal to the health and safety ofour community, and

WHEREAS, It Is the strong recommendation from the Franklin Police, Health, and Fire
Department that the Op1o1d Settlement funds be allocated for the Franklm Health Department to contmue
to fund op1o1d misuse prevention, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklm, W1sconsm, that the totality of National Op10id Settlement Funds received be
appropriated to the City of Franklm Health Department to address the Op1od Epdemc

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin th1s
day of,2025

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
thus day of_.2025



ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, CIty Clerk

A YES NOES ABSENT

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2025 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE HEALTH

GRANT FUND TO PROVIDE RESOURCES AND
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE APPROVED 2024

2025 ALLIANCE FOR WISCONSIN YOUTH
MINI GRANT

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
On January 21, 2025, the Common Council authonzed a Resolution to allow the Director of
Health and Human Services to accept and execute the 2024-2025 Alliance for Wisconsmn Youth
(AWY) Min Grant Community Advocates has awarded the grant to organzattons with the goal
of targeting pronty 1ssues related to alcohol by rasmng awareness These project funds also
allow for increased commumty educat10n to Class A and B alcohol establishments, youth, adults
and commumty members The approved grant will fund $2,000 for supplies related to mcreased
prevent1on and educat1on efforts whle utuluzmng messaging tools to establishments 111 the area
who hold liquor licenses

FISCAL NOTE

Thus budget amendment 1s necessary to allow for appropriations to be spent by the Health
Department towards approved expenditures related to the AWY grant The expenditures would
only occur wth approval of the grant funds There wll be no mmpact to the C1ty of Franklin
budget for these expenditures

The GL Accounts associated with thus amendment are
Revenue
25-000-4143 7008

Expenditures
25-041 1-53 1 1 7008 Postage
25-041 1-53 13 7008 Prmtmg
25-0411-5329 7008 Other

Increase

Increase
Increase
Increase

$2 000

$250
$950
$800

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt Ordinance No 2025- , an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2024-2649, an Ordinance
adoptmg the 2025 Annual Budget for the Health Grant Fund to Provide Resources and
Appropratons for the Approved 2024-2025 Alliance for Wisconsin Youth Mmi Grant

Fmance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MIL WAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2025---~

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2025 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE HEALTH GRANT FUND TO PROVIDE

RESOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE APPROVED 2024-2025 ALLIANCE FOR
WISCONSIN YOUTH MINI GRANT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2025 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 19, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has authorized the Health Director to accept and
execute the 2024-2025 Alliance for Wisconsm Youth (A WY) Mini Grant, and

WHEREAS, budget appropriations are needed to support the expenditures related to the
grant; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Units should be adjusted for the above items as
listed below; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2025 Health Grant Fund Budget be amended as follows.

Health Grant FundFund 25
0000 Grant Revenue
0411 Postage
0411 Printing
0411 Other

Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

$2.000
$250
$950
$800

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.$ 65.90(5)(ar). the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of.2025



ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

06/03/25

REPORTS & Resolution to extend for one (1) year Resolution
No. 2024-8153, a resolution imposing conditions

RECOMMENDATIONS and restrictions for the approval of a special
use for Lake Grove Place, a multi-family
development with 38 dwelling units upon
property located at approximately 3709 W

College Avenue.

(Safari Homes Franklin LLC)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #3

At its May 22, 2025, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval of
this resolution. The vote was 4-0-3: four 'ayes', no 'noes' and three absents.

Fiscal impact: no expenditures of city's funds is anticipated to adopt this resolution at
this time.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025-__, to extend for one (1) year Resolution
No. 2024-8153, a resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a
special use for Lake Grove Place, a multi-family development with 38 dwelling units
upon property located at approximately 3709 W College Avenue (Safari Homes
Franklin LLC).

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 04/23/25]

RESOLUTION NO. 2025

A RESOLUTION TO EXTEND FOR ONE (1) YEAR RESOLUTION NO. 2024-8153, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF
A SPECIAL USE FOR LAKE GROVE PLACE, A MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT WITH

38 DWELLING UNITS UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 3709 W
COLLEGE AVENUE

(SAFARI HOMES FRANKLIN LLC)

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2024-8153, a resolution imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for Lake Grove Place, a multi-family development with 38
dwelling units upon property located at approximately 3709 W College Avenue (Safari Homes
Franklin LLC), was adopted by the Common Council on May 21, 2024; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2024-8153 provides in part that "the Special Use permission
granted under this Resolution shall be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the
date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special Use has been established by way of the
issuance of building permits"; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having considered such time extension request and
having determined that it will promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

WHEREAS, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having
recommended a one-year extension to provide that the Lake Grove Place Special Use shall be
established by way of the issuance of buildings permits within one (1) year from the date of
adoption of this Resolution; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council having considered the
application and having concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having
determined that the proposed time extension to Resolution No. 2024-8153 will promote the
health, safety and welfare of the Community; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, that all other terms and provisions of Resolution No. 2024-8153, not inconsistent
with the terms and provisions of this Resolution, shall remain in full force and effect.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2025.



•

SAFARI HOMES FRANKLIN LLC - SPECIAL USE TIME EXTENSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2025--
Page 2

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 22, 2025
SPECIAL USE TIME EXTENSION

Item C.1.

RECOMMENDATION: Department of City Development staff recommends approval of this Special
Use Time Extension subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Submittal date:

Application number:

Action requested:

Lake Grove Place, a multifamily development

M. Manzur Hassan Khan, Ali Siddiqui, Et Al

Safari Homes Franklin, LLC

3709 W. College Avenue/ 713 9996 003

District 3

R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Planning Manager

04-14-2025

PPZ25-0078

Approval of one-year extension

The applicant is requesting a one-year extension of Special Use permit for the Lake Grove Place
multifamily development granted in 2024. According to the applicant, this time extension request is "due
to a recent change in our selected builder and ongoing negotiations with our financial institution", "this
additional time will allow us to finalize construction agreements, secure necessary financing, and
proceed with the project".

The subject Special Use permit was granted on May 21, 2024, by Resolution 2024-8153. Special use
permits expire after one year from the adoption date, the applicant submitted this request on April 14,
2025, prior to the expiration date. The applicant is not proposing any changes to the Special Use permit
at this time.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Department of City Development staff recommends approval of this Special Use Time Extension
subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.



City of Franklin Property Viewer

5/13/2025, 11.23.57 AM

CJ Parcel
0
}}
0

SEWRPC, Maxar, M



Manzur Khan

Date: Apr 11, 2025

City of Franklin
Department of Planning &Zoning
9229 W. Looms Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Request for Special Use Permit Renewal and Extension

To Whom It May Concern,

I am writrng to formally request a renewal and extension of the Special Use Permit currently
associated with Lake Grove Terrace {Previously known as Lake Grove Place). Due to a
recent change 1n our selected builder and ongoing negotiations with our financial
institution, we have encountered unexpected delays in moving forward with project
development.

In light of these changes, we respectfully request a one-year extension to the current
permit. This additional time will allow us to frnal1ze construction agreements, secure
necessary financing, and proceed with the proJect in alignment with the City of Franklrn's
guidelines and expectations.

We remain committed to complying with all applicable regulations and ensuring that our
project contributes positively to the community. We appreciate your understanding and
consideration of this request, and we are happy to provide any additional documentation or
information as needed.

Thank you for your time and attention. We look forward to your continued support.

Sincerely,

Manzur Khan
Managing Partner
Safari Homes Franklin



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

06/03/25

REPORTS & Resolution to amend Resolution No. 2024-8222 ITEM NUMBER
imposing conditions and restrictions for the

RECOMMENDATIONS approval of a special use for Tsunami Express G
CarWash, a carwash facility located at 6449 S. . {[,

Whitnall Edge Road.

(Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin LLC) Aid. Dist. #6

At its May 22, 2025, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval of
this resolution. The vote was 4-0-3: four 'ayes', no 'noes' and three absents.

Fiscal impact: no expenditures of city's funds is anticipated to adopt this resolution at
this time.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025-to amend Resolution No. 2024-8222
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a special use for Tsunami
Express Car Wash, a carwash facility located at 6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
(Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin LLC).

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 05-13-25]

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2024-8222 IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR TSUNAMI

EXPRESS CAR WASH, A CARWASH FACILITY LOCATED AT 6449 S WHITNALL
EDGE ROAD

(TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Blake Ketner, Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin, LLC having petitioned
the City of Franklin for the approval of an amendment to Resolution No. 2024-8222, to allow for
a carwash upon property located at 6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road, bearing Tax Key No. 705-
8997-003, more particularly described as follows:

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5375 RECORDED IN THE OFFICE
OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, ON
FEBRUARY 15, 1990 IN REEL 2420, IMAGE 890, AS DOCUMENT NO. 6354945,
AND BEING CORRECTED BY AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECTION RECORDED JULY
11, 1990 IN REEL 2468 IMAGE 655 AS DOCUMENT NO. 6396945, BEING A RE
DIVISION OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3247, OUTLOT 2 OF
WHITNALL EDGE SUBDIVISION, AND UNPLATTED LANDS IN THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN, and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment is to allow for the addition of a sound wall and
modify handrails, guard rails and sidewalks, and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City
of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of § 15-9.01030. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on
the 22nd day of May, 2025, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to
recommend that the proposed Special Use amendment be approved, subject to certain conditions,
and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon such conditions,
pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the
purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will
not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the
development of neighboring property; that it will be served adequately by essential public
facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in
damage to property of significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use amendment, subject to



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2025--
Page 2

conditions, meets the standards set forth under § 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Blake Ketner, Tsunami Express Car Wash
Franklin, LLC, for the addition of a sound wall and modify handrails, guard rails and sidewalks,
be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Tsunami
Express Car Wash Franklin, LLC, successors and assigns, as a carwash facility, in the B-
3 Community Business District, which shall be constructed, operated and maintained by
Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin, LLC, pursuant to those plans dated October 4, 2024
and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City
of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Lake Grove Place multi-family residential development, within 30 days of invoice for
same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin,
LLC, and the carwash use, for the property located at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road: (i)
being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders
and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for
this approval.

4. The applicant, property owner, successors or assigns must install a sound barrier along
the south property line to the specifications described in the Noise Assessment report
prepared by Soundscape Engineering, dated June 21, 2024, only in the event that city
staff finds a violation of the maximum sound level of 65 dBA set forth in the Unified
Development Ordinance.

5. The applicant must adhere to the design elements recommended in the Noise Assessment
report prepared by Soundscape Engineering: The central vacuum must be located in a
masonry building with sealed steel doors. If a vacuum pump exhaust muffler was used at
the Waukesha location then the vacuum pump at this location should also be fit with a
muffler.

6. The applicant must obtain approval from the Engineering Department for grading,
stormwater management, utilities and erosion control, prior to any land disturbance
activity.

7. The applicant must adhere to the recommendations of the City of Franklin Fire
Department: (a) Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code requirements for fire



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2025---
Page 3

protection systems for given occupancy, use, and construction types, (b) Fire
Extinguisher placement as per NFPA 10, (c) Fire Department Connection (FDC), and
hydrant placement and density must be acceptable to AHJ (applies to new construction),
(d) At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable Materials exceed
allowable quantities, (e) Master Key set required for placement in Knox Box (if
required).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Blake Ketner, Tsunami Express Car
Wash Franklin, LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not
comply with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution,
following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the
Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted
under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of
this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to § 15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other
maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from
time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of the
City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be an
amendment to such Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and that all of the terms and conditions of 2024-8222, not specifically
and expressly amended by or in direct conflict with this Resolution, shall remain in full force and
effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified Development
Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special
Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of> 2025.



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2025---
Page 4

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Exhibit A

(
'j
j

I

I
I

\
I

-1 I
I I

I !~I~.g£2

-----------•;""' ~-\
'

''I i
)

I i

I i
i

I I
I 1
/ 1//1 /I I /

S I /I ,'. I ,/
/ I/

I fff ///I ,._ ,~ /(I;
I/If ff /<::, /

I t/ ,/
/ I /

/11· ../
;' ,/

/
/

.
f -l!±et;

1.o\/ll'-51.1'
oo·5·s,\\~ --~----·".,.. '-"

,., ,,.,,.,r..~.._.,_..

92 VI 3, 4 ji Ii ~ ~ N

i ; 0: e "Cl _ll: .Ill gz #ii 0 b s "" ~ g!Om

"" " IS ::J 0 ~""' 0 z£3 Ea ±# "' " z ; "Cl r r:-.: z ~ ~ ~ ;-. 0 z53 VI 8s 6 Gl "' Gl!:ell 0 Gl " z m
f; z q C VIz f .,, 0 z "' : 0 ... VI ! § :::j 8~ ! C ',1 :::j m42 0 "" i $ 6oo "" 8 • 1' m z 23± m toe po» s:: " ~ ~s:: a: a 1 3 " § 2 .,,.,;,:

~ 035 )> :!; : l l: 1,:; ... I, ~::! £ 0 ~ ""!.:1,; 0 ~ 0

i l: £: "" 1,:; s:: ¥ @z !,: s:: £:
~~ z z )> iffi s ::! 0

5 0 z
~ z

8
~

s

r .,. TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH Nielsen Madsen + Barber ::Jlu :.:,u
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN CIVIL ENGltHE~S /\ND lANO SURVEYORS

FOR d-TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC. 1458 Horizon Blvd. Suitt 200, R;,cir,,, WI. 53406
cnv 0~ fRANICLIN, COUNTY OF MilWAUKEE, WISCONSIN Tele; 126:iJ634-5S8S Wibslte: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 22, 2025
SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT

Item C.2.

RECOMMENDATION: Department of City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special
Use Amendment subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Submittal date:

Application number:

Tsunami Express Car Wash, Special Use Amendment

Tsunami Express Car Wash Franklin, LLC

Miranda R Seals. The Redmond Company

6449 S Whitnall Edge Road / 705 8997 003

District 6

B-3 Community Business District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

04-21-2025

PPZ25-0074

The applicant is proposing the following revisions to their special use permit (Resolution No. 2024-
8222):

• Add 5-foot sound wall to the building.
• Modify sidewalk adjacent to sound wall.
• Modify handrail and guard rail layout.

According to the project narrative submitted by the applicant: "Modifications have been made to the
sound mitigation design on the site, and a revised sound report has been conducted. The conclusion of
the report eliminates the need for the sound wall along the SE property line that was part of the original
approval". City Development staff reviewed application materials, including sound report, and
recommends the following:

• Retain condition of approval #4: "The applicant, property owner, successors or assigns must
install a sound barrier along the south property line to the specifications described in the Noise
Assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering, dated June 21, 2024, only in the event
that city staff finds a violation of the maximum sound level of 65 dBA set forth in the Unified
Development Ordinance".
The proposed sound wall is to prevent sound exceedances that may impact residential areas to
the east, however, this condition is concerning adjacent commercial use to the south.

• Modify condition of approval #5: "The applicant must adhere to the design elements
recommended in the Noise Assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering: (a) The
central vacuum must be located in a masonry building with sealed steel doors. If a vacuum pump
exhaust muffler was used at the Waukesha location then the vacuum pump at this location should
also be fit with a muffler, (b) The blowers must turn off when the exit doors open". [revisions
added]



The revised noise assessment report includes a propagation model assuming blowers on and exit
doors open.

City Development Staff has no objections to the proposed modifications to handrails, guard rails and
sidewalks.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Department of City Development staff recommends approval of this Special Use Amendment subject to
the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

2



C,.
6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
TKN: 705 8997 003

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 62.5 125 250 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informationalpurposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
TKN: 705 8997 003

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 62.5 125 250 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperly
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is providedfor informationalpurposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



$/REDMOND
YOUR P RE MIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

03/14/2024

General Standards for Special Uses

General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this Ordinance unless

the applicant shall establish the following:

1,Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and development will be

in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance was enacted and for which the

regulations of the zoning district in question were established and with the general purpose and intent of the

City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof.

The proposed car wash is in harmony with this Ordinance as well as the Comprehensive Master Plan.

2.No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse

or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,

safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair property values within

the community or neighborhood.

The proposed car wash will have no adverse effects to the adjacent property or area .

3,No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be constructed,

arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere with the use and

development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

The proposed car wash will be constructed with high quality materials and will not interfere with the development of

neighboring properties.

4.Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by essential

public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including public water supply system and

sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, libraries, schools, and other public

facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide adequately for such facilities.

The proposed car wash will be served adequately by required essential facilities as listed above.

5,No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic congestion nor draw

significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate measures will be taken to provide ingress

and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

The proposed car wash has taken adequate measures to create safe and efficient traffic flow through the site and

ingress/egress to public streets. Three lanes of queueing are provided to ensure cars aren't backed up into the public

street.

■W228 N745 Westmound Drive '"r' 262.549.9600
Waukesha, WI 53186 A1£ 262.549.1314

A'gS] mheRedmondco.com



6.No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in the destruction,

loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant importance.

The proposed car wash will not damage any natural or historical features of the site.

7.Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable

regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified

by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. The proposed use and

development shall comply with all additional standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this

Division and Ordinance authorizing such use.

The proposed car wash conforms to all applicable regulations found in the B-3 zoning code.

B,Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize a special use
in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special standards, as set forth in§ 15-
3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be
recommended or granted unless the applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.
All applicable standards will be met.

Q._Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing standards
have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the following:

1.,Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular location

requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest of the public

convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community.

The proposed car wash will provide a desirable and useful service for the neighborhood and community.

2.Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location of the

proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more appropriate than

the proposed site.

The proposed car wash provides a full service car wash open to the public in a convenient and easily accessible

location .

3.Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken to minimize

any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity through building design,

site design, landscaping, and screening.

The proposed car wash building, site, landscaping, and screening have been designed to meet all applicable city

standards. Site traffic and navigation has been carefully designed to ensure safe and efficient travel throughout the

site as well as entering and exiting onto the public street.

$/EDMOND



4.Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the use will establish a

precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the surrounding area.

The building blends in and reflects its surrounding neighbors with the use of high-quality materials.

$ REDMOND



PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5375 RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF

DEEDS FOR MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, ON FEBRUARY 15, 1990 IN REEL 2420, IMAGE 890, AS
DOCUMENT NO. 6354945, AND BEING CORRECTED BY AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECTION RECORDED JULY 11,
1990 IN REEL 2468 IMAGE 655 AS DOCUMENT NO. 6396945, BEING A RE-DIVISION OF PARCEL 1 OF
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3247, OUTLOT 2 OF WHITNALL EDGE SUBDIVISION, AND UN PLATTED LANDS
IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP
5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN.

Tax Parcel ID: 705-8997-003

Parcel Address: Vacant Land - South Lovers Lane, Franklin, WI 53132



$/REDMOND
YOUR PREMIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

08 April 2025

Planning Department- City of Franklin
6229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Tsunami Express Carwash- 6449 S Whitnall Edge Rd

To Whom It May Concern,

Tsunami Express Carwash ("Tsunami") is proudly presenting the proposed development plans for a
state-of-the-art facility that will serve Franklin (the "City") and the surrounding communities.

Introduction
The proposed development is located at the southeast corner of Lovers Lane and Whitnall Edge
Road, and the parcel number is 705-8997-003. The property is a 1.39 acre vacant lot currently
zoned as B-3 "Community Business District." The B-3 zoning district allows a car wash as a
special use. The proposed facility is a single-story 5,200 SF building including the car wash bay,
mechanical room, storage, office, and restroom. Accessory buildings include a 100 SF
employee sales booth, 100 SF vacuum pump house, and dumpster enclosure.

The Redmond Company and Tsunami Express Car Wash are looking to amend the Common
Council Resolution number 2024-8222. Modifications have been made to the sound mitigation
design on the site, and a revised sound report has been conducted. The conclusion of the report
eliminates the need for the sound wall along the SE property line that was part of the original
approval.

Business Operations
Tsunami Express Carwash ("Tsunami") is a high-quality express car wash that uses state-of
the-art equipment and provides customers with a wide variety of services. For washes, Tsunami
offers several levels of memberships, or customers can pay for a single wash at every visit. The
wash cycles are offered at varying price points to suit the needs of each customer.

The site will house vacuums to serve parking stalls. These stalls will be 13'-0" wide and 18'-0"
deep. This is wider than the average parking stall to allow for more maneuverability around the
vehicle. The vacuums will be available to customers for free regardless of whether they go
through the wash.

In addition to regular business operations, Tsunami also fosters community connections and is
an advocate for supporting local organizations. They offer an opportunity to host fundraisers,
giving a modern spin on the famous "community car wash" that was once a popular method of
raising funds for various community organizations. Supporters of the organizations will receive a
high-quality car wash, and the organization receives 50% of the proceeds from every wash
donated back to them.

Regular business hours extend from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm daily. There will be attendants on duty
for the full duration of the operating hours to assist customers and maintain the cleanliness of



the site. Each shift will employ 2-3 employees with a total staff of approximately 8-1 O
employees. Duringthese hours, Tsunami expects to service 200-400 customers per day.

Tsunami currently has four (4) fac1l1t1es in the Milwaukee area including: Oak Creek, Greenfield,
Waukesha, Fond du Lac Ave, and one under construction in West Allis.

Entitlement Strategy & Timeline
Tsunami will comply with the local approval process by submitting a Special Use appl1cat1on for
Plan Commission recommendation and Common Council approval. They anticipate receiving
municipal approvals mn Fall of 2025 with single-phase construction beginning mid-summer. The
facility Is anticipated to be open and operational in spring of 2026.

Site Plan
The site 1s arranged such that the main car wash building 1s located on the west end of the site
and oriented parallel to Lovers Lane Road. While a carwash requires a special use permit for
this site, 1t coordinates with the surrounding businesses. With Boucher Volkswagen to the
north, Hiller Ford to the east, Kw1kTnp and Tires Plus to the southwest, and Ewald CDRJ and
Holz Auto Body Shopjust down the road, residents of Franklin and the surrounding
communities already associate thus areawith automobile service and sales.

Layout: The plan shows (20) parking stalls with (2) being dedicated ADA spaces. The
entrance to thewash includes (3) pay stations that allow space for the stacking of up to
(30) vehicles.
Vacuum Design & Placement: The vacuums are aligned along both sides of the parking
lot with one vacuum post servingtwo parking stalls. Each vacuum has (2) hoses that are
attached to a central vacuum system that routes to either the main building or the
detached pump house at the southeast corner of the site. Each vacuum station 1s also
equipped with a trash bin, a mat clip for easy vacuuming, and a central blower system
to help clean those hard-to-reach places.
Landscaping/Screening: There 1s ample landscaping throughout the site that has been
designed by a professional landscape architect. The dumpster is screened by an
enclosure constructed of materials that match the main building, and the pump house
IS a fully-enclosed secondary building also constructed of s1m1lar materials.
Access: The main entrance to the site 1s located off SouthWh1tnall Edge Road to
minimally 1mpactthe heavy traffic on South Lovers Lane Road. Immediately after
entering the site, vehicles can turn rght to enter the queue for thewashes or proceed
straight to access the free vacuums.
Slgnage: A full signage package complyingwrth all code standards wIll be submitted for
approval. Therewill be s1gnage on the building as well as one monument sign on
Wh1tnall Edge Road directly adJacent to the site entrance.
Lghting: The proposed lighting plan includes general pole lighting, wall packs, and
canopy ughtmng that provide an average illumination of 2.0 footcandles. Additional
information on each proposed l1ghtingf1xture has also been provided.

Architecture
The design of the building consists of dark gray split-faced concrete block, light gray masonry,
clear anodized aluminum storefront windows, and a blue standing seam metal roof. The long



facade is broken up with brick accent piers. The windows located on the side of the building
facing Lovers Lane Road are translucent glass - allowing a view into the bright and colorfully lit
inside of the wash tunnel; the windows located in the mechanical room will be spandrel glazing.

The main structure of the building consists of structural CMU walls, precast hollow core planks
for the roof of the wash tunnel, steel joists and metal deck for the roof of the
mechanical/support rooms, and poured-in-place concrete foundation walls. A geotechnical
survey was completed for the site and it was recommended that rammed aggregate piers be
installed to stabilize the soil to make the site suitable for construction.

The tunnel contains dual overhead doors at both the entrance and the exit. The interior door will
be insulated metal with vision lites to provide thermal protection and security during non
operational hours; the exterior overhead door will be vinyl roll-up doors that will correspond
with Tsunami's blue and yellow branding. These vinyl doors are intended to provide protection
from the elements in the winter months when the metal doors are open.

Conclusion
Tsunami Express Carwash is excited for the opportunity to submit their state-of-the-art facility
to the Plan Commission to be considered for this site. They will prove to be a valuable addition
to the Franklin community.

Documents
Accompanying this narrative are all of the documents required forthe site plan review as noted
on the Special Use Permit Application. Supplemental documents are available upon request.
These documents include lighting cut sheets, reclaim system and equipment, geotechnical
Survey, and safety data sheets for all chemicals used for operations.

Please do not hesitate to contact us with any additional questions.

Sincerely,

Miranda R Seals, AIA, NCARB
Project Architect
The Redmond Company

■W228 N745 Westmound Drive
Waukesha, WI 53186

IaEle 2s2.s40.960o
NA"Ir 262.s49.1314 Zs@] reReamon«co.com



$/REDMOND
YOUR PREMIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

Date: 12 May 2025

From: Miranda R Seals. The Redmond Company.

To: Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

RE: Staff comments for Special Use Amendment, Tsunami Car Wash
6299 S. Whitnall Edge Road

City Development Department comments
1. Noise assessment report, sound barrier. Staff appreciates the submission of a revised noise

assessment report and the proposed sound barrier by the carwash exit to prevent sound levels
over 55 dBA at the residential districts to the east as noted in said report. However, condition of
approval #4 of the Special Use Resolution No. 2024-8222 is concerning about business districts
to the south and the revised report still predicts sound levels exceeding the maximum sound
level of 65 dBA for business districts (Figure 12). Therefore, staff recommends to retain this
condition of approval:

4. The applicant, property owner, successors or assigns must install a sound barrier along the south
property line to the specifications described in the Noise Assessment report prepared by Soundscape
Engineering, dated June 21, 2024, only in the event that city staff finds a violation of the maximum sound
level of 65 dBA set forth in the Unified Development Ordinance.

2. Noise assessment report, blowers. The revised noise assessment report includes a propagation
model assuming blowers on and exit doors open. Therefore, staff doesn't object to revising
condition of approval #5 as follows:

5. The applicant must adhere to the design elements recommended in the Noise Assessment report
prepared by Soundscape Engineering: (a) The central vacuum must be located in a masonry building with
sealed steel doors. If a vacuum pump exhaust muffler was used at the Waukesha location then the
vacuum pump at this location should also be fit with a muffler, (b) The blowers must turn off when the
exit doors open.

3. Exterior Elevations. Please update Exterior Elevations (sheet PR2.1) to depict the proposed
sound barrier by the carwash exit. Revision has been made. See sheet PR2.1 dated

4. Site revisions. According to Dimensioned Site Plan (sheet C-3), the revisions for this application
are listed below. Are these the only revisions to the Site Plan? Please confirm.
Yes, those are the only revisions that were made. There were no edits to the site engineering
otherwise.

REVISIONS
A.0 MODIFY THE HANDRAIL AND GUARD RAIL LAYOUT.
A.1 ADD 5-FOOT SOUND WALL TO THE BUILDING
A.2 MODIFY SIDEWALK TO THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE BUILDING

ROUND THE 5-FOOT SOUND WALL.

■W228 N745 Westmound Drive l•jJr 262.549.9600
Waukesha, WI 53186 NS]£ 262.549.1314

A$9] TheRedmondco.com



Inspections Services Department comments
Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time.

Fire Department comments
No FD comments for this request on the sound wall being added to Tsunami.

Police Department comments
The PD has no comments or concerns.

$ REDMOND



Saundscape Engineering
Practical solutiows fro Professiowal woiweers

December 17, 2024

Mr. Craig Wojtczak
Project Designer
(262) 896-8742 Direct
(262) 549-9600 T
cwojtczak@theredmondco.com

The Redmond Company
W228 N745 Westmound Drive
Waukesha, WI 53186

Mr. Jerry Mortier
Director ofDesign
(262) 896-8753 Direct
(262) 613-1684 M
jmortier@theredmondco.com

Subject: Noise Assessment for Proposed Tsunami Car Wash at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Rd
Franklin, Wisconsin
Revision 1

Dear Mr. Wojtczak and Mr. Mortier:

Soundscape Engineering has completed the noise prediction and assessment for the proposed Tsunami
Car Wash at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Rd, Franklin, WI 53132. This report provides the results of our
ambient measurements, prediction of the carwash-related sound transmission to the nearest properties,
and comparison with the local noise ordinance. The assessment and report were updated to show the
results with the blowers on while the exit door is open.

Executive Summary

The proposed Tsunami Car in Franklin, Wisconsin is planned to operate from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm daily.
The Franklin noise ordinance defines the daytime (7:00 am to 10:00 pm) noise limit for Business zones at
65 dBA at the property lines and 50 dBA at the residential boundaries. We understand that the City is
primarily focused on meeting the residential ordinance limits. Our calculations indicate that the carwash
related noise levels with the planned layout will meet at residential boundaries with the addition of a 5
foot long, 17-foot tall wing wal I sound barrier located east of the exit door perpendicular to the building.

Background

You hired Soundscape Engineering to assess the proposed Tsunami Express Carwash 70 located at 6449
S Whitnall Edge Rd, Franklin, WI The proposed building will be a 5,000 SF car wash with 18
vacuums, a sales booth, and a vacuum pump house. It is our understanding that the car wash will be open
7 days per week from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 2 of 13

The largest concerns are the blowers inside the car wash and the vacuums/pump house in the parking lot
area. Noise levels emanating from the carwash will need to meet the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's Noise
Ordinance Section 15-3.1107. The designed layout for the Franklin location is shown in Figure 1.

-
.l..

Tsunami Express Car Wash

Instrumentation

9

e« R/REDMOND
Figure 1: Aerial View of Proposed Car Wash, Franklin, Wisconsin

An NTi Audio model XL2-TA acoustic analyzer with model MC230 microphone and model MA220
preamp was used for all measurements reported here. This system is Class 1 Type Approved, meeting the
requirements ofIEC 61672 and ANSI Sl.4.

Measurements

Ambient Franklin Measurements
Soundscape measured the existing ambient noise level at four locations (Figure 2) on Thursday, June
13th, 2024, starting at 11 :30 am. Sound levels at each location were measured for approximately l 0
minutes. The measured ambient sound level sources were primarily traffic and construction on Lover's
Lane. The construction noise impacted measurements as all traffic was routed into the eastern lanes
instead of the typical split lane traffic, causing more traffic to pass closer to east-side property
measurements. During measurements, a backhoe was observed moving earth in the southbound lane with
occasional thumping and hydraulic noise, but traffic sounds overpowered the construction sound for the

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste.104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312)436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri, Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 3 of 13

majority of the time. The measured time slot reflects a heavier traffic time during the lunch period. We
can expect traffic levels to be greatest during the morning and evening rush hours. Ambient levels during
the later evening hours will likely be lower than the measured ambient.

65 dBA. \ ·.
sunami Express Car Wash

@

_,__ ~-----

.,

\
[REDMOND

Proposed Tsunami Express Car Wash, 6449 S Whitnall Edge Rd, Franklin, WI 53132.

Figure 2: Measurement Locations

Figure 3: Construction Equipment near Southwest Measurement Point

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 4 of 13

Waukesha Equipment Measurements

To detenn ine the equipment sound levels, we measured the sound level produced by equipment at the
existing Tsunami Car Wash located at 300 W. Sunset Drive in Waukesha, Wisconsin. We understand that
the Franklin location will install the same blower system as the Waukesha location. The measured octave
band sound levels at the car wash entry and exit are shown in Table I.

Table I: Sound levels Measured at a Waukesha Location (dB)

Octave Band Center Frequency, Hz
31.5 63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000

Wash Exit, Blowers On, 78 80 80 81 89 88 86 82 74Doors Open
Wash Exit, Blowers On, 74 79 77 77 79 73 69 63 53Doors Closed

Wash Entrance, 73 74 72 69 71 72 71 66 56Doors Open
I) These measurements were made directly in front of the entrance or exit, at a distance of 20 feet.

Figure 4: Waukesha Tsunami Car Wash Exit

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 5 of 13

Figure 5: Waukesha Tsunami Car Wash Layout

Measurements were also taken outside the vacuum pump house and near a car being vacuumed (Figure
6). The pump house is constructed ofmasonry block and has steel doors with perimeter seals. This
construction is advantageous for noise control. We are not aware if the existing vacuum system has a
muffler. These measured levels are presented in Table 2.

Table 2: Measured Vacuum Related Sound Levels at Waukesha Location

Octave Band Center Frequency, Hz
31.5 63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000

Vacuum Pump House at 3' 71 75 67 64 60 59 58 55 51

Car Vacuuming at ~ 6' 70 72 70 66 64 64 68 69 62

Figure 6: Vacuum Pump House

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

Ordinance and Criteria

December 17, 2024
Page 6 of 13

The City of Franklin, WI Hazard Abatement Performance Standards - Part 3 Zoning Districts, Division
15-3.1107 Noise - Section C. Maximum Permitted Sound Levels in All Zoning Districts. See Figure 7.

C. Maximum Pennitted Sound Levels in All Zoning Districts. At no point either on the boundary of a
zoning district or site boundary line shall the sound level of a use exceed the decibel level shown in
Table 15-3.1107(C) for the zoning districts indicated.

Table 15-3.1107(C)
Maximum Permitted Sound Levels in dBA by Zoning District

Maximum Permitted Sound Maximum Permitted Sound
Level (dBA) 7:00 a.m. - 10:00 Level (dBA) 10:00 p.m. - 7:00

Zoning District p.m. a.m.
All Agricultural, 50 45
All Residential, B-1 and 1-1
Districts

b-2, b-$, b-4, and b- Districts 65 DU

B-6, CC, and VB Districts 55 50

M-1, M-2, BP, and L-1 Districts 65 65
p-1 District 55 55

AO Airport Overlay District 65 (also see § 15-3.0607) 65 (also see S$15-3.0607)

FW, FC, FFO, and SW 45 40
Districts

Figure 7: City of Franklin Noise Limits

The future Tsunami Car Wash will be located in a Zone B-3 district, surrounded by other B-2 and B-3
properties, with residential areas located east of the property but with a direct line of sight. Refer to Figure
8. As we interpret the ordinance language, the limits listed in Figure 7 are enforced at the Tsunami Car
Wash property lines and must be applied to the boundary of the nearby residential zones. The carwash
plans to operate from 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM. This falls within the ordinance daytime hours and so we have
used a limit of 65 dBA for the business district zoning and 50 dBA for the residential zone that begins
about 270 feet from the Tsunami Car Wash property line.

We understand the city is primarily focused on meeting the residential ordinance to the east.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Rev l
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 7 of 13

Figure 8: Franklin Zoning Map

Computer Model Calculation of Sound Levels around Carwash

We modeled the Franklin site and surrounding area in the commercial environmental noise modeling
software, SoundPLAN. Site topography, existing and proposed buildings, sound sources, and receiver
locations were inputted as elements into the computer model. A 3D view of the propagation model is
shown in Figure 9. The red-shaded areas represent sound area sources. We have modeled the worst-case
scenario with all vacuum stations in use and carwash entry door open. Vacuum stations are indicated by
the red asterisks below. Sources included in the model are based on measurements made at the Waukesha
Tsunami and are as follows:

• Carwash Entry Door Open
• Carwash Exit Door Open Blowers On
• Vacuum pump house with Sealed metal doors
• Car Vacuum Stations (red asterisks)

Note that this analysis was updated to show the results with the carwash exit doors open while blowers
are on because this condition is expected to occur for approximately 30 seconds per car. During peak
hours, this condition may be nearly continuous because the doors stay open and the blowers stay on when
another car is close behind in the tunnel.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 8 of 13

Figure 9: Sound plan 3D Model View

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N.RavenswoodAve.,Ste.104 • Chicago,IL 60613 • (312)436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 9 of 13

Figure l O presents the predicted radiated sound levels due to the Tsunami Car Wash. The darkest red
shaded area represents a sound level that exceeds the 65 dBA noise ordinance limits. The two green
shades represent sound levels that do not exceed the 50 dBA residential limit. The limit is predicted to
exceed residential limits at nearest east properties.

Carwash Noise with Exit Doors Open - No Mitigations

arwash Entry - Doors O en

Carwash E ·p it
oors Open

Active Car Vat all . acuum ing
stations

Up to 55 dBA at
loudest
residentialpoint

Signs and symbols

Levels in dB(A)

C <<5
45 - 50
s0- 55 Residence Limit (50 dBA)
55 - 60
60- 65

>- 65 Commercial Limit (65 dBA)

a 1

Figure IO: Sound Contour Map Predicted Sound Level Propagation - Current Design without Traffic

Based on the ambient measurements made by Soundscape on Thursday, June 13th, 2024, traffic sources
were placed into a SoundPlan model to show the existing sound impact on the surrounding areas, see
Figure 11.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste.104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

Traffic-Related Noise at 11 :30 on a Thursday

December 17, 2024
Page 10 of 13

Tsunami CarWash

We measured traffic
noise levels of 60 dBA
at this same point

Signs and symbols

Figure 11: Sound Contour Map Predicted Sound Level Propagation - Existing Measured Traffic

Recommendations

To prevent the sound level from exceeding the 50 dBA noise ordinance at the residential properties,
install a 17' tal I sound barrier along the east side of the Exit opening. Refer to Figure 12 for barrier extent
and predicted sound levels.

There are minimum acoustical requirements for the sound barrier wall. It must have a minimum height of
17 feet and extend 5 feet perpendicular to the Exit opening where indicated. It must be constructed from
a material with a minimum acoustical rating of STC 22 or a mass no less than 2 pounds per square foot.
We understand a 12" masonry block wall is preferred, which is an acceptable option. Because this is a
"sound barrier wall" rather than a "fence," there must not be any gaps and it must be constructed tight to
the ground.

In addition to the sound barrier, the acoustic analysis for this project depends upon the following design
elements:

a. The central vacuum will be located in a masonry building with sealed steel doors. If a vacuum
pump exhaust muffler was used at the Waukesha location then the vacuum pump at this location
should also be fit with a muffler.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave, Ste.104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

December 17, 2024
Page 11 of 13

Tsunami CarWash
Doors Open
17 tal wing wal extending 5 from building

48 dBA due to Car Wash
related sources

Signs and symbols
[] Ground stets

Wall

K Point source

- Alea source

Levels in dB(A)

= <45
45- 50
50- 55 ResidenceLimit (0 dBA)
55- 60
60- 65

>= 65 Commercial Limit (65 dBA)

1 · 1679
0 10 20 40 60 80
err..m

Figure 12: Sound Contour Map -Tsunami Car Wash with Exit Wing Wall without Traffic
(Darkest Red Shaded Areas exceed the Ordinance)

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Revl
SE No. 2240

Conclusion

December 17, 2024
Page 12 of 13

The proposed carwash design includes several elements that are beneficial in terms of noise transmission
to the residential neighborhood. The carwash is oriented so that the loudest part of the building (the exit)
is pointed away from residences. The central vacuums will be located within a masonry building with
sealed steel doors. Finally, the addition of a solid, 17-foot tall, 5-foot-long wing wall on the east side of
the exit door will serve as a sound barrier to the eastern residential properties, allowing the carwash
related sound levels at the residential property lines to meet the Franklin noise ordinance threshold of 50
dBA.

This concludes our assessment and recommendations. We will be happy to elaborate on anything
contained within this report.

Sincerely,
Soundscape Engineering
Per:

Nathan Sevener, Principal Consultant
PE, LEED AP, INCE Bd. Cert.
nsevener@SoundscapeEngineering.com
(734) 4 I 8-8663 xl 00

Aimee Lalime, Senior Consultant
INCE Bd. Cert.
alalime@SoundscapeEngineering.com
(703) 462-5825

Anna Catton, Consultant
MSAE
acatton@SoundscapeEngineering.com
(734) 418-8663 xl06

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste. 104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312) 436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri., Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



Tsunami Car Wash - Acoustic Report Rev l
SE No. 2240

Appendix A: Acoustical Terminology

December 17, 2024
Page 13 of 13

Sound level is measured in units called decibels (abbreviated dB). Decibels are logarithmic rather than
linear quantities and thus a doubling of the sound level does not translate to a doubling ofdecibels. Also,
the human ear does not interpret a doubling of sound energy as a doubling of loudness. For these reasons,
the following approximate relationships should be kept in mind when reading this report.

The logarithmic nature of dB and the human subjective perception of relative sound levels result in the
following approximate rules for judging increases in noise. A 3 dB sound level increase (or decrease)
typically cannot be heard or is barely perceptible. A 5 dB sound level increase is perceptible and is often
considered significant. A sound level which increases by l O dB will be perceived as twice as loud. These
perceived changes in the noise level are mostly independent of the absolute noise level. That is, a 35 dB
noise will be perceived as twice as loud as a 25 dB noise, and a 60 dB noise will be perceived as twice as
loud as a 50 dB noise.

Audible sound occurs over a wide frequency range, from low pitched sounds at approximately 20 Hertz
(Hz) to high pitched sounds at 20,000 Hz. These frequencies are commonly grouped into octave bands or
1/3 octave bands. Building mechanical systems generally produce noise in the 63 Hz to 1000 Hz octave
bands, with the lower frequency noise generated by large fans. Human speech is predominantly
contained in the 250 Hz to 2000 Hz octave bands.

Humans do not hear equally well at all frequencies. We are especially poor at hearing low frequency
sound and are best at hearing sound in the frequency range of human speech. A microphone does not
have these same characteristics. Therefore, when sound is being measured to determine how well people
will be able to hear it, a "weighting" is applied to the sound level measured using a microphone. The
most common weighting is the "A-weighting" and the resulting sound level is expressed in A-weighted
decibels (dBA). This weighting reduces the low frequency sound, slightly increases the sound at the
dominant frequencies of human speech, and slightly lowers the sound level at high frequencies.

Sound Power and Sound Pressure Levels - Sound pressure can be directly measured by a microphone.
Outdoor sound pressure levels are influenced by the distance and orientation of the receiver, obstructions
and ground absorption between the source and receiver, the temperature, and wind gradients. Sound
power is a physical property of the source alone and is not influenced by the external environment. It is
an important parameter which is used for rating and comparing sound sources. The sound power is
calculated by taking sound pressure or sound intensity measurements according to strict standards and
calculation procedures. Conversely, the Sound Pressure Level at a particular location can be calculated
from the Sound Power Level for a given source and the environmental factors affecting the sound
propagation path between the source and receiver.

Soundscape Engineering
3711 N. Ravenswood Ave., Ste.104 • Chicago, IL 60613 • (312)436-0032
729 W. Ann Arbor Tri, Ste. 150 • Plymouth, Ml 48170 • (734) 418-8663

www.SoundscapeEngineering.com



En.....
0
0 ~

·.~.i 4}.

i l
.

•i i r
,{--,,,·•"'"">, Tsunami Express Car Wash
--_--r l f'\t\
@±la#?g )z;
t%4 'j#$ leg
f.,..C'> mrl~/
\'',,,,,,.,,~}•••'' 6449 S Wh,tnall Edge Road, Franklin, WI 53132

--



Tsunami Express Car Wash

6449 S Whitnall Edge Road, Franklin, WI 53132



0

5,;:
=!
Dz

o

0

0

''' ''
''±

:t : '±< ! {

' '' '' ''
''~ : :
'''' 'l
' '' '''
' '''
'' '' ''' '
' ''' ''' '' '' ''' '' '' '' '
±I

'' ''' '
' '
' '' '' 'L.±----

± 7°
7¢± '3
3rm
O

. z
¥ 0i• z
Il O



~
Qj
VI:::r

CJ

I

8 .... i'eer
C:s:
0z
C

'
'
'''I J

'
'
'''I J

N

sx 16£Jg
E

8
i'

ij
~z~
z,:
=1
0z

'--

1
-

~- ,_

1
'---



£
0z

~ 7',.,,,~
0 ,la'<rr5s:0 0~

i. z
f ; C



,,
i'Ag
ii/ifl
;{vi 2I,, ',,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,,,,,,,,,,,

',,,,,,,,,,
',,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

I
I

f
i\oo•:··••":r"~------ Tsunami Express Car Wash±s ,, %Elsi;; ?;l '$ las
• £%°"«,"" 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road, Franklin, WI 53132

R /EDMOND



BJI
J•n
!j

.
5gn;

~ I

i 'i

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR
WASH R/REDMOND

WIU'11 CSlffUTMOu r.D l) !Wf IW"- Ull Sl<A. wa co -.s!N UlH ,~ 1u ~fKOQ



<
r
::E
:t>
C
;,s:
mm

#I

u. ••
1

i • t:, * 0@o @78+l
I I I ~

;+/#///,····++#
I I I
- £I I I

n
0z
Vl--,
:::0
CnQ :j
0z
"iJ
r
)>
z
Vl

Ii~
5
0m
X

-m
X

",cm
(I')
(I')

n
)>
,c)>
(I')
:I:"Cc::

CD...;:;
c::
:::!...
3
r,
0z
5
r,
A

- 0Omz
r,
:I:
z
)>
:,:,
:>:
V,

i

±

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE GRADING, EROSION CONTROL,
UTILITY AND PAVEMENT PLANS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANl(LIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd, Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



)
I
I
I

~
\
\
I

0

0

0 /

hp; '= pL
4

_..===. -_
'j

-... ·'
--- I , I

---.. \ I .
--- ------- \I I -·" "I,-....:-- - -». M »l '--- ----- ........ , \ ...,

-- - , ..... o - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -,.,_ --... ' ''''' I '
---a... _,.- - - - - - - - - - --»-_ >]

' '- Io /
0 \ \ \~ -··- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - _,,,_ - - , , , , , 'l,
0 ', \ / /.'

;£--·•--------,,, ', ~ I!
I \ I I ,J

Y ,If
'l 1/l• /.

It l.....,.................... I I

> I
I
I
\

I
I

I
I

I,

3

###
~ ;;;

X+ s 0

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
EXISTING CONDITIONS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANt:UN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WJ. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

:I
~~1·or

I

I
I

I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
ggg/g
±±ti±l
$@jg??'3
${i?'<?£;]zJi,l 0-< V, 3 -c 8 N w ::: -c ::: 0 mm,c z l> z 0

~ ± i s ~ ;Jl ~ § X,Cm
vi#II# c,o 0 E; ;Jl z z 0zm z G) -c :::jf2%2ii ± ~ 0 z .. .. ~ .. 0 ~ ..mZ » z ~ G') zj}}jj oc; V, £ G') V, G')oO --i !:j 2 m-i- ii " zz 0 2 0 V,

#ff#! ?£ ;Jl ..,., ..,.,
~ £ ;: e

~
V, ~ § ::; q42 l> 0 :!: 0 < 6 ::; m

;Jl "iljj O G') ;Jl 8 s: z z ~ m 2± m z ~,.,. u g au 0boo s: ;: e 2 G) § 2 s ..,.,g? # ~~ l> ~ ~t? ' ,.,. l> ~ --i ;; ;; ;; ..,., ;; 0 &0 / --i
~ 0 E 0 ;; > ;Jl

$~m-< 0 ;; ;; E > ;Jl s:>o; z ~ > s: > l>-< z m

"' 5; l> --i qz » --i 0~t:: 5 0 z
0 z~ "!:j

N ±±± ~[ViS:::>S
0 . A:):>£,\~YAN• A s =&

I iii 00 ill0 N.....
0.....

a Ar
1 2

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OfMILWAUKEE,WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horhon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: {262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



fr.: c y . O~am~er lJ . 2021 11 ~I 12 A.PJ

$%±
~~~~~H E b~~~~~t, -i
.~~- -~iii -<%$5£/z##ii#?pg 0 + 0~ m m
Oj_ijlniiJiii m s: s:±j#ti 11

0 0r- r-8.o z"'lil z =i s: ~ ~ ~ =i~n !;!;~ ££%±#ft4 ........ z 5 ~ l: l: 5~ ~ ~ s; 0 04$8%¥; RE8 z n .. ;:i ;:i z45$?¥ zz z ;;;
)> n n r- q## ~ )> ~ 0 z < 0 ~ m)>C,l>
)> ; G)523 -i2#3 m a .. m~sm m 58a V>
~ " z ~,."'fil "' ~ ~

0► ► n

~~

'1 ~ 0 0 <mo ;:

~
:;,;i b ij

q~z
~ )>£ ;;l
$%g q

~~z

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE DEMOLITION PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANt:LIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



f,-,, , , Otctrn:>t< ll , ,o?4 114 1 HAJJ

1-~~•ij-~~ C
- --~ •• -I.11ffi-ah! ;=

"'olil · is -$$?$$?z'
c~~ - -~ii -<f2££?<[zME >>> ::tJ........ 0 m &:,<!• ~-m

~Cl> ij;~~~~~~ I G)
~-0 ~~~~ gb 8 Q

\ ½
I ::tJ±;g ~~ 8 2 8 )>#8@! cq ;;-< v, • 0

3}3ii$ ~~~ 8 X X zzo~ ~ G)# -4o "; ";>O:; < ,..± ~ z
~

zi8~ C, C, mgg£¥ ,.., G),-i~ "' %5° 5 ~ ~ ~ mz~~ " C, 6 08# ~ ~ 0 C
0 C C:C ~ C::t 0 :;:

m:;
2
O>g~
I

q

~

q

~~
~

q

IY OAH

10 ·' •1 4
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH

SITE GRADING PLAN
FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORS

14S8 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WL S3406
Tele: (262}634•SS88 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10•4•2024



~ ::0
0 IT1

<
1 Go

O
"z2l n
3
~
6
2

)
' I ; i

I '
/ 'I

I
I

I
I

e o0z
-I
::0

30
r-

@r-
IT1
Gl oIT1z
O

q

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10•4•2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
EROSION CONTROL PLAN

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANl(UN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



0

'

\ i ~ \ "I ►• <m,. ,. r 4 zz z X s:
< < zlg

~~ ~
~ m

~
\: ~~ z z
~ o 0 0 C> -i

c,= n ---< :I! G)
0 ~ ~~ slg < 'l :,:,5 o,; 01o

~ ►a1 /;. =z ~~ C>

""' ~ gz n ;;::;c zC: ~ 0. zz o» =m ;l.... =1:= c,C> ,. G)~ 0 ~~ ~ r-
is

,: oO mg :;:C:: G)
:;c m
/;. z

0

1~ I i I I DOD

@0.

:...,.cr, "?'!""? '!" "? "? :,:,
g~33 C ~ £ ~ " t» + O m$!$ -i £ 1 ► <j= ';a < ,: ,: ,. C: in~-~~~ ::; i m g 0 0 0g±is s: £ s ¥-< z

~
m 2 z±2;; z e ~ z i n V>#fit -i 6 C: i0 £ :. i m

-i z s: 5 .,_m-<miii m £ g £ C><g@; 3 ► cJ#g ;'- :,:, ., 1 ,.s ~ ,. I< 01± z 0 0
0 ;;i z ,. ,; ,:;s; z 3 § 'l 0

±$£8% z g g G) := I i945; 6 g r- G> %i
m ilg~~ :;c 2 G)

!m

~
nz g z £;±i ~ 0

g z7? £ < ca i cJ
.,

g ± g C>
z ,: 30 .... g,. 3 I

n £ ; ,.r g z,. ;;i g 0~ :;' ig g n
z C:

9 m I 0 ~n C: .. .,
"i.... G>m I C:,.

#n

£
0

£
-i
:,:,

:1E► :c:V> ► ►:c: z :,:,
0m 0 zzn n zr- ► G)0 " qV> V> :c: :@;,~C -i 0:,:, ► Cm r- V>....... r- m 0

" " "C ► ►s < <m m s" z z:c: m m0 z zC -i -i ;;V> 0 0m m m0 -i
~m ►-i ;:: ;::►;::

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
PAVEMENT GRADING PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website; www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



I
I
I
I
Ir I

> I
I
I
I
I q

I
I "I l@J~I

I o

:,

.fy
o

;-

;-

i!
l

I
I0

I
I

~;,:,
Orr,

<
viaz
V,

EE33g31#,#jil
"'--Ii{ C: -$4@5%l±?%±{±l2 <1f#NB )>

--i
V, m

±###% =i ;,:,

i!I§ ;;Ii m ;,:,

#I#j C m
--i e

$$±2 z ~ » ;:: 5?,; 0 :;i :!!:'54;#} 15 £ 3it#j Si )>

" 8 ..... --i; ~ ~ m 0g2?i :E ';': Cl
m z-h .

~ z z;:! V,C -<z V,
;!! ! --i
3 m

:!!:
0;
)>
;::

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE UTILITY PLAN

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

14S8 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



I
. I
I

1-!iii I
i ii#355% 1

., \ I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
II

_,

±
0

""z>z
0
C

~

00 E'P- :8
.. :l'

e M - 0 £ le
0 ••!!l !:l ?8]%0 0 lHl-a a 4Li-o
.. 0.. 2 _,

~ ~ ~~ ±5
0. ;tCDiZ If< 6

H lHl· ±il±• a

V,
--i
0 a;,::,

~ ~ s:< » ~ V,l; g m s5 g g ~rs 8 8 m »; :E ,;: ;,::,

~ z ,- ~;: m
Gl::! m

al'
~
z

i:i C s

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
STORM SEWER PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, Wf. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



0-) ->.

C/l g"" ....
i!' ~a
i

i-.

I J I

: .,

N

;iH!!IHI!'!
ijiiijjjlj

1I!:I!%j
!ilt•i! !11;I ;,,I,, ,11·
1 .Jfl,J-" I
f t••1•1 l I
l ;111 •
1if3ii1, -Ill •, I
+1! 1#I d • I
'I'

i
---- _j___ -

ii
l

!,i ,.<lIlI j

,;:.::...:..:....:.:..:c____-----'---=----'----------,tfJ,

I
l
I
£

I
?.
~
z

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd , Su it e 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



ho:~,. Ce:e,r,., U, 1lll• 11<1 \6 1.JI

co .i:,. .....,.
7 y 8yg ££ ~- ! g alt !in◄ ~ie;;; ••• i"' ~--·~-:,: n- on ~ . •- . ; "•s Rr ,;a--< m o mo I ?#±, i8 ,es !je.., i• ~Ii-<:,. z.; --<z< 2 ~ :;~~~ §~ -~i nG RFn-< nm r,O •• n•,,,, i ,,g::• .2 es .. ±%

,. .
~:::! z'.'.; &z r:§ n :;,"~ -.;~ a-m n Om it;• gy ! -·~-< n> --<n I '-~~· ,.,_ . ~~ "l 's. ~~ #?ii < -aA~--<n

':j lx
i=
i.sg m:,.

=s ,-n ,. ~ ~--~· ~ Ji itZ m z ta .§0 0 i !3j ± .. t;;;l 3g -·g g i u~. ; •• !S; --< --< 3 %±; . ii Ze ~i ii;;; ~ ~ i !: ••,:: " i #j±? a& 5?m ~~ g • z iiz
£ gs --<

i ~· • .~ j ~~--<

4 i! ~ "H ij
,~ ·@ I+ ~~ I ~ilgas f: {&ii 5 ;: -~~-a >a -~3 ~ tl si ..., •z - . z z il:, :, :,

V, !" !"
<D CJl N

nw 18%0 ,
z,:: zno nm
"'"' 5;mz......m:,. m n
nm ,n><= r s.z m>,.~ ,-nz • I zm
C, 10~g "<
--< t ~~

~ i --<=mm,,,~
g o>

6" MNpm z--<
1£~ r
I

> z I z
~ :,

!".....,. !m0 I E;
#

nw '::j !: -at-~~~0 , -< n gz,:: ~:,:no ;:;~ #"'<= ,. 0mz r <= •• ;...... :i~:im:,. =--<nm m-< ~t-'i<= r n n ~=T :jo {ff:: ,Oz
I> 01? zn i!! !z,; -~ ?om ;;ln<<= m ; ii--<"'--,= ;;;~ ~ ,:: 2J ~i0,. m ±mz z {_--< --<,.

T ,-.gu: -.;= - t ~~1 3gas ~.
ha !.';::t

I z z r; z
~ :,

~I I !".....,.
-....J (,J.....,. l" ··~

~

i !ii {i3 ~ ;:: .1> :,::, aOrr, nw 'i ~~ #; 2 s ~< oo h
.

~ 'l ~ i.;• vi z...; -o : aE El ~ i0 - 2 -:.c: ±#oo "'~ •• ~~ ;i- ;:;-:z ~"; H -o ,.
~ V, i"

n <= ~:i 0 !i,.,q >--, ~-~ --<~ r-<
i; 5o ., o 33° ~g no ;i_:;; ,.,., i --< zZm ~ OQ ·i g~ og

ti#@ 3 + --<a
c-,m

!'° ~<= 0--<:,: ge£ ;s% ~ ~:i--< m; m:,. ~~ ! _r1s ,. §Jo ; <z • t
~" g :i • .- ±?. E. =r -g3 --< • z 4,.
--< i!~ ;= it ·#t ~-

~
6"11:N gas l~;::thij je

5 i•~~ z • z - ~ z
8 :, :, :,
z !" !" !"
ll
;:i

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: {262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



;
""'''"" •n~ l~I - §!TOT~CF T[( I §

- i 9 I

e, o ,o ;n~
gg ~~ ~~ +£B -•~~ ~~ "l'i &Sa

±e •• .. ~i! ••
.:ai t ##.;a:
H Bo u !H !i I!i j ~• h

j ,A "i
;

vJ

Ong
>m
;=»

2
)>z
g.... ~,::; a
9 ~
"' ~
;;; g
"' ~,

s•$a

•"2
i

I

"'~
N Y'.'"'!--1" -~

±##7~~ .. ~.,..
z3 gg8,3
'"'» ii@jii:;;;:: #a,<
O ;3? 3%$±z
250 1#i%O
m--< ~ij,:-31:!! z--<"',-c Ege-nr_, H,. I; ••§l ~

ij i±i i~ j

i I£
2 ~

z
'-<
!"
.i:,.

on
m►.... ~►--<i=z~

►Q

~
n
:,:

g
►z

r
C
,::
m

~~•·H

~ ==1==

I
====g ==> ====' ==> ====

8% ====ge. ==+i; ====4r ====
# =======

34 ====
»R ==
i
6z z

'-< '-<!" !"

fuecy, Ot: em, ., \J , 1 0 1 ~

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horhon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: {262}634·S588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



CX)

!! i
i

I 'I

co

'iq[ Ii

4 +

0
o, r

<
in
0z
V>

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

tr±ls I
1458 Horizon 81vd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406 d
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



l
11

lr,e:1 . Ot:tT:>" IJ , 101• t1 « 2 4 1 M

lliJ/111!!11

1
1!111'1illlll

..
'1'' ' 1111''1,,1, 1

!1li r:::a;::. r=-·J11' .i,,l1i!!!llir !(Ill· .,. -I r~-'1
f•1;lf• ! l ! • l j!'I L h#i

!I"•I!s

1C?i
I·•'

Ii

I I': r="'":J r=-·:::7 q i1g ! 1ji - 'I-'
i1111 !'/lg • h!I~--- ,nffit]:i"I,ff n I 1•1 . i h d ,:a;nIi ,:a; h ii pi,,

4 mil
I' m•e 11; mg # u ~ii!1111i !II lh l•d I#£j I•! 1111 :5 %#p'4«

§ ~I I l I• ·I I, 111 ,,! ~ iii!
i I· h l! · I m •q: 111 11, d 1r, :'
I UI 1i ll 111 '' j! 4#;!Iii I 1,1 l, ' 4 lft.. 1l} i!Jf- ·1 '1l tJI: I j i 11 "" I l h'h 1111u111111111

1 i ii "" I i1 '
lf i• "" Ij[kg@'i i~ J ! l

{[ii i i! Ji rli 111 !!#hf l% f •1 Iii 1,1,1,1111·11l1!1 l!
I ,,1! ' Hill "%

• I I fl

• i
I i

0000©©0000

111 ii I•,;! 1j1 !I! I
!I '1 I h I'Iii j, !
!il I, I I
!I 11'1 1! i J1Ii I!. ., I
,11 11,1,n ll I : I I!I I ji l j: j I i 111
i1 I £/fj 1,4]
•. ! I ·11 I I':I! ! j.. I i I
•• I I 11' 'iii 'Ii j " Ii llj;! I i I
:

1 11,11 lj!!ll i

'I lilij 11111 i
l iii 11 1 1l!!h , • a ~~ ,. , •, "''I' i
j 111· I iil1! ! III • i I 1i•i1 I I'
l ii ip, !11111 I I _- . . . · 1
II ·, I h I ',1•'! !r! I !hi II t• jl!ll 111 II'.
i I 11 j] jkl #jl$$}] 1iij li#j
i, ! I jl!!! i!! ji ! 111r1'1 !!'11!

I l ,1 •. , I , i, ,111
! , !11i 1i! !- I !Iii! !!l!j

#l ifI
I I I

'1 I I

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

.re±es 1
1458 Horiion Slvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406 d
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



iiiiiiiiiiJU

l! II ill Iit Iii ]'i ,, 11 f, I •i iIi j·
i ! ii

II 8iiii it?II ..,

~======-=11~11

,. "'
.....i.

" m<
vi
0 ~,,

-imz z3
V> nz

-<-i; ,,o
mZ..,~,, >
»»2vz
:,:
,,o,.c
n;::!

rrg
-i
!:

I..
$

z
'-<
Y'

>

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

cmOF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Su it e 200, Raci ne, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5S88 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



~ r·
~I -•i a >3; 4£$? ~;'•

11 % £;;8 ~~ i!! h#if ~• g .. ~ ~~ ~h !iii i' !1 ...
n #i ~• l"z' z i• :4 ! ! iii 0 0

I ~~ i • .. !lc::~
~ ~ ~H

; ~~ 0 ~ •~~ • ~
i 28 i • I

~~ i ~ g
~ # ~ ~ ~•' g· • !~ .. I48 •I ~~ ~

;.. ~ i±? i+z

~<
~
m
2
--i
V>

""mn
:;;

E
0
2
V>

~::->-P· .•... '"' C)
0ge ; il ~~ z~~~ : C> CJ>j £ >> --i~ ·~z◄ ~ ~~ ;o±# ~ g ~~ C

~ I ~~ C)

±3 --i~ 6> 0~~~ ~ i iz!i§ z
8 CJ>

£i I ~i m

° ~§ 0
C.. ~ m# ~~~  z

~ ffi £a C)

I p z
i G)

~ I
~ !• 0

N TI} £v$0 " c,n TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH Nielsen Madsen+ Barber :::Jn 0 A!):)£1,:)UMA JCl-4-24N PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS" CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORSI 0 FOR d-.,._i.ij 0 ks TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC. 1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406~O') CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE , WISCONSIN Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net0,_.

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



!EB
£0l<
" m

U
)>
rr

1

l
i

HHELLER&

29989221%.±.
P.0.Box 1359
lakeGeneva,W1sconsin53147.1359
ph262.639.97JJ
david@wda•,i.tieller.com
w...w.wdavidheller.com

om--i
)> >< (/)
::U ""O C
< ;:u z< m )>
)> (/) s::
(/) (/) -
I

t:;t:;:

111

0
0
0m
;u
m
0
C;u
ms:mz
-I
(/)

r
)>
z
0
(/)
0
)>

t
""O
m
""Or
)>
z

%
~ -u r 0,, i~ <r cl ► z rn II i iz
C Z O ;:o JI i i

-lo. £ lr ,. ,_

(/) )> I[ ~l I:{ i0 () r i ; i

)> r 'J ' •
;; #' •
6 I 3 ""CJ
\i rn (



isffi
AIzr

)>

:::0 '}7r .
)> \z ..
0
(/)
()
)>
"U
m

1
%

~
0

~r z
C

....\. 4

....\.

.,,,"'~~=.g m
• z "Cl,.,, /~~

R,"' m IO

"U r m i #±±± g "Tl O> () m --l)> ;;l ~ O>r z Q) ~ X (I) HHELLER&I ~,._ .i.. ,._ 2 A )>)> z r II j,!
=(/) :::0 "UC 2998%%9292E2%..z 0 )> I' 'fl :, .# ii}] -:'2: 5" :::0 z(J) :::0 ft 4!} i m)>0 G) -< P.O.Box 1359ii 1E! ro LakeGeneva,Wisconsm53147-1359vl (/) s:)> m 'I i ,

ph262.639.9733
"U 0 r (/) (/) - david@wd;widheller.comQ)

:, I V."'-Y,1.wdav1dheller.comm I ro



£: u WW nmp: H#; 1: ii'!-~ I Uii. • l!Ii ; iep •

!!J H!t ' iiii1 •.· 1·i ,. -lsa f Hi, Al# ;I[ )': !<' l iH ii J i#l . i I if! !!! ± f! l H'l iiH ±i{]-• jHrji! Ji ,,, 1, ##; ii tJ if!! HH H II !r} H, Hi !ji Hi ! HH ·• '!! !+; : i !if !f 1i!un l ... -11 ii! '••r • I• Hih 1! ;n :, h4 .i!12 & ~ ! ·l'• !I!! l!ili #iii! .~ !i::i fl iH! !j•· i 1,,,i%1» I! I
.,.

B f' idi ±%¢¥ 1 *H 1121:j i ''. #] :ii!i 11 {#ii t Hi 2-:p ±ig • {is I, ilH rz {ii!]t fil &i 1:.!- !!1 !J1H H e: !i I l !I,, ,rH #r i ±tlli i H ,ti i .. #it)> H .. +,+#
! ii" 1 ;H Hi1 fn·: i]l! 'iii H i±ti a! ! f I.!•• i
,, J f 1 i a rH ,. H;I ,hS J2.-H;:z l"!l•i i i WJI ! " !

,. ,I',. II .. !ii? ~ h ·•!
0 a p ~tlh ii?:! ! .. , I' -! ii .. ,u H h,

it#fi lh 1: :ft ,, !i I w Hi(/) ii ,! iHi! ! 1-i !I :l i::_j 1H • I .. , !it if! I ;,
() H -!jzl

1 {: :, m il; iui ! .!l[ ! H isifi ii±#i it;{±j f; 3 !)> .ii H l •' i! 1H ts !•• ii IiH1! ! #j J!, ,-
"U H ., ~ !!ifi I· H1 Hit l

Ii' l' '!"p iii •! ,d ' if fitm I' tifl! ! u•·•·· ! ! i wt'' !! ! s§ lfii !! a, ~r11 • i: ;,1
G) i? H #+4! •ii !l zi

i iii , ..
4 !!j•• l,1'F! {h Hi iii; {:s " fm a n ll- i! •h I .,.!'c'gi, ; I ##; !!!! H mH {fl±; f!: !·n 1i l!i 1z " Hi 3 ¥1! ' ,( l H : ~ ~ll •' f!iii #iii± i! ±t H, f gRm :J il I. ,I,.; .. ~

tmm
i!, h .. {+¥ ,!! 1; it l!J::0 n,;, w l• H!! SJf i i::., H ,; ,. I•• l ? !!1)> ., ±! ·;I Ii ,.

'! m ·' if; i! U::r !! : ,j!'! iinlii u if l l ! pii I .. !!,:; •1·z i: j'il!1 ,; ·1,? i 1¢;
l EI ,! ! !_Si II }?sit i!filfi I! ! !: It , . Iit= . .. I0 1? i i ii th ,,. .,

i Ii-I t! ii : ! '''ii t! [
,, ,,, lif ~- m !t #.. f?iii iii±;± ,. il 2·• ,.ii ·' l' +j i}! ;m '! Bs!l.; pi 11 i 0 I(/) .. }1 :' ..,,

•I•

H

HE

m
II!m
'''Ill! I!
illrn
HJ
Hirn

H!If f I
I t
f f

HE

Ht
Hf
m
!!! I
!H !m:m
!H

f {i
iii

HH
HB
I ill
Il l!

HH I
ff i l ~

HH I

HH
HI!
IHI
HH
HH
HH I

i
I

HH I
fffi I

r I iii I I I
f

i
I
I
i
lq

i
I

I I
l l
l l
I I

I l
H
H;r

H
H
!!

# ''\,
)(

"U
.. -~r

)> iz ~ "'ii"''-I 11muu i!,1iif!•z £ hill!!!! rl:lil!G) li I !,!i'•1 I 'I'' 1• i##f +iliQo !•=g llil p:p
I
)>
::0 w

0 '~(/)
()
)>
"Um
0 n ipm• ii!m ~ +Ii#
-I ~ i ,:,!,
2::: 0 ''iii
r j ti!,.
(/) Ir

~ V V (f) z 0 r i0 0~ ~ ~ 0 0 m )> I

'':: z •ir I -, 5 11 ,,z ~ 0 □}C m m! ~ li i !il ~ 0 (f) r (f) H.: .r:
N C Qo _(f) 0 u ir )> ·•

'l •
~ I ~

m lJ
(f) m I

P.O.Box 1359
LakeGeneva,Wisconsin53147-1359
ph262.639.9733
david@wd11vidhel1e1.com
w...w.wdavidheOer.com



·□• 0) D • ) I

wlI

JI

j
: ~

I

Ii
'

!If
ll
i
!
i

-I

Im !!
ti# #l :, hii I!I •

!! !i 'I 11
i i ! !
: : i I
l 1 !

!l
9!

11
I
'•

~~ t o PROJECT LOCATION: PROJECT:
g= 1!

0

iim ~ R/REDMONDii 8 iii
'- FRANKLIN, WI TSUNAMI CAR WASH" "' 4l

ES100
tO 0 t't"' o o:, ,. ,.. .,. , ,....... ., , .. .1 , aN.U1M ,. ll< <>U•II IMI•~-•

"



<
r<l>
C
7'mm

if.z Z! !;I :, 0

. i •
t 11

2 s
II £ •$ <r £ ~ li

I I •
•
1

i :; /', * 0 @ o 0 'iJ ):) K• <> ~
I I I ~

;+}++//1 ® • ••·f
I I I, l ~
I I I

n
0z
(./)
-i
:::0
C

9
0z
""O
r
)>
z
(./)

tz
0m
X

-I
V')
Cz
)>z
m
X-c
,c
m
V')
V')

n
)>
,c)>
V')
:c

N ±± -EV S. O\ IY DAT( TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH Nielsen Madsen + Barber :J0 AU 10-C,lCN SITE GRADING, EROSION CONTROL,n. ,, ; ; ~
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

I a i:, UTILITY AND PAVEMENT PLANS d-0

isl1--l." ~ FOR 1458 Horizon Blvd . Su it e 200, Raci ne, WI. 53406

i:, TSUNAMI EXPRESS CARWASH FRANKLIN, LLC. Tele: (262)634-S588 Website: www.nmbsc.net..... CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



fogey . Deeme r 1 2224 11 4 t$ ? Aw

)

I
I
I
I
\

\

• \
I

'

0

0

0 /

C
-Ir=
=i-<z
0
-Im

".-- - -;--. {
- -- - -~~- - - - -,,,_ -- -- 1 "1-~- - ~-~--- - - -- --- -.....::::·~---· - - '

- - lil- :.. -~·-~ - -::--= - - - - - - - \. I
- --~_-a= - - - - -'ii- - t'><1[__________________ '-, I

-111-....._ ', I
0 '- '-
Q_ _,..- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -,.,_ '- '- '1/.
o > /
0 \ \ \

-w- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -,,_ _ \ \ I ,
a > +'
o >>/r·"--------- ,., \ /\

\ I//la
Ii k

I I
I

I
I

I I

I
I ,

•QQf

]

* t i XtP t 0

,. Xr f ;, )( o

£ z £
! i i

i I

±# :±4
i ±#
•

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
EXISTING CONDITIONS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY Of FRANKLIN, COUNTY Of MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. S3406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



rge, Dec«re 13, 2 2 2 4

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

l
@O,m

'

I
I

I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

~~~•m C#!$771=±!383/E
$$@5}?l3
±£${$il2
I##ii,B O VI 3 "C ~ N ~ 0 "C §

mm,: )> 0 i ~
w "' XS,m z ~ ± t iii44##%} C>o 0 G; "' z z 0zm ;,; C, "C ::::!~o ~~c- 2, ~ 0 2 0 z ~ " " ~ 0 " z##if#j mZ ~ G'lo::, VI ; G'l VI G'lO -I q 2 m#3ta zz 0 2 C, VIgs .,., =i'#Md "' .,., 0 ! £ ~ m

~
VI

~ ~
q~~ )> ~ C =i m0 "' < 5Oo G'l "' 8 s: z z ~ m 2;g} »,: m 0 0 a/ 0 0 s 2 z § §,.,.

" 5 C, 2 .,.,C>r

" )> Q Q 0i? ;; )>
C -I 5; ;; ~ ;; .,., ;; "'

qa -I z 0 £ 0 ;;

~~

0 :;! ;; £ /;. ',; "' ',; s"I;. z ',; ',;~ z & Q s: )>
,:

)> -I qz 0 -I 0~~ 5 0 z
0 z3 3
q

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY Of FRANKLIN, COUNTY Of MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: {262)634-S588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



s

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

14S8 Horiion Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. S3406
Tele: (262)634-5S88 Website; www.nmbsc.net

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE DEMOLITION PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANr.LIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE. WISCONSIN

±%3g]5
±±±#i±le ~~~~::!8~E -(5i??gl<
{q244tz

Clum·i ~ • Cl~ m moz£~?f.rii m s: s:±±48%¢ 0 0§.0 ~~:z 11 I'"" I'""::j .: 3 ~ 0 ::j#±#,3ii -1-12 0 0 ~ ~ 0~~~~~~il 36 z ;;; ,;; 0 0RE8 "' ;;; ;;; zg-;o~-~
zr2 z ci )> r, I'"" s34}%£% rn 2 Ip0 p 20 0 < ~ mi~~~~t ,..,,,.

)> G)£23 -Im ~ "' mg3@ %
V,

~ "' z8? 32a
~

Cl •,.,.,., : 4)~cl~ 0 0 <"o " g»de
m z ;, sm >
~ ;;l
~~
o6 •2 n

~~

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



fr,c,:y . 01:Ml!>t1 1J. 201~

~355IC£;43#l±
~~~~. ~~ C
$@i}?l3
~c~~~~~ Z4j#$/$//8 ~~~ ::a
~~~~;mi irl ~-o "' I?><
?±5;i%?j ~ C )> vi

I G')8$$?kg; $2&l5 I ~
I ::aA#e;%g ~~§ 2 i:l )>

$#3#%± cq;; < V\ I !:!

%MW
~~~ 8 X X

zzo~ ~ G')G) -4 5 ~ 0 ~go< < ~ r-£ z z±%4 i8! " " "'8 n G')ii ~ § ;r 5 g 8 0 "'~ ~ z~~ " ~ 083 ~ ~
C:

5z ;:: ;::
~~z
0►g
~

q

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10•4•2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE GRADING PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



,, :,:,
Or,,

<
vi
6z
V,

)
'- I '

/ ' 1 ;
I ' •
/ ;'\.

I
I

I
I

I

g±? C~±±##ti j=

$@is} =i-<%Mi#! zmm 0~;;i±? m

m
I

~ m t l rn
:,:,

i~im I T lil 0
. ·~ I V,me 6£}%$;

! vi!:: 3 2£ n ~~ z-~· ~ -~ s:
~

c;# c o ~ ~~ ~~ n q~~
~

•S: 0±it; l.'. 7a
~

!""; C 7 zC '"c 32 q ~~ ~ggg C II vi 2 G 5 :,:,i? ~ E& z ,, z z 6:: :'.:'. 0 •0 Gl - s: v as; ;; c,,
~

~~ r-

~~
~

~,, r ~~ r-,, z C.0 ~ rn
~~ G)
O rn q

g3 z
,: 0 0
:;;z
:;; q

E
q

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
EROSION CONTROL PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horhon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



.
'

9 i ~ ~
"C

\'ll:.l'-0 1>-0
)> 1.0\/l:.l'-c,\.I>-
< oo-S- 'm rH';; ~ .... s~ 2lo zz z X ~< , ;;;:; ;;;:;

~
~ m

i ~
~~ :n : z z ~o 00 C> --1 ."'i c,= n _, ,, G'l .

70 I ~~ ~~ < g :,:, s
i5 oz yo i •g =z I C> )>

,, C> ; S!* n ;;;:;; zC "'i □"~ C> z
~

O► ,,, 10
:::p= c,C>

~
G'l

0 ~~ r-~ ;: l m
Q c::C:: G'l
:;; m
~ z

0

®
"C :...,a, '? '!> '? ,,,,,, :,:,

#~e33£1 ~ ~ o; ~-o m4;435H 'l' )> <3%3/3/E ~ 5 ~ < ;:;: ,:►► C vi
i m gg oOO 0 0??jg??'3 s o°C2is?'< z ~ ~ m 22 2%4 3 z

{@±#ilz e z ? i££ VI
~ ~~~~- 0 z --1 "~ 2 ~ s :;; ~ sz: z=-~--~i -I ~ ~ s 0°;#± Im " 2e cl~ ~ )>
#±fjj ~ i' :,:, 5 ,, 0 ::t ,,,, ~ ±33 0

~o ~~~z g ~ ~ g 0t# i5 ~ z 7£ 6G ;:
;Es; ~ Orn O ~* s G'l C (;;-,g& , -<-, C>

+44%3 i5 ~ r- O ,, 0 ~

~'\ m $! 5 es$$3%; * ~
G'l rl E:;; m ~?: s;;: n!±%} g z 06 Ei ~ C

is %

~
0 z z z :;; .,78? " :;; " ~ln " ....g ,= 0 0 ":;! z z ;:

~~ 3 .... 0I 'i1~ 13 i
,,
z

n ~ g 5 0

A 0 ';i n zz ii £0 m ....

~" z r
';i ".... "~ r

~i:\g
s

--1
:,:,

:E)> ::cVI )> )>::c z :,:, qm 0 ~zn n zr- )> G'l0 "C sVI VI ::c

~~

C --1 0:,:, )> Cm r- VI q...... r- m
"C "C "CC )> )>s < <m m q"C s s::c m m0 z zC --1 --1 qVI 0 0m m m0 --1 --1m )> 2-I ;::
E r-
r-

N £?£ " ATE TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH Nielsen Madsen+ Barber ::J0

n. N z; PAVEMENT GRADING PLAN CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS,,. d-I ;;; D FOR

-.....J~ D ill TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC. 1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI, 53406N... CITY Of FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net0...
ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



rr,:~,. 0 tU"" ' • 13 . 1()2 C i i c, 0 3 A.II

» 0
Om

<
vi
5z
V,

~~~•m C I I+±3l=383@/3[= '· I I""- Ii! C: -

I$$@jg±?l Iii:&?l<
:ii; IiilE ► I-i r£zi;ti#l V, m I

#l#ii =l ;o
B> Im ;o$£%%i C m IJ#;jj -i n

I< ►-~- I! - ~ ~ 5 ;=
I8}43?j ~ la ~ 3 s:
I eaij#j 8 8 ► I... -i
I; ~ m 5G) I=±# :;; I': m z I I •i i ± z z I;: C V,

i I . :©~-<":! V, y ::2 ] Iz
~

-i
!,,m • ., .. "l"l"t •i:i s: ~± ±zjii}]/

#: ±rC 5± !! I ,r

~ , 3► ¥, • I
f

I;= I I I J:;fI 0 ,r
q

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
SITE UTILITY PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKUH, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10•4•2024



r,~cy. Dr:om~., \J. 202'

//,,,,,,,,,,,

l .

J

C
-I
j=

:;/
z
0
-Im

~
0:;:
£
►2
0
C

0

3

00 f? p. ~8

: f ;u
!""' - 0

,.. 0 C

&l ~ & C ~ 5
n n s- s- ##?;;r ;;r

$±l
O

.. 0
.. 0 ...
• ~ ;u

~ ~ ~~ +5a 6 R3l%l% s- s- el&, I ..
og a

V>
-I
0 s:,0s:< i:l i:l V>;; m •i5

~ ~ ~la m

~~
; " ►

:,0

~ 2 ,- s~ m
G)z mz ! z

3 0 :,

?'#'±,pl"±Ee
zet#All

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
STORM SEWER PLAN

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

Cln' OF FRANt:llN, COUNn' OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



r,.::c, Oe :tt"~tt IJ. 1C1• 11 Cl 11 4V

oO

ii ill!! Ill?.!ik!jjiiijl
I" 1I' I!•±:;:3%j'''11

' If•• h,11 i 'l'! !' fl !i ! ji{##; !j
I iJ,f1i 1 '•; ill•', ! b
·~! ijI c! , 1
l I'

• II--!-. !
• , j
?i .I

7

!_ ii- -i• !
j

rs. .
~ :::::..e

: 6. .

i
I_______ _i___ __

i
I•i!
II
!i:

-----~~~-------,/i)
(/)
0
0
l!'.:

i.
,5

?

r
I ii
! i'

• I I
l r~ I • • (

i
g

I ii ' I
l

l

ii !!
I'If

z
:.,
!"

N

:a: '... i)>

l;=
£z
r iii l;
!
z
i
£•I
a•r
•$
l!
l1

I

'(111 •
'I I• i!4pf3. .II I

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE , WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

14S8 Horizon Blvd. Su it e 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



(X)

►z
0

g
---<
~

c.o CJl N

I z

! ~

( ou
oo
zn---<»-<rn O

3Tg
:;; 0eg

50
Zmog
c, m
cO
---<:,;---< mm,-

og
---<►;=

(o
0 ,
zno
»cmz........m,
r oerz
►"!z,;o,,

<
I ~E±:
io?

n, z
---<

1 e::
I

I

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Raclne, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: fO-4-2024



•Q -~-~ Fr=gg ~~ ig i; ~~H -•
~~ ~;; !•, !s

H •· -~ ..~'i: el !di~a: H Ba

3 H !i '!i j ll xg ±?
& j .~ ..
i' ~

i

t,;)

->.

Ii
o= !m--<
--<►►Z •£ E
0 •~ •g ij
a:
=

~ •a: i,.
z 0:,:

~ ~
~
0

"z
'--<
0

;;(~~
N

ii#
6i#; r- --<s& o"»53% :::a:it o=,.m?:;:;~-~. z"'
5#±E o=m--<

--<"':,.c
-n
~~

1

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website; www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



rr:lt, Ora .T~r· \J , 202• n •2.2a AV

0
CX)

I vJ
!ii~tl I a Q

! •li1•11 ~ .0

1~11': ~- ~
ffi
,,

!f ~ §
Ii l

·1• ~

# ~
~ ; I4$ .. ~

t'6 # z ij
z lgt; '-<4 # !"
-;; iH• i #I,

mid O-<
i I 7i' ~~

r;,,,,
!:

~
~
0

g

co

~Wi·~1 0,

l •Ill1-•la _,VJ,~
!!~~'!! ~, ~J.,: h~;lji:1
n! UI"111"' if#%,i,
1!61i

I
i

II
I "

ijil 0):;l:!Ii}
lij%j
~

..rt:
~i!i1:'
il~

i;·.·111"'•I :a
b I ~11,
ff6-~ it

I ! I
; I

1
:1 I

E>

I,,

~:,,"m<
vi
6z
V,

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY Of FRANKLIN, COUNTY Of MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

1458 Horizon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



h~:~. Ot:r,,.~rr U, 201• 11 c; Cl 1,,11

I
11

Ir

Ir

! , ,

I

'' I

44t

!li ij llll!ilill!'11,./il
''11''1·j'!, ,!l!I

#7
IL
#

,,·. 11

1p ,,;iiid

•""""":--· i11111•,:iI II ..,, . 1 , = t1iH!I • . ·-- .... -J
I ,i -pp~ ~ ---· ..........
·! ii, !I i ---- il~ ! i I !! I ·!I I• ! I " ! •1 #I I ~ . loil I I #£ I• ij~ I I ! ' %it?

*
IIi ~ a4

!j lI' !
i ii

I I

l!
111 J:

,:
,I, I

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR
TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF M ILWAUKEE , WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen+ Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS

14S8 Horlton Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. S3406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



ty. Dez+er 13, 222

,, ;,:,
o pr

<
vi
5z
V,

ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10•4•2024

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH
TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

FOR

TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Nielsen Madsen + Barber
CIVIL ENGINEERS ANO LAND SURVEYORS

14S8 Horhon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406
Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net



• .,, 4~ )> MI <m :!◄s: +i m +
2 g;

§ -i ,l~;:5:
V> gg~ .,, £iti m o8iQ I~~s .,.,

j; n ±±)>

i -i f
0 ±±2 5#?Q V> ?3~ ~-~~ ±• 5i• i!'!;t• £

~ ##3C •-.
:E
~m
::,:,

s:
)>z

.......
V>

~m
::,:,
V>.,,
m
Q.,.,
E
0
2
V>

"' g?9g ~fVI SIO'I " DAI £ TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH Nielsen Madsen + Barber ::Jn 0 3; 1 J1!)~ ;: -.. c1uv.1,"' PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS,,.
CIVIL ENGINEERS AND LANO SURVEYORSI . d-1---l-S 0 FOR

0 #l TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH FRANKLIN, LLC. 1458 Horhon Blvd. Suite 200, Racine, WI. 53406"'CJ) >--' CITYOF FRANKLIN, COUNTYOF MILWAUKEE,WISCONSIN Tele: (262)634-5588 Website: www.nmbsc.net8
ISSUED FOR APPROVAL: 10-4-2024



0
0
0m
;u
m
D
C;u
ms:mz
-I
(/)

!EB
£ 0
E <~ m
0, :::0<j

)>
rr
r
)>z
0
(J)
0
)>

t "1Jm
"1Js;:
z

g ~ ]0
;;i g

~r a
z sC

-lo. ! j;

£
0

~ I i

Ur O
r )> <
)> z rn
Z O ;:u

(j) )>
Or
)> r
""Orn

HHELLER&

89992E2.
P.O.Box 1359
LakeGeneva,W1sconsin53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wda•,ilileller.com
v.v.w.wdavidheller.com



E@,,z
IE
" ;::o
0

o

z \
0
(/)
O
)>
7J
m

I
¥ U

0

~r z
C

~ !
l

00

lJ r m
r )> z
)> z r
Z O )>

(/) :::0
() G)
)> m
lJ 0m

S.

om-;
)> >< (/)
;::o 7J C
< ;::o z< m )>
)> (/) ~
(/) (/) -
I

P.O.Box 1359
lakeGeneva,Wlsconsm53147-1359
ph262.639.9733
david@wdavidhelter.com
v.v.w.wdav1dheller.oom

0
0

~rn
i!!
"'



w I! WW ••1·•q,s 'l' 1: iP !'!' IHi"' i!li im lJ !(' ."" :ep ·
!cl if .-~lss I Hi u h,11

;11 '
,,;,

ii m Hi¥ H!Ii Hf! iii; f![a itpf I!! ,u.,,r Q if i ~,.:i iii! l}Pl #?z 1m 'ii ~ ,· t. { -a ' Htl UJJ+# '! H' prrii! H • ti · j. ii iii': 'il; i!; Hi,ii 1Jlu"il I !l ti ! i ~ l +!±, }iii ..,.
# .tiil 1,.~ i ig ! f l• HI !lL ,, um i · + ,. Ii4 . ,. #lfi !!'ii i! llPs!!i! .~ •l •I ,rn pp#£ !±i '1i ii} lo• !I! : ,!i ., 4ii%14 !hj!il!i I ' £ h ~j I l 1, • iiH st j!i ¢ iii !I ;r,'I! ! ' t I !i ,Hl l•nJ !••' !• !ii j'1 '1 #iJ! H oi. •s I hi 11 h~ Ht! •Iii! 1 .. i ,!ii i ~r h !. it]i i

., ! f)> :hn ii Ht .! 'il iHJ ln;, P,t'i i]H 'iH F !f I.:•• i 'ti ,. .. . '-iii I# •• l Iz I .• !:. i , um ! h " ·!i>' if 1,,1
~

i .. i i.1••.I !•!i · I ~ 3 & B' l! !i! t ;t ! ~ !!i h,0 H ~ '!! t 'i l·Hisi ... 1? II' ' ~;;f! i 1H1 H(JJ H lh .. ,. !i H• Hi i,, Hn., ! !i., •!; 1# !i ••• iii! ~I;! '1 it i!;H .. §!!"Q• m J ... ;,
() ·, i: iii i +1;;i itl i;° HJl .h! n #It!. !i ;1;11 iiri " !)> JI H i!ii !!. i l j •' 11l #!

±
lh i ~

~ iif ~~ I !· 11! !iii! It ,. 'I""1J H t! 1!, ! j ! $#3ii!] !f i ~ 5 Hi i!!J ! it If iij im ,. Iii!! ! t:l "' ~Ii, •• ,p ti;#,. !i !-!!Iii ~ ~ l!! . lJ.!,& ii f: .!b· Ii t; !
G) t? +] {5! .. !i i

1!ii & ii 'H h: iii! 4/344 'j' H! !m,q ii!i }? " Ui !m $'l! '' sg£ i Sgt I!ll !Bli .l i· f • l t ~ i. I II i!H l t! iH i ,;i ¥j l!,i i,j t·:iz Hf ii ·!t HI{ :\ 1 !•H r••,, ti!! W1 1° ,! .n; Im i1 _di,._ I.!. ±fl ii, !l,. •:a; i if'',., 11 I'! iHi all I!;;;o ,.!

H !!'! ! : 1 i j ~fli ii ., Ji;; :i I ii !± ±i Hi !., [,h H ,. F,i il i!)> .. 3$4 <±i!±i H ;j !iI ! .•q is IH lr H '!:'5! •!!'! ii 4 H ii? ,! i i% "-!I t= ii l!1 Umli 1-/ it; {i !! ....
z I• ,; 2 4? Hi !} h!_Si l;Hf fl!i !I f± +#4 2t ;:" !0 t ;i !ii±!! ,:

•j
. ,. 18; ; , 1Ii 3¢

,.
' 1±£ !iii t, 7 i ~ i-l i1 ih!ll! .,
! ;. ... G# Piif . , fij! h I' ] i)! i :·q 4 , .m iii ;'I! "';n.i::2 ; i} ij& ; ~ 0 I(/) .. !· gt : . i,,

ii
H
ii

HH!!

i•! t ilk tj nu.sl ii H•oi! ! ;:ii~ 19 ! , HI f 1 !
i • • I

ill • i l -11 =•--11 I .. - - .. I .. ·ii ··-J I.
I fl ! I § ljH i I i /li! ! l'.'11! 'j} ii !! I ! ! hH I! i ! ! iiP I 43:f
r 1 l i l I I i I I i I I t I ! Hi I ! I!! 1!
i I!§ i • lf'l i f i t ! j . ! f !. if I { I · I

I ' I I [ I I l I!

I I I UH I ! I HP m1 l!ft
l I I '1'f f lrjI ! I fiif I I , I
f

l r f ! i! 'iI iI i Il

4 4 I I ~; a Ii !! i ! ;r ! ·- ,j t;t;t: ·I;;
.. rm! I r H !EEE EEE El!

1 B ~ HH HH !H ml IIH mI .. I !HI HH ml H i!H m rn' J: HH! H HH I!!l HH HH I
iii

Ih • !!lq HH ! II II!
jf IH IllI Hil : !If mt I I Hi Hlm H!

Ill min.:,
Ill
Iii

I! , i ! , I }] +««j ! I i ! ,., q i ! 11 ii

,, 0, om-,g HHELLER&
~J:>, )> >< (/)

93%%2.E2.±= en :::0 "lJ C::, '<6 ~
:::0 z

-< m)> P.O.Box 1359(1)
LakeGeneva,Wisconsin53147-1359ul )> (/) s;: ph262.639.9733r (/) (/) - david@wdavidheller.comIll::, I v.ww.wdavidhellei.com

(1)

~
U ~ (J) z 0 r I ~~~~ g0 0

~ ~ () 0 m )> ' ~~~~ iii

r z I -l ~
z H Ld

C I 0 Jl s_c"'.

! m m
1
1! l'1H~ 6 0 (J) r (J) ,I .: ~ _r;

C Qo _(J) () 't i,.i
N )> +j {Ar ii i ,

~ ~
m ""'O

~ ~ (J) m I



1,0
r Ii i

Ii
'
· I

JI
!H
l•I
i

ii Im II
ii 1 11 II
! I !i ·
: !I I
; !i

°' □) D • [D i

£ r! '- : o5 PROJECT LOCATION: PROJECT:m· 1,.. <•s '#' 0 "1J z if i ~0 ~ oi ~IBlDMONDC :'I" . ' FRANKLIN, WI,, z "' lit q TSUNAMI CAR WASH
ES100 "' £ 0 yr"',, o¢1N"l•ll.,,._.l><"f.11•«'.....,._..""'UUoli,nl•~-



ADD
TRAFFIC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, INC.

P.O. Box 128
Cedarburg, WI 53012

800.605.3091
www.tadi-us.com

Tsunami Car Wash
Development

Traffic Impact Analysis

City of Franklin
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

September 24, 2024

*



TRAFFICANALYSIS & DESIGN, INC.

PROVIDING TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS
Date: September 24, 2024

Prepared for: Miranda R. Seals
The Redmond Company

Prepared by:

Subject:

Don Lee, P.E.
John A. Bieberitz, P.E., PTOE
Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.

Tsunami Express Carwash Development
City of Franklin, WI
Traffic Impact Analysis

INTRODUCTION
A carwash development is proposed to be constructed on the southeast corner of the South
Lovers Lane Road (STH 100) intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. Access to the site is proposed via a single access
driveway along South Whitnall Edge Road. A map showing the development site and proposed
access location is shown on Exhibit 1. The conceptual development site plan is shown on Exhibit
2.

This traffic impact analysis (TIA) was prepared to document the peak hour traffic impacts
expected at the study intersections along South Whitnall Edge Road with existing traffic volumes
and with full buildout of the proposed carwash development.

STUDY AREA
Study Intersections
The study intersections, also shown on Exhibit 1, include the following:

• South Lovers Lane Road/STH 100 & South Whitnall Edge Road (two-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Boucher VW Driveway (one-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Proposed Driveway (one-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Retail Center Driveway (one-way stop control)

The existing geometrics, traffic control, posted speed limits, and distances between study
intersections are shown on Exhibit 3.

Phone: 800.605.3091 P.O. Box 128
Cedarburg, WI 53012

www.tadi-us.com



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, IN

Study Area Roadways
South Lovers Lane Road (STH 100) is classified as a Principal Arterial that generally runs
north/south and has a six-lane divided cross-section. The posted speed limit on South Lovers
Lane Road is 40 miles per hour (mph) within the limits of the study area. The Year 2021
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT)
volumes along STH 100 were 26,000 vehicles per day (vpd) immediately north of College
Avenue and 20,900-vpd to the south of South Whitnall Edge Road.

South Whitnall Edge Road is classified as a local collector street that generally runs east/west
within the limits of the development site. South Whitnall Edge Road has a two-lane undivided
cross-section and a posted speed limit of 25-mph. There are no WisDOT AADT volumes
currently available along South Whitnall Edge Road; however, daily traffic volumes of 1,000
vpd were interpolated from three hours of weekday evening (3:00-6:00pm) peak period counts
conducted as part of this study. The roadway is signed for no parking within the limits of the
study area intersections.

EXISTING & FUTURE TRAFFIC VOLUMES
Existing Traffic Volumes
The weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours are expected to drive the improvements
needed to adequately accommodate the proposed development site, as they represent the highest
trip generation for the site and the highest volumes along the adjacent transportation system.
TADI conducted weekday evening (3:00 - 6:00pm) and Saturday midday (11 :00am- 2:00pm)
peak hour turning movement traffic counts at the South Whitnall Edge Road intersection with the
South Lovers Lane Road intersection and with the other two aforementioned existing driveways
along South Whitnall Edge Road during a typical weekday and a typical Saturday in mid
September of 2024.

Based on the turning movement counts, the weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours
were identified as being from 4:00 to 5:00pm and 11:15am to 12:15pm, respectively. The
existing turning movement volumes were compiled for these peak hours and are shown on
Exhibit 4A. The turning movement traffic count data for each intersection is also included in
Appendix A.

Because data collection occurred while construction was occurring along South Lovers Lane
Road and to account for typical preconstruction conditions at the study area intersections, the
through volumes on the north and south approaches of the South Whitnall Edge Road
intersection with South Lovers Lane Road were compared to the year 2021 hourly AADT
through volumes along South Lovers Lane Road, as collected by WisDOT in April' of2021 as
part of their regular three-year cycle data collection. Based on this comparison, the weekday
evening peak hour volumes collected as part of this study averaged about 11-percent lower than
the volumes collected by WisDOT in April of 2021. Therefore, the northbound and southbound
through volumes at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road,
collected as part of this study, were adjusted up to account for these calculated variations. The
existing (factored) traffic volumes are shown in Exhibit 4B.

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 2



TRAFFIC AMY5IS & DESI6M,IN

Development Site Traffic Volumes
The site is currently a vacant outlot adjacent to a retail strip center that is located immediately
southeast of the site. Additional commercial land uses are located immediately to the north and
south along both sides of South Lovers Lane Road. Residential land uses (single family homes
and apartments) are located further to the east along South Whitnall Edge Road.

The proposed development includes a single automatic car wash stall/drive aisle. The expected
new trips generated for this land use for the two peak periods were determined based on data
from other similar existing facilities noting that these volumes are higher than those calculated
per the ITE trip generation rates (comparison table provided in the appendix). The proposed
development site is expected to include pass-by trips. Pass-by trips occur when motorists already
on the roadway system stop at a development site prior to continuing on their intended route
(e.g., an existing motorist northbound on South Lovers Lane Road stops at the site prior to
continuing northbound on South Lovers Lane Road). Per WisDOT and Institute of
Transportation Engineer (ITE) reconunended practice, approximately 25-percent of the expected
new trips were included in the pass-by trip reduction calculations.

As shown in Exhibit 5, after pass-by trip reductions, the full buildout, assuming a typical car
wash day, is expected to generate 80 new site trips in the PM peak hour, and 80 new site trips in
the SAT peak hour.

The new trips for the proposed development were distributed to the study intersections based on
existing daily and peak hour traffic patterns. The trip distributions are listed below and shown on
Exhibit 5.

• 50% to/from the north on Lovers Lane Road
• 45% to/from the south on Lovers Lane Road
• 5% to/from the east on Whitnall Edge Road

Full Build Traffic Volumes
The peak hour new trips expected to be generated by the full buildout of the proposed
development were assigned to the study area roadways based on the above trip distribution and are
summarized below.

• On-site Development New Trips - Exhibit 6A
• On-site Development Pass-By Trips - Exhibit 6B
• On-site Development Driveway Trips (New Trips+ Pass-By Trips)- Exhibit 6C

The on-site development driveway trips were determined by adding the on-site development new
trips to the on-site development pass-by trips. The Full Build traffic, which adds the proposed
development driveway trips (Exhibit 6C) to the existing (factored) traffic volumes (Exhibit 4B),
is shown on Exhibit 7.

PEAK HOUR TRAFFIC OPERATIONS & QUEUES
LOS Definition/Description
Intersection operation is defined by "level of service." Level of Service (LOS) is a quantitative
measure that refers to the overall quality of flow at an intersection ranging from very good,
represented by LOS 'A,' to very poor, represented by LOS 'F.' For the purposes of this study,

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 3



T R A F F I C A A Y S I S & D E S I G N , I N

LOS Dor better was used to define acceptable peak hour operating conditions. The LOS
descriptions for signalized and unsignalized intersections are in Table 1.

Table 1. LOS Descriptions
Signalized Intersections Unsignalized Intersections
Control Delay/Vehicle Avg. Control Delay Relative

LOS (sec/veh) (sec/veh) Delay
<10 <10

A Free-flow traffic operations at avearge travel speeds. Vehicles completely
unimpeded in ability to maneuver. Minimal delay at signalized intersections

> 10-20 > 10- 15
ShortB Reasonably unimpeded traffic operations at average travel speeds. Vehicle

maneuverability slightly restricted. Low traffic delays.
Delays

> 20- 35 > 15-25
C Stable traffic operations. Lane changes becoming more restricted. Travel

speeds reduced to half of average free flow travel speeds. Longer
> 35-55 > 25-35

D Small increases in traffic flow can cause increased delays. Delays likely
attributable to increased traffic, reduced signal progression, and adverse Moderate

> 55- 80 > 35-50 Delays
E Significant delays. Travel speeds reduced to one-third of average free flow

travel speed.
> 80 > 50

F Extremely low speeds. Intersection congestion. Long delays. Extensive
Long

traffic queues at intersections.
Delays

Source: Highway Capacity Manual, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C., 2010

Peak Hour Traffic Operations
The study intersections were analyzed using the Synchro 11 traffic analysis model (outputs based
on the Highway Capacity Manual, 6" Edition) and the peak hour turning movement volumes
estimated for each intersection. The Existing traffic LOS, delays, and queues for each movement
are shown below in Table 2. As shown, all intersections are currently operating acceptably at
LOS D or better during the typical weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours under
existing conditions except the eastbound movements and westbound through/left-turn
movements at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road which
are currently operating at LOS E/F during the typical weekday evening peak hour. The
corresponding Synchro analysis files are in Appendix B.

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 4



IRAfflC ANAlYIIS & D[IIGN, Ill(.

Table 2. Existing Traffic Peak Hour Operations
Level of Service (LOS) per Movement by Approach

Peak Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Intersection Hour Metric )I ➔ y u ~ r r; % I )I ~ v I I{

Lanes-> 1 1 1 1 3 1 3
Node 100: Lovers Lane Road & LOS E F C C . D .
Whitnall Edge Road Delay 48.5 57.3 18.2 15.4 . 31.9 .
Two-Way Stop Control

PM
vie 0.11 0.07 - - - - -

Queue 25' 25' 35' 25' . 95' .
LOS D D C B . C .

SAT Delay 27 1 26.0 15.1 12.6 . 15.6 .
Queue 25' 25' 30' 25' . 25' .
Lanes-> 1 - - 1 - 1

Node 200: Whitnall Edge Road & LOS A - - . - B
Boucher VW Driveway PM Delay 7.5 - - . - 10.0
One-Way Stop Control Queue 25' - - . - 25'

LOS A - - . - A
SAT Delay 7.6 - - . - 9.3

Queue 25' - - . - 25'
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 400: Whitnall Edge Road & LOS - . A - B -
Retail Space Driveway PM Delay - . 77 - 10.1 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - . 25' - 25' -

LOS - . A - A -
SAT Delay - . 7.5 - 9.4 -

Queue - . 25' - 25' -
(-) indicates a movement that is prohibited or does not exist; (*) indicates a freeflow movement.
Delay is reported in seconds. Queue is the maximum of the 50th & 95th percentile queue, measured in feet.

The Full Build traffic LOS, delays, and queues for each movement are shown below in Table 3.
The corresponding Synch.ro analysis files are in Appendix C. As shown, all movements are
expected to continue to operate acceptably at LOS D or better during the typical weekday
evening and Saturday midday peak hours under Full Build traffic conditions except the
eastbound movements and westbound through/left-turn movements and the southbound left-turn
movement at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road which are
expected to operate at LOS E/F during the typical weekday evening peak hour. It is noted that
there are traffic signals located less than ¼-mile to the north and south of the South Whitnall
Edge Road intersection which are likely creating gaps in the traffic stream that allow this
intersection to operate better than reported by the modeling software. As shown in Table 3, the
volume to capacity ratios (.016, 0.67 and 0. 72) show that there is excess capacity for each of
these respective movements. In addition, the volumes for the eastbound and westbound
movements are all expected to be less than 50 and the queue lengths are expected to be 3
vehicles or less during the weekday evening peak hour under full build conditions. With
reasonable capacity ratios, lower volumes and queuing reported by the model and traffic signals
located to the north and south creating gaps in the South Lovers Lane Road traffic stream, this
intersection is expected to operate better than reported by the modeling software. If delays are
higher than expected, regular users of this intersection could divert to adjacent signalized
intersections to access South Lovers Lane Road, or turn right onto Lovers Lane Road at Whitnall
Edge Road and make a U-turn at the College Avenue signalized intersection. If all left-turn
movements decided to do this, that is if no left-turn movements were allowed from Whitnall

Tsunami Express CarWash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 5



TADD
TRAFFIC AMY5IS DESIGN, IN

Edge Road and all of these vehicles turned right to head upstream before completing a U-turn
movement at the adjacent intersection, the east and west approaches are expected to operate
acceptably at LOS C or better during both peak periods analyzed.

Table 3. Full Build Traffic Peak Hour Operation
Level of Service (LOS) per Movement by Approach

Peak Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Intersection Hour Metric 7 ➔ ~ u € r r p I 7 y , I It

Lanes-> 1 1 1 1 3 1 3
Node 100: Lovers Lane Road & LOS F F C C * E *
Whitnall Edge Road Delay 69.4 157 1 19.9 15.2 * 41.0 *
Two-Way Stop Control

PM vie 0.16 0.67 0.72- - - -
Queue 25' 70' 45' 25' * 130' 4

LOS D D C B 4 C 4

SAT Delay 30.8 34.8 16.2 12.5 4 17.0 4

Queue 25' 30' 35' 25' 4 35' 4

Lanes-> 1 - - 1 - 1
Node 200: Whitnall Edge Road & LOS A - - # - B
BoucherVW Driveway PM Delay 7.6 - - * - 10.8
One-Way Stop Control Queue 25' - - * - 25'

LOS A - - * - A
SAT Delay 77 - - 4 - 9.7

Queue 25' - - # - 25'
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 300: Whitnall Edge Road & LOS - 4 A - B -
Proposed Driveway PM Delay - * 7.8 - 11.5 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - * 25' - 25' -

LOS - * A - B -
SAT Delay - * 7.6 - 10.8 -

Queue - 4 25' - 25' -
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 400: Whitnall Edge Road & LOS - * A - B -

Retail Space Driveway PM Delay - 4 77 - 10.1 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - * 25' - 25' -

LOS - * A - A -
SAT Delay - * 7.5 - 9.3 -

Queue - $ 25' - 25' -
(-) indicates a movement that is prohibited or does not exist; (*) indicates a freeflow movement.
Delay is reported in seconds. Queue is the maximum of the 50th & 95th percentile queue, measured in feet.

Internal Site Queueing Analysis
To estimate the amount of internal storage required to accommodate the proposed Car Wash
facility, a queue analysis was completed for this study. As shown in Exhibit 2, with the internal
storage lanes as planned, approximately 24 vehicles can be stored at any specific time
while waiting to enter the car wash without backing up onto South Whitnall Edge Road.

Based on the trip generation estimates calculated as part of this study, about 55 vehicles
are expected during a typical weekday evening or Saturday midday peak hour.

Based on past studies completed, similar car washes are expected to have an operating
capacity of 3 to 4 vehicles/minute being washed. This equates to accommodating 180 to
240 vehicles per hour. Even if the capacity were as low as only 1 vehicles/minute, this
would equate to about 60 vehicles per hour.

Tsunami Express CarWash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 6



TADD
TRAFFIC ANY'SISD(SIGN, IN

For backups to occur, all vehicles would need to arrive within a short (15 to 30 minute)
period; however, the anticipated 55 vehicles are expected over the entire peak hour (60
minutes). Based on this analysis, the design is expected to accommodate higher than peak
condition of queueing, which provides additional insurance of accommodating a peak
weekend queue scenario on the site.

RECOMMENDED MODIFICATIONS

Peak Hour Traffic Operations and Queues - With Modifications
Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, the following modifications, as shown on
Exhibit 8, are recommended to accommodate the Full Build (with development) traffic volumes.

Node I 00: South Lovers Lane Road & Aldi Driveway
• No modifications are recommended.

Node 200. South Whitnall Edge Road & Boucher VW Driveway
• No modifications are recommended.

Node 300: South Whitnall Edge Road & Proposed Driveway
• Provide a new full access driveway onto South Whitnall Edge Road as shown on the

site plan.

Node 400: South Whitnall Edge Road & Retail Center Driveway
• No modifications are recommended.

CONCLUSIONS
Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, higher delays are currently occurring and
are expected to continue to occur for some movements at the South Lovers Lane Road
intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road. However, with reasonable capacity ratios and
traffic signals located to the north and south creating gaps in the South Lovers Lane Road traffic
stream, this intersection is expected to operate better than reported by the modeling software. If
delays are higher than expected, regular users of this intersection may divert to adjacent
signalized intersections to access South Lovers Lane Road, or turn right onto Lovers Lane Road
at Whitnall Edge Road and make a U-turn at the College Avenue signalized intersection. If all
left-turn movements decided to do this, that is if no left-turn movements were allowed from
Whitnall Edge Road and all of these vehicles turned right to head upstream before completing a
U-turn movement at the adjacent intersection, the east and west approaches are expected to
operate acceptably at LOS C or better during both peak periods analyzed. In addition, minimal
additional delay and vehicle queues are expected at the existing and proposed driveways along
South Whitnall Edge Road. Therefore, with the recommended modifications as shown on Exhibit
8, all intersections are expected to operate safely under full build conditions.

Appendices

Appendix A- Traffic (Counts, Historic Hourly AADT Comparison, Trip Gen Comparison)
Appendix B- Existing Traffic Peak Hour Analysis Outputs
Appendix C- Full Build Traffic Peak Hour Analysis

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 7



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A resolution imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use for an auto

supply store use upon property located at 7251 S
27 Street.

MEETING
DATE

06/03/2025

ITEM NUMBER.13.
At its May 22, 2025 meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval of a
resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use for
an auto supply store use upon property located at 7251 S 27 Street.

The vote was 4-0-3, four "ayes", no "noes" and three absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Resolution No. 2025-, imposing conditions and
restrictions for the approval of a Special Use for an auto supply store use upon
property located at 7251 27 Street.

Planning LH/RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR AN AUTO SUPPLY STORE USE UPON

PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 7251 S 27"H STREET,

(O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC., APPLICANT & PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., having petitioned the City of Franklin for
the approval of a Special Use within the B-4 South 27" Street Mixed Use District under Standard
Industrial Classification Title No. 5531 "Auto & Home Supply Store", to operate an auto supply
store with proposed hours of operation Monday through Sunday, from 7:30 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.,
located at 7251 S. 27 Street, bearing Tax Key No. 761-9956-001, more particularly described as
follows:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION
TWELVE (12), TOWNSHIP FIVE (5) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY
ONE (21) EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED BY METES AND
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH O 1
DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST, ASSUMED BEARING,
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER, A
DISTANCE OF 994.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 01
MINUTE 13 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 330.07 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PARCEL TO BE DESCRIBED;
THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 136.99 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF WEST MINNESOTA AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 89
DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID
NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 201.49 FEET
TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STH 241 AS SHOWN
ON TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT 2265-16-20-4.06,
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 10227659; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 20.01 FEET TO
POINT PRW621 AS SHOWN ON SAID TRANSPORTATION
PROJECT PLAT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13
SECONDS EAST, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT
OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 36.50 FEET TO POINT PRW622 AS
SHOWN ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY PLAT; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, CONTINUING ALONG
SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 116.97



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC.- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTIONNO. 2025-
Page 2

FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH A LINE
BEARING NORTH 89 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS EAST
FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89
DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 237.99
FEET TO SAID POINT OF BEGINNING AND THERE
TERMINATING.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City
of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of $15-9.0103D. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on
the 22nd day of May, 2025, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to
recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the
Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant
to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of
the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an
undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the development of
neighboring property; that it will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services;
that it will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of
significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., for the
approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by
O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., successors and assigns, as an auto supply store, which
shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and maintained by
O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., pursuant to the application materials City file-stamped
April 11, 2025 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred
by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the O'Reilly
Automotive Stores Inc. auto supply stores, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to $15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties
and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon O'Reilly Automotive Stores
Inc. and the auto supply store use for the property located at 7251 S 27th Street: (i) being



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-
Page 3

in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the
like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

4. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the Municipal
Code and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development Department prior to
installation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc.,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of
the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to
cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of
this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other
maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from
time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of the
City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such Special
Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified Development
Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special
Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 3""
day of June, 2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 3" day of June, 2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTIONNO. 2025-
Page 4

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYESNOESABSENT__



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of May 22, 2025

Special Use and Site Plan

Item C.3.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval ofthe Special Use and
approval of the Site Plan, subject to the conditions ofapproval in attached draft Resolutions

Project Name:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Agent:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Action Requested:

O'Reilly Auto Parts Special Use and Site Plan

7251 South 27 Street/ 761 9956 001

O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc.

O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc.

Craig A. Schneider, Esterly and Schneider Associates

B-4 South 27 street Mixed Use District

Mixed Use

Recommendation ofapproval ofthe Special Use and
approval ofthe Site Plan

Project Description and Analysis

• Staff recommendations are underlined. in italics and included in the draft
resolution(s).

• Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution(s).

The applicant, O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., filed an application for a Special Use and Site
Plan to develop the property located at 7251 S. 27th Street. O'Reilly's is proposing a 7,228
square foot building. The property is zoned B-4 South 27 Street Mixed Use District. The
subject property is approximately .72-acres (37,847 square feet). O'Reilly applied for and
received site plan and special use approval back in 2017, but construction never started, so the
special use and site plan approvals lapsed.

Special Use
O'Reilly Auto Parts is an automotive supply parts store and classified as SIC Code No. 5531
Auto and Home Supply Stores. Auto Stores are classified as a Special Use in the B-4 district.

Site Plan
The proposed O'Reilly Auto Parts store is 7,228 square feet. The total amount of impervious
surface proposed onsite is 13,882 square feet, leaving 15,921 square feet ofgreenspace or
approximately 42% (a minimum of30% is required by the B-4 zoning district standards).

The site plan includes two drives adjacent to W. Minnesota Avenue. The opening nearest S.
27" Street is 24 feet wide and the westernmost opening is 34-feet wide. Section 15
5.0207B. ofthe UDO limits width to 24' and 30 at roadway; however, it also states that
the Plan Commission may approve openings for vehicular ingress and egress greater than



30-feet. The applicant has provided a Truck Tum diagram showing the necessity for a 34
foot wide driveway.

Parking
Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requires five parking spaces per
1,000 square feet of Gross Floor Area. The building is 7,228 square feet; with 4200 square feet
as the sales area, and 3,028 square feet as warehousing for parts not accessible by the customer.
This means that there are 24 spaces are required and the applicant is providing 25, complying
with the standard.

During review, it was found that the southern drive parallel to Minnesota Avenue does not
meet the minimum 45-foot width for 90 degree angle spaces in a single row, as required in
Table 15-5.0204 of the UDO. The width is measured at 42 feet. Staffrecommends that the
applcant receive a varance tor the reduced drive witdth. The applicant has submitted a
variance application and is currently under review by City Development Staff.

The applicant has indicated that two or 3 Nissan Frontier or Ford Ranger pickup trucks will be
parked overnight onsite. Note that Special Use approval is required for parking any vehicle over
8,000 pounds manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) overnight. The GVW's of Nissan
Frontiers and Ford Rangers are under 6,000 lbs; therefore, the parking of these vehicles does not
have to be specifically included as part of this Special Use approval.

One ADA accessible parking space is provided in front of the building, which complies with
ADA standards and Table 15-5.0202(1)(1) of the UDO.

Landscaping
Table 15-5.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requires a minimum of one
canopy/shade tree, one evergreen tree, one decorative tree and one shrub for every five provided
parking spaces. However, the subject property is adjacent to a single-family residence; therefore,
the minimum quantity of plantings is increased by 20% per Section 15-5.0302C. of the UDO.

Given that the applicant is providing 25 parking spaces, 6 plantings of each type are required,
which includes the 20% increase in quantity. The Landscape Plan includes 8 canopy/shade trees,
71 evergreen trees, 7 decorative trees, and 226 shrubs.

Lighting
Table 15-5.0401(C) of the UDO allows for a maximum of 4 footcandles when measured at the
property line. The maximum lighting at any point on the property lines will be 3.2 footcandles
along the northern property line. The western property line which abuts a residential district will
have a 6 foot high wood privacy fence to help with diffusion of light.

South 27h Street Design Overlay District - Reguested Waivers
Per Section 15-3.035\A.5. of the Unified Development Ordinance (below), the Plan Commission
may approve waivers to certain design standards.

2



Authorize the Plan Commission to waive any of the South 27th Street Design Overlay
District Standards by 5 votes of all the members of the Plan Commission provided that
supplemental design elements or improvements are incorporated into the project (over
and above those which are otherwise required) which compensate for the waiver of the
particular standard, or, in the case of parking provisions, where it can be demonstrated
that the required parking is excessive or where specified areas are provided for the future
provision of additional parking if necessary. In support of the waiver request, the
applicant shall detail such supplemental design elements in written and graphical form,
and provide an explanation as to the nature of the standards for which the waiver is
requested.

The applicant is requesting ten waivers.

1. 15-3.0352A. Parking required and Location Regulated.

The Site Plan contains more than 50% of off-street parking spaces between the building and
$. 27% Street.

The applicant notes that: "Due to the configuration of the lot and to allow adequate access
across the site we request that this requirement be waived. Please refer to Sheet C2 .1, we are
requesting a waiver to increase the number of off-street parking spaces located between the front
entrance and the public street to be 64%. This allows for the most optimal use of the property and
allows the currently in place cross access easement to be utilized See the attached October 5,
2017 Planning Commission Minutes showing this waiver request was previously approved."

2. 15-3.0353C.4. Landscape and Site Design General Standard.

Sidewalks shall be provided along the entire length of any facade containing a public
entrance, leaving room for foundation planting beds

The applicant notes that: "Due to the tight nature of the site, there is not a reasonable amount
of space to provide foundation planting beds along the front entrance. We instead propose to
provide planter boxes as shown on sheets C2.1 and L 1.1. See the attached October 5, 2017
Planning Commission Minutes showing this waiver request was previously approved."

3. 15-3.0353F.1. Landscape and Site Design General Standard.

Extensive building foundation landscaping for all building frontages facing public streets,
parking lots, or residential districts to provide visual breaks in the mass of the building.
Building foundation landscaping shall be placed so that, at maturity, the plant's drip line is
within 10 feet of the foundation.

The applicant states that "Due to the tight nature of the site, there is not a reasonable amount
of space to provide foundation planting beds along the front entrance. We instead propose to
provide planter boxes as shown on sheets C2.l and Ll.1. See the attached October 5, 2017
Planning Commission Minutes showing this waiver request was previously approved."

3



4. 15-3.055B.7.a Windows.

Windows which allow views to the interior activity or display area are expected. Windows
shall include sills at the bottom and pediments at the top. Glass curtain walls, reflective glass,
and painted or darkly tinted glass shall not be used.

The applicant states that "We are requesting the use of the storefront windows on the east
side of the building as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning Commission
Meeting. Please see the attached meeting minutes."

5. 15-3.0355.7.b.iv Ground Floor Window Standards.

Darkly tinted windows and mirrored windows that block two-way visibility are prohibited as
ground floor windows along street facades.

The applicant states that "Due to the nature of the use windows looking into the building
along the south elevation would have views into interior stockroom areas, instead of into
showroom (retail) area. We are requesting the use of a faux window as approved at the
October 5, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. Please see the attached meeting minutes."

6. 15-3.0355.7.b.v Ground Floor Window Standards.

The primary facade of each building, or for corner buildings each of the two facades, must
contain at leaset 20% of the ground floor wall area in display areas, windows, or doorways.
Blank walls are prohibited.

The applicant states that "We are requesting a waiver to reduce the requirement for glazing
percentage along the south elevation as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning
Commission Meeting. Please see the attached meeting minutes."

7. 15-3.0355.7.b.vi Ground Floor Window Standards.

Ground floor windows are also required on facades facing any public parking lot. The
minimum requirement is 16 square feet per story or 6% of the facade, whichever is greater.

The applicant states "We are requesting the use of a faux window that meets these
requirements for the south elevation as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning
Commission Meeting. Please see the attached minutes".

8. 15-3.0355B.8.d. Pedestrian Accessibility.

Buildings located at the intersection of two streets shall utilize a comer entrance to the
building unless this requirement is waived by the Plan Commission.

The applicant states that "Due to the limited size of and the existing cross access easement,
see attached recorded easement documentation, we request that this requirement be waived

4



as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting. Please see the
attached meeting minutes".

9. 15-5.0354C.1. Landscaping Requirements for Off-Street Parking Areas.

A minimum of 20 square feet of interior landscaped island shall be provided per parking
stall.

The applicant states "Due to the configuration of the lot, we request that this requirement be
waived in order to allow for adequate parking. Additional landscaping beyond the minimum
requirements is proposed as compensation for the lack of compliance with this requirement".

10. 15-5.0354C.2. Landscaping Requirements for Off-Street Parking Areas.

The interior landscaping shall be provided within landscaped islands a minimum of 250
square feet in area.

The applicant states "Due to the configuration of the lot, we request that this requirement be
waived in order to allow for adequate parking. Additional landscaping beyond the minimum
requirements is proposed as compensation for the lack of compliance with this requirement".

Staffrecommends that the applicant request and obtan these wavers as a condton ofapproval
ofthe ste plan

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Special Use for
O'Reilly Auto Parts and approve the Site Plan with the requested waivers, contingent upon
approval of the Special Use, and subject to the conditions in the attached draft resolution.

5



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2025

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft [05-05-25]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR AN AUTO SUPPLY STORE USE

UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 7251 S 27STREET,

(O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC., APPLICANT & PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., having petitioned the City of Franklin
for the approval of a Special Use within the B-4 South 27 Street Mixed Use District under
Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 5531 "Auto & Home Supply Store", to operate
an auto supply store with proposed hours of operation Monday through Sunday, from 7:30
a.m. to 9:00 p.m., located at 7251 S. 27 Street, bearing Tax Key No. 761-9956-001, more
particularly described as follows:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION TWELVE
(12), TOWNSHIP FIVE (5) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-ONE (21) EAST,
IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN,
DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER;
THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST,
ASSUMED BEARING, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST
QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 994.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89
DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 330.07
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PARCEL TO BE
DESCRIBED; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 136.99 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF WEST MINNESOTA AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 89
DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 201.49 FEET TO THE
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STH 241 AS SHOWN ON
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT 2265-16-20-4.06, RECORDED AS
DOCUMENT NO. 10227659; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREE 26 MINUTES
19 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE,
A DISTANCE OF 20.01 FEET TO POINT PRW621 AS SHOWN ON SAID
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 01
MINUTE 13 SECONDS EAST, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 36.50 FEET TO POINT PRW622
AS SHOWN ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY PLAT; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 26 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, CONTINUING ALONG
SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 116.97
FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH A LINE



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-
Page 2

BEARINGNORTH 89 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 13 SECONDS EAST FROM
SAID POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 01
MINUTE 13 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 237.99 FEET TO SAID
POINT OF BEGINNING AND THERE TERMINATING.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of§ 15-9.01030. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 22nd day of May, 2025, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., for the
approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

l. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by O'Reilly
Automotive Stores Inc., successors and assigns, as an auto supply store, which shall
be developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and maintained by BFS
LLC, pursuant to the application materials City file-stamped April 11, 2025 and
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc. auto supply stores, within 30 days of invoice for
same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc.
and the auto supply store use for the property located at 7251 S 27th Street: (i) being



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. -- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2025
Page 3

in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented
for this approval.

4. All signage shall comply with the requirements ofChapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development Department prior to
installation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc.,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any
of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day
notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon
notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to 15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
3'day of June, 2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 3" day of June, 2025.



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-
Page 4

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYESNOESABSENT



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

Draft [5-5-2025]
RESOLUTION NO. 2025

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR O'REILLY AUTO PARTS,
AN AUTO SUPPLY STORE

(7251 $ 27STREET)
(O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC., APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Phillip Hopper, Senior Vice President of Real Estate and Expansion of
O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., having applied for a site plan approval for an auto supply
store, consisting of a single-story 7,228-sf principal building for the sales area, parts
warehousing, restroom, and office, at 7251 S 27 Street; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed auto supply store Site
Plan and having found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance of those express
standards and purposes of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc. Site Plan as depicted upon and
being the plans dated April 11, 2025, attached hereto and incorporated herein, be and the same
is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

l. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance with
and operated and maintained pursuant to the Site Plan for O'Reilly Automotive Stores
Inc., plans dated April 11, 2025.

2. O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc., successors and assigns, and any developer of the auto
supply store project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees
of consults to the City of Franklin, for the O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc. project,
within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation
of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to 15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of
the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the O'Reilly Automotive Stores
Inc. project (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes,
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.



O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC. - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2025
Page 2

4. That the O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc. project shall be developed and constructed
pursuant to such Site Plan within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void,
without any further action by the City ofFranklin.

5. This Site Plan is conditioned upon the approval of a Special Use permit for auto supply
store use. This Resolution shall be null and void if such Special Use permit is not
approved.

6. This Site Plan is conditioned upon the approval of a Variance for the reduction of the
drive and single 90° aisle width from 45 feet to 42 feet. This Resolution shall be null
and void if such Variance is not approved.

7. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0352A. Parking Required and Location
Regulated (fifty (50) percent of the off-street parking spaces shall be located directly
between the front facade ofthe building and the public street) requirement(s) are hereby
waived as the Plan Commission concurs that the proposed site layout, with parking and
cross-access located on the east side of the property, is appropriate due to the size of
the subject property.

8. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0353C.4. Pedestrian Considerations
(sidewalks along the entire length offacade, leaving room for foundation planting beds)
Section 15-3.0353F.1. Landscaping (building foundation landscaping for building
frontage) requirement(s) are hereby waived.

9. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0353F.1. Landscaping (building
foundation landscaping for building frontage) requirement(s) are hereby waived.

10. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0355B.7.a. Windows (windows shall
include sills at the bottom and pediments at the top) is hereby waived.

11. Unified Development Ordinance Sections 15-3.0355.7.b.iv, v, and vi Ground Floor
Windows (Darkly tinted windows and mirrored windows that block two-way visibility
are prohibited as ground floor windows along street facades, comer building facades,
must contain at least 20% of the ground floor wall area in display areas, windows, or
doorways, and Ground floor windows are also required on facades facing any public
parking lot. The minimum requirement is 16 square feet per story or 6% of the facade,
whichever is greater) are hereby waived as the Plan Commission concurs that the
proposed building layout, it is not appropriate to require ground floor windows along
the southern facade.

12. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-3.0355B.8.d. Pedestrian Accessibility
(building shall utilize a corner entrance to the building) requirement(s) are hereby
waived, as Plan Commission concurs that the proposed building with cross access on



SAFARI HOMES LLC - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 3

the east side of the property and a front facing entry is appropriate due to the business
use and site constraints.

13. Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-5.0354C.l and 2 are hereby waived as Plan
Commission concurs that the extra landscaping area is adequate compensation for not
meeting these requirements.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the O'Reilly Automotive Stores Inc. building
permit shall be issued for such Site Plan within one year from the date of adoption of this
Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and
void, without any further action by the City ofFranklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
_th day of

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Plan Commission ofthe City ofFranklin
this th day of•

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Chairman

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES_-NOES-ABSENT_-



s....
<Vz
<V
5
>t-
<V
0...
0s....a..
C
x
C
ros....

LL

u

Ex-
sto
0

......
()

·c......
U) 5

0.. .9
N C
t ro
0 E (1)0 ......

()(") (1) ......
"'O roLf)
<t: (LN

i D



"'C:
0
C.=

'O
%
"'.Q
"'...
"'<2
;;,.
0
.Q

"''O±
"'"'·--=

V)
C:

"" 0= N0-

c.. u
E f:::
"' C""' 0
"' -0.p. Q.)r (/)

c
co

,--. ,--. ,--. ,--.-.._, .._, .._, .._,
'; - - ';- '; - -M r ,., M
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
V) V) V) V)

Q.) 2 Q.) Q.)

::0 .o ::0 ::0ro ro ro ro
E- E- E- E-
V) V) V) V)- - - -0 0 0 0
N 01 01 N
u u u u
l.L.. ±. ±- f::i-
tii tii tii tii
bO bO bO bO

-0 -0
2 2

0 .§ E0 0
00 ...J -5 V)- ...., ....,

0 0z z

= tii tii tii
Oil bO bO Oil

r, V) 00 c--
V) <"'! V)

c--
0 - N "SI"-
...J ...J ...J ...J

- ->- VJ 5 3X 50

t-:
"SI"
0
V)

<.)
Q.)

VJ
V)

0
N
u
f::l

(/) (/) (/):e :e :e

'O V)

r <"'! o
0 c--"SI" M-
<( <(

-0
Q.)
C
o
E
0u
M

o;8
01 , N
...J ...J ...Jg; g; g;
L w w
...J ...J ...J

,--. ,--.
N.._, .._,

'; ';- -, r
0 0 co0 0
V) V) 0
Q.) Q.)
,

z ::0 <(
ro Cl.,

E- E- ~V) V)- -0 0
N N
u u
f::i ±-

tii tii (/)

co bO :e

-0

0
9

0 0 E0L 0 5t V)- 0z

tii tii (/)

bO bO :e

0\ V)V) M <"'!c-- 0 V)V) M 0\0\ M r01

...J ...J <(

-
co

~
...J

:::i g;-...J 0 LUu u ...J

,--. ,--. ,--.
.._, .._, .._,

vi r ';z "' <') ,.,.., 0 0 0
C: 0 0 0"' V) V) V)...

el .;:: Q.) Q.) Q.)

"' o .o ::0::=: c ro ro

al "' E- E- E-'O
0 V) V) V)u - - -0 0 0
N N N
u u u
f::: f::i f:::

;;,..,
I.~ 3 tii tii tii = tiiE co co Oil bO bO

E
::s
rfJ. ?

•
.:!: q~ a. M 0 0...... .._, - .... 01 ,.,
0 "' (J) M

,.,
b - l()I., .ce,: - ....,,., 0.; t-- ~- tc 0·- - (J) .5I. = .... 32 4 l() ::;: tii = = tii tii...... >, C bO bO Oil co bO: = t-- e,:

~ -~ I.,

""',,., CZ:::
::s > i 0\ 000 0 0\ 0\ t--c--"'O V) 00 t "SI" 0\I. 'O 'O o:
N:r 5 ii·;;; ...J ...J ...J ...J ...J;;,.

£

(/)
(/)
(I)u
-0
Q.)
C

~ o
"' E
0 0
'O <( u... ::::l co u"' (I)
N ...J ...J a ::3 5"'.,.. u u LL. E-



UTO PARTS.
PROFESSIONAL PARTS PEOPLE

Sum of Total Gal / lbs
Hazard Class
Aerosollevel1
Aerosollevel1,Corrosive
Aerosollevel2
Aerosollevel3
Aerosollevel3, Corrosive
Combustibleli uidClassll
Combustibleli uidClasslllA
Combustibleli uidClassl I IA, Corrosive
Combustibleli uidClassl I IA, UnstableClassl
Combustibleli uidClassl I IA,WaterReactiveClassl
Combustibleli uidClasslllB
Combustibleli uidClasslllB,Corrosive
Combustibleli uidClasslllB,Or anicPeroxideClassl
Combustibleliq u idClassl 11 B, OrganicPeroxideC lassV
CombustibleliquidClasslllB,UnstableClassl
CombustibleliquidClasslllB,UnstableClassl,Corrosive
CombustibleliquidClasslllB,WaterReactiveClassl,Corrosive
Corrosive
FlammableGas
FlammableliquidClasslB
FlammableliquidClasslB,Corrosive
FlammableliquidC lass I B, UnstableClassl
FlammableliquidC lass I B, WaterReactiveC lass I, Corrosive
FlammableliquidClasslC
FlammableliquidClasslC,Corrosive
FlammableliquidClasslC,UnstableClassll
FlammableSolid
FlammableSolid, OxidizerClass1
NonFlammableGas
OxidizerClass1
OxidizerClass 1, Corrosive
WaterReactiveClassl
WaterReactiveC lass I I, Corrosive

Total Units
369.91 lbs

25.38 lbs
140.36 lbs

1167.25 lbs
4.00 lbs

51.00
66.34

1.58
0.03
0.06 al

2867.88 al
75.87 al

0.04 al
0.13 gal
0.04 gal
113 al

12.50 gal
154.73 gal

4.63 al
57 77 gal
716 al
0.05 gal
0.02 gal
4.54 al
0.25 gal
0.00 gal
0.40 gal
0.19 gal

51.27 al
0.34 al
0.00 gal
0.00 gal

47 70 al



O'Reilly Auto Parts Store {FKN) Franklin, WI Floor
Plan Legend

D Class I Hazard Class IV Hazard

Class II Hazard High Hazard

D Class Ill Hazard

CL: Combustible Liquids

FG: Flammable Gas

COR: Corrosives

OXY: Oxidizers

OPER: Organic Peroxides

FL: Flammable Liquids

WR: Water Reactants

A: Aerosols



fCI

"'; E TT
cc Flt :- I

E olu! zz[2
cc a.iJi ~ Ca.

'
0: ~S!S! 0a:

a.a. 0: 3
3'-1" r2'-6" 2'-6" ':E

00 I I

fcf I-z,.
tu

g

rn
S!S! >- ,.

0 "' I-a.a. 0 2 za, <!> ,.
A8 e
"' I-z[EEE] SEAL [Fen] ,.

ALT a:
I-

'f "e "' g:
"' I ALT I ALT I ALT I <fl

rn
a:

START START START 3:a.
U? 0:

"' I-
<fl-4 BULB IGN 0:

1' IGN IGN ~e
"' 3'-

'f BINDERS IGN IGN

"' IGN IGN IGN

rn
co_,
N

IGN IGN IGN
5'-1" IGN IGN IGNe

"'IGN IGN IGN
PLUG PLUG PLUGe e"'<( "'0 1-1

:'( 3'-8" f;1M

iv,

m
UJ

CLII CLIII CORA1 A2 A3 FLIB F

AUTO
LOAD

BA
R

CLIIIB CLIIIB COR

o

CLIIIAt

~

A2 A3 CLIIIB FLIBn I I I I I n IS

A3 FLIB t
1 .'..\L

OPERIV OXY3 A"3 FLIB

D I I I I D
t

Ur
"

FG D I 111 ,.

t

'Aler
D---+····-'+-1 II lcu1s

t
'f
t

12'-5"

•------~_-__-_-__-53'. J. II- 16'-6" ---
,------------------ 70'-1" ------------------1

WIRE DISPLAY

o r-

~ I
l{) :

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
'---

BELT BELT
WIN WIN I DDR DDR DDR DDR DOR
£g £9J MISC MISC MISC MISC MISC

"'r- :1 i~ r;1u 471 EE} 517 IE ,QI
8 '"' "'1 8 I tel?lI :,; I

"- t 0.: I lilt0 I r v eta Cl lo:o:>- '):i: 5I ~ gs "" "" 55 CJ7'-4" <fl :, ::,::, ::,::,

" ~ ~ £ 5% """ o:a:-•< 8 00 00 ffi g
~ ,-,,r ,: 3  g.,, "" '"" i5~ 0Ir %e ~~

::,::, ::,::,a:a: o:a:

E z 'i O<n 3' 00 00 ~ ffiWu
4'-6" 0: 3' 3 ' 4 '-6"

l:l., sw 4¥ :,:,; ,.,.. :;; u ::,::, ::,::,
0 p a:a: o:a:11B 2 Ou, 00 00 3l~ 0 '-6 ., '-6"

"<j" 0: 8° l:l., ,.,. ,.,. #w d u ::,::, ::,::, Ia. 0:0: o:a:§: 00 00 ,g 0:
0 u .:"'

---7 a: ~ > 0
01-W w o., :,;:,; 4I' #2E ~ ~I ::,::,

I § a:a: gl30 I +1g 00
,: ~

I x f- #Me___ J u en
0 w ,g ~_. f-

lQ
,:

"' ri;>>
"'

=

Building: 70 X 100 I Gross Sq Ft: 7000 I Display Floor Sq Ft: 3100 I Fix lure Type: IVORY LOZIER I SIR Ceiling HT: 11 '-6" I Group #: 5206

I Wall Unit : 25 SECTIONS I Fixture sku cnt:

[@6iiuro PARTS
Hard Parts 707 RN FT I Gondola 60 SECTIONS

# 6423 7251 S. 27TH ST
FRANKLIN, WI 53132

23500

l
I Date: 4/8/25 ~9~.rdner6



IJ

1J

jJJ JJ J j

:ll

j J

illr

li1l.!I.!I

J I J I J

B

I

ill
£

l1

ill
%

11 nn I n i 1 1

M M.
!,

,8Is
... .szz
N 0
Ou

e
'E
0u

"

E
0
0

"'

g * .- 0 0·: ~ t.. . ,
41 g e
z~..,,iice~:.i--1---+---~+-+-1---+-+-+---+-+-+-+----1--+--+----1-+-+---+--+-+---+--+--+--+-+----11--+-+---,
~ fz_z_ z z Cl)ZZZ z zz z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z
l 4]] _]3] 3]3]3]3] ±] ±3] 3] 3] #] ±] 3] 3] ] 3] ?l i ?l l l ?l # ?l l ?l #l ?
~~--l-=-l--"+----=-1-=+.-!C'l-.!::.!-!"-+!:!+---"'-l--~-"+-=------''-+-~l-----"'-l-------''-+-~l---"+-----"'+---"'4-"-+---"'-l--~-----'"-1-----"'-l--~-----''-+---""1---"'+-----"'+----"
o.;

"uC:
.!!!
C.
E
0
0
T!l
C:

"E
C:e-~
w

0

z~u.

-e
0
iii

1-zw
::!:
wsen
ii:
0
1-zw>z
en
...J<
ii:
w
!;i:
::!:
en::,
0a;

I

I

~,

1 I
'i
iIJ

I

~g
t

i

I

~
ti
!I:
t

'i
1j

I

Ii
i

I

~

i

Ii

I

~
g
#

iiJ'
i I i
HJn

II

"O>g
0.;



B1l;/j

w
w:;;

BBBsB

:,:
0
0

.
.. .!:

£
OU

c
0

""

E
0
0a:

g ~ -·: ~ t"' . ,
~ :::, 0

:E1----"~'-"~=+-----ll---+---+----l--4---1------l----+----1----1-----i--+---4----+--1---4----1--4---l-----1----4--+-----l----l--l---l--+----1----~
Z] g] z] z] z] z] ] z] z] :]z] z] z] z] ] z] z] ] z] z] z] ±] ±2]2] z[]]]] g
]=]i]i]ii]i]i]i]i]cs]ii]i]is]i]ii]i[i]i[i]i]itIls]]ii[]2]t
0.;

""C..
'a
E
0u

jI 1l 4IIIj jJ Ij j j jI Ij

.,,
g
C
0u

0

L-

1-z
w:;;
wz
ten
~
0
1-z
w>z
en
;;}_
ii:wz:;;
en
::::,
0
0
0::

~
:I:

..
.;.,,
·.;;
C

H} J i i
i j II J I ! I J i j i

i J i I] j



III Ij J

g 3 3 g €22g g s s
0 0 a:i

Al A' A

0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J JJJJHHJJJJj

i'l

j j

5
0

E
0
0a:

g s
] ±3
C/1 ia gi
.!: ~ e
~l--"~'-'~:.+----+-+---l-++-H-++-H--l--+-,f-+--l-++-H-++----'l--+-l---1---11--H-++-+--+-+-1----1---11---H-+-I--
~ ~ Z Z ZZZZZZZZZ Z ZZZ ZZZZZUl(I) Z Z C/1 (I)_ Z ZZZZ ~ ~ ~- Z Z Z ZZZ ~-~

??lii]3//]//]ilJJl4/lllllill22ill4iilill225;;;

.,
u
C:..

1'1i
E
0u
s
C:..
E
C:e·;;
C:w

0
N
M
M
"'

1-z
w
:;;
wz
1-
(J)

>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)

-.J.
1i::wz:;;
(J)
::::l
0
Cl
0::

~
:i::

'-e
0

lu,

z~u.

C:
0,,.,
;;
C:
Cl·.;;.,
C

2

1

niu
E -.....c: C: ..
U O Cl

L- 0 ~ ~
C OJ ,E
0 .c: "'/Is
.3 -~

..
Clg
0;;;
ni
;,;,,
·.;;
C:

I.;
C:
0
-":;:
.c:
,!:?
$

J i ilililililililili
J i i i j i j i i

i

i ill#l ilil4lililil£

i i i J I i i J i J
i
1

l l4//ill4ll 4l £l il1
i i 1 i J I J I I I i i

j J.
ili
I i

H.J. J
- - - ==· .:Ilt t ±It

iH H



I
°'±;;
±
<'l

I
I
£w
i
!
i
i
i
i

jj 1

N N •

5
0

N N O - - - - - - - - - -.
"

.,
"C:
.!!!
C.
E
0
(.)
.;
i:.,
E
C:e
£w

z:.:u.

C:
0
'C.,
ni
C:en·;;;.,
0

2

tzw
::;;
wsen
>a::
0
tzw>z
en
J<
&wz
::;;
en
:::)
0
0a::
4
::i:

,_.,
C:
0
.x
"".s::

,\c!
0,-.

lH j t
I

I

i
g
¥

i
J i l

I

~

i

i i
J i 1

I

~

i

i i
i j i i

I i i

I

i
j

i i i
I I I

i



zxu.

N
<")

<")....
3:
-~:;.

ele
.. IL
Q. .:-

0 "'2lI> N
0·; ..-"' ....oe

J J Il l J IjJjj j J j J j JJJjJJ jj

..e
I ; g] g] g] y] g] y] g] ] ] ] g] g] g] g] g] s] s] sl sl sl sl sl sl sl l
~1-=--=----=llc+--~-e-1----..:;e~-1--...;~+-~_:e+----.:;.~-1--...;~'+------'~;1--.:;.~ 1--.,;~+--'oc+· -~,;.i.....-~-1----'e~'+--~;1--"-_ 1---"_+--'_'+--~'=+---.,;.i...---=1--~=+----~+--...;~+---~~. -.:;.~1--~_

8 ~ ~., ,_.,
g ! "5
·: ~ f
V, (a gi
~ E e
]1-..::~,_.,f;=+--l--+----+--+---+-+---+---+-+-----!--+-+----+--+---l---+--+--l--+---+--l--+-+-----il---+~1 I ; ; ; ; ; ; 3y Z] Zy Zy Z] Z] Zy Zy ] z] zy zl z zl zi l zl zl zl
~' I--Z-+---"'"l----"N4. __,;:,'4.]s[s,s]illl]ls]i,l---"'"-l-----'N4" -----'N~-_.e,_Nl-__e::.4• __,;:.~- -"'-"1----"';,+-----';:,4. __e,_Nl---"';,-1----"'1;,
B
"'E
0
0

"'

"O
E
C:
0
(J

1-z
w
::!:
wsrn
~
0
1-z
w>z
rn
..J
ct
ii:
wz
::!:
rn
::>
0
0

~
I

I.;
C:
0
-"'u.,
.c:

i9
0...

t
i i J

1
i j

I

j i

0

;:

~

! j i I
i j j J i j

ffi,
ii:

i

I
wzg

j

~z~
wzg

~z~
w

*

J

~
±
wzg

i

~z~
wzg

j l i
J



j J jJ

I<

w w w
%El £

w
w:;;

J JIl 1J

aa

0
C

£?
00

E
0
0

"'

"0C:..la
E
0u
.;
c
"E
C:e·;;
C:w

zx
LL

N
M
M
"'

l-e
0
00

C:
0,,
";;;
C:
Cl
'iii
"C
-'l

1

1-zw
:!:wz
Ien
>-0::
0
1-zw>z
en
...I
<(
ii:w
~
:!:
en
:::,
0
Cl
0::

$
J:

i i i i
I i i t

I i i 'n'I
Hi j i j j j I i £

i



J J
w w
w w
ti t;

N M

1l I IIM

J Jw ww w
t; t; t;

333

% #o o

I 1l Ml # il 1j

w

£

!Hi
0 0

nj j

~ B

I I

w

£

B

I

w

%

6a

.
C

£?
Ou

g .!

·: ii
II) (a gi~ ~ e
~1---"~c!~=+----s----1---l---e----!---l-----l---'-+-----l--1---1--l----e---1-----+--4----1--~e--l----l------4---1--l--------l---!--~e--l---,
<3] ±] g] z] ] z] Z] :]z] z]] z] z] z] z]:] z] z] z] z z[/ z] z] Z]]] z]z] z] / z
]-]is]ii]i]i]i]s]i]iJi]i]i]s]-i[]is]<-]i-]][i]]idi][]i]-]ili]is]is
g
"'E
0
0

"'

..u
C:..

l°ii
E
0u
.;
c..
E
C:e·;;
C:w

0
z.;
C:..
C...

,::,
C:
:,

zxu.

C:
0
,::,...;
C:
Ol·.;;..
0

2..
£

.;
iii
,::,
·.;;
C:

t
1

1
1 i i flt

1 i
H
M i i i 'l

i I
0 0 c:i 0tt t t
H i i



J J I

;;j

%

J

;;j

£

j j j JI I

;;j

~

J

;;j

~

J

;;j

£

j j

;;j

~

j

;;j

~

JI I II

5a

C
0

!1
tg_ ·g .
u

~
2

# ±
«l s
en ni gi
C1) ~ e

-~1--..:::~'-'{;.+--+--+-+-+--+--+--+---+--+----+-+---+---+----1--+--+-l--+-+---+---+--+----+---+--+----+-+---II--~;] ]4/±:J/ z] :] ±] z <] ± z] :] ±] z ]]] ±] ±] ] ±] ] ] ] ±]] ] ±]z
}[i]s]ski]i]t]]i]l]t]ii]ii]i]yyi[]i]ii]ii]is]idii]ii]is]is]ii]i]
0-;;;
E
0
0
i:t:

.
C

£?
Ou

.,
u
C
"'a
E
0
0..
i:.,
E
Ce·;;
Cw,_

1-z
w:;;
wsrn
1k:
0
1-z
w>z
rn
..J<
O'.
wz:;;
rn
::J
0
0

4
J:

1ijiiiiij1 1l
JHlj1

IjIifl il ill
I J ii J



j jjj JJj J jjjjiJ

i
jiJ j j

:,:
0
0

C
0

Iu
'C
C

e
C.
8.
£u
~z
3

I
u

..
1:!
~o l1Bl1l1S 1l l11ll1 1ll1Sl1 l1BB l1 l1Bl11ll1l1l1B l1g/.lAl#lAt##]itAl±Al±=I#l4l##±±#H=±±#HI=I=I#I#l#}#I±I±
0 i; - - -
(J 0 ~
" 1-<.0

"uC:..a
E
0
()

s
C:

"E
C:e-~
w

N
M
M
"'

z:,::
u.

L-e
0
ui

C:
0.,,
"1.
C:
Cl
'iii
"Cl
2

1

1-zw
::!,:
wz
Ien
>-
0::
0
1-zw>z
en
~
ii:wz
::!,:
en
::::>
0
0
0::

~
J:

L-

i i 1
i I J i

I

J i 1
J i

i
irl
#
it'

i i

l?
w w

l#u u

j j

"z§
0
w
0

8

I

i i



JJ J

ii!
~

s

ii!
%

•1;
z

!

B

!.;
z

I
Iw

sB

ii!
~

B

ii!e

I

N N N N N N N N N N N N

j

:,:
0
0

e
c!
0 'j; -
0 0 'j;
.. ,-.<,
g •

·- :: 45:/ ±?"' . ,.!!!' :::, 0

-~f--"l'--'~=+--1---+-+--j1--+-+------+--+--+--+-+-1---+--+--+--+-----+-j-1---+-+--j1--+-+------+--1---+---,I $] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z]±] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z
el----Z-+----"'-Nl--_,:e;:,-1---'C;:.'-l-. __,::.~•1--_,:,"'+--"N+· ___!;:.C!j._:;:_NI---"~-!--..!:;:.!+. __,::."-j• -"'-"'1-----"N+· __,;:."-j.--"-"'-I-----"::.+• _;:N:-i-· _cN"-j·~d1--_,:eN-1--_;:N:-i-• -N~·1--_,:,;:,-1--..!:••+• __,;:."-j.--"-"'l---";:,-1--~;:,
0;;;
E
0
0a:

..u
C:..=E
0
0
s
C:..
E
C:e·;;
C:w

0

z~
LL

1-zw
::;;
w

~en
>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
en
...J
<(
ii:
wz::;;
en:::,
0
0
0::

~
J:

i i i i 1
i i l £

i i j i

i
ffi

~

i i j J

ill

I

i

ffi,
ii'

i

ffi,
ii'

i

~z
3
wz

£

J

~z~
wz
%

i



ss

w w

:n ~

ss!g
c
0u

"

E
0
0r

g ~ ..·: ~ l"' . ,~ ~ e
·~1---'.!;ic!~:+----1-4-+---+--+---+--l--+-+--+---+--+-+--+--+---+---+--+--+--+---I-+--+--+--+--+----,~ i z z z z z z z. z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z ~: z z z
8 z ±] ±] 3] ±] :] ] 3] ±:] 3] ±%l #l l zl il #l #l zl ? : : : ~ : : :
~l----l----"!.l--~---''+---"l-----"+-----''+----".l-"'+-~----''+---"1-"'+-----"'l----"4-"l------"+----"4-"'4------"+----''+------"!.l--"'+--"'l----"4-"'4------"+-~
0.;

bzw
:iiwsen
1t:
0
bzw>z
en
..J
<(
ii:wz
:ii
en
::>
0
0

~
J:

z:.:u.

L-e
0
ui

"uC:
.!!!
a.
E
0u
I!
C:

"E
C:g
·;;
C:w

:,:
0
0

J J J j J j j j j j J j

1
wzg

i i

~z~
wzg

~
±
wz

*
3l?
w wz zg g

i i i j 1
i

~z
3
wzg

~z
3
wzg

1
j

¥
wzg

l 1
J i 1 1 I i j



B

~ ~ tC
0 0

BB6

ill
%

lil
5

ill
%

ll

ill
%

B

illr

BB

0 iii
+ 0

5a

.... .s:
&£
N 0
O o

g] s] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z]z] z/ z] z] :] z] z] :l zl zl :l :lll :l ±
O z -:_ :_. N ' N -;:; N r•i N N ;. '! N ;. 3 MM307 ;. Nel-----+----"'-l--=----''+----"-l'--"-+-----"'l-----"4----"'-1--=----''+----"-l---"'-1--=---"+--'"-+----"-1---=-----''4----~1--=----"+-~1--"-+--------"~~---"-l----"'-l
0;;
E
0
0
0::

"uC
.!!!
a.
E
0u
s
C

"E
Cg
·;:
Cw

N
M
M
"'

z:.::u.

1-z
w
:ii:w
!;i;
1-
(J)

>-
0::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)
...J
<(
1i:
w
!;i;
:ii:
(J)
:::,
0
Cl
0::

~
J:

'iii
;,;
'tl
'iii
C i j

I
5

J l j i j i j J

ww
I~
0

!

i

w
I~

i
I

I
!ll
8

I

I i 1
1

0

I

£
i



fl el l £
3l 3l 3l3

E
0
0c,:

..e
" 5 ] ] ] g] s]]] s] ] s] l l sl sl l Al sl s l! S] A] A] A] ] Al l A
ll=-.::C•-=~=-i----"-'."l------"'."+..,'~e+--~"l----e''.'!-''.'='.'l---":;;+--'_=+----'e-~l--"~-1--'-+..,'~e+---_'"l-----"'."-l-'~~o=+---~~-:;:+---'~=+---o'"l----":;;-l--'_+---:;;'"I-------"~+---=+-~=+---"-~

u 0 fa
Q) ,-. "
C •

ml 43
: IQ gi
4) ~ e
.~f-...::~c..:f:.+----+---+--+--1--1-4-1---+---+--l---1--+-+---,1----1--+-+---,1---+---+---,l----+--+----I-----+-+-+--~
<] ±] ] Z]]z] z]]] z] z] z] / z] z] z] z ±]z] z] ] l :] Z]:] z] z] z]z] g
]]i]is]i]i]ii[[]i]it]i]i]i]ii]i]i]]=]=yi=i]<[i]ii]is]ii]ii]i]isl
0
1ii

C
0,,
Q);;
C
Cl·;;;
Q)
0

-'2

1

j j

N N

jJj j j J JjJ J l J

5
0

Q)u
C..la
E
0
0..c
Q)

E
Cg
-~
w

N
M
M
"'

1-z
LU
:ii:
LU
!;i:
1-
(J)

>ll::
0
1-z
LU>z
(J)

-;J_
ii:
LU
!;i:
:ii:
(J)
:::i
0
0
ll::

$
J:

i
J I I I i 1

i
'I 1 1 '!
J l 1 i 1 i j

/¥
l

ffi
#l?
ffi m
u ~l3

R£
I l j 1

fl£
J i



JJJJj

w
t;

JJJ JJjjI 1II III

1,

:,:
0a

.
- E£z
0 <)

e
0
0
II:

g •
l ±
(/) ii gi
ll) E e
-~l--".:i'--'~=+--+--++--+--+-+-l-+--f-----1--+-+-+---+--++-+-H-++--+--+-f-----l'----+-+-+---+---+-+----l--l---+-~

3,1#44/4144i44/11///121#%#4441l±iii
0;;

"<)

l;
la
E
0
0
.;
i:
"E
Ce
2w

0

zx
LL

C
0
"O
!!!..
C
O>·.;;
"0
2

1-zw
::!:w

±
If)

~
0
1-z
w>z
If)
...J<erwz
::!:
If)
::::,
0
0

~
I

.;
.;
"O·.;;
C i i 1lil l1ll7ll £

1I 1I#I I j J
M l ~ iI i 1 1 i i j

z
0

3



jjjJ J IjJJI1JJ

.,
e
"I 5 ] g] £] g] g] g] ] g] ] ] g] ] g] g] ] ] ] l s] ] s] l l l l l £
~ i=--=--=,,=t--:ici--..;,~4-..,;~;t---,~;,+--;,~1----,;_;+--;~;t--,,,~ 1-..;,~4----,~;+- --,il;,+-~~l---!,~;+---,~;t--;,1-..;,~4-..,;_;t--,,;_ ~~H~+--'~;t--~~-.,;,~4---!,~;+--'_~- --,,,~1----;;.C
o 'j; - - -

:I ±G

Q)
(.)s

1'a
E
0
(.)

ni
i:
Q)

E
Ce
2w

z~u.

e
0

ki5

C
0
"O
$.,
C
01.iii
Q)
0

?

1-zw:;;
w
!;i:
Im
>a::
0
1-zw>z
rn
.J
<(
iEw
!;i:
:;;
rn
::::)
0
0

3
I

'.; ~C 5
~ I i i i i I 5 ! I 50 z i I 3 i i j I i i i j i i i"' 3 ~ 3 3(.) is ii "' "' i i i i iQ) 0 0 0 § 0 0 0 3 0 § 0 § 0 0 0 0 0 0 § 0

ni .r: ± ~ a a a a a a a a a a 8 5 a a 5(.) ,!:! " (.) " (.) (.) (.) (.) " (.) (.) (.) (.) (.) (.) " (.) (.) (.) (.)

E- 0 ii I iii iii
~ 3 £ I i 3 i i i I 3 I 3 3 i $ g: 81 i I !I I IQ) Q) 1-- iii % ~

~
.C C Q) "' ~ ~ £ ± ± £ ~ ± £ ± ± £ ± £ £ ± £ £(.) 0 g> Q) > ~

L- - "' n C0 (.) B 0C a,
0 .r: "' 0 < Q)

~~ Q) iii 'E ni
"O "'.iii Q) Q)

0 .S -o E ·;;;_,
~ ~ z.!'?

Q) ~ -010 < .E01
0 "'~ C i: ,o:-~0 ~,-..2.; z i:: il ~

ni .; a, VI" 0 i " 0 i 0 " 'E
0 " 0

'E " 0 i 0 0 " 0 0 i 0 0 i 0 0 "iii "O a. -2 1 ~ I I I I 1 t i t i i i t ! I I i i I I i
"O ~ Q19l£ i i t l i J j 1 t i i i t i i i i i t i t i i i.iii ~ Q) Q) 0
C "'"' - • l ~ l l ¥ ¥0 ::, ::, "' < <



I1

iii
%

1l

iii
~

Ill 01 01 N N N N N N N CD- - - -

1l sI1B B1l

w
w:;;

0 •

4 ±
: ca gi
Q) ~ e
]1-~:i'--'~::+-----l---+--+-~l---+-l--l----l---+---l--l--l-+--4-+-1-+--4-+-1-+--4-1---+--l-~~--l---l---+~l---+--t--11----1--l--l--~
i; ~ z zz z zzzz z zzzzzzzzzzzzzz z z z z z zz z zz zzz z

:3idili#l#]il\/\///////iiiililiiililli$
2
<II

e
0

ti.

C
0,,
";;;
C
O>·;;;
"C
,:2..
£

j j j

::l N N

njj J

I

J 1 1III j I#illjnn

N NN N'<t 'I' ,..,..., MNNNNNNNNNN '<t '1'

N ON N.,. r-. OIM MNNNNNNNNNN Ill Ill

5
0

"uC..a
E
0
(.)
.;
c
"E
Cg
£w

0

zx
LL

~zw:;;
w

±
(J')

~
0
lezw>z
(J')
_J
<(
ii:wz:;;
(J')
::)
0
0a::
$
J:

n
Ji

1
i

fl£
J jii1l1l//Kl%/1lil £

i J i I I I i J i
nn
HH

= =tll 171 CD N

iii ~ ~ ~

ll s

j

!ii 0u ~
ii: ~

~ d
0 o- "'

HHji ii

"C0
-"u
",:,!2
0....



51

j

ii!
£

ii!
£

J

/I N

g~., :;;

j

~ li

n J I

2 N N

:: M M M

li

jI n Ill
Ii

!.

li

ii!
%

~ N Na
0

.
C

£
Ou

..e
ro O B Q s

E
0
0

°'

g .!! 0 0 0

·: ii
v, n gi

e
]l--"~c.!r:.=+--+-+-+----11---++--+--+-+-+-+-+--+--+----l--+-++-+-+-+--l--+-+---l-+-+-+--l--+-+---+-f---11---+---,
~ :z.zz z zzzzz zzz z z z zzu,oozz z z.zzz zz z zz zzz z zl 5[]3]3] 3] 3\3] 3]3] ] ]3]3] 3] ] 3] 3]]3]3] 3] 3] 3] ] ] all ?l? ?l :l? lll ?l ?
~1---+:c+-=4-'=+----"41---=+'=+--::+-.::+-..::.+----=:..i-::+-"-4-----"+--"+-~-"-+--"+'"+"'4-'+-'~---=-1---"-l-...:;:+--=-l.!:!.+----'=-1-'~----"'-l---"'l--=-l----'::+=~1---"'+-~
0;;

..
0
C:
.!!!
Q.
E
0
(.)..
i:..
E
C:e-~

LU

1-z
w:;;
w±
(J)

~
0
1-zw>z
(J)
...I
<t
c2
wz:;;
(J)
::::>
0a
0:

~
I

1l fl£
I I I J

H i 1 1
H i I J

1l 1l£
J l I

I

l

i

j J
l +lill il £
J HI I I i iH i fl£

I I
Hi
UJ I



~
i(li(l

<r
w
0z
§

B
i(l

~
i(li(l

~
i(li(l

<r
w
0z

&

i:
0u..

~ .
~ ci -~

o. c
N~~1--....:<l=--=

8
'1----_-l-- -_-l- -_'l---_+-,N-I--N'l--- -N+-M=-I--N-I--N+-~N'l--0-,1-----N...+---- -NI----N-+---NI----N-+-- -N--I------N...+--- -N--I---- ----IN
5
0

,::,
I:!!
C:
0u
2;;..
:,:

..u
C:..
'1i
E
0u
.;
i:..
E
C:e·;;;
C:w

0

I
z
X:u.

,_..
C:
0
-"8.c:
,!:?
0...

i i lilt
j j i

<r

I
0
iii
:i:

i i i i j i



JJ J J

s

00 0 0 0 0 0 C 0

1l

s~,

S? go o go go ~

5a

d»
C

££
Ou

0ec
0 "jij -
0 0 (a
" 1-C.,

"<.>
C:
.!!!
0.
E
0
(.J

iic
"E
C:e·;;
C:w

0

z~
LL

C:
0
,:,
.!l..
C:

"'·;;;
"C
;:i

1

1-zw
:;;
w±
V)

~
0
1-z
w>z
V)
...J
<(
ii:
w
!;i:
:;;
V)
:J
0
Cl

3
J:

ii
.;
,:,
·;;;
C: J I

I

1 i i i j

iil

i

j

1l

i

i i
J 1

£
i j £

i



le

J Jw ww w~ ~
"'"'iiu u

I
l'w

l
l..

0

j1 J 1 I 1IIIIj

5a

0
• .E
zz
N 0au

E
0
0
0:

C: Q.1 0 0 0 0 0 Cl O O O O OOOCIOOCIOCIOO Cl O O 00 0

C : 5:] i
zl 2
.;?f---"-:i'--'~+-----+---+-+-----+---+------4----11---+-4----+--l-4-++-l-4-++--l---l-+-+--+---+--l---ll----+--+-l---l---l-~
Zj] <] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z z] [/]:]/:]]z]//] ±] g] g] z]:] z] z]:] ;]z ;;
]-]]i]i]i]i]ii]i]i]][-[-[[[[-[]ks]]il][]ilsly]Sy
0
in

..u
C

.!!!
a.
E
0
(.)
.;
c..
E
C
I:!·;;
cw

0

e
0
ui

1-zw
:i:
w±en
~
0
1-z
w>z
en
...I
<t
ii::
wz
:i:
en
::>
0
Ca::
$
:i:

..
""g
0
in

1
i i j i i

i i 'l
i

'l
i I f

J



j sj
:<l
0

e N N

j
:<:
0

0g
1:
0 ii -
CJ O ia
" t-C>g s

l ±3
U) iii gi
Q,) ~ e
E1-...!:i~f.!:.j...._-J.---l---l--l---l--l--.J..---l--l---l-l--l--l---l---l--.jl--l-----l-----l---l----l-----l-----l--+--.jh
~ <( z z zz zzzzzzzzzz zzz z z z z z z.z zz:]]##i##4/4iliiiii]###iiiiiiii
0;;;
E
0
0

I>:

;,;
E
E
"1.
0

"Og
C:
0u

"C)sa
E
0u
"iii
1:
"E
C:
g
£w

I

0
2
"iii
C:

8.
""OC:
::,

1-z
llJ
:ii:
llJ±
(/)

il:
0
1-z
llJ>z
(/)
..J
<t
ii'.
llJz
:ii:
(/)
::>
0a

~
J:

e
0
vi

zx
LL

0

.4:
#i
? 2

I
I

pl
iii

i i i
J J I

i i i
J I I

ffi

!
5

'.;
C:
0
-"C)
".c,!:!
0>-

"iii
;,;
'ti
G
C:

"iii
C)

E-"".c C: "U O ClHg g
C Q.) £
0 .c "'
:;:; (.) Q,)

1l - :!!
_g .S



£l El
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O

w a a o i i

N i<l
5
0

~ N

0
0i

0

il4
"',,
C:~

• O
0 Q.

,,
g
C:
0
()

..u
C:..
a
E
0
()

s
C:..
E
C:
l!·;;
C:w

0

I
zx
LL

1-z
UJ
::!:
UJ
!;,i:
Im
>a::
0
1-z
UJ>z
rJ)

-.J.
ii::
UJ
!;,i:
::!:
rJ)
:::i
0
Cla::
$
:I:

0 -11
C: ..
0 .c

/°
0
..J

.;
u ., ..
.c C: ..
() 0 "'e

0
vi..,,
·;;;
.!:
.!!..
"'g
0
vi i

J
i
I I I

ii
II
J J

II
J J



z~
LL

N
M
M
"'

,,
g
C:
0
()

.,
"C:"'a
E
0
()

s
C:.,
E
C:g

·;;
C:w

e
0
ui

fzw
:i:wz
fen
>-
0::
0
fz
w>z
en
...J
<(
ii:
w
~
:i:
en
::::,
0
C
0::

~
::i:

.,
eng
0;;; I I

j

I



#]41144

0

:<l
0?s

0

j

;z ~ 0 0
1A

i nn

j

i:i

aa

0
._ .5zz
N 0
Ou

i:
0u

"

N

i-i

"'I

"tl
g
C:
0u
2
1.
"JC

"uC:..la
E
0u
lii
C:

"E
C:g

·;;;
C:w

I

L-

zx
lL

1-z
LU
:!:
LUz
1-
(J)

>-
0::
0
1-z
LU>z
tJ)
....J
<(
ii::
LUz
:!:
tJ)
:::,
0
0
0::

~
:I:

II
ii

I
j

0

I

<

I
j

9

Iu

< <

i
H
H

<

I
j

ill
::i
5

<

I
£

0 -ii
C:"0 ,:

al
0
...J

.;
u "",: C: "U O Cl

g
0;;
""tl·;;;
.!:
.!!!



L-

j
I
0

jj
M

i
j
i
0

1l # #£j j j
i:
0
0

"

"Og
C:
0
(.)

"0C:
.!!!
ii
E
0
(.)

<ii
i:
"E
C:e
£w

z
x<u.

1-z
w:;;
w±
II)

1'i:
0
1-z
w>z
II)
...J
ct
ii:
wz
:;;
II)
::i
0
D

~
:i::

"Cle
0;;;

i

I
J

=

ii I



l 4 I54l il 4l 4 fl # 4j
#l
il iii
0 M

I
0

1

,,
g
C:
0u~...c:
'iii..
:,:

..g..a
E
0u
1ii
E..
E
C:g
2w

I

1-zw
:!;:
w±
1/)

>
ll:'.
0
1-zw>z
1/)
...J
<(er
wz
:!;:
1/)
:::i
0
0
ll:'.

~
J:

II
Iiii

Ill

,_..
C:
0
-"u...c:
,!:'
$

..
"'g
0.;
1ii
iii,,
'iii
C:



E
.§
I
E

±

I
I
E

±
i
.Ii
§
~

!
i

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O

##
#il#ill?

j
i
0

j j

i

g ! 3·: ~ ~
II) iii g,
4) ~ e
]~....::i,_f:.c:+---+---+--+---lf--+----+-f--+--+--+--+--+---1f--+--+-+--+--+---l-+--+-+--+-+--f----+---l--+--+--+--+--+--+-+---+--+-

!1-__~_"l----'~"l:---"'~-I-'~'+• ...C~~· 1-"-;i+---'~"l: _Ne,_!:l--"'~-1---'~'+: __.;:C!;. l-"-~-1---'~'+: ...C~~: f-"~-1---'~'+: __.;~~: 1-"-~i--=:+: __;;o~· -=-;i--=~+· ...C~~· -=-;1-----=;:+: _::_;:I--=;+: ...c;~:--=~i--=~:+: _::_~:1--...::;+...:~:.i• -=-~:!--=;+...:~=-!. _::_~:!-=-~; ~ •• •••••• i l i l i l i i l { - v - .. -- . - - 2'. .' - .. __ .. - -
g
"'E
0

~

.,
":;;

l°a
E
0
0
ni
i:.,
E
C:g
-~
w

0

I
z
le:
LL

ni
i..,

·;;;
C:

j

I
j



j j

I[3a4

0

4l 1l # 41#\4#
0 0 0 0 0 0 0000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O 0

3 3 I I 3 3 III II 3I 3I 3I I l 3j j

j j j

A I 3l 1) I

<JI
'O

0 1 j j j j j j

N

N ~
al ?
&]"],},al.l},l}=}elhsl=pl,Halal=tall,pl.}}}}=}}al}.}}}.l,}=l=}}]~ 8

.,
u
C..:g
E
0u
«i
C:.,
E
Ce·;;
C
w

I
z~
IL

1-zw:;;
ws
tJ)

>a::
0
1-zw>z
tJ)

-.i.
ii:wz:;;
tJ)
::::)
0
Ca::
~
J:

I
J

I I
flt

Hl
J J J

II H Hi
J J J ! J J j

Hillill#l#la
$ 8151$l5

111111
j 1 j J J J

II) ~ 2:!

111
#l Alt

I II
J J J



,j ,j ~~ ,j ~a) Pf Pf ~

il

! ! !

"'"'C
C
:,
O

0 0.

- N N N N N N N N N N M N - N N - - N - - - ~

i:
0u..

N

i,.i •
Lt) l ~

g[oo]_[]_}al,l.}}=l.}l,}}=l,}}Ill}=Ill=lll~ g - -

±·.;;

1.;..
I

"'C
g
C
0
()

..u
C..la
E
0
()

s
C..
E
Ce-~
w

0

I
zxu.

N
M
M.,,
j:
.£
:;.

el&.. u.
0. .;
0 <I)

2l£
I> N= <I)-~"'""0 ooe

1-zw
::;;
wsen
1i'.
0
1-zw>z
en
...J
<t
ii:wz::;;
en
::>
0
0

3
J:

i
5

s
fil
8
3

i

JiI
I
I ii

Hi
j j j

.;
;,;
"'C·.;;
C



'i
1
i

I
I

£
I
i

I

I I I I I I I I IIII I I I ! i I I I

5
0

;,;
E
5;;
C

"'u
C
.!'la.
E
0u
s
C
"'E
Cg

·;;;
Cw

N
M
M
"'

z~u.

1-z
UJ
::;;
UJ
!;i:
Ien
>-
0::
0
1-z
UJ>z
en
..J
<(
ii::
UJ
!;i:
::;;
en
:::,
0
C
0::

$
:I:

JI li l I Ii n? 3
5 ±$ 5

"II i l l I i I i I
IllMM Ii

"'"'g
0
vi



l'j

.
D

C
0

]!

Ju
"C.

0z
u;;
i
]j

]
u

..
"Clc
:,

~ 0
0 0..

1:
0 -;:; -u Oiii
<I> >-'-'

N

N .._]
el ±?
~ l--'o"-"u-l--------~.-1--.-l-~.,..l--~.-l-~~-I-N,4..._N.-l--~-!-~.,..1--~.-1--•.-1--.-l------+--_.-1--~--1--~-I--.~m--l--.-1-m,4...-•-1------------~~

el 4

"Clg
C
0u
±...

<I>
J::

<I>uc
.!!!
ii
E
0u..
1:
<I>
E
Ce·;;
Cw

0

I

-e
0
00

1-zw
:i:wz
Ien
>a::
0
1-z
w>z
en
.J.
1i:w
~
:i:
en
::,
0
Ca::
~
:i::

fil

4
I

,l

3
£
I

I I
Mi

ii
j j

HI
Mli

iii
j j j



£
l
f

I

3l 3

0z
ug
3

C
0

Iu.,,
C.
C.
Cg_
g
u

~z
li
]
u

0 •

·~ :; '5
+1 ±?
"' 3~ ~ e
31----~~/:.=+--------------+--l---------+--l--+--+--+-l-+-+--l-+~e--+---l-+-+--I-+~-+--+--+--+--+~
'-5; <( zz zz z zzzzzzzzz zzzzzzzz z z zz

?i]llillllll#44llill2ll1l
£: .g <Ii
II) 8 e-:e oii a. E
g is
&le

.;
E
5
1ii
0

""C"''a
E
0
(.)
.;
c
"E
Ce
£w

I
zx
IJ.

I-

m ~ m m m m m m m

I ! I I I I I I I
Mil ii ilii

~ "

I I
j jI i

j j

±z..,,
i
E
E
0u

'.;
C
0

"'"".ct!
0....

"0)e
0
ui



j
I
0

M M M

4l #
0 0 0

5l £
0 0

1 s j H
Q O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 00

N N N IQ N - NON - 0 - - N .- .- .- NNN N N

1l # # ##l4j
3
0
0

3 33

0z
ug
i

C
0

Iu
"C.
Cu
C

±
u•£z
z

lu

.;
E
E
".;
0

"CJC:
"'la
E
0
(.)
-.;
E
"E
C:
I?
£w

I
z
l<:u.

L-e
0
in

I-

1-zw
:;::
w

±en
>-0::
0
1-zw>z
en
-.J.
ii:w<:;::
en
::::i
0
Cer
~
:i::

""'g
0.;



0 ~ M ci 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O 0

# 3 33

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C
0
-'

I
(.)
O
C

0
C
do
C

8.
£
(.)

i
£z
z

±
(.)

i: .0

0 "ii -
CJ 0 ni
a, 1- lO

iii
E
E.,
1ii
0

"Og
C:
0
0~.,
J:;

1ii.,
:c

.,
<.>
C:

"'la
E
0
0
;;;
i:.,
E
C:g
£
w

I

0
?:;;;
C:

8-.,
"O
C:
::,

1-z
w:;;
w±
rJl

~
0
1-z
w>z
rJl
...I
ct
ii:
wz:;;
rJl
::>
0
0
Q:'.

~
J:

I-e
0
ui

z
)<'.
u.

I II I
ill ili

H 11
Milli

,_.,
C:
0
-"<.>.,
J:;

,!2

s

.,
"'e
0;;;
;;;
iii
"O·;;;
C:

;;;
<.> .,.,
J:; C: .,
0 0 c,

L-- - .:.:: E
0 <.> 0
g ~ ines
o G

...J ·=



3l il 3i

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

4Ii#l 4

5'5

I

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0

C
0

I
u
o
C
3

"''O

• 2 # ## #/ is 4t#£

"uC:
.!!!
C.
E
0u
s
C:

"E
C:
g
·;:
C:
w

3
z~
LL

.;
u.-
"".s:: C: "U O Cl

L-- - .::.:. ~0 U oa ~ iii
G S!. ~
0 'in
...J .£

.!!!

.;
.;
'O·;;;
C: llliil

g g

I
i!

I I
I I

"I



j

I
j j j

:<l :<l
0 0

~ ~ :(l
O ;; 0 0

j j

N N N N M M N - - - M N N N N N - - N

;,;
E
E
";;
0

"g
.!!!
ii
E
0
(.)
.;
C:
"E
C:g
£w

I

e
0

lui

C:
0
-0
$..
C:

"'·;;;
"0
2

1

....zw
5w

±en
~
0....z
w>z
en
...I
ct
ii:
wzen::>
0
Cl
Q:'.

~
I

.;
;,;
-0·;;;
C:

I

l
~~
8~

i II I
ilili j

I
) i

j
II
j j l "I I

]

I



j

j

j

j

s

jjj

5
0

0
2
u
g
5
1l
±
0

0
C

£?
0 O

.,,
.. C:eeg
r.l~ ...e o

g ~ -·: ~ I
.,, g 3

.! ~ e
-~1----'~'---'=-~-l---- -1--l- -----l- -l--- ---'1---1-- -l-- -1--- -----l-- -1--- i--- ---4-- -1---- 4- --i-- -----l- -1-- ---4-- -1---- ---'1--- -1-----~
Z] ±] :] :]:]:] :] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z] z]z] z]z] z] z] ±] ±] z
}s[s]=]=]s]s]s]<[=]s]<]s[s]s]s]sys]=]shs]<]sl
4 #443 #4441 4# iii# ## # # ii ±

i di#di ilil ii ll i i i # d ?
Q>
0
C:

.!!!
a.
E
0u
s
C:
Q>

E
C:e·s:
C:w

0
N
M
M
"'

1-z
w:;;
wz
I
(/)

>ci::
0
1-z
w>z
(/)

-;i_
ii::wz:;;
en
:::,
0
0

~
:I:

z::.:
IL

I"I
j

l
j

I
j

I
J

II
II

..
0

E-., Q>
.r:; C: Q>
U O Cl

L_ 0 ti ~
C G> B
0 .r:: .,,
3 ~ :2
.3 .£



l

jj

I'!

3

I
j

I'! I'!

j

I
J

jj
i<l

j

I
j

I
J

I'!

I
j

5a

"'.. C:eg
ra ra OEe>
C:
0
()

iv
E

5..
0

..
()
C:

.!!!
a.
E
0
(.)

s
C:..
E
C:g

-~
w

"Cg
C:
0
(.)~...c....::c

0

z<
LL

-
fzw
:ii:w

±
Cl)

>Q'.
0
fz
w>z
Cl)
..J
<I:
ii:
w
!;;:
:ii:
Cl)
:::i
0
Cl

4:x:



.,,
g
C:
0
0

2...,
J::

.,..,
s

Ii
E
0
0
.;
C:.,
E
C:
l?-~
w

0

zxu.

1-zw:.
w±
Cl)

~
0
1-z
w>z
Cl)
...J
ct
ii:
wz:.
Cl)
::>
0
0
Cl'.

~
J:

I
!

I
J

m

II
II

jl



z:::
0

3

z:::
0

j

z
%
0

z
0;;:

z
$
0

z
0
5

j

z
0:;;

z
0
5

z z
% 5
0 0

,;

j j

I
I

z
£
0

l(l~

z
0:;;

zo:
;;

z zo: 0
;;- ~

3z
3
l3

0z

'E ~
0 iii -0 0 io
d» +- 0

~ c(a !!:
" z

1!
1ii
"I

"g
C:
0u

""C:..
ii
E
0u
:i§
C:

"E
C:g

·;;
C:w

I
zx
lL

1-zw
:Ewsen
>a::
0
1-z
w>z
en
...I
<{
ci::
wz
:E
en
:::>
0
Cla::
$
::c

5

IiI

m

I
!

I
I

I

i
l

I I
j j

I1l

I

lI I
I I

..
;,;
"·;;;
C:



g g g#l3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O

3333J±

jj£
ll

±

ci:z

.,,
"O
C:
::,
- O0 0..

C
C:·;;;

N

i ±
u, ~ !
[,}llllll,}l}},},l,}lll,},l,,lb~~ 8 - -

"Oe
C:
0u
¥.;
":,:

"uC:
.!!!
C.
E
0u
s
C:

"E
C:g
·;:
C:w

zx
LL

tz
w:a;
w
!;i:
trn
>-
0::
0
tz
w>z
rn
"ii.
ii2w
!;i:
:a;
rn
::::>
0
0
0::

~
I

I
IHI

J I I

!
2

i
J

I I
J I

I
J

II

I
1

i
9

<D

±

I

I'.;
C:
0
ti
".c,!:!
i:i...

-;;;
i,j
"O·;;;
C:



1

~ "1 :!!
0 0 0 ~ -

ii:

il 1l 4 #5
:<l • :<l :<l
N O O 0

3 3 3

::; :<:
0 iii

0

3l3
3l3

l"l <D l"l MM MN N N N NO(() N- N N N N N N

1i
±
u

0z
u
£
.i

C
0

Iu
"C.
C
0
C

±
u•£z
1i
±
u

..., ~ ..
~ M ---0 (ii

+-

"'.. Ceeg....e
E
0....,~ !

3
ooocooooooooooooooooo

·: ~ _g-
(1) ~ g
Q) ~ e
Z1--...:<'i"--'=t:.+-+----+--1-+-+-1-+-+----+-+-+----+--1-+-1-+----+--1-+-+-1--+----+-+-~1-+-----+----+-+-+--j1-+--+-+-+-+~

$"441i44144141/4/4/2414l4#l1i1/4/1441
#l±±4#%13/4
] i ?l el l el ?]

3:1314till1ii

;,;
E
E.,
1.
0

~
C
0
(.)

.,...
C
.!!!
C.
E
0
(.)
.;
E.,
E
Ce
2w

0
:;
.;
c.,
C..,,,
C
::,

z:,.::u.

l-e
0
ui

1-zw
:::;;
wz
1-
(J)

>a::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)

-;i,
ii:wz:::;;
(J)
::,
0
Cla::
~
J:

"j

Iill
l J I

Iii
I I I

-.,
C
0
.x....,
.c

I9

.;
;,;,,
·.;;
C



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O

j
:<l
0

i(l
04

0

:<l
i
0

C
0

Iu
o
C.
£
g_
£u
#z
z
£
u

"',,
C:
:,
- O0 a.

ciz

;,;
E
E
"1.
Cl

g ! 3
·: ;: _g.
Vi 'iii gi
w ~ e
2f-_::,.:i'--'~=+------+--------+---+---f---+--f-+-+--+-+--+-f-+--+--+-+--+---ll-+--+--+--+---+--+--+---I-I--,
~ <( z z z z z zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz z z zzzzz

?illlljill1ll1lllliiill#
0.;

,,
g
C:
0
(.)

"<.>I;
la

E
0
(.)

ni
i:
"E
C:g
£w

1-zw:;;
w±
tJ)

~
0
1-z
w>z
tJ)
..J
c{
ii:
wz:;;
tJ)
:::)
0
0
0:

~
J:

z
:.:u.

ni<.> "".c: C: "(.) 0 Cl
Hl g

C: Q) £
0 .c: "':;:; u ll)

ii - :s!
$ z

ni
;,;,,
.iii
C: l I

J
Hi
I l ! I



;:;::: =

I'!

i
E

£
0

"~
C:
0u

..u
C:..
a
E
0u
s
C:..
E
C:g

·;;
C:w

0

I
zx
LL

1-z
U.J:;;
U.Jz
1-
rJ)

>-0::
0
1-z
U.J>z
rJ)

<~
U.Jz:;;
rJ)
:::,
0
Cl
0::

$
:i::

Ii
iiI

j



i:l

Mtjj
~
j

"',,
C
2

• O
0 a.

iii
E

~;.
0

..
"C.,

la
E
0u
!!i
C..
E
Cg
·;;
Cw

I
z
ls::u..

L-e
0
iii

1-z
LU
5
LU
!;:;:
1-
(J)

>
D::
0
1-z
LU>z
(J)
...J
<(er
LU
!;:;:
~
(J)
::,
0
0
D::

$
:i::

Ii# ±
5 5

I I
IiI

j

}
I



1l

ciz

Al 33

3,

"'.,,
C:
::,

~ 0
0 ll.

"'l
el <?
g[l_}pll,l,,l,l,}lll}lb,,l,el,l]el ±l ·

.,,
e
C:
0
(.)

"uC:..
'g
E
0
(.)
.;
E
"E
C:g
·;;
C:w

I

fz
LU:;;
LU
!;,i:
f
(J)

>
Cl::
0
fz
LU>z
(J)

-.J.
ii::
LU
!;,i:
:;;
(J)
::::>
0
Cl
Cl::

$
:i::

,_
"C:
0
"'u
".s:.

,!:!
0...

i

i
§

j11
Mi
i I J

5l 5l

#i
I
§



jj

3

j

J

"',,
C:
:,

• O
0 Q.

1:
0

".,

N

N ._ .S
U') ~ ~
N NO

,[]}lb,bbl__pll
el ±

,,
e
C:
0
(J

.,
"C:..a
E
0
(J

s
C:.,
E
C:e·;;
C:w

I

0

z:,.:
u..

1-z
w
:;;
wz
1-
(J)

>-
0::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)
..J
<(
ii:wz:;;
(J)
:::,
0
0
0::

~
:i:

I

HIil
ill ii

i
5

,_.,
C:
0.,.
".,.c
,!2

0
I-

.;
" .,.,
.c C: .,
(JO Olg

0.;



jj
<II
"O
C:
::,

~ 0
0 D..

E
0u
"'

"Oe
C:
0
0

"'u
C:
.!!
a.
E
0
0
,;
E
"'E
C:g
£w

0

I

N
M
M
"'

z:,c
u..

1-zw
::;:;
w

±
(J)

>a::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)

;t
ii:w
!;j:
::;:;
(J)
:::,
0
0a::
~
J:

I
j

i
J

I
]

.,

I

I
j

I
jI

j

L- 0 ti
c A
0 ,::

</
0
.J



1l# 4 #
0 0 O O 00 O 000 00 0 00 O O O O O 0

N N - q « t2 NN ,n IQ ,n N"' N

> < so

5
0

oz

]j
±
0

<I)
,::,
C
::,

~ 0
0 Q.

C:
0
(J..

"'
i

;,;
E

£
C

..
(J
C
"'a
E
0u
.;;
C:..
E
Cg
·;;
Cw

I

L-e
0

wi

1-zw
:Ew

¥
(J)

>Ir
0
1-zw>z
(J)

-;J
ii::wz
:E
(J)
:::,
0
C
Ir

~::c

II 1111
ill ilIii

pq
ill»

pIi
MI

.
"0
I
:,;

.;;
;,;
,::,
·;;;
E

..
O'Ig
0
1n



L-

=
0 0 0

:<l :<l
O ~ o

:ll

J

I

l

~1/lNNNN

:<l :!!

3l3
0 ~

« t v ta a a v v

c
0u..

;,;
E
E..
1.
0

..u
C:..a
E
0
(.)
;;;
1:..
E
C:e
£w

z:,,::
LL

~e
B
(/)

tz
w:;;
ws
Cl)

>-0::
0
tz
w>z
Cl)
...I<
12wz:;;
Cl)
::J
0
0

3
I

!l!

i
!IIli111

ilili



j~
Ii

:<:
0

j
?
0

j~
ll

1

jj
:<:
ii
0

"'., C:@le., ., ~
e<.!) 0 VI

i: .Q
0 .;; -u 0 iii
.. 1- (0

.,,
g
C:
0
(.)

..
<.>
C:
.!!!
Q.
E
0
(.)

ni
i:..
E
C:g
£w

z~u.

-
1-z
w
:i:
w±en
e
0
1-z
w>z
en
...I
ct
i:2
w
!;j:
:i:
en
:::>
0
Cl
Cl:'.

$
J:

..
;,;.,,

·;;;
C:

I
I

I
l I iiI} I

I I
! l



j

z
0:
0

z
3
0

j

z
0:;;

i:i

s

z zo: 0:~- ;;-

il5

0

z
0:

z.
:'.·
0

z
0:;;

z z
0 0:5l 5

z z
5

d r,i

"',,
C:
::,

• O
0 ll.

3 ±
u z

N

N .. -~
I() l ~

[0_2]},lb,bl,bllb_el_bl,lb}l=i g
.,
u
C:

"'a
E
0u
s
C:.,
E
C:e·;:
C:w

I
z
!:.:
LL

1-zw:;
w:
rn
>ll:'.
0
1-z
w>z
rn
...I~a::
wz:;
rn
::i
0
C

~::c

.,
OIg
0
vi

I.;
C:
0
"'irl
.r::
,!:?

0...

IIj u

I
I

ii
I J

I
1

I
i



1-zw:;;
w±
(/)

ii::
0
1-z
w>z
(/)
...I
<t
Q'.
wz:;;
(/)
::>
0a

3
J:

z~u.
..
<)
C:..la
E
0
(.)
;;;
c'..
E
C:g
£w

i
E
i::..
1ii
0

~z
0

~
i
E
£
0

ii I
j

I
j

I I



;,;
E
~
1ii
0

~
C:
0u

.,
u
C:..la
E
0u
;;;
C:.,
E
C:e-~
w

I

"'M
M.,,

z:,::
u.

L-e
0
iii

1-zw
::i:w

±en
>-0::
0
1-zw>z
en
...J
<(
ii:
w
~
::i:
en
::::i
0
C
0::

~
J:

ii
I I

!1
3

i
jl

g

i
j

l
Ji

"'3

l
$
j



+
0 0

:<l
0

0

j
:<l
iii
0

I4\ 4 #
~ ~ ~ 0

0 0 0

j

--
0 ia
I- Cl

C :; ~
0u

C o

# ±;
: ni gi
.! ~ e
31-..::~'-'f.c:+--+---+--+--+----l--+---+--+--+----ll-+-+-l-+-+-+-+--+-+-H-l-+---l---+--+--+-----ll--+---4--+-+--+---+--,
~ ¢z zzzz z zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz z z z z z zz zzz zz!ii]l]l141/\4%ll4llllllll4± 33i u#l13ill3# ##4443# 1## 4
3mi 3lil l 4i/443#115$1 ill1 #ill ill ?i

.,
u
C:
.!!!
C.
E
0
(.)

ni
i:.,
E
C:e
2w

0

I
zxu.

1-z
w:;;
wz
ten
ii:
0
1-zw>z
en
;j_
c2
wz:;;
en::,
0a

3
J:

"i
J

1111
H J I

I II I
I I I lI

j



N N e 3

E
0

"..

;,;
E
5
16
0

2
16..
J::

,:,
1!
C:
0u

..
"C:.!!!a.
E
0u
"iii
E..
E
C:g
·;:
C:w

3
z:,::
LL

1-zw
:Ewz
1-
(J)

>-
0::
0
1-zw>z
(J)

-J.
ii:wz
:E
(J)
::,
0
C
0::

~
J:

la
C:
0.,.
8
.c:
,!:!

0>-

~z
0

]

T
E
£
0

i
J

g s

¥ i
u \l

l?
flt I

9

I

"I l I I
-~ iii
i! i!
5 $



.;
E
E.,
1ii
0

.,
u
C:
.!'1
ci
E
0
(.)..
E.,
E
C:g
·;;
C:w

I

N
M
M
"'

z:,,:
LL

1-zw
::!;
wz
1-
(J)

>a::
0
1-z
w>z
(J)
...I<ii:wz
::!;
(J)
:J
0
0

4
J:

I
j

I
J

I
Iii

J j
I
jI

j

.
£z..,,
i
E
£
0



iii
E

~;;
C

"±la
E
0u
<iic
"E
C:e-~
w

0

L-e
0

<ii

zx
LL

1-z
LU
::i;;
LUsen
>-0::
0
1-z
LU>z
en
...J
<t
ii:
LUz
::i;;
en
::>
0
0

4:x:

I

I
j

l
]l l

<iiu "".; C: "u O e>
1-- - .:it. ~

0 U £
§ l II)

</Is
.3 .S



v o o

1l #4 #l 4 # il4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

H H j

:I :I
0 0

IQ IQ
0 0

H

Al
ffi ffi
:l

t -0

1 ##3

N

sl
l £?
~1--=0~+--.,+--N+----M~---+--+N+N+--N+-N+-N+-N+--_+-~-N-1-N+--.+-.~-N-1-N+-.+-N+-•+-•+-•+-•~•-+,N+-M+--_+-N+.--+-.+-N+--N+--N+-N+-N~•--+----l-+--_~~4--M,S
~ g

.,
u
C:

"'Ii
E
0
(.)..
i:.,
E
C:e
£w

0

-e
B
(/)

1-z
UJ
:!!:
UJ

±en
>-
0::
0
1-z
UJ>z
en
...J
<(
ii:
UJz
:!!:
en
::::i
0
Cl
0::

~
J:

iljiiiliiilHI
inillliiliHI

..
.;
"O·;;;
C:

-"0 u
g2

0 .,:;leg
0 ·v,
...J .!=

..u
-~ .,
.,:; C: .,
(.) 0 Clg

0.;;



0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O 0

§
0

j
¥
0

3 Il 3

--NNl/lNN N NN-00

6 ~
0

w
t; w w w w

ail#4 l
N

N ....~
u, ~ i
~~_::O:._;U"+--N+--N--l--Ni-,.N+-N--l--Ni-,.N+-- N--l--M+--M,,..I--------Nl-,-N+-M,,..l--=Ml--- -_--l-=ol-,-N+-M,,..1--_Ni-,.N+-•-+--NI---N-+-N--l--_-1--.,N-+-N--l-- -_+--_--l-- -e,-{N~ g

",:ni
":c

"Og
C
0
0

"0C
.!!!
C.
E
0
0
;;;
c
"E
Ce
£w

0

zx
LL

fz
w:;;
wsen
ft:
0
fz
w>z
en
..J
ct
ii:wz:;;
en::,
0
0

3
I

j j
s' £

I I
il t

j_

I
]

j
<!i

I
j

j j

Ii
] ]



• i(l

0 8
N

III III}

I

j jjI J J J JJ 1 I

x
0 0

N 3•
i5 i5 ~
o o

# #i
8 8 8

j

;\
0

j

4

I
il

1l 4£4I ill 4 #5
I[
0

v v n w v e v

E
C:
0
()

..
"C:.!!!
a.
E
0
()

I§
C:..
E
C:g

·;;
C:w

,_..
C:
0
-"
"...c:

,\c!
0...

z~
LL

-e
0
in

1-zw:;;
w
!;i:
1-
U)

>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
U)
...J<erw
!;i:
:;;
U)
::::>
0
Cl

3
I



4l #l # #3ill Ml44 ##l #3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

] 13/#/41 i 4//4/44444444444444444444; I I i § tni I I I I I I I I , 1 I I I I I I I I I I , I I I I I I I I I I ! ! ! I ,
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
I I4#444##ii j j I#3/4#433 I j Ill \Al3l3 I I i j I I I I i i i
tut 111III11 I I I I I I I I I Ii I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I Ii
i! l I I Iii l I! iii i ! I I I I I! I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
i J 1 1 I I I i i 1 I i I i i I i i i i i i i i i i I i i i 1 i I I I i i i i I I I
3]3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3/ 3] 3/ 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3l 3] i 3] i\ 3l 3\ il il il il il 5 il il il il i

] [/ £/ / / ] ] / / / / / 3/ ] 3/ / / / , ] ] l l / l l l el l l l el l l l l el l l l
3] 3]3] 3] 3] 3] 3 3] 3] 3 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3] 3 3/ 3] 3/ 3l 3l 3] 3l 3l 3] 3l 3l 3l 3l 3l 3

:c
0a

.
._.!:zz
" 0Ou

N

i

"'I

"Og
C:
0u

..
u
C:..a
E
0u
s
C:..
E
C:g

·;;;
C:
w

I
zxu.

N
M
M
"'

1-zw
:ii:wz
1-
(f)

>-0::
0
1-zw
>z
(f)

;;}_
ii:wz
:ii:
(f)
:::>
0
Cl
0::

~::c

"iiiu
E..
.cu

L- -0

..
Clg
0.;

,-.,
C:
0
-"u..
.c
,!2
0...

j H J J J I j j j 1 j j j j j j j j j j J I J J I J J I J J I J J J J I J MI J



3I3l ;
l3 >
0 0

g g
0 0

1 :4 "1Ill
0 0 0 0

:!!
0 0-0 -

:!!
0 Q ~ 0

~
0 0

#4
~

0 0

N C"I - N <D,.. - - N N 111 "f - N N N N - ,._ N.- MM NN-"1- N N NM MMM N

"'"0
C:
::,
- O0 ll.

.;
E

£
C

"0e
C:
0u

..u
C:..a
E
0u
s
C:..
E
C:g
·;;
C:w

I

1-zw
::Ewz
Ien
>Ir
0
1-zw>
:?;
en
...I
<{
a::
wz
::E
en::::,
0
Cl
Ir

~:x:

iJ JiNIIIMI\II IM NII Ij j j

..
"'e
0
ui
;;;
.;
"·;;;
C:



5
8
0

5
8
0

j
i
8
0

I !j
i
8
0

4 il 4l±

0z

E
0
0or

0 ~
C : 3·: ~ t"' . ,
0.1 2 e
~1-...::ii'-'~c:+--------+---ll--+-+-+--+-+--l---+---+-+--f--+-+--+----ll---f--+---f--+--+---f-f--+-+--,
~ ~ z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z. z z z z z z z ~l l 3y3]3]3l3]3] 3] 3] ±] 3] ] 3] 3] #] #] #l #l #l l ?l l ill l l 3
~~---l---------=-i.~,-...,,-1--''-l--'"-l--"'-!-----''-1----"'-1------''-1---"'-l-----''-1----"'-l---"-+1--"+-----"'+-~1---"'+----'-'+---"'+----'"-l----"'-1-~-"'-l---"-+---'-'+---"'-j
0
ui

..u
C:.,
'1i
E
0u
.;
c..
E
C:
l!·;;
C:w

0
N
M
M
"'

z~
11.

L-e
0
ui

1-zw
:ii:w

~en
>-
0::
0
1-z
w>z
en
~
ii:
wz
:ii:
en
::::i
0
Cl
0::

$
J:

..
"'e
0
ui

I.;
C:
0
-"u..
.c:
t9

0...

I i

I I

Xa
i

i

1
~

ia

Xa
i

!
Xa
i

~
;l

i
~

"'I



IQ
0

IQ
0

IQ
0

IQ IQ
0 0

IQ
0

IQ
0

j

IQ
0

jAl
ll ll
al is s
0 0

IQ IQ
0 0

IQ
0

j

IQIQ IQ IQ
0 0 0

IQ
0

IQ
0

IQ
0

j

IQ
0

i<l
0

IQ

5
8
0

IQ
0

i<l
0

IQ
0

i
8
0

6
0

o.
£?
Oo

E
0 "ii -o" ,_.,

..
"C:

.!!!
a.
E
0
(.)

s
C:

"E
C:g
·;;
C:w

zx
LL

fzw
:i:w

±en
>-
0::
0
fz
w>z
en
...J
<(
ii:
wz
:i:
en
::::i
0
Cl
0::

~
J:

i

I
1
#

iit
;

l
m
¥

I
"Clg
0;;;



t<l
0

IQ
0

3

J
E
ci

I;,
£

t<l
0

I'! I'! I'! I'! I'! 1l

2

iJ
Ui

0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

t<l t<l
0 0

t<l
0

5
t<l
0

t<l t<l
0 0

t<l
0

.,;.. a.
• Ee
t:.

N

N ~

l ±?
[,[,pl}bbllb}bbl-bblbl
el 4

g -;;.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 ±£"' . ,
C1) ~ e
Zl a±
i#1#[1,It#I1.#LI]./.I.II.I#Ht##t##lH
o e:: e1 el ] el el ] ] z] s! ] sl lg] ! l l ] l =] l ] ?l ] sl g]] g] s] g] l g
]<]s]is]]is]s]]i]s]s]i]s]ii]s]-]]3]3],3]3]3[3]3]3]3/i]ildsdis]sl
.!l
"'E
0
0

"'

E
C:
0u

"uC:
.!!!
C.
E
0u
s
C:

"E
C:g
·;;
C:w

N
"'
"'"'

zxu..

-
1-zw
::!:w
!ct
Ien
>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
en
..J
<(
ci:w
!ct
::!:
en
::,
0
Cl
ii::

~
:i::

I
I

I

Il I;

l

'-.;
C:
0.,.
u
".c:
,!:!

0
I-



14£j
I
0

fl?
0

j
I
0

jjHH

la
~

.Ez.

'E
0u

"g
C:
0
(.)

"'u
C:

.!!!
a.
E
0u
s
C:

"'E
C:g

·;;;
C:w

I
z~
LL

1-z
w
::;;
w
!;i:
I
(/)

>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
(/)
...J<
ii2
w
!;i:
::;;
(/)
:::)
0
0

3
I

I

1/1/ 1nn
H ff

1I#III1
8l%8I% %

lffff

,_
"'C:
0.,.
u
"',:;:

,\c!
0...



0 0 0 1,

~g
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3
0

jj
i(l
0

B B g
ll 3l 3

.-go.-.- N N-NN .- .- N NNN o-N N N.-.-.-NN.,.,-,-,-NOC0NOllNN

:G
0

0 0

j
:G
0

e
C
0
(J

.,
"C..la
E
0
(J

s
C.,
E
Ce·;:
Cw

0

z
l<'.u.

C
0
"O.,
;.
C
Cl·;;;.,
0

2

1

fzw
:;;
w±en
~
0
fz
w>z
en
...I
<t
G
wz:;;
en
:::>
0
0
et::

$
J:

N

i

4#
d d

I I
I
,:j

III8
I
5

.,
Cl
g
0
vi



j1\43143jil#

5a

.
C

• m:£
Ou"0C

.!l!
Q.
E
0
(J

7ii
i:
d0
E
Ce
£w

0

1-zw:;;
w
!;i:
1-
(JJ

>a::
0
1-z
w>z
(JJ
..J
ct
12w
!;i:
:;;
(JJ
::,
0
0a::
~
J:

zxu.

7ii
0 "".C C a,
(JO Cl

L_ 0 ti ~
C 4> ,2
0 .c "'
#/Is
.3 -~

"Clg
0.;;



j
~
0
0

j j
±!

Hu
0 ;;
0 0

j j j
il?
0 0 0

NNN N No-- -NNN-NN N N

:,:
0a

e&z
N 0
OU

"'"'C:ee
"'"'s
c'
0u..

.;
E

£
C

'Oe
C:
0u

..u
C:

.!!!
a.
E
0u
s
C:..
E
C:g

·;;;
C:
w

1-zw
::!Ewz
1-
<J)

~
0
1-z
w>z
<J)
..J
ci:~wz
::!E
<J)
::J
0
Cl
0:

~
I

-&
0

ki5

zxu.

2

I

II II
B B
8 %

f f

I

\;l
£

I

'.;
C:
0
-"u..
,:

t2
0...

"ene
0;;
iii
.;
'O
'iii
C:

iiiu ., ..
,: C: ..
u O en

L..._ - .::.: e
0 u o
g ~ iii
{]91e
0 '(n
..... .£



~ ~ § § E8 8 0 0 0
0 0

n
ll llI4 # Ij

!!H

J H s H

,- N N ~ ~ 0, N

! ! I H

C
0

€c
~u.,,
C..
C.
C
0

£u
£zz
!u

0z
u
£
3z
1u

.~ !'50 0 0 0 0 0 0

fl) ~ 1"' . ,
" , 0

~1--;i"-c-'~=+----+-+---l--1---1----4-+---l----+l--l---l----l--1-4---4-+---l--4---4--4---4-+-+---+---+-+---l---4H--l--+---1--l---l--4---4-+---I--H---+-+----l--1----4--l--~

i] 3]a]± 3]l::ll ] 3] : 4 ]]] [] :± ] ±] z] ± ±] z] :zllll 3] z] z 2 1]} 1] ±
~~--Z+-=-:.1· .....S,jcj.._..,:!• •-l-!:!.1-=·=-1--..:N?.j•ii]is[·i]-[ii]ii]is[i4=]=[rri]illIrillllIllili[]]li,i]i•.µ•0+•..!'-Jee•?.J..-,.,,. •-1---,:!• •J.;·::+..!•?.j...•.::••?.J- .s:e.i• •

; H1 ! ! ! h ; {#l..4#//a I L 6 ! ; i ! ii iii! i 111 #3all1
+ Mi\]i] 3] Z] ]] il5] 4 ili] ] ]il%] 3] 33] # fl.l #l ill ill iill ?l l al ililil all:l:la

"~
C:
0u

"uC:..
1'ii
E
0u
E
C:

"E
C:e·;;
C:w

I

l-e
B
(/)

1-z
w:;;
wz
Im
>
Cl:
0
1-z
w>z
rJ)

-.J.
ii:wz:;;
rJ)
:::J
0
0
Cl:

~
::c:

"Clg
0.;



3]A]AI]I a ll a
00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E § §
0 0 0

l
0 0

ill#
0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0

HHl
~ Ii

5l#l 31Al Zs1 al#l AI
o O O ~ ~ o O O O 0

- - M M - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - N N - - - - - - M M - - ~ ~ N N - - - - - u « - - - - - N N N - - -

C:
0u
"

-0g
C:
0u

"uC:..a
E
0u
s
C:

"E
C:g
·;;
C:w

I

1-zw
::;;
wz
Ien
>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
en
?
ii::wz::;;
en
:::,
0□0::
$
:r

,_
"C:
0
-"u
".c:(
0...

"Clg
0.;;



II £
3l al 3

fl 3ll #
0 O O 0

'1 " " '1 '1

00 00 000 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 C 0

.;
E
i::...;
0

N ~ '1 '1 '1 '1 '1
il ?

al;,1---"0-';=+:-+-::_+.,_+.,_t-_±_+..,_+._+--,,_+,,_t---,_=+,_+-::_+.,_+.,_t-=-h-±_+-::_+--,,_t---,_:+---:_+-::_+-.:Nho:+---,M+-,M+-.:N+--=+--:_+._+--::_+-=-h,c.-,f-:_+--::_+-,,,Nh_:+--,N,+-.,,~+-"'°'h_:+-..,.+._+--,,_hM,;1
..
<>
C
.!!!
Q.
E
0
(.)

ni
E..
E
Ce·s;
C

UJ

I
z
x<u.

1-z
w:;;
wz
ten
~
0
1-z
w>z
en
;;j_
ii:wz:;;
en
::::>
0
0a::
$
I

u
In

E

'.;
C
0
"'<>...c
,!2
s

ni
i.,,
'iii
C



~ ~
5
0 0

1]] Ii]2
0 0

4II 4 4\ 43 14/ 4 4 1 # 44 4 I4 # 4# # #/ # # # ts
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oo O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N N - N - N..., NM NM w w p D pt « M -- ~N NM N N MN tu • {j - NM

iii
E

~.;
0

..
<.>
C:
.!!!
ci.
E
0
(.)

<iic..
E
C:g
-~
w

5

I
zx
LL

fzw
:i;:
w±en
ii:
0
fz
w>z
en
...I
<{
ii:
wz
:i;:
en
:::i
0
C
0::

~::c

..
eng
0
vi
<ii
iii
-0·.;;
C:



zx
LL

1l #l # 4

i
E
5
ni
0

N

N .. -~
al ±?
1§1---'0"--"~+--M-i-N,+-_-+--N-l--_-l-~+N+--N+--.-1--_¾-_-+--_+--N-l-~N¾-_-+-_-+--~-l--.j.....-_¾-_-+--N+--_-1--M-1-N,+_N-+---N-l--_-l-~+.-+--.+--_-1--_¾-N,_.
gl $

...c
ni..
:,::

.,,
g
C:
0u

..
"C:
.!l!

~
0u..
i:..
E
C:g

·~
w

1-zw:;;
w
!;;:
1-
(J)

>-0::
0
1-z
w>z
tJ)
...J
cl:
a'.
w
!;;:
:;;
tJ)
::>
0
D

~
J:

~- ...
0 "C: ..
0 .c

/
0

...J

..
i.,,

·;;;
C:



AUTO PARTS.
IEEE,III7I,LILE,Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

mama pr1ng[ye]d, ][() (()]a
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

O'Reilly Auto Parts Retail Store Commodity Classification & Storage Plan
Letter of Explanation: New Store Location:

(FKN) 7251 S 27St, Franklin, WI

Site Information
This letter is with respect to O'Reilly Auto Parts (OAP) store (FKN) located at 7251 S 24 St,
Franklin, WI. This is a remodel store location building project.

Use Group and Construction Type
The primary use group is M (Mercantile) and Construction Type 11-B is protected without a fire
sprinkler system.

Introduction
The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) lists the guidelines necessary to protect both life
and property both in fire prevention and fire hazard minimization. O'Reilly Auto Parts is providing
this letter to demonstrate compliance with both International Fire Code (IFC) and NFPA standards.

As a retailer of replacement automotive parts and accessories, we carry a large selection of various
replacement parts and maintenance/appearance chemicals offered for sale to both walk-in "Do-It
Yourself' and deliver to professional "shop or installer" customers. We do not service vehicles or
perform repairs other than installing windshield wiper blades and testing/replacing automotive
batteries. Automotive appearance and maintenance fluids are stored both metal and plastic bottles
and comprise a measurable part of our product inventory, primarily on our retail sales floor. Per our
distribution network and business model, our stores receive replenishment stock five days a week
which allows our retail stores additional flexibility by limiting the amount of "back stock" chemical
product in our backroom storage shelving.

With some noted exceptions, the vast majority of these automotive fluids are combustible liquids
stored in thin high-density polyethylene (HOPE) plastic bottles. The typical melting point ofHDPE
plastic ranges from 248 to 356 degrees Fahrenheit. These types of plastic have low thermal
conductivity, but will combust if placed in contact with open flame or other high intensity heat
source. No activities in our store operation (no welding, no smoking, etc.) would generate open
flame or other heat intensity high enough to support combustion of these containers.

As a retail operation, the commodities stored within our facilities are considered "Mixed I-IV"
commodities with some "High Hazard" commodities, primarily combustible liquids stored in Group
A plastic containers. Many of the parts we offer for sale are primarily metal (called hard parts")

male/dieted to the [of@lo/ala



AUTO PARTS.
LI,ZEE,II7LLELE,IIa P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

mama prig[1el] [[() (65()]
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

contained in corrugated or shelf pack cartons such as brake drums and rotors, alternators, fuel
pumps, etc. Some parts are metal and are loose (not containerized) such as exhaust pipes, brake
supply lines, etc.

A photo of our typical store chemical product aisle with metal shelving (gondola) and mixed
commodities in both plastic and metal containers is provided below for point of reference.

View of Retail Sales floor Gondola shelving with the various chemical commodities offered for
sale.
The retail sales floor houses the majority of our chemical product including appearance chemicals
(waxes, wheel cleaners, polishes, glass cleaners, etc.), lead acid batteries, and maintenance
chemicals (motor oils, hydraulic fluids, brake fluid, antifreeze, fuel additives, etc.). The products are

-----------Dedicated to the Professional-----------



UTO PARTS.
2IEEE77I7LILL,,7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

---------------------Springfield, MO 65801---
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

not cartoned or encapsulated. The shelving on the retail sales floor varies from 60" in height to 78"
in height for the aisle or gondola shelving; the wall units are typically 78" in height. (Image below
for visual reference).

----------•Dedicated to the Professional -----------



AUTO PARTS® P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

2" ffjjj
www.oreillyauto.com

etterr~

---------- Dedicated to the Professional ----------



UTO PARTS®
LI,EEEE,II7LILL,EI7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

---------------------Springfield, MO 65801---
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Storage Height
All commodities will be stored on metal shelving, some back-to-back, not to exceed 30" in width.
The retail sales floor and backroom storage area serve different purposes, however, these areas are
rarely separated by a 1 hour fire rated barrier and similarly rated door, hence, the designation of the
entire store as a single control area.

Retail Sales Floor Shelving: Shelf storage consists of items on a structure where solid shelves are
less than 30" deep, measured from aisle to aisle and usually less than 24" apart vertically. Wall
shelving is single depth with a maximum storage height of 78". Shelving ranges from 9" to 15" in
depth and 48" in width. (Example below)

lflXTUIRE LOCATIONS BY SECTION {SIDE VIEW)
11n r48h LcooB.v
Lczer/t 1 '(tressIt 1 Kentct 1

3ln r48/rJ l!..c~ Bar
' o17 (Streeter It5 J [ Kent-Sia 5 :,

6tn :;r 4ati l!..c~ Bar
( LOl!ef Slot 13 :, ( Slre'lltef SIDI 11 ] I Kentct3
a senss

/. Lca!B' B~IDt 19 ) £ Sr:erct 1 } !'..ent Sid 14 )

i\11 r48ln n.coo Bar
Lg2leg_t2 )iSrserct23 £Kent 3ct2)

Uln :;r 491n Lcadl Bar
Lczerct34Ste±er/12 4Kent at24

Ty 13n Stet
r Lazler Slct 48- rserct 33 Kent S!ct 34 )

I¥ 1Sr Stet
r Lazler S!ct !:-9 ), 7erct 48 Kent S!ct 41 )

----------•Dedicated to the Professional -----------



UTO PARTS.
IEEE7I7I,ILLE7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson
am ring[1e]d_ [[() (65()]a

Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Back Room Storage Area

The Back Room storage area holds automotive parts which aren't offered for retail display and back
stock "over stock" product for replenishing fast selling parts/fluids on the sales floor. The majority
of the back room parts are comprised of metal automotive parts in single wall corrugated cartons or
thinner cardboard shelf pack cartons; non-banded and non-encapsulated. Similar to the retail sales
floor, the back room product is stored on shelf storage with solid shelves less than 30" deep and less
than 24" apart vertically. Following are examples of new store (FKN) backroom 8- 10 feet height
metal shelving units with wooden shelves holding shelf pack automotive thermometers and back
stock chemicals. No carousel storage configurations will be installed in any of our store locations.
Within the backroom of the O'Reilly new store (FKN) control area there are six separate
locations with Group A plastic and rubber high pile storage. The total area of all six locations
total 124 square feet.

----------•Dedicated to the Professional -----------



UTO PARTS.
7I,ELET7II3LL,LELE7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

Springfield, MO 65801
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

TABLE 3206.2
GENERAL FIRE PROTECTION AND LIFE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

ALL STORAGE AREAS SOLID-PILED STORAGE, SHELF
(Seo Sections 3206, 3207 and 3208 )° STORAGE AND PALLETIZED STORAGE

SIZE OF HIGH-PILED (see Section 3207.3)
STORAGE AREA'COMMODITY (square feet) Automatic fire Fire detection Building Smoke and Maximum

CLASS extinguishing Maximum pile permissible Maximum(see Sections 3206.2 ond system access heat removal
3206.4) system (seeSection (see Section (see Section dimension° storage pile volume

(see Section 3206.5) 3206.6) 3206.7) (feet) height (cubic feet)
3206.4) (feet)

0-500 Not Not Not Not Not Not Not
Required Required Required Required Required Required Required

501-2,500 Not Yes' Not Not 100 40 100,000Required Required' Required
2,501-12,000 Yes Not Not Not 100 40 400,000Public accessible Required Required' Required
2,501-12,000 Not Not NotNonpublic accessible Yes Required Required' Required 100 40 400,000

I-IV
(Option 1
2,501-12,000 NotNonpublic accessible Required' Yes Yes Yes! 100 30' 200,000
(Option 2)

12,001-20,000 Yes Not Yes Yes 100 40 400,000Required

20.001-500,000 Yes Not Yes Yes 100 40 400,000Required
Greater than Yes Not Yes Yes 100 40 400,000soo,0001 Required

0-500 Not Not Not Not so Not Not
Required' Required Required' Required Required Required

501-2,500 Yes Not Not Not so 30 75,000Public accessible Required Required' Required
501-2,500 Not Not NotNonpublic accessible Yes Required Required' Required 50 30 75,000

High (Option 1)
hazard 501-2,500

Nonpublic accessible Not Yes Yes Yes so 20 50,000
(Option 2) Required'

2,501-300.000 Yes Not Yes Yes' 50 30 75,000Required

300.,001-500,000 Yes Not Yes Yes 50 30 75,000Required

Dedicated to the Professional



AUTO PARTS® P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson2"s" jig
www.oreillyauto.com

" -t ' -, j /~-·I u ,
• r. ·t' ~ l11.

"

,; ' r,
I

----------Dedicated to the Professional----------



AUTO PARTS.
2IEEE7III,LILE,JIa P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

---------------------Springfield, MO 65801---
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Commodity Packaging Description
The vast majority of the flammable or combustible liquid product in the retail sales floor area is
removed from the corrugated outer carton and displayed as individual bottles for retail sale. None of
our product meets the criteria for encapsulated per the code as the top ofall inbound and outbound
shipments ofreplenishment stock are wrapped on all four sides but left open on the top ofthe
palletized load.

Limited Quantities of Group A Plastics
The fire code allows a limited amount ofGroup A plastics within any commodity classification
without increasing the commodity classification. The fire code provides a graph that enables users to
determine whether or not the amount ofGroup A plastics will cause the commodity classification to
increase. In order to determine what the final commodity classification is, a minimum oftwo data
points are necessary. Either the percent by volume ofexpanded plastic or percent by weight of
expanded plastic, and percent by weight ofunexpanded plastic, are required. Nearly all plastic in our
store location is unexpanded plastic. Plastic commodities are divided into three groups; Group A
(highest hazard), Group B, and Group C (lowest hazard). If the hazard ofthe plastic is unknown, a
Group A designation should be selected. Group A plastics are considered high hazard commodities.

3

6

9

0
252015105

CLASSIFY AS
HIGH-HAZARD
COMMODITY

CLASSIFY
AS CLASS IV
COMMODITY

CLASSIFY AS
CLASS I, II, OR Ill
COMMODITY

',

30

25

5n.
0

2o
z
ct
6
u.
O 15uz::::>
d>G 1o
5
uI

ffi
a. 5

PERCENT BY WEIGHT OF UNEXPANDED PLASTIC'

-----------Dedicated to the Professional -----------



UTO PARTS.
7I,EEET7I7LILLIE7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

----------------------Springfield, MO 65801---
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

The following formulas are used to determine the amounts of plastics within a commodity.
Percent by volume = Volume of plastic in pallet load

Total volume of pallet load, including pallet

Percent by weight= Weight of plastic in pallet load
Total weight of pallet load, including pallet.

The formulas are based on an individual pallet or carton load. This means the entire pallet or carton
must be considered in determining the amount of plastics.

•
:
we#at

"

.5 to 22 ounces 1171.25 Steel Canister
lbs.

Level 3 Aerosols AER3
(Spray paint,
starting fluid and
brake cleaners)

Store Chemical Commodity Listing

Chemical Map Container Size Total Container
Commodity Code Amount Type

Stored
Level 1 Aerosols AERl 3 to 22.8 395.25 Steel Canister -t. tet. A4

such as brake ounces lbs.

%cleaners, Fix-A-
Flat, Tire Foam
cleaners, etc. 8
Level 2 Aerosols AER2 I to 18 ounces 140.36 Steel Canister

.

including tire lbs.
shine, engine
paint and spray
degreasers

-----------Dedicated to the Professional -----------



UTO PARTS.
IEEE,II7I,IL,Ira P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Pattersonma'pring[e[d, ][() (5() ]a

Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Combustible CLII
Liquid Class II
(Fuel injector
cleaners, Octane
boosters, etc.)

.5 to 128
ounces

51.00 Plastic bottle,
gallons steel cans

Combustible CLIIIB
Liquid Class IIIB
(Predominantly
motor oil,
transmission
fluid, brake
fluid

.07 to 640 2957.59 Plastic
ounces gal Ions containers
(Typically in
quart, gallon or
2.5 gallon
containers)

Corrosive COR

Flammable Gas FLG
(Disposable MAP
gas and butane
cylinders)

Flammable FL
Liquids (Fuel
additives,
automotive
paints and
thinners)

12 oz. to 2.5 330.30 Steel Cans,
gallon gallons Plastic

bottles or
sealed plastic
battery
casmg

5.6 oz. to 14.1 4.63 lbs. Steel
oz. total cylinders

(gas) and
steel
canisters
(aerosol)

.05 steel tubes 69.78 Steel cans
to 5 gallon gallons
steel containers @

--- -·
Flammable Solid FS
(Roadside safety
flare 3 pack)

12 oz. .59 oz. Paper outer
total shell

mm [Jg/jgt@d to tg [of@lo/llasses



UTO PARTS.
2ILE±ET7ZILL1J7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson
an'pring[[e]d ][() (5() ]a

Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

oz. lbs. cylinders and
steel cans

Non-Flammable NFG
Gas
(R134a
Refrigerants)

12 0z. to 480 51.27 Steel

Organic Peroxide OPER
(Body filler
activators)

.75oztubeand 0.17 Steeltube
2.75 oz. tube; gallons and steel can
32 oz. can

Oxidizer,
Class 1 (Parts
Cleaner)

Water Reactive

OXI

WRII

96 oz. can and 0.53
5 gallon steel gallons
bucket

48 oz. per 47.70
battery gal Ions

Steel can,
steel bucket

Sealed
plastic case

EEa

----------•Dedicated to the Professional -----------



UTO PARTS.
IEEE,III7I,ILE,,Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson
ma 'pr1ng[geld ][() (65()]a

Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Definitions
Aerosol A product which is dispensed from a pressurized aerosol container by the use of a
propellant.
Carton A method of storage consisting of corrugated cardboard or paperboard containers fully
enclosing the commodity. (NFPA 13)
Combustible A material that, in the form in which it is used under the conditions anticipated, will
ignite and burn. A material that does not meet the definition of non-combustible. (NFPA 101)
Combustible, Non A material that, in the form in which it is used and under the conditions
anticipated, will not ignite, burn, support combustion or release flammable vapors when subjected to
heat.
Combustible, Ordinary Commodities consisting ofwood, paper, natural fibers, etc.
Commodities The combinations ofproduct, packing material and container under which commodity
classifications are based. (IFC, FFC, CFC)
Encapsulated A method of packaging consisting of a plastic sheet completely enclosing the sides
and top of a pallet load containing a combustible commodity, a combustible package, a group of
combustible commodities or combustible packages.
High Pile Combustible Storage Storage of combustible materials in closely packed piles or
combustible materials on pallets, in racks or on shelves where the top of storage is greater than 12
feet in height. When required by the fire code official, high-piled combustible storage also includes
certain high-hazard commodities such as rubber tires, Group A plastics, flammable liquids, idle
pallets, where the top of storage is greater than 6 feet in height. (IFC)
High Pile Storage Area An area within a building which is designated, intended, proposed or
actually used for high pile combustible storage. This definition is intended to include the actual floor
space of racks or piles, and associated aisles, when required. (IFC, FFC, CFC)
Plastics, Group A Group A plastics are plastic materials having a heat of combusting that is much
higher than that of ordinary combustibles, and a burning rate higher than that ofGroup B plastics.
(JFC, FFC, CFC)
Rack Any combination of vertical, horizontal, and diagonal members which supports stored
materials. Some rack structures use solid shelving. Racks can be fixed, portable, moveable. (NFPA
13)
Rack, Single Row Racks with no longitudinal flue space, and having a width up to 6 feet, with
aisles at least 3 ½ feet from other storage.
Rack, Double Row Two single row racks placed back to back, creating a flu space, having a
combined width of up to 12 feet, with aisles at least 3 ½ feet on each side. (NFPA 13)
Solid shelving Fixed-in-place solid, slatted or other types of shelves, located within the racks, and
which obstructs sprinkler discharge down into the racks. (IFC, FFC, CFC, NFPA 13)
Storage, Height The measurement between the finished floor and top of the stored commodity. This
is not to mean the measurement taken to the top of the highest shelf on the rack or other storage
systems.

aml)gdjated to tJg [of@lo/ala



UTO PARTS.
7ILE±ETTI,LILLIE7Ia P.O. Box 1156 • 233 S. Patterson

----------------------Springfield, MO 65801----
Phone (417) 862-3333
www.oreillyauto.com

Storage, Rack Storage in racks that use combinations of vertical, horizontal and diagonal members,
with or without solid shelves, to support stored material. Racks may be fixed in place or portable.
Storage, Shelf Storage on a structure where shelves are less than 30 inches deep with the distance
between shelves usually 2 feet apart and not exceeding 3 feet vertically, and separated by
approximately 30 inches. (IFC, FFC, CFC, NFPA 13)

-----------Dedicated to the Professional-----------



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR NEW O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
STORE - S. 27"" STREET, FRANKIN, WI.

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section Twelve (12), Township Five (S) North, Range Twenty-one
(21) East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin, described by metes and bounds as
follows:

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Northeast Quarter; thence South 01 degree 26 minutes 19
seconds West, assumed bearing, along the east line of said Northeast Quarter, a distance of 994 37 feet;
thence South 89 degrees 01 minute 13 seconds West, a distance of 330 07 feet to the point of beginning
of the parcel to be described; thence South 01 degree 26 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 136 99
feet to the northerly right of way line of West Minnesota Avenue; thence North 89 degrees 01 minute 13
seconds East, along said northerly right of way hne, a distance of 201.49 feet to the westerly right of way
lme of STH 241 as shown on Transportaton Project Plat 2265-16-20-4.06, recorded as Document No
10227659; thence North 01 degree 26 minutes 19 seconds East, along said westerly right of way lme, a
distance of 20 01 feet to point PRW621 as shown on said Transportation ProJect Plat; thence North 89
degrees 01 mmute 13 seconds East, contnumng along said westerly right of way line, a distance of 36.50
feet to point PRW622 as shown on said right of way plat; thence North 01 degree 26 minutes 19 seconds
East, continuing along said westerly right of way lme, a distance of 116 97 feet, more or less, to its
intersection with a line bearmg North 89 degrees 01 mmute 13 seconds East from said pomt of
begmning; thence South 89 degrees 01 minute 13 seconds West, a distance of 237.99 feet to said pomt
of beginning and there terminating.

Said parcel contains 0 731 acres or 37,847 square feet

Subject to easements, restrictons, or reservations of record, If any



CRAIG A. SCHNEIDER, AIA

architect

1736 E SUNSHINE, SUITE 417
SPRINGFIELD, MO 65804

417 862 0558
FAX 417 862 3265

email crag@esterlyschneuder com
February 14, 2025
Revised April 8, 2025

CIrty of Franklin
Planning Department
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Attn Mr Regulo Martinez-Mont1lva, Planning Manager

Re O'Reilly Auto Parts
$. 27 St
Franklin, WI (FKN)

Below is the project description, as requested by the Site Plan Review and Special Use Permit
Submittal Checklists Please feel free to contact our office rf you have any further questions

Project Description

Construction of a new O'Reilly Auto Parts Store 1s being planned for S. 27th St , near the
intersection of S. 27% St and W Minnesota Ave in Franklin, Wisconsin The property 1s
currently vacant It is located in the B-4 South 27% Street Business District Site Improvements
include: parking, landscaping, a new sidewalk in the nght-of-way along W Minnesota Ave, site
lighting Improvements, and various pedestran/bicyclist amenities Various wavers from Section
15 of the City of Franklin's Unified Development Ordinance are being requested, please refer to
the Wavier Request Letter, revised Apnl 8, 2025, also included in this submittal Please note
that plans for this proJect were previously approved by the City of Franklin Planning Commission
1n October of 2017

The store will be owned by O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc and 1s a business for the purpose of
the retail sale of auto parts Please refer to the below for add1t1onal information

• Store Hours of Operation: 7 days a week- 7 30am -9 00pm

• Number of Employees: 10-12



City of Franklin - Planning Department
O'Reilly Auto Parts Store ProJect Description
April 8, 2025
Page 2 of 2

• Details Regarding Deliveries {# deliveries per day/week, type and size of delivery
vehicles, hours of delivery, etc.): Roughly 5 dehvenes per week, 53' trailer between
9pm and 6am

• Fiscal Impact on City of Franklin: Creation of multiple Jobs, and local sales to the
people of Franklin

• Estimate of Project Value: $1,600,000

• Site Improvement Costs Only: $180,000

• Overnight Parking of Company Vehicles: 2-3 small pickup trucks for the purpose of
local delrveres will be parked on site Typically these are either Ford Rangers or Nissan
Frontiers, which have a gross vehicle weight of about 6,000lbs

W\data\O'Reilly\Wisconsin\Franklin - FKNCorrespondence\l Project Description - FKN docx



CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2017, 7:00P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call

B. Approval of Minutes

1. Approval of regular meeting of October 5, 2017.

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following
the respective Public Hearing thereon)

1. VY J. KOTLEWSKI AND KRISTIN L. OSGOOD DECK ADDITION TO
EXISTING HOME [recommendation to Board of Zoning and Building Appeals].
Application by Vy J. Kotlewski and Kristin L. Osgood for an Area Exception from Table
15-3 .0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow for a maximum lot coverage
of 18%, exceeding the R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District maximum
lot coverage standard of 0.15 or 15%, for property located at 9225 South Wild Berry
Way, for construction of a 353 square foot deck addition on the south side of the existing
home (which will increase lot coverage by approximately 2%, with existing home and
garage already exceeding the maximum lot coverage by approximately 1%), property
zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District; Tax KeyNo. 881-0170-
000. A PUBLIC HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS MEETING UPON THIS
MATTER.

D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the followingmatters; action may be
taken on all matters)

1. SACRED HEART SEMINARY AND SCHOOL OF THEOLOGY BUILDING B
EXTERIOR RENOVATIONS AS PART OF A LARGER INTERIOR BUILDING
RENOVATION TO UPGRADE THE RESIDENCES AND COMMON AREAS IN
BUILDING B. Site Plan Amendment application by Sacred Heart Seminary and School
of Theology Inc., property owner/applicant, to allow for construction of a new parking
area and entrance addition on the west side of Building B, associated landscaping, a new
water lateral to serve the building's fire protection system, new hydrants on the north side
of the building and approval of a parking lot addition on the east side of Building B that
was constructed in 2016 without City approval, for property zoned I-1 Institutional
District, C-1 Conservancy District and FFO Floodplain Fringe Overlay District, located
at 7335 South Lovers Lane Road; Tax Key No. 752-9998-000.

E. Adjournment



Franklin Plan Commission Agenda
10/19/17
Page 2

*Support ing documentation and details ofthese agenda items are avmlable at City hall dunng nonnal business hours

**Notice 1s given that a mayonty ofthe Common Council may attend this meetmg to gather mfonnallon about an agenda item over which they have
dec1S1on-makmg respons1b1hty This may constitute a meetmg ofthe Common Council perState ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even though the
Common Council wll not take formal action at thus meeting.

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs ofdisabled individuals through appropnate ads and services For add1tonal
infonnat1on, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS·
Next Regular Plan Commission Meetmg. November 9, 2017



Page 1

City ofFranklin
Plan Commission Meeting

October 5, 2017
Minutes

Plan Commssion -Minutes
October 5, 2017

Unapproved

A. Call to Order and Roll Call

B. Approval ofMinutes

1. Regular Meeting ofSeptember 21,
2017.

C. Public Hearing Business Matters

1. O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE
STORES, INC.; "AUTO AND HOME
SUPPLY STORES" USE. Special Use
application by O'Reilly Automotive
Stores, Inc., for construction ofa 7,228
square foot O'Reilly Auto Parts store with
associated parking, landscaping, fencing
and lighting, upon an approximately 0.72
acre property, zoned B-4 South 27th
Street Mixed-Use Commercial District,
located at 7251 South 27th Street;
Requested Waivers ofSouth 27th Street
Design Overlay District Standards:
a. 15-3.0352A. Parking required and
location regulated (fifty (50) percent of
the off-street parking spaces shall be
located directly between the front facade
ofthe building and the public street).
b. 15-3.0353B. Coordination ofsite
furnishings (lighting and site furnishings
[benches, trash receptacles, bicycle racks,
etc.]).
c. 15-3.0353C.3 Pedestrian
considerations (pedestrian and bicycle
access within the development and
connections to adjacent properties).
d. 15-3.03 53C.4 Pedestrian
considerations (sidewalks along the entire
length offacade, leaving room for

Mayor Steve Olson called the October 5, 2017 regular Plan
Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council
Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin.

Present were Commissioners Patricia Hogan, Kevin Haley and
David Fowler, Alderman Mark Dandrea and City Engineer
Glen Morrow. Also present were Planning Manager Joel Dietl
and Principal PlannerNick Fuchs.

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Haley
seconded approval of the September 21, 2017 minutes of the
regular meeting of the Plan Commission. On vo1ce vote, all
voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

Planning Manager Joel Dietl presented the request by O'Reilly
Automotive Stores, Inc., for construction ofa 7,228 square foot
O'Reilly Auto Parts store with associated parking, landscaping,
fencing and lighting, upon an approximately 0.72 acre property,
zoned B-4 South 27th Street Mixed-Use Commercial District,
located at 7251 South 27th Street.

The Official Notice ofPublic Hearing was read mn to the record
by Principal Planner Fuchs and the Public Hearing was opened
at 7:06 and closed at 7:10.

a. Commissioner Fowler moved and CommissionerHogan 
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15
3 .0352A. pertaining to parking, subject to striking language
within Condition No. 15 related to relocating the building
closer to South 27 Street. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'.
Motion carried (5-0-0).

b. Commissioner Haley moved and Aldennan Dandrea
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15
3.0353B. pertaining to site furnishings.

CommissionerMorrow moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded a motion to reconsider Item b. On voice vote, all
voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

Commissioner Fowler moved and Commissioner Morrow
seconded a motion to amend the main motion to reqmre the
applicant revise the site plan to mclude a minimum ofone



Page2

foundation planting beds).
e. 15-3.0353C.5. Pedestrian
considerations (pedestrian walkways from
building entrances to public sidewalks or
pedestrian/bike facilities).
f. 15-3.0353E. Bicycle and pedestrian
amenities required (integrated bicycle
parking and pedestrian furniture in
appropriate quantities and location).
g. l 5-3.0353F.1. Landscaping (building
foundation landscaping for building
frontage).
h. 15-3.0355A.8. and 9. Building
Character and Design (sides ofthe
building shall be designed with details
that complement the front facade).
i. 15-3.0355B.3.a. and c. Building
Materials and Colors (facades shall be
varied and articulated; decorative patterns
must be incorporated).
j. 15-3 0355B 6. Change in Relief of
Building (building must include changes
in reliefon at least ten ( 10) percent ofthe
primary facade).
k. 15-3.0355B.4 b. RoofMaterials,
Parapets, and RoofPitch (flat roofs are
permitted with detailed stepped parapets
or detailed brick coursing).
I. 15-3.0355B 7.a., b. and c. Windows
(windows shall include sills at the bottom
and pediments at the top; windows:
sixteen ( 16) square feet per story or six
(6) percent ofthe facade, whichever is
greater).
m. 15-3.0355B.8.d Pedestnan
Accessibility (building shall utilize a
comer entrance to the building).
Tax Key No. 761-9956-001.

Plan Commission -Minutes
October 5, 2017

bench, one trash receptacle and one bicycle rack. On voice vote,
all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

On the main motion as amended, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried
(5-0-0).

e City EngineerMorrow moved and Commissioner Haley
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under l 5-
3.0353C.3. pertaining to pedestrian and bicycle access. On
voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

d. CommissionerHogan moved and Commissioner Haley
seconded amotion to waive the required standards under l 5-
3.0353C.4. pertaining to sidewalks. On voice vote, all voted
'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

e. Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea
seconded amotion to waive the required standards under 15-
3.0353C.5. pertaining to pedestrian walkways with the insertion
of"preferably at the northeast comer ofthe site, and to provide
a sidewalk and curb and gutter along West Minnesota Avenue"
following "South 27 Street" in Condition No. 17. On voice
vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

f. Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea
seconded amotion to waive the required standards under 1 S-
3.0353E. pertaining to bicycle parking and pedestrian furniture.
On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

g. Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded amotion to waive the required standards under 1 S-
3.0353F. l. pertaining to landscaping. On voice vote, all voted
'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

h. Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded a motion to warve the required standards under 15
3.0355A 8 and 9. pertaming to building character and design
standards. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

i Commissioner Haley moved and Commissioner Hogan
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15
3 0355B.3 a. and c. pertaining to building mater1als and colors.
On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion camed (5-0-0).

j. CommissionerHogan moved and Commissioner Haley
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15-
3 0355B.6. pertaining to change in rehefofbuilding On voice
vote, all voted 'aye' Motion carried (5-0-0)

k. Alderman Dandrea moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded a motion to warve the required standards under 15



Page3

C. Public Hearing Business Matters

2. WOODLAND PRAIRIE
CONDOMINIUMS UNIT NUMBER
REDUCTION. Special Use Amendment
application by Rick & Ron Development,
LLC, to reduce the number of
condominium units from 44 units to 32
units (The original site plan included 13
buildings (two 6 unit, five 4 unit and six 2
unit buildings). The applicant is
requesting to revise the site plan to
include 15 buildings consisting ofall 2
unit buildings, except for BuildingNo. 4,
which has already been constructed as a 4
unit building. The applicant is also
proposing two additional building types
and associated landscaping changes, upon
property zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District, located at 6700-6799
South Prairiewood Lane; Tax Key Nos.
747-0038-000 through 747-0081-000
(The proposed amendment encompasses
the entirety ofand is the same bounded
property as is mn the ex1sting Woodland
Prairie Condommiums condominium plat,

Plan Commission -- Minutes
October 5, 2017

3.0355B.4.b. pertaimng to roofmaterials, parapets, and roof
pitch. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0)

I. CommissionerHaley moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15
3.0355B.7 .a., b. and c. pertaining to windows. On voice vote,
all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).

m. Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Fowler
seconded a motion to waive the required standards under 15
3.0355B.8.d. pertaining to pedestrian accessibility. On voice
vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0)

Commissioner Fowler moved and City Engmeer Morrow
seconded amotion to insert "in part to further assist mn storm
water management" following "provded" to Condition No 8.a.
ofthe draft resolution On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion
carried (5-0-0).

Commissioner Fowlermoved and Commissioner Haley
seconded a motion to recommend approval ofa Resolution
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a
Spec1al Use for an auto parts retail store upon property located
at 7251 South 27" Street. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion
carried (5-0-0).

Plannmg Manager Joel Dietl presented the request by Rick &
Ron Development, LLC, to reduce the number ofcondominium
units from 44 units to 32 units.

The Official Nonce ofPublic Hearing was read in to the record
by Principal Planner Fuchs and the Public Hearing was opened
at 7:50 and closed at 7:53.

Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea seconded
a motion to recommend approval ofa Resolution to amend
Resolution No. 2006-6217 imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use for Woodland Prairie
Condominiums (formerly Carleton Creek Condominiums)
located at 6700-6799 South Prairiewood Lane to reduce the
number ofcondominium units from 44 units to 32 units On
voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5-0-0).





One Honey Creek Corporate Center
125 South 84Street, Suite 401
Milwaukee, WI 53214-1470
414 / 2591500
414 / 259 0037 lax
www.graefusa.com-GRAEF collaborate / formulate / innovate

Anderson Engineering Natural Resource Investigation

TO:

FROM:

Wes Weimer, El
Anderson Engineering
2045 W. Woodland
Springfield, MO 65807

Mike Al-wathiqui

Phone: (414) 266-9299
Email: mike.al-wathiqui@graef-usa.com

DATE: 9/22/2017

SUBJECT: Natural Resource (NRPP) Investigation

Please be advised that GRAEF-USA, Inc. (GRAEF) has investigated for the presence of
natural resources as defined by the City of Franklin in the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO) within the Anderson Engineering Study Area determined by Anderson
Engineering as shown on the attached figure (Figure 1). The investigation yielded the
following results:

On the date of the site visit, August 16, 2017 no natural resources as defined by the City
of Franklin in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) were identified within the Study
Area designated by Anderson Engineering (Figure 1 ).

Two soil units are mapped within the Study Area and include Morley silt loam, 2 to 6
percent slopes, eroded (MzdB2) and Blount silt loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes (BIA). The
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) classifies Blount silt loam as an
indicator soil for the potential presence of wetlands.

Despite the presence of the WDNR wetland indicator soil, no wetlands were identified on
site. Data was collected at a sample point located within the WDNR wetland indicator
soil unit mapped within the Study Area to document upland conditions. Vegetation in the
area was dominated by Cirsium arvensis (Canada Thistle) and Echinoch/oa crus-gal/i
(Barnyard Grass). Soils at the sample point did not meet any of the indicator criteria for
hydric soils and there were no indicators of hydrology present.

A confirmation meeting is required to confirm the absence of wetlands. A meeting was
scheduled for September 2O, 2017, but been rescheduled at the request of the WDNR.
A date for the meeting has not yet been established, but the WDNR has committed to
complete confirmation before the end of the growing season.

Project No .. 2017-0197.00



Please contact me at (414) 266-9299 if you have any questions.

Thank you,

71il, al-wMM46
Mike Al-wathiqui
Environmental Scientist

Project No 2015-0098.00





ANDERSON '-IJ.':Jj ~NGINEERING
~ EMPLOYEE OWNED

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS - Franklin, WI

The proposed development is an approximately 7,228 square feet building
consisting of 3,100 square feet of retail space and 4,128 square feet of
warehouse. The overall footprint of the development is approximately 0. 73
acres.

Following is a Trip Generation Summary utilizing the industry accepted Institute
of Traffic Engineers 8" Edition Trip Generation Codes 843 and 150 of the
proposed O'Reilly Auto Parts development.

TRIP GENERATION SUMMARY
According to the 8th Edition ITE Trip Generation Codes 843 & 150, an automobile
parts store is expected to generate 207 daily trips. The AM hourly peak is 8 trips
and the PM hourly peak is 20 trips.

Automobile Part Sales 843

Warehousing 150

61.91

3.56

3.100

4.128

192

15

7

1

'19

1

*KSF = thousand square foot.

Total Development 207 8 20

PARKING SUMMARY
The O'Reilly parking lot provides a total of 26 parking spaces.
ITE assumes 50% of the calculated peak rate is entering and 50% is exiting.
Therefore, the maximum number of trips entering the site per hour is 10.
(20 PM Peak Hour Trips* 50%)
The provided number of parking spaces is more than twice the maximum number
of trips entering the site. Therefore, the o•~1ijiy,~ite has provided enough parking
for the generated traffic. ..,.\'lf~·•'-~:Q·. A :~Jtp.,,,,"to' IV, ",?}«$%;;·is·..}!j,,

$s$"+" " ,
? PAUL.J. ";

3 P;' E:43E] % ±
5 E!Wit.. % (re?z1: 9,924.1p; z :::::

r «r • ohs""tri) @ I.A.I ....:;:: ....,, .. ''"~G'"''l'"L'~ "1 ..., •• + ;pt{dfi " li..1 ,'f ,lJ ~,,,» 9 , . it ! + - " ,,:0. MO ss.
.i;,~, •• .."' ('' .... ~it ·, ~.+"9.g,, "n+of6s",-% ,4S
.] At ,s°$#es

AndersonEngineeringinc.com
2045 W. Woodland, Springfield, Missouri 65807 • Phone: 417.866.2741 • -E-mail: info@andersonengineeringinc.com

' .
CIVIL.ENGINEERING• SURVEYING• STRUCTURAL• GIS •MUNICIPAL• GEOTECHNICAL/DRILLING • MATERIALS TESTING

' ·. ~ .



I llllllllllllllillllllll 111
8 0 6 7 6 97 0

Tx:40437110

DOC. # 10927314
RECORDED:

11/18/2019 09:32 AM
ISRAEL RAMON

REGISTER OF DEEDS
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WI

AMOUNT: 30,00
FEE EXEMPT #
TRANSFER TAX:

£rearedat gL.tagby Bober MaGree, 0"Rgilt AugmetlveSers Ing, £'0, Bx Ll56Sulsfisid,Mt0.6680t l, 4/1-829-3716 I
417-812-572£

DECLARATION OF CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT

ThisDeclaration ofEasement ("Easement") ismade as ofhe kdayof [love-l2 ,2019,by
O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc., a Missouri corporation, ("O'Reilly") (Grantot), 233 S. Patterson,
Springfield, Missouri 65802, for the benefit ofSt. James Congregation ("St. James") (Grantee), Tax Key:
761-9955-005, 7219 S. 27 S., Franklin, Wisconsin 53132.

WHEREAS, O'Reilly is the owner in fee simple of certain real property in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, which is more particularly described on the attached Exhibit "A" (the
"O'Reilly Property").

WHEREAS, Grantee (Tax Key 761-9955-005) is theowner in fee simpleofcertain real property in the
City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, which ismoreparticularlydescribed on theattachedExhibit
p" (the "Grantee Property").

WHEREAS, O'Reilly wishes to grant and convey a perpetual, non-exclusive access easement for
vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress on, across and over a portion of the O'Reilly Property for the
benefit of the Grantee Property (Tax Key 761-9955-005).

NOW, THEREFORE:

I, Grant ofEasement. O'Reilly hereby declaresand establishes for the benefitof Grantee (Tax
Key 761-9955-005), its successors, contractors, invitees and assigns a permanent, non-exclusive access
easement over a 24 foot (24 ') wideportion oftheO'Reilly Propertyas illustrated on theattached Exhibit "C"
(the "O'Reilly Easement Property").

2. PurposeofEasement. The easement on theO'Reilly Easement Propertyshall be for the sole
purpose of granting to Grantee (Tax Key 761-9955-005), Grantee's agents and invitees, a permanent non
exclusive easement and right ofuse ofthe access drivewithin the O'Reilly Easement Property for pedestrian
and vehicular ingress and egress. O'Reilly agrees not to erect, construct, or install any signage, buildings, or
other improvements that would materially obstruct the accessoftheGranteeProperty(TaxKey761-9955-005)
to the O'Reilly Easement Property.

3. NatureofEasement. Theburdensof'the easementson theO'Reilly Property shall runwith the
O'Reilly Property and shall be binding upon every successor owner oftheO'Reilly Property. The easements
on the O'Reilly Property shall inure to the benefit of theGrantee Property andGrantee (Tax Key 761-9955-
005).



4. Successors and Assigns. This Easement shall be inure to the benefit ofGrantee (Tax Key 761
9955-005), and its successors and assigns.

5. Authority. O'Reilly represents and warrants that it has full right and lawful authority to create
this Declaration of Easement, that it is or will be lawfully seized of the entireO'Reilly Property, and that no
consent or approval of any mortgagee or other entity is required.

(SEE FOLLOWING PAGES FOR SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS)

2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Declaration of Easement as of the
date first set forth above.

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC.

"~Senior Vice President ofReal llstale

STATE OF MISSOURI

COUNTY OF GREENE

)
) ss
)

CHRISTINA CHEEK
Notary Publtc, Notary Seal

State of Missouri
Howell County

Commission# 13476695
My Commission Expires 04-29-2021

My commission expires:

I.Sa±akeel- ,a notarypublic in and for said state and county aforesaid, certify that ScotKraus,
Senior Vice President ofReal Estate ofO'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc., a Missouri corporation, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes
contained herein on behalf of said corporation.

SWORN to before me this_::f:.day of ,,,Lk-r , 2019.
@

AFTER RECORDATION RETURN ORIGINAL TO:
Erica Uhler, Legal Dept., O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc., P.O. Box 1156, Springfield, MO 65801

3



EXHIBIT "A"
(The "O'Reilly Property")

'Jbat put of Ibo Northcul Qno.quuts (l/4) ofSection Twelve (12),Township Five () North,
RanaeTWenty-ono(21) J!l8t. ha 1heC!tyofPrdlio, CounlyofMllwaukco,Wisconsin, bounded
and deacrlW /lows: Cmnmolagat a poiati theWelt IJae orSouth 27th Street (U.S.
Highway 4l) said poiot being 80,08 feel west ofand 994.19 flSuh 20%3030 Wet of the
Northeaat oomer ofaald 1/4Seton; theceNorth 89%56West a6lanatof250 feet to a point,
thenceSouth on and alonagallaopaian.l tothoBast Uneoful4 l/4Sactloa • dl811nee of 152et
toa point; tlaenoe 8oldb8"1Buta cllsCaacoof250&et lo apoint; lllenoeNodhon and along a
llne parallol lo tho Bast Hao ofaid SC Seclloa a diatance or 152 el to the poiat of'beginning;
coopting there~tor the SouthFieeafbefrstreet; and alsoexcepting therefrom thatpart thereof
shown as Perce! 43 of 'Tnport9ton Pt9jet Plet 2265-16-204.06, recorded aaDocument No.
10227659.

Tax Parcel No.: Part of761-9956-001

4



EXHIBIT "B"
(T'he "Grantee Property")

Lot 1 of Certified SurveyMap No. 8143, located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township SN,
Range 21E, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, Except for that part conveyed to the State ofWisconsin

Department ofTransportation in DocumentNo. 10279566

Tax Parcel No.: Part of 761-9955-005

5



EXHIBIT "C"
(The "O'Reilly Easement Property")

l

t
'

um

CF/lllflCITI{).\'
1±; C±Rt 7MA; 35 #HY #5 FFSPWED ¥
Cl& i}? V.i'C:.R .atr O,...,,.! :rStr'!Jttr.~~w..•,\'() ,.,,,..,r I ,J.,1J ,.
2r i'!.!:JS':.PE.9 {,,1.t!!.) !UPI! Y'J,'/ U.W.1.1? ;:'•.; / J.JS 0,.
H s7± a»Sc.9

.2
==mt=r.=re2,+a01,13

Pn-pmttl/ill'. O'RE/LlJ:-tl/Tal/OT/11:.rrOHSS. hVC
589TJl'IJ-W 23799 ,-._.i,: c; I '

{NBl'Ol'IJ·tJ Di~ •\.I.(. :.m-rlJ4, 14!.:!_

1 lJ 11111 111

.: ]I t't't:t •~·~ r.a-t-e-ci,~-.-, ~r:nJ £:iwr:ntr Otff. i:t1v"'a ~~ cm>~ r:!I ::oat ;er: t .,~ f/cr.M ~t C~:.rttr ct cl St!!:tat
7role ."), {rstp in /1 tut /1:r.o, rilllll'lrt••WJr 1)1} !o,t i tee .t, "' i,"!!!1,a•.a. l"o..-r::•· c!' ll/,:a.4cit" .ti,.-;--:.-:u,, tr,

1• r:w !I ~t: ,t te.."11 .'.'3~ :,t tt.e :a::.,r.J ~~"fit:d ,~twz-.t
Ccm.., t.:tx.. -i119 at r.'•t: .~~-;:ro,; ca.,::t " s! tioas Quoter Su • I gee ates 0 cots #Es"
cm.;r,ed h1!C- lf'l9' 0.'!'flQ ""°:-1" ,t-Jt• ,,,,, cl Jcsr:/ !/,-tr.o:nt !),-1Q'tr;r. 11 t:u?.t-# , x;~ JI Irr- .,-;~.-, »,:--\ e, tk:;rtt-s 01
tr.11.J!~ 1J =r:Ot"dl u~,· t: ~°st.:)'1«- ct 141.G!J flt !' t3 Te pcnt c beginng cte cetie " e des¢rte !cs Soh
0wees !ks!es 4en1 as, cJ tf1)f;r.tt ot t-e 'I,..~, t!t,'lt'r -~!A ,e th:gtcr, (1J mrot(:S 11 «Ofids ,t,:$f a
d: ff.p: r.i: cit J6E6 l::r:.. ~¢l",r Soo::11 "·, fkr.,rns txJ r.:n;!<!S 00 s~:Js :ca o :!-:~,, f JO ""ft mc,11 a~ f3
ttt t,·<f!li r,g!i• .. r 11th ,~,, r.t lt't•~t IJi•t·t:! ...'t.J 1:. l'ffl <.•r ,1Jt1.f \¾!ti centtrJtr~ ti:r:n ,~lt"dt!:lg.

hhs «gee¢ E' cd eant ! e pr»eged z tared temnt± at te t Jes et ts pace! crestbe±
~CC"..tr.t'!lt No 09eJ.JEl8 1c rd pent nyrt o way line Ai-&t Ur.tit!JOt-, .:.en:,t>,

WMINNESOTA AVE

l'HOl'OS£/J.-ICC'E.S:s£.·JS£,lf£,VT.-lll£-I

6



CRAIG A. SCHNEIDER, AIA

architect

1736 E SUNSHINE, SUITE 417
SPRINGFIELD, MO 65804

417 862 0558
FAX 417 862 3265

email cra1g@esterlyschneider com
February 14, 2025

CIty of Franklin
Planning Department
9229 W Looms Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Attn. Mr Regulo Martinez-Montlva, Planning Manager

Re O'Reilly Auto Parts
$ 27%St
Franklin, WI (FKN)

Please see the below responses to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerations
found in Section 15-3 0701 (A), (B), and (C) of the City of Frankin Unified Development Ordinance
as requested by the Special Use Permit submittal checklist Thus Project was previously approved In
October of 2017

A General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following
1 Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use

and development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning d1stnct in question
were established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin
Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof

Response Having O'Reilly Auto Parts store located at 7251 S 27th Street Franklin will
help bring color and beauty to the street corridor by having a colorful storefront with a
variety of plants and bushes used for landscaping O'Reilly Auto Parts store will comply
with the Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan purposes and intent

2 No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a
substantial or undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property,
the character of the area, or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general
welfare and not substantially diminish and impair property values within the community or
neighborhood

Response The construction of a new store will not have a detrimental effect on the
neighborhood or community We have been working with the City and neighbors to
ensure everyone's needs are met The new building and parking lot will stay w1thm its
property limits The parking lot will provide street lights to provide safe parking and
walking from the building to customer vehicles at night The new bwldmg and
landscaping will increase property value

3 No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development
will be constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity



City of Franklin - General Standards, Special Standards, and Cons1derat1ons
O'Reilly Auto Parts Store
February 14, 2025
Page 2 of 3

or to interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with
the applicable zoning district regulations

Response The construction process will occur during the day so the nearby neighbors
would not be disturbed at night The building will not dominate the neighborhood but only
make It more appealing within the property limits The new O'Reilly Auto Parts store Is on
27th Street where heavy traffic occurs and will remain There are driveway entrances on
W Minnesota Avenue leading into the parking lot which will help avoid traffic congestion
on 27th Street This will not create more traffic on W Minnesota Avenue, but provide a
safe ingress and egress O'Reilly Is a very low impact development with limited traffic
and no loud operation noises

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public fac1llt1es and services such as streets, public utIlit1es
including public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection,
refuse disposal, public parks, lbranes, schools, and other pubic faculties and utilities or
the applicant will provide adequately for such facilities.

Response The burldmg will have restrooms and drinking fountains for the employees so
the building requires access to the city water and sewer ut1llt1es The property rs on a
major thoroughfare and will be well ht without impacting the neighbors O'Reilly Auto
Parts wants to provide safety to its employees and its customers There will be a
dumpster on srte which will require refuse disposal The building will also have electricity,
heating, and arr cond1t1oning to provide comfort to ,ts employees and customers.

5 No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through res1dent1al streets Adequate
measures wll be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to mmnmmze traffic
congestion in the public streets

Response O'Reilly Auto Parts parking lot provides two ingress and egress to avoid
traffic congestion The driveways are located on Minnesota Avenue to avoid traffic
congestion on 27th Street and Minnesota Avenue but also creating a safe exit from
Minnesota Avenue on to 27th Street The parking lot contains 25 parking spaces for
employees and customers so there will not be a lot of traffic flow See also the attached
Traffic Impact Analysis

6 No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not
result in the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of
significant importance

Response The construction process and operation of O'Reilly Auto Parts will not result
in any destruction of any natural, scenic, or hrstonc feature of any kmd

7 Compliance with Standards The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the dustnct in which rt 1s located, except as such regulations
may, in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the
recommendations of the Plan Commission The proposed use and development shall
comply with all additional standards mmposed on rt by the particular provision of this
Division and Ordinance author1zing such use



City of Franklin - General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerations
O'Reilly Auto Parts Store
February 14, 2025
Page 3 of 3

Response: O'Reilly Auto Parts store is a Mercantile primary use group and will remain
so, O'Reilly Auto Parts store will comply with the City of Franklin Ordinances and current
Building Codes.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations
authorize a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as
having special standards, as set forth in § 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a
Special Use Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted
unless the applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. will comply with the Special Standards.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the
foregoing standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall
consider the following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility
that is in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general
welfare of the neighborhood or community.

Response: The purpose of the O'Reilly Auto Parts store is construction of a new building
for the sale of auto parts and auto accessories to the public. This store will also help
provide jobs to the community

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area
that may be more appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. found that this location at 7251 S. 27th Street
is a good fit at the proposed location because it will clean up the current site, and will
attract customers due the proximity to S. 27th St. The property is also zoned
appropriately

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have
been taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the
immediate vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: O'Reilly has been working diligently with the City and the neighborhood to
ensure everyone's needs are being met.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area.
Whether the use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or
incompatible uses in the surrounding area.

Response: O'Reilly Auto Parts will fit the context of the 27th Street corridor design plans,
and thus will not set a precedent for incompatible uses.

W\data\O'Reilly\Wisconsin\Franklin - FKN\Correspondence\L - Standards Resposne Letter- FKN



City ofFranklin, WI Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations

Site Intensity and Capacity
Calculations for New O'Reilly Auto
Parts planned for S. 27th St.

https://ecode360.com/print/FR I 7 l 9?guid=33224849

City of Franklin. WI
Tuesday, February 25, 2025

Chapter UDO. Unified Development Ordinance

Part 3. Zoning Districts: District Establishment, Dimensional, and Use Regulations

Division 15-3.0500. Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations

$ 15-3.0501. Natural Resource Protection and Site Intensity and Capacity
Calculations for Residential and Nonresidential Uses Required.

A. Recognition of Natural Resource Features. This Ordinance recognizes that landforms, parcel size and shape, and natural
resource features vary from site to site and that development regulations must take into account these variations. The
maximum density or intensity of use allowed in any zoning district is controlled by the various district standards set forth for
each of the various zoning districts of this Ordinance.

B. When Natural Resource Protection and Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations Are Required. Natural resource protection
is required for all development and the site intensity and capacity calculations set forth in this Division shall be made for
each parcel of land to be used or built upon in the City of Franklin including all new Certified Survey Maps, Preliminary
Plats, condominiums, multiple-family residential developments, all nonresidential development, and as may be required
elsewhere in this Ordinance except as excluded under the provisions of § 15-3.0501C. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

C. Exclusions (When Natural Resource Protection and Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations Are Not Required). Natural
resource protection shall not be required and the site intensity and capacity calculations set forth in this Division shall not be
required for the construction of single-family and two-family residential development located on non-divisible existing lots of
record within existing platted Subdivisions (with an approved Final Plat), Certified Survey Maps, and Condominiums existing
on August 1, 1998, the effective date of this Ordinance or for which a natural resource protection plan and site intensity
capacity calculations were filed at the time of division after August 1, 1998. A Natural Resource Protection Plan shall not be
required with an application for certified survey map approval where a single property zoned 1-1 Institutional District is
divided as a result of a public work of improvement for street extension purposes, with related public sanitary sewer and
water work for which special assessment was made, into two or more parcels through the property fee acquisition by the
City for the extension of the public street. The foregoing exclusions from Natural Resource Protection Plan submission
requirements for certified survey map applications shall only be available upon the conditions that in lieu of the Plan
submission requirement, the certified survey map application shall be accompanied by the "best available information" as to
the existence of any natural resource features, such as existing topographical maps, wetland inventories, and other such
inventories as may be available; and that a Natural Resource Protection Plan must be submitted upon any further
development of any portion of the mapped property. A Natural Resource Protection Plan shall also not be required with an
application for certified survey map approval where lots are being created from a larger surrounding parcel, with the larger
in area in relation to the lots created remnant parcel being vacant, or already having being developed by the existence of a
principal structure and not being the subject of current further development application, and with the only natural resources
within the map area being upon the remnant parcel and being more than 500 feet away from the lots being created. The
foregoing exclusion from Natural Resource Protection Plan submission_requirement for certified survey map applications
shall only be available upon the conditions that i) in lieu of the Natural Resource Protection Plan submission requirement,
the Certified Survey Map application shall show upon its face the existence of any natural resource features, as identified in
$ 15-4.0102, located on the parcels of the Certified Survey Map based upon the "best available" information; (ii) that a
Natural Resource Protection Plan must be submitted upon any further development of the "remnant" parcel; and iii) the
following note shall be placed upon the face of such Certified Survey Map: "The Natural Resource Features identified herein
are not based upon field surveys. In the event of further land division or development of a parcel herein with any such
Natural Resource Feature, a complete NRPP with field surveys is required for said parcel" For the purposes of this section,
the Zoning Administrator shall not require that the "best available" information be a 'first source" of information, as identified
in S 15-4.0102A., B., C., D., and G. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, natural resource protection and
any such related Natural Resource Protection Plan, shall not be required and the site intensity and capacity calculations set
forth in this Division shall not be required for any accessory use structure or accessory use development or for an addition
or modification to an existing principal structure development which does not increase the existing developed structure and
impervious surface area upon the parcel by more than 50% or 2,500 square feet, whichever is smaller, where natural
resource feature(s) are not within 100 feet of the area to be disturbed by the new development, upon a parcel supporting an
existing principal structure with an existing principal use; determination as to whether natural resource features are within
100 feet of the area to be disturbed, the boundaries of which shall be clearly identified within application materials, shall be
made by the City Engineer or designee; however, if any resources identified by the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional
Planning Commission in PR 176 or in PR 42, as may be amended from time to time, as Primary or Secondary
Environmental Corridor and/or Isolated Natural Resources Area, are located on the site by the City Engineer or designee,
but are outside of 100 feet of the area to be disturbed, a written plan shall be provided by the applicant detailing the
protective measures that will be implemented to prevent such natural resource feature(s) adverse impacts, which shall be
subject to approval by the Plan Commission and shall be installed as may be provided on site as detailed within the plan as
a condition of application approval. A Natural Resource Protection Plan (and related requirements, such as the submission
of conservation easements, etc.) shall not be required with an application for certified survey map approval for the purpose
of providing additional land to an adjoining tax incremental district mixed-use development including industrial and
commercial uses, where lots are being created from a parcel or parcels, upon which there exists an established residential
dwelling building use, such established use parcel or parcels not being the subject of current further development
application, for such remaining established residential dwelling building use parcel or parcels only, provided with regard to
such remaining established residential dwelling building use parcel or parcels that: i) in lieu of the Natural Resource
Protection Plan submission requirement, the Certified Survey Map application shall show upon its face the existence of any
natural resource features, as identified in § 15-4.0102, located on the parcels of the Certified Survey Map based upon the
"best available" information; (ii) that a Natural Resource Protection Plan must be submitted upon any further development of
the "remaining established residential dwelling building use parcel or parcels"; and iii) the following note shall be ~laced
upon the face of such Certified Survey Map: ''The Natural Resource Features identified herein upon lot[s] [numbers]] are
not based upon field surveys. In the event of further land division or development of lot[s] (number[s]] with any such atural

I of 4 2/25/2025, 11 :39 AM



City of Franklin, WI Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations

Resource Feature, a complete NRPP with field surveys is required for said parcel."
[Amended 1-21-2020 by Ord. No. 2020-2414]

§ 15-3.0502. Calculation of Base Site Area.

https://ecode360.corn/print/FR l 7 l9?guid=33224849

2 of 4

The base site area shall be calculated as indicated in Table 15-3.0502 for each parcel of land to be used or built upon in the City
of Franklin as referenced in § 15-3.0501 of this Ordinance.

Table 15-3.0502
Worksheet for the Calculation of Base Site Area for Both Residential and Nonresidential Development

STEP 1: Indicate the total gross site area (in acres) as determined by an
actual on-site boundary survey o the property. 0.73 acres

STEP 2: Subtract(-) land which constitutes any existing dedicated public
street rights-of-way, land located within the ultimate road rights
of-way of existing roads, the rights-of-way of major utilities, and

0.00any dedicated public park and or school site area. - acres
STEP 3: Subtract(-) land which, as a part of a previously approved de-

0.00velopment or land division, was reserved for open space. - acres
STEP 4: In the case of "Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations" for a

proposed residential use, subtract (- the land proposed for non-
residential uses;
or
In the case of "Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations" for a
proposed nonresidential use, subtract (-) the land proposed for 0.00residential uses. - acres

STEP 5: Equals "Base Site Area" = 0.73 acres

§ 15-3.0503. Calculation of the Area of Natural Resources to Be Protected.

All land area with those natural resource features as described in Division 15-4.0100 of this Ordinance and as listed in Table
15-3.0503 and lying within the base site area (as defined in $ 15-3.0502), shall be measured relative to each natural resource
feature present. The actual land area encompassed by each type of resource is then entered into the column of Table 15-3.0503
titled "Acres of Land in Resource Feature." The acreage of each natural resource feature shall be multiplied by its respective
natural resource protection standard (to be selected from Table 15-4.0100 of this Ordinance for applicable agricultural,
residential, or nonresidential zoning district) to determine the amount of resource protection land or area required to be kept in
open space in order to protect the resource or feature. The sum total of all resource protection land on the site equals the total
resource protection land. The total resource protection land shall be calculated as indicated in Table 15-3.0503.

Table 15-3.0503
Worksheet for the Calculation of Resource Protection Land

Protection Standard Based Upon Zoning District

~
pe vcircle applicable standard from Table

15-4.0100 for the type of zoning district in which the
parcel is loca ed)

Natural Resource Agricult- ural Residential Non-Residential
Feature District District District Acres of Land in Resource Feature
Steep Slopes:

10-19% 0.00 0.60 0.40 X 0.OU u.uu
=

20-30% 0.65 0.75 0.70 X u.uu 0.0U
=

+ 30% 0.90 0.85 0.80 X u.uu 0.00
=

Woodlands &
Forests:

Mature 0.70 0.70 0.70 X 0.0O u.uu
=

Young 0.50 0.50 0.50 X u.uu U.UU

=
Lakes & Ponds 1 1 1 X U.UU 0.00

=
Streams 1 1 1 X 0.00 u.uu

=
Shore Buffer 1 1 1 X o.uu u.uu

=
Floodplains 1 1 1 X u.uu 0.00

=
Wetland Buffers 1 1 1 X 0.00 0.00

=
Wetlands & 1 1 1 X u.uu 0.00Shoreland Wetlands

=
TOTAL RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND 0.00(Total of Acres of Land in Resource Feature to be Protected)

2/25/2025, 1 :39 AM



City ofFranklin, WI Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations https://ecode360.com/print/FR I 719?guid=33224849

3 of 4

Note: In conducting the calculations in Table 15-3.0503, if two or more natural resource features are present on the same area
of land, only the most restrictive resource protection standard shall be used. For example, if floodplain and young woodlands
occupy the same space on a parcel of land, the resource protection standard would be 1.0 which represents the nigher of the
two standards.

§ 15-3.0504. Calculation of Site Intensity and Capacity for Residential Uses.

In order to determine the maximum number of dwelling units which may be permitted on a parcel of land zoned in a residential
zoning district, the site intensity and capacity calculations set forth in Table 15-3.0504 shall be performed.

Table 15-3.0504
Worksheet for the Calculation of Site Intensity and Capacity for Residential Development

CALCULATE MINIMAL REQUIRED ON-SITE OPEN SPACE
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502):

STEP 1: Multiple by Minimum Open Space Ratio (OSR) (see specific resi-
dential zoning district OSR standard): X N/A
Equals MINIMUM REQUIRED ON-SITE OPEN SPACE = acres
CALCULATE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA:
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502):

STEP 2: Subtract Total Resource Protection Land from Table 15-3.0503) or
Minimum Required On-Site Open Space (from Step 1 above),
whichever is greater:-

NIAEquals NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA= acres------------- CALCULATE MAXIMUM NET DENSITY YIELD OF SITE:
Take Net Buildable Site Area (from Step 2 above):

STEP 3: Multiply by Maximum Net Density (ND) (see specific residential
zoning district ND standard): X N/AEquals MAXIMUM NET DENSITY YIELD OF SITE= D.U.s
CALCULATE MAXIMUM GROSS DENSITY YIELD OF SITE:
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 of Table 15-3.0502):

STEP 4: Multiple by Maximum Gross Density (GD) (see specific residential
zoning district GD standard): X

N/AEquals MAXIMUM GROSS DENSITY YIELD OF SITE= D.U.s--- DETERMINE MAXIMUM PERMITTED D.U.s OF SITE:
STEP 5: Take the lowest of Maximum Net Density Yield of,Site ([rom Step 3

abovel or Maximum Gross Density Viel of Site (from tep 4 N/A
D.U.sabove:

§ 15-3.0505. Calculation of Site Intensity and Capacity for Nonresidential Uses.

In order to determine the maximum floor area which may be permitted on a parcel of land zoned in a nonresidential zoning
district, the site intensity and capacity calculations set forth in Table 15-3.0505 shall be performed.
A. Maximum Permitted Floor Area for a Retail Building:

1 Not withstanding the provisions of Table 15-3.0505, no individual retail building in any of the following districts shall
exceed a total of 125,000 gross square feet of floor area, including all roofed area.
a. B-1Neighborhood Business District.
b. B-2General Business District.
c. B-3Community Business District.
d. B-5 Highway Business District.
Not withstanding, any other provision of this Ordinance, no special use permit, special exception or variance may be
approved or granted that would allow a retail building to exceed the size limits of this subparagraph (1) and no
nonconforming use or structure may be expanded in any manner that would increase its nonconformace with the limits
of subparagraph (1 ).

Table 15-3.0505
Worksheet for the Calculation of Site Intensity and Capacity for Nonresidential Development

STEP 1: CALCULATE MINIMUM REQUIRED LANDSCAPE
SURFACE:
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502):

0.73 Multiple by Minimum,Landscape Surface
Ratio (LSR) (see speci ic zoning district LS standard): X

0.30
Equals MINIMUM REQUIRED ON-SITE LANDSCAPE 0.22SURFACE= acres

STEP 2: CALCULATE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA: acres
[@'9.Pase Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502):

Subtract Total Resource Protection Land from Table
15-3.0503) or Minimum Required Land$cage Surface (from 0.51Step 1 above), whichever is greater- 0.2

2/25/2025, 11 :39 AM

2.



City of Franklin, WI Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations https://ecode360.com/print/FRI 7 l 9?guid=33224849

4 of 4

Table 15-3.0505
Worksheet for the Calculation of Site Intensity and Capacity for Nonresidential Development

Equals NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA =
STEP 3: CALCULATE MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF

SITE:
Take Net Buildable Site Area (from Step 2 above):

Multiple by Maximum Net Floor Area Ratio(NEAR) NIA - DOES NOT
(see specific nonresidential zoning district FAR standard): APPLY TO B-4
X ZONING DISTRICT acresEquals MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE =

STEP 4: CALCULATE MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD
OF SITE:
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 of Table 15-3.0502):

Multiple by Maximum Gross Floor Area Ratio (GFAR) NIA - DOES NOT
(see specific nonresidential zoning district GF ,R standard). APPLY TO B-4X
Equals MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE ZONING DISTRICT

acres
DETERMINE MAXIMUM PERMITTED FLOOR AREA OF
SITE: NIA - DOES NOT
Take the lowest of Maximum Net Floor Area Yield of Site APPLY TO B-4(from Step 3STEP 5: above) or Maximum Gross Floor Area Yield of Site (from ZONING DISTRICT
Step above): acres
(Multiple results by 43,560 for maximum floor area in

I square feet)square feet):

2/25/2025, 11 :39 AM



APPLICATION DATE:

Planning Department #; kl
STAMP DAIE crtv use onlv

9229West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 s ran n(414) 425-4024 .•.....,,

franklinwi.soy - w1S CO NS I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES) APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY (CONTACT PERSON)
NAME: Philip Hopper NAME: Craig Schneider
COMPANY: O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. COMPANY: Craig A. Schneider, AIA - Architect
MAILING ADDRESS: 233 S. Patterson Ave. MAIUNGAD0RESS: 1736 East Sunshine, Suite 417
CllY/STATE: Springfield, MO ZIP: 65802 CITY/STATE: Springfield, MO ZIP: 65804
PHONE: 417-862-2674 PHONE: 417-862-0558
EMAIL ADDRESS: Jzamora49@oreillyauto.com EMAILADDRESS: esa@esterlyschneider.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 7251 S. 27th ST. TAX KEY NUMBER: 761-9956-001
PROPERTYOWNER:

O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. PHONE: 417-862-2674
MAILING ADDRESS: 233 S. Patterson Ave. EMAILAOORESS: jzamora49@oreillyauto.com
CITY/STATE: Springfield, MO

ZIP·
65802

DATEOFCOMPLETION: f¢ e r/

APPLICATION TYPE
Please check the application type thatyou are applying for

DJConceptReview D Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment[] Planned DevelopmentDistrict D Rezoning
00 Special Use/Special Use Amendment□ Unified DevelopmentOrdinance TextAmendment

Most requestsrequire Plan Commission reviewandCommonCouncil approval.
Applicant is responsible for providingPlanCommission resubmittalmaterialsup to 11 copiespendingstaff requestand comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (l) al statements and other lnl'ormatlon submitted as partof thisapplicationare true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner({s}' knowledge; (2) the applicantand propertyowner{s) has/have read and understandall information in this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvais based on representations made by them In this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other type ofpermits, may be revokedwithoutnotice if there Is a breach of such representation(s} or anycondition[s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s} eutlloriie the Cityof Franklin and/or is agents toenter upon the subject propertv(ies) between the hours of700a.m. and 7:00
p.m. deilyfor the purpose of inspectionwhile the application is under review.Thepropertyowner(s) grantthis authorizationeven If the property hasbeen postedagainst
trespassing pursuant toWs. Stat. $943.13.
{The applieeant'ssignaturemustliefrom oManogingMember Ifthebusiness IsonUC,orfrom the PresidentorvcePresidentif thebusinessia corporation. A signed
oppllt:ant'sauthorization lettermaybeprovidedinHeuoftheapplicant'ssignature below, andasignedpropertyowner'sauthorization l11tte1moybeprovidedIn lieu
ofthe property owner'ssignature[s}below ifmarethanone, all ofthe owners ofthepropertymustsign this Application).

Gil I, the applicant, certify that I have read the followingpage detailingthe requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittalsand understand that incomplete applications andsubmittals cannotbe reviewed.

PROPERlV OWNER SIGNATURE: APPUU\l'ITSIZITURE:

CAA 00 
NAME & TITLE: ow")-/7-25 wwesmme ..f.., on2-,723Ph!Hp Hopper SVP Real Estale and Expansion PhilioHoer $VPRe te
PROPERTYOWNER SIGNATURE: ·;tC
NAME & TITLE: DATE:

we«me% ""· alg Schneider -Architect •2.G · 2.S
V

(Rev. 8/2024)



CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
If you have questions about the application materials please contact the planning department.

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION MATERIALS
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
$420 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include .

DThree (3) project narratives
D Three (3) copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on 8"X11" or11"X

17" paper [le., a scaled map identifying the subjectproperty and immediate environs, including existing andproposed parcels, existing and proposed
structures, existing and proposed land uses, existing ond proposedzoning, existing and proposed infrastructure and ut/litles{opproximote locotlons only],
and existing and proposed site ,:onditlons/slte constraints{, e approximate locations ofpublic rood access, rights-of-way, natural resources/green space
and drainage issues/concerns, etc,])

DThree (3) colored copies of building elevations 0n 11"X 17paper ifoppitcoble
D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
$1,250 Application fee payable to the City ofFrankhn
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

DThree (3) project narratives
□ Three [3) folded copies of a Site Development Plan/ Map, drown to reasonable scale, at least 11"X17"paperoras determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, Identifying the subject propertyand immediate environs, including parcels, structures, land use, zanmg, streets and utilities, and natural
resourcefeatures, os applicable.

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials
□ Additional information as may be required

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT {POD)
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
D Application fee payable ta the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

□ $6,000 New PDD plus developer's deposit*
□ (*) $3,000 developer's deposit is required In addition to fihng fees at the time of submittal, 1t may require replenishment
J $5,900. PD Major Amendment
J $850. PD Minor Amendment

0 Word Document legal description of the subject property
DThree (3) complete collated sets of apphcat,on materials to include

Three (3) project narratives
□ Three (3) folded full size, of the Site Plan Package, drawn to scale copies, on 24"x 36 paper, mcduding Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Pion, Natural Resource Protec!Ion Pion, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc. (See 5ecions 15-70101, 15-70301, and 15-50402 0f the UDOfor
information that must be denoted or mduded with each respective plan.J

D One (l) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X17paper, ifapplicable
D One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, If applicable (see division 15·3 0500 ai the UDO}
DI Email ar flash drive with all plans / submittal materials.

• PD and Mayor PD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a public hearing, and Common Council approval.
• Minor PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commsson review and Common Council approval

REZONING
D Thrs application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
DJ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

□ $2,500
$600 one parcel resdental

[IWord Document legal description of the subject property
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

D Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded copies of a Plot Plan or Site Plan, drown to reasonable scale, at least 11"X 17"paper or os determined by the City Planner

orCity Engineer, and fully dimensioned showing the area proposed ta be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the location and classification ofadjacent
zoning districts, and the location and existing use ofall propertes within 200feetof the area proposed to be rezoned

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal matenals
D Additional information as may be required.

• Additional notice to and approval required for amendments or rezoning in the FW, FC, FFO, and sw Districts
• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission

(Rev 8/2024)



SPECIAL USE/SPECIAL USEAMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
li1l This application form accurately completedwith signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
m Application fee payable to the City of Franklin .. [select one of the following]
] $2,500· New Special Use > 4000square feet.
□ $1,000: Special Use Amendment.
D) $1,250 New Special Use < 4000 square feet.

Word Document legal description of the subject property.
IXl One copy of a response to the General Standards, Spec:ial Standards, and Considerationsfound in S«tlon 1.5-3.0701.{A), (6}, ond (C) of the uoo oval/able
at www.[anklinwi.zgv.
llD Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include .•.

® Three (3) projectnarratives
Three (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24" X 36", The submittal should include only those plans/items as set

forth in Section 15-7.0202, 15-7.0301 ond 25-5.0402 of the vO thot are impacted by thedevelopment. (e.g.. Site Plan, Gull'ding Elevations, Landscape
Plan, Outdoor lighting Pion, Noturol Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc.

llll One (1) colored copyof the buildingelevationson 11x17 paper, ifopt#coble.
l!J Email or flash drive with all plans/submittal materials.
rm Additional Information asmay be required.

• Special use/Speclal useAmendmentrequests require PlanCommission review,,PvblleHearingand CommonCouncil approval.

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENTORDINANCE (UDO) TEXTAMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authoriz.ation letters (see reverse Side for more details}
D $1,250 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
D Three (3) project narratives, including description of the proposed text amendment. Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice atPlan Commission.. The Ci\y's Unified OevelopmenlOrdinance (\JOO) lsavailable atwwe.franklinwi.gov

(Rev. 8/2024)



APPLICATION DATE:

Plannlng Department #gs@a STAMP DATE crtv use only
9229West Loomis Road ?FranklinFranklin, Wisconsin 53132

(414) 425-4024
franklinwi.gov .., WISCONSIN

PLAN COMMISSION REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT (FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME: Philip Hopper NAME. Craig Schneider
COMPANY· O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. COMPANY: Craig A. Schneider, AIA- Architect
MAILING ADDRESS: 233 s. Patterson Ave. MAIUNGADDRESs· 1736 East Sunshine, Suite 417
CITY/STATE· Springfield, MO ZIP: 65802 CITY/STATE: Springfield, MO ZIP: 65804

PHONE· 417-862-2674 PHONE: 417-862-0558
EMAJ. ADDRESS: jzamora49@oreillyauto.com EMAIL ADDRESS: esa@esterlyschneider.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 7251 s. 27th ST. TAX KEV NUMBER: 761-9956-001
PROPERTY OWNER: O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. PHONE: 417-862-2674
MAILING ADDRESS. 233 S. Patterson Ave. EMAIL ADDRESS. jzamora49@oreillyauto.com
Ci1Y/STATE· Springfield, MO 2IP. 65802 DATE OF COMPLETION. r° e 2 ;

APPLICATION TYPE
Please checkthe application type thatyou are applyingfor

0 Building Move D Sign Review 00 Site Plan/ Site Plan Amendment □ Temporary Use

Most requests require Plan CommiSslon review and approval.
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmitta materials up to 11 copies pending staff request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s} hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other lnfonnation submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s}' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s} has/have read and understand all Information in this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other t,/pe of permits, may be revoked without notice if there Is a breach of such representation{s) or any condition]s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the Cityof Franklin and/or Its agents to enter upon the subjec;t property(les) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application Is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis $tat. $943.13
(Ths applicant's signaturemustbefrom a ManagingMember if thebusiness is an LLC, orfrom thePresidentor VicePresident if thebusiness is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization lettermaybeprovidedin lieu oftheapplicant'ssignaturebelow, andasignedpropertyownet's authorization lettermaybeprovided In lieu
oftheproperty owner's signature[s] below. Ifmore than one, all ofthe owners oftheproperty mustsign thisApplication),

00 I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission approval and submittals and
understand that incomplete applications and submlttals cannot be reviewed

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE. APP~LICANT. SIGNJI.TIJREcent 'NAME & TITLE DATE 'AM &TITLE: DATE:
Philip Happer SVP Real Estate ad Expansion 2-17 25 PM»we Hoer5y9\ea'5989 +04,50asion fl..-n·z:;;
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE "2"
NAME &TITLE: DATE:

" DATE

Crai . Schneider - Architect 2·2.6·25
(Rev. 8/2024)



CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
If you have questions about the application materials please contact the planning department.

BUILDING MOVE APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authonzation letters (see reverse side formore details}.
□ $350 Apphcat1on fee payable to the City of Franklin
□ Word Document legal description of the subJect property
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include ...

□ Three (3) proJect narratives.
□ Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 8 ½ "X 11"1 of the plat of survey, showing theproposed building

placement at the new location, Indicate setbacksfrom property lines and locations ofdriveways and access points.
NOTE $Ingle-Family homes requlre an attached 2-cargarage.
□ Three (3) copies of color photographs of the building's current elevations

D Other items as may be required for specific apphcat1ons, per a city planner.
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

• Applications for a Building Move are governed by the City of Franklln Municipal Code Chapter 92·2 (A) and the Wisconsin Uniform Building Code

SIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION MATERIALS
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authonzat1on letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $40 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
0 Word Document legal description of the subject property
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

D Three (3) colored copies of the sign elevations, drawn to scale not less than½"= 1'. Plans shall befolded to a maximum
size of9"X12" The elevations should denote thes,gn dimension and area Identify thecolors, materials, finishes and lighting
method (if applicable}.

D Three (3) scaled copies of the Site Plan, showing the lacotlon oftheproposed signogerelative to (1) anyexisting orproposed
structures, [2) parking stalls and/ordriveways, (3)proposedlandscaping and outdoor lighting, (4) thesetbackdistancefrom the
street right-of-wayot theproposed location, (5) heightofsign above thefinishedgrade, and (6) the vision triangledistances
described in Section 15-5.0201 oftheUnified Development Ordinance

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials
■ Required for sign age in Planned Development D,stncts (PDD) No. 7 and 18 Additional materials/ copies may be required for board/commission meetings
• Permits for construction are REQUIRED after approval Contact Inspection Services (414·425·0084) for permit processes

SITE PLAN/SITE PLAN AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
D Thus application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
[] Application fee payable to the City of Franklin .[select one of the following]

□ Tier 1 $3,400
) Tier 2 $1,700 {tot size <1 are)
□ Tier 3 $850 ( 10% mreaseor decrease ,n tatolfloorareo ofall structures with no change to parking or change to pakgonly).

] Word Document legal description of the subject property
Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include

00 Three (3) project narratives
till Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" X 36") of the Site Plan/ Site Plan Amendment package The submittal

should include onlythoseplans/items as setforth in Section 15-7,0103, 15-70301, 0nd 15-0402 ofheUnified Development Ordinance thot are
impacted by the development (e g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor Lighting Pion, NaturalResource Protection Plan, Natural
Resource Protection Report, etc.)

} One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11" X17" paper, ifapplicable
2 One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, if applicable (see division 15-3 0500of the UDO)
i Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials

• Same requests may require CA approval (P18) r0C approval (PD0 7) in which additional materials / copies may be required

TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
D $50 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

D Three (3) project narrative
0 Three (3) folded, scaled copies, of the Site Plan, seesection 15-3.0804 ofthe UDOfor informaticn thatmust be denoted on each respective plan.

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials
• Some requests may require CDOA approval (PD 18) orC approval {PD 7}m which additional materlals / copies may be required
• Submittal of Application for review is not a guarantee of approval Approval of Temporary Use does not exclude potential requirement for additional

licenses or permits Far information on other licenses or permits that may be required, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500, the Health
Department at (414) 425-9101, and Inspection services at (414) 425 0084

(Rev. 8/2024)



CRAIG A. SCHNEIDER, AJA

architect

1736 E. SUNSHINE, SUITE 417
SPRINGFIELD, MO 65804

417.862.0558
FAX 417.862.3265

email: craig@esterlyschneider.com

February 14, 2025
Revised: April 8, 2025

City of Franklin
Planning Department
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI. 53132

Attn: Mr Regula Martinez-Montilva, Planning Manager

Re: O'Reilly Auto Parts
$.27St
Franklin, WI (FKN)

Please see the below waivers being requested:

1. Section 15-3.0352A. Parking Requirements Parking required and Location
Regulated. Not more than 50% of the off-street parking spaces shall be located directly
between the front facade of the building and the public street, unless additional buildings
in the overall development are or will be located between the main building and the
public street. Such additional buildings must be sufficient in size, location, and number to
provide an effective visual break between the public street and the parking lot.

a. Waiver Request: Due to the configuration of the lot and to allow adequate
access across the site we request that this requirement be waived. Please refer
to Sheet C2.1, we are requesting a waiver to increase the number of off-street
parking spaces located between the front entrance and the public street to be
64%. This allows for the most optimal use of the property and allows the currently
in place cross access easement to be utilized. See the attached October 5, 2017
Planning Commission Minutes showing this waiver request was previously
approved.

2. Section 15-3.0353C.4. Landscape and Site Design General Standard. Sidewalks
shall be provided along the entire length of any facade containing a public entrance,
leaving room for foundation planting beds.

a. Waiver Request: Due to the tight nature of the site, there is not a reasonable
amount of space to provide foundation planting beds along the front entrance.
We instead propose to provide planter boxes as shown on sheets C2.1 and L11
See the attached October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Minutes showing this
waiver request was previously approved.

3. Section 15-5.0353F.1. Landscape and Site Design General Standard. Landscaping.
On-site landscaping shall be provided per the landscaping requirements found in § 15-
5. 0302. In addition, the project shall provide: Extensive building foundation landscaping
for all building frontages facing public streets, parking lots, or residential districts to



City of Franklin - Planning Department
O'Reilly Auto Parts Store Waiver Request Letter
Apnl 8, 2025
Page 2 of 2

provide visual breaks in the mass of the building Building foundation landscaping shall
be placed so that, at maturity, the plant's dnp hne Is within 10 feet of the foundation
Canopy/shade trees shall not be used to meet this requirement

a. Waiver Request: Due to the tight nature of the site, there Is not a reasonable
amount of space to provide foundation planting beds along the front entrance
We instead propose to provide planter boxes as shown on sheets C2 1and L1 1
See the attached October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Minutes showing this
waiver request was previously approved

4. Section 15-3.0355B.7.a Windows. Windows which allow views to the intenor actIvIty or
display areas are expected Windows shall include sills at the bottom and pediments at
the top Glass curtain walls, reflective glass, and painted or darkly tinted glass shall not
be used

a. Waiver Request: We are requesting the use of the storefront windows on the
east side of the building as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning
Commission Meeting Please see the attached meeting minutes

5. Section 15-3.0355.7.b.iv Ground Floor Window Standards. Darkly tinted windows
and mirrored windows that block two-way visibility are proh1bIted as ground floor
windows along street facades

a Waiver Request: Due the nature of the use windows looking into the building
along the south elevation would have views into interior stockroom areas, instead
of into showroom (retail) areas We are requesting the use of a faux window as
approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Please see the
attached meeting minutes.

6. Section 15-3.0355.7.b.v Ground Floor Window Standards. The primary facade of
each building, or for corner buildings each of the two facades, must contain at least 20%
of the ground floor wall area in display areas, windows, or doorways Blank walls are
prohibited

a Waiver Request: We are requesting a waiver to reduce the requirement for
glazing percentage along the south elevation as prevmusly approved at the
October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Please see the attached
meeting minutes

7. Section 15-3.0355.7.b.vi Ground Floor Window Standards. Ground floor windows are
also required on facades facing any public parking lot The minimum requirement Is 16
square feet per story or 6% of the facade, whichever 1s greater

a Waiver Request: We are requesting the use of the used of a faux window that
meets these requirements for the south elevation as as previously approved at
the October 5, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Please see the attached
meeting minutes

8. Section 15-3.0355B.8.d Pedestrian Accessibility. Buildings located at the IntersectIon
of two streets shall utilize a corner entrance to the building unless this requirement Is
waived by the Plan Commission

a. Waiver Request: Due to the hm1ted size of the and the existing cross access
easement, see attached recorded easement documentation we request that this
requirement be waived as previously approved at the October 5, 2017 Planning
Commission Meeting Please see the attached meeting minutes

9. Table 15-5.0204. Minimum width for single row and aisle shall be 45 feet when using 90
unless this requirement is waved by the Plan Commission

a. Waiver Request: Due to the configuration of the lot and limited building space
available, we are requesting this requirement be waived in order to allow for a 24'



City of Franklin - Planning Department
O'Reilly Auto Parts Store Waiver Request Letter
April 8, 2025
Page 2 of 2

two-way traffic drive aisle at the southern portion of the site, while still keeping
the buldmng and parking lot out of the required landscape and building setbacks

10. Section 15-5.0207B. Driveway Openings. Openings for vehicular ingress and egress
shall not exceed 24 feet at the street right-of-way hne and 30 feet at the roadway, unless
a greater distance Is approved by the Plan Commission mn a non-residential district

a Waiver Request: Due to the configuration of the lot, in order to safely and
efficiently mauver and delivery truck in and out of the site the western most drive
along the southern property hne needs to be a minimum width of 34' to allow for
delivery truck access Please refer to the truck turning exhIbIt located on sheet
C1 3 of the plan set

11. Section 15-5.0354C.1. Landscaping Requirements for Off-Street Parking Areas A
minimum of 20 square feet of intenor landscaped island shall be provided per parking
stall

a Waiver Request Due to the configuration of the lot, we request that this
requirement be waved in order to allow for adequate parking Additional
landscaping beyond the minimum requirements Is proposed as compensation for
the lack of compliance with this requirement

12. Section 15-5.0354C.1. Landscaping Requirements for Off-Street Parking Areas The
Intenor landscaping shall be provided within landscaped islands a minimum of 250
square feet in area

a Waiver Request Due to the configuration of the lot, we request that this
requirement be waved mn order to allow for adequate parking Additional
landscaping beyond the minimum requirements Is proposed as compensation for
the lack of compliance with thus requirement

W·\data\O'Reilly\Wisconsin\Frankhn FKN\Correspondence\L - Waiver Request Letter - FKN



CRAIG A. SCHNEIDER, AIA

architect

1736E SUNSHINE, SUITE 417
SPRINGFIELD, MO 65804

417 862 0558
FAX 417 862 3265

email crag@esterlyschneider com
Apnl 10, 2025

City of Franklin
Department of City Development
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132

Attn. Mr. Luke Hamill

Re O'Reilly Auto Parts Store
7251 S 27 St
Franklin, WI (FKN)
Agency Specific Project # 761 9956 001

Dear Mr. Luke Hamml,

The following are in response to your Plan Review comments from various departments dated
April 1, 2025

Planning Department

Site Plan

Parking

Comment 1 The Minimum Off-Street Parking Setback when abutting a residential dstnct 1s
15 feet The Western Side of the parking access 1s 12 feet Please revise the site plan to
accommodate the setback
Response: Please see the attached Sheets C2.1 and L1.1, revised 4/8/25. Plans have
been updated to maintain the required 15' setback along the west property line.

Comment 2 Will there be parking of any company vehicles like trucks? If so, please identify
makes and models to confirm the Gross Vehicle Weight as it may reqwre Special Use
approval for overnight parking of vehicles over 8,000 pounds
Response: Yes, there will be overnight parking of company trucks onsite. These will
be under the 8,000 lb. threshold as required by the Unified Development Ordinance.
Please see the attached Project Description for additional information, revised 418125.



Department of Site Development
O'Reilly Auto Parts - Franklin, WI FKN
April 10, 2024
Page 2 of 4

Comment 3 The ADA spaces seem to provide only 12 feet of width when the requirement is
13 perADA parking spaces Please revise the site plan to accommodate this
Response: Please see the attached Sheet C2.1, revised 4/8/25. The site plan has been
updated to be compliant with the 13' width requirement for the ADA parking space.
Per your conversation with Zach Cole on 4/3/25, a portion of the access aisle may
count towards this requirement.

Comment 4 Please prov,de interior floorplans to confirm the space used for the retail
section of the buildmg and the warehousing space so that the amount of parking complies
with the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO)
Response: Please refer to the attached Sheets G1.1 and A1.1, dated 4/8/25.

Comment 5 Table 15-5 0204 requires that Single Row & Aisle be a minimum with of 45 feet
for 90-degree angle spaces, when the provided row and aisle along the south side is 42 feet
Please revise the site plan to accommodate this.
Response: Due to site constraints, we are not able to comply with this requirement of
the Unified Development Ordinance. Please see the attached Waiver Request Letter,
revised, 4/8/25.

Comment 6 According to $15-5 0207, openings for vehicular ingress and egress shall not
exceed 24 feet at the street night of way line and 30 feet at the roadway, unless a greater
distance is approved by the Plan Commission Please either revise the western driveway to
accommodate the maximum dstance or indicate your request for a larger maximum from the
Plan Commission
Response: In order to allow for delivery truck access to the site we request this
requirement be waived. Please see the attached revised Waiver Request Letter,
revised, 418125, and the truck turn diagram found on Sheet C1.3, revised 4/8/25.

Landscaping

Comment 7 The Landscape Plan md1cates 357 total plantings, however, staff could only
count 306. Please prov,de the# of plantings per type ofplantmg (decorative, evergreen,
shade, and shrub), as well as the # of each plant species
Response: Please refer to the attached Sheet L1.1, revised 4/8/25. We have clarified
the Landscape calculations and planting schedule. Note, we are exceeding the
minimum requirement for plantings as compensation for the waivers being requested
for the project.

Comment 8 As per the prov,ded Landscape Plan, there are 67 evergreen plants Of those
67 evergreen plants, 27 are plant species E, Mr Bowling Ball Arborutae This species
exceeds the maximum 35% of Evergreens, as required mn $15-3 0302F 1 Please reduce
these plantings to comply with the 35% max.
Response: Please refer to the attached Sheet L1.1, revised 4/8/25. Plantings have been
revised so that no one species exceeds 35% of its planting type.



Department of Srte Development
O'Reilly Auto Parts - Franklin, WI FKN
April 10, 2024
Page 3 of 4

South 27" Street Design Overly District

Comment 9 15-3 0354O1. Intenor Landscaping for Off-Street Parkmg Areas A minimum of
20 square feet of mterior landscaped island shall be prov,ded per stall The one mterior island
I found was only approximately 70 square feet, when the minimum interior landscaping is 500
square feet. Please either revise the site plan to reflect this change or add it to your waiver
request list.
Response: Due to site constraints, we are requesting this requirement be waived.
Please see the attached Waiver Request Letter, revised 4/8/25.

Comment 10 15-3 0354C2. Intenor Landscaping shall be provided wthin landscaped islands
a minimum of 250 square feet m area The provided island is only approximately 70 square
feet. Please either revise the site plan to reflect the change or add it to your waiver request
list.
Response: Due to site constraints, we are requesting the repave requirement be
waived. Please see the attached Waiver Request Letter, revised 418125.

Comment 11. Are there trash receptacles proposed on the lot? If so, please point them out
on the site plan.
Response: Please see the attached Sheet C2.1, revised 418/25. The location of the
trash enclosure is at the southwest corner of the building and is denoted by Key Note
12. A trash can is also noted to be installed in front of the store and is denoted by Key
Note 26.

ENGINEERING

For responses to all comments in this section, please refer to the attached
response letter from OWN, Inc., dated 4/9/25.

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Comment 1 Follow all relevant WI DSPS and /BC code requirements for fire protection
systems for given occupancy, use, and construction types
Response: All code requirements will be compiled with. Note, a fire sprinkler or fire
alarm system is not included with the project. See the attached Sheets G1.1 and A1.1,
dated 4/8/25.

Comment 2 F,re Extmgwsherplacement as perNFPA 10
Response: Fire extinguishers are placed per NFPA 10. Refer to attached Sheets G1 .1
and A1.1 Key Note 48, dated 4/8/25.

Comment 3 Fire Department Connection (FDC), and hydrant placement and density must be
acceptable to AHJ
Response: Please refer to the attached response letter from Smith-Goth Engineering,
Inc., dated 4/8/25.



Department of Site Development
O'Reilly Auto Parts - Franklin, WI FKN
April 10, 2024
Page 4 of 4

Comment 4. At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable Materials exceed
allowable quantities.
Response: Hazardous, combustible or flammable materials will not exceed the
maximum allowable quantities. Please see the attached Hazardous Materials Totals
Summary as well as the attached O'Reilly Auto Parts Retail Store Commodity
Classification and Storage Plan Letter of Explanation.

Comment 5 Master Key set required for placement in Knox Box.
Response: Please refer to attached Sheet A1.1, dated 4/8125. Knox Box location is
denoted with Key Note 7.

Comment 6. Permitting and submittal instructions for fire protection system review and
inspection can be found at: https:llwww.franklinwi.gov/Departments/Fire.htm
Response: Please see attached Sheet G1.1, dated 418/25. A fire sprinkler system is not
required for this project.
Please contact our office with any questions.

Attachments: Sheets C1 1, C1 .2, C1 .3, C2 1, L1.1,12.1, SG1 1, US1 and SP1, revised 4/8/25
Sheets A1.1 and G1.1, dated 4/8/25
Waiver Request Letter, revised 4/8/25
Project Description, revised 4/8/25
Response Letter from OWN, Inc, dated 4/9/25
Response Letter from Smith-Goth Engineers, Inc., dated 4/8/25
Hazardous Materials Totals Summary
O'Reilly Auto Parts Retail Store Commodity Classification & Storage Plan Letter

of Explanation

Copy of this letter only to: O'Reilly Auto Parts

W'\data\O'Reilly\WWsconsin\Franklin - FKN\Correspondence\L.-City Hamill FKN doc



3
OWN

Engineering beyond."

April 09, 2025

Attn: Luke Hamill. Associate Planner
City of Franklin, WI Deportment of City Development

Re: Staff Comments, 7251 S 27Street/ 761 9956 001
New O'Reilly Auto Parts; Franklin, WI (FKN)
Response to City Review Comments - 04/01/2025

Following ore responses to the below referenced City 04/01/2025 Engineering Dept Review comments received:
Please submit

Comment: Submit Three (3) sets of plan
Response: Noted & 3 copies submitted with this submittal.

Comment: Submit Storm Water Management Pion review application
Response: Refer to attached Storm Water Management Plan review application.

Comment: Submit Storm Water Management Pion (SWMP)
Response: Refer to attached Plans (Cl.1, Cl.2, Cl.3) and Stormwater Report.

Comment: Submit Storm Water Management Access (SWMA)
Response: SWMA draft has been obtained from City & will be provided once Storm Water plan is approved by City.

Comment: Submit soil disturbing permit
Response: Refer to attached soil disturbing permit.

Comment: Submit right-of-way permit
Response: Refer to attached right-of-way permit.

Comment: Submit driveway approach permit
Response: Refer to attached driveway approach permit.

Comment: Submit Plat of Survey.
Response: Refer to attached Plat ofSurvey (SVl) sheet.

Comment: Submit Review comments from WisDOT for proposed development abutting State Highway 41.
Response: The project has been submitted to Kevin Koehnke, WisDOT Permits Coordinator, for approval. The project was previously
fully approved and permitted & since we are not proposing significant changes, we expect to receive full approval from WisDOT

We appreciate your assistance.

Sincerely,

(/,f~,
Engineer of Record, National Account Leader

3213 S. West Bypass, Springfield, MO 65807 I 417.866.2741 I weareown.com Page 1 of 1



SG
3855 5. JEFFERSON AVE.
SPRINGF"IELD, M□ 6S8□7

P: 417.882.2203
F; 417.82.1 1 BB

MITH-LGITHI ENJAINEE#H,

EXPERIENCE F"□RWARD·THINKING,

Date: April 8, 2025

City of Franklin
Department of City Development
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Attention: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner

Re: New O'Reilly Auto Parts Store - Franklin, WI (FKN)
7251 S 27th Street
Franklin, W153132

Mr. Hamill,

WWW,SMITHl30TH,C□M

The following are in response to your Plan Review comments we received on 04/01/2025,

FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

Comment 1: Fire Department Connection (FDCJ, and hydrant placement and density must be acceptable to AH].
Response 1: To our knowledge, a fire sprinkler system is run required at this building. The nearest
existing fire hydrant is located at the corner of West Minnesota Avenue and South 27h Street,
approximately 92-feet awayfrom the southeast corner of the property line. Please see revised Sheet
US1 for addition of a box note detailing the same.

Please contact our office ifyou have any further questwns.

Sincerely,

Brent L. Courter, Principal

qutntu,,

%,

1



17·" nor«HSNOlia1au07ooy
un·zt1·10 ma111s·n11111i1111tm 1M 'Nl"DtNVl::t ::1

IJUIBJHV ·.1s H.L.L ~ s
I'HI@Is'9I) auois siwva o1nv xrvaw9g!9Pg;;

NOl.l::>m:USNO::> ~O.:l .LON

z
0

e
-'Ill
a:
0
ii:
Ill

B
El:, ~
%l#
.., ij

z
0

e
-'Ill
a:
0
ii:
Ill

B I
I- -ni; i

z
0

e
-'Ill
a:
0
ii:

5

z
0

e
-'Ill
a:
0
ii:
Ill

5.
I- ;
en ~
1/



.,,·u.in.>IIIUll1!/ JU JI.IJI :ne■-1 N'1ld AH'1Wwns 300:> :INO H,DUL U9Z·UI IHP)

4$9 zoa 1a n 1nos s 1w '01:1 1.:10N11:t ds

~:s, ,nu·ut:n1 uss• Ulflltli 'PUllhllO HO Sll:lllYd H.Lnos c c z
8SSO-lH"Llt Lltlllll'III.IUIIIIRl1HI IM 'Nl1>1Nlfll,1

so i@u@ .....
llJllUJHV '.1$ H.1LZ 'S SlHtJd ,--<

0nv ·um3NUJS ·v 91vaJ 3H0.1S S.1Hl>'d o.1n11 A1113H.O M3N ~a5aria l

§
ii.

t'

i

Qzw
C)
w
..I
Cl)
..I
0
113
~>Cl)

w
Q
0
CJ
Clzc
..I
::,
Ill

tnw
loz
..I

~wzw
Cl

0--

0--

0--

cp

cb
C,

y

cb
--0

<I: 8 8 ,
z I- : ~ !

@ <I:
Q
I-uw.., i < <
0 4 £
0:: g ~ 8
II. O 5 j± ~

±t et co

±



■u·np1a1.p11111111~JUll\llll :11111•~ toss,1111111i;'m11Uu~s NV1d ONIOVt:10 3.11S :INOHd 3 ,:;u Pl9Z•Z9 9 {UP)

~

' "s,u·z,s·Lt►:111 Z0 9 !o9 11:moss1.-.i '0 1 :l t.l DNU:ld S ; 1ut111ns·~•t111n11111 tt!I NO S~3J.J. Vd Hl.O OS CCZ8$$¢z48 LI» IM 'Nl7>1N'o'l:tal S:IObl::lO 31. 't'l:l Od ~OO 8 .....
lHllHlHV ".LS H.LLC: S SUHfdOlmt~ 031:10.LS S.11:t'o'd o.1nv A1113l:t,O M3 N . #Vil/ 'H10UNDJS "1/ 91VH)

:.l !l3 f'Ol:fd ~

z
:5
Q.
Clz
i5
<Ia:
Cl
w
f-
in

/,,,
I
/

'\ -~'l-,

; i
8 I t.g
'• • -~§ ~ Ii?~ ' 3$~

f□ ~

Qz
Iiic:,
Iii..,
Ill..,
0m
==►Ill

§
$
±

~:;;;;;,,,;;;;;i;;;:;;;;~- §
~ a••

~\':?.,, I
I..

iqfa+oafs

NMO
%



0
G
0
I-

"z5
><...
...
.J
ii:
0a:
II....
II.
ii:
:::Ea:g
VI

z
:l
II.
z
0
i:z...
1-...
Q

0

+

0

+

0
O+

g
,,;:e

g
$

CJ

g 8 8 g 8 8
? < £ & £ £

NOll \f/\373

~u
0
I-

"zi:
VI
><...
...
.J
ii:
0a:
II....
II.
ii:
:::Ea:
0...
VI

0

+

0

+

0

+

0

+

~~;-- ...:___:~~----~ .. _ I \:..:
\

'',
''I

''''I
I
I

''''I
I
I
I
I

' ' I
,-'
I

'

!-----::-.._--: ~--<-=\

' ' ' -, 'I I

iii 2a
'ii U

_,....
----- d

+ ·tt {g .,,!L~-· ~~
0 / \_,...,,.. ~~ ~--- \,

: gt#?g 5,
' eg 3, %/ €Fa i!l ~ 1

i &: 55 %ld< '

, A\ %~·0

I
I ,
I
I
I

- I',,\ --/ 17 I II
/ '
• a------,__!. I', ,' • I -- -:--'----'-- I

g -~_,_...,....,..-, I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

J
g
£

» ti 13ts

..CRJi I.

g 8 g g g 8t £ ~ ri
' :e '

NOll \1/\373

.,,
<O
,,.;

n ~
:: cri

NMO
%

lHllHJHV
\11\f 'UOBNHJS "\I !llVH)

u"'u

■o·u111n,J10U1U,!ilUllqJll:1[1■-) ms,11111111,·•1~111111•1 NVld 01,nvl::::IOAH 3J.IS
szzszm» an1 t» nay 'ayes 1ey utt 1-------------------1
!iSU"l'8"U.. IM 'Nl1)4N'11:::t~

0.lS H.lLC: S
31:10.lS S.l l:l 'o'd O.ln'o' A11131:1 ,0 M3 N

:us5aroua

z
C-
~ cc cc cc ro ~ ~

vi

±, gags %g __: o No 0
V,

z
?ls/z/al?
3&/:=/6\/6
0



e op0in?empt q/ta-a ts $% /uuotk '9and
oz£zosz tel t» as 'vs ier 4£I
1sn·z.s·L1►

UUIHJHV
111v ·aiomuJs ·v 91vaJ

371:IOt:ld 'i N'lfld MOt:I INt:10.lS
IM'Nl1>INVkl:I

'.LS H.LLZ: S
3ttO.LS S.Lttlfd o.Lnv A7713tt.o M3N

:J.::>::irO~d

3N0Hd31:;u l> l9Z•ZHI (Li l> )
ZOil !l 9 n:1nosstw '013 l:IONIUdS

NO SU:lilYd HJ.nos ccz

S1H'1d 01"'1~

(tta ,<JJ.H 3.LY.lS) J.S H.ll.Z S

D

NOll 'efi\373
---~------- ::-,,__ e 8 8 g 8 g g g

~ f s ~ ~ £ ,:!.-~----r-Z
.%.I

I
I

-EM1Ill t 0

. ~ I .
..I +# 0

l;Q.!.L?!...:....!- s ti12 0

"" '00 !
f 0a: ~ .
; 0

A. ' ~ ,
u il g# 'It

of$ ,r "EAT
0 u/ ~~~ ....!!

0
,,_ __

%z • <, I-.-- "~ ~~ J z◄ I a..,: j::

i ti)~ I 8 Cl)

..I ~ti: g )(

A. LIJ
'It 0"-,e: 1 u LIJ= : ..I

Ill --, ~~~ ~ 0
~

ii:I I- 0A. ¥ a:" i 11.z- j:: ~ LIJ

A. 11.
Cl) ii:)( !LIJ ::.

==
a:

z 0
cl ; I-a: ..I Cl)

11.

0 LIJ
11. .> .r:9&rt!4 0

I- ii: »%32 .
::.en a:
0 0

I- .
Cl)

ll 0

g 8 g 8 g g s
0 f N £ g £ ~



NV1A LNawla0Ta/A3a 31s
IM 'N11llNV11:I

"J.S HJ.LZ -S
3110.LS S.LIIYd O.LOY A111D,O MllN

-1saroi

no1Mn3inyta@@njd2tt ·LI-?
$9¢'Z9 I 3 M4$9ae po@put
8SS¢Z91I L)J/Ar'q I39£tI

lJillIBJHV
YI '«IN 'y snag

III
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I
[ e9s1
I
I
I
I
I
l
I
I
I
I
I
l

I
I
I
I
I
I

31.]H:JNO:l Hdrl S-t - NISNO:JSIM. jQ ]lV.lS I
(IAMH ILLS) LS HI2Z S 1

I
I
I



:::~~::~;-~~!'::~~11,®m1111,J■ =n••·• N8fflnlllll '"'ll'■1111 1------:..;;.,;;.NY"l....:..::;d..;;3;.;;d;.;;V:....,:>;..;s;..;a;.;;N.;:_Y"l::....;;.i
IIHO"Ztll"l.Jt 11ta)lal"aat11HllllltlU IM 'NnllNYll:1

lJUIHlUV ".LS H.LLI'; ·s
VIV 'HOHNBlS ·v 91VHJ EIIIO.LS S.LIIYdO.LnY A,,1aia.~~=-~

HHnnpp.: : ~ ~ i
w n n i ;
ICII

l!IIH I0u Un I iw

3 ti ,
fl)

thy iClz
ms #~-fI i Iiii . 4tl h

r
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

1 i I
I I

! I i ! ±
i i

i f J ! l ! I ! ;! ! i ! ! ! ! ii,i ! it
! ! I ! ~;: i i1 np i i1i i1 i I I ~ m ~ I III i i " I I "M'il !H•

p ~ i 3 ~ i ' i i ~ i i ~ i.
Ill if.
..I I! ::::,
ICII ge
Ill #:c
0 g3 . • • • • • • ' . " . • •,n e
C, ~~z ,:g

3:j: ± s I I ! !z f" t Ij el $1; ~ ! t ~ • !IL • . • • • • • •
I ~ i ; g

I ~ & < i I; il i ii e i ± • g~ i ~ i I I t I I! I I a I ffi
2 I 3 ; § 3 ± 1i! e ii ~ ii ~ g i i ~ ¥ ~; 8 £ IC ;; le !' 8 • • IC

n1
ili1l1il

1 i ~ ;!! b ~
ffi ~ ! et igy !q.4 } •• 4 $gi! w ~~ •i±40 ii l 4 nli 3. #n

I © (J @)@ @®66) @Qli;;



lltl"JU\Hil'Ul1Ja1n§\U\\Ull :111■4
!itZE°Zll"l.lt :IIJ tlltt lllllllX 'fiaU• IIJ its
l!iSl "Hl"l.lt Ut1J1■1'11111UIJlflHLl

mllBlllV
VIV 'HilOHHBJS ·v !JIYllJ

NV"lcl NOl.1Y9HIHI :ldY:>SONY"l
IM 'Nn'.IINYll,1

"LS HLLz "S
31110.LS S.LHYd O.LnY ,.:n1;111.o M3N

•.13:ll'Olfd

,/--.
I
I
I
I
I.

<I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

@

z
1
z
0

~
E
!E
Ill
Q.

3en
Cl

3r



$
re2opp444jt42'3pt4e jet+a NYld aoo,:1 .......nn~ttl-CltftJtt ~ I ~stzntt·ut :n• ""' ............... .sa## {sssnn·ut tltllllS "---tu t 1M'Nl"IJINYll:I

lJUIHlBV "L8 MLZS ~.
VIV 'H1CIIHHlS 'V !IIIIJ iRIO.L8 8.UIVtl O.IJIV ATIBtl.OMllN i~-- W>atMd

-...!. ,,,,_ , ~ z



r

isl~=~-r~-~~~~-==....--~~-....J.lcn ill
,____ii

L

- is- 1,- ,s- 1s- 1t- 1s- .1 i -~ s~J•-~

, + ' I
I ' l

33u303 Hatt t;t - NJSNO:JSW. .JO J.tYfS \
3 AAfH 3.Lfl.LS) .LS H.LL<J I I

I
•-111-• •-•----



C

@
(/)
0
ix
I-

¥ ~.. 2"C gs0... , •0;;
~<(

~~h u.?:- I-=ii s3 5,°"C> l!::::1::2""'
w "I- w

ci5 ~

I
ol

A
ct
I

i

JJ.JlJ:JNO :J Hdfl ;Jo NISNO :JSVI JO JJ.VJ.S

(1-,,;:: ,UiH 3.LV.LS) .LS H.LL.Z S

•I

11•11111·-••tw
llUIBJH

VIV 'HOl3NBJS ·v 9111J

• ., ,uua11•~1Hlllllll :111•••
stu ·zta·ut:111
assntnn



I ~
g 'I • .."" t .. o ia; * ...

@1•iti) i ti!ad #A. .
t # • rw i!II !I; ! U I Mj·· ljl!i 'Ii ! 4z

4 #+ i] Mt 1,11 ~

~
Iqn # ; 4i z i ~ . i •U#" i ~ hdil I il1w

~111
sz

+ 14 #j I #la.4tw
0 ii in n Udd l1d1 f

1111lli1ilh1";!Ii i
0 ® ®® GI 0 » 45?

I
I I

(TM AMH ':livlsr·J,s'°m"tz"s !
I • :
I l

r

~I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

~
Ill

Iz
ClGy
Ill•t ..,, I



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Promotion of Mr. Joe Chitko to Facilities
Maintenance Superintendent and Related

Benefit Adjustments

MEETING DATE

6/3/2025

ITEM NUMBER

DESCRIPTION
Mr. Joe Chitko has been employed with the City of Franklin since 1997, originally hired as a second-shift
custodian. Over the past 28 years, he has held various positions within the Department of Public Works
(DPW), the Sewer & Water Utility, and Custodial Services. Since 2019, Joe has served in DPW, where he
has consistently demonstrated significant leadership, technical skills, and institutional knowledge.

Joe's background includes three years of military service in the U.S. Army and several years working for
HVAC contractors before joining the City. He has extensive hands-on knowledge and training in HVAC
systems, municipal infrastructure, and operations unique to Franklin's facilities.

This promotion arises due to the upcoming departure of the current Facilities Maintenance Superintendent,
Mr. Joe Wilson, whose last day is expected to be mid-June. In anticipation of this, the proposed promotion of
Mr. Chitko would provide immediate leadership continuity and preserve institutional knowledge.

Please note that this item has not been presented to the Personnel Committee due to the timing of the notice
provided by Mr. Wilson and the committee's meeting schedule.

REQUESTED CONSIDERATIONS
1. Promotion and Pay Adjustment:

o Promote Mr. Chitko to Facilities Maintenance Superintendent with a salary adjustment
representing a 7.5% increase (the policy maximum without Council approval), resulting in an
annual salary of $72,780.

2. Defined Benefit Pension Plan Eligibility:
o Mr. Chitko is currently enrolled in the Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Plan, a closed group plan

administered by Principal.
o Staff requests that Mr. Chitko's continued eligibility in the DB Pension Plan be maintained

through his promotion and until his separation from employment with the City. This request
does not seek to alter the plan or guarantee its long-term continuation but rather to protect Mr.
Chitko's status within the plan.

3. Retiree Health Insurance Grandfathering:
o The current Facilities Maintenance Superintendent position is tied to retiree health insurance

eligibility at age 62 after 20 years of service.
o Mr. Chitko meets the historical criteria for retiree health insurance eligibility under the DPW

standard: 15 years of service with the City and age 60.
o Staff respectfully requests that Mr. Chitko be grandfathered in under the former DPW

eligibility criteria (age 60 with 15 years of service) as part of this promotion.

FISCAL NOTE
The promotion will result in a salary adjustment of 7.5%, bringing Mr. Chitko's annual salary to $72,780.
This adjustment falls within the currently budgeted salary range for the Facilities Maintenance
Superintendent position and does not require any new funding.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the promotion ofMr. Joe Chitko to Facilities Maintenance Superintendent with an
annual salary of $72,780 effective upon the departure ofMr. Joe Wilson; to approve the continuation ofMr.
Chitko's eligibility in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan until separation from employment; and to
grandfather Mr. Chitko into the retiree health insurance eligibility criteria of age 60 with 15 years of service
consistent with historical DPW policy.

DOA - KH; HR DZ



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution to Authorize Execution of the
2025 MMSD Green Solutions Program

Funding Agreements

MEETING DATE

6/3/2025

ITEM NUMBER

DESCRIPTION
The City of Franklin submitted applications for two green infrastructure projects under the 2025 Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) Green Solutions Program. Both projects, Rawson Homes Phase 2
and Elm Road Bioretention. have been reviewed and approved by MMSD for full funding.

These projects support stormwater management, pollutant reduction, and sustainability goals by
implementing green infrastructure practices in targeted areas. MMSD requires formal execution of a Green
Infrastructure Funding Agreement for each project to initiate reimbursement and project tracking.

Execution of these agreements is required to finalize the City's participation and secure the funding.

FISCAL NOTE
The City of Franklin will fund the 2025 MMSD Green Solutions Program projects through its Stormwater
Utility Fund, an enterprise fund supported by stormwater user fees. This fund will temporarily cover project
costs for the following approved initiatives:

• Rawson Homes Phase 2 (Funding Agreement G98005P 178): $729.000
• Elm Road Bioretention (Funding Agreement G98005P 179)y: $700,000

Total MMSD Reimbursement Approved: $1,429,000

These projects are eligible for 100% reimbursement. No local match is required unless changes to the project
scope result in expenses exceeding the approved amount. The Stormwater Utility Fund will absorb any
ineligible or excess costs. Staff will ensure all expenditures remain aligned with MMSD's program
guidelines to secure full reimbursement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-__ authorizing the Mayor, Director of Administration, and Director of
Finance and Treasurer to execute the 2025 MMSD Green Solutions Program Green Infrastructure Funding
Agreements and all related documentation.

Roll Call Vote Required

DOA- KH. Engineering MP; Finance DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN . MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDING AGREEMENTS WITH THE MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE

DISTRICT FOR THE 2025 GREEN SOLUTIONS PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City of Franklm has submitted and received approval for two green
mfrastructure projects under the 2025 Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage DIstr1ct (MMSD)
Green Solutions Program, and

WHEREAS, the MMSD Green Solut10ns Program provides 100% rennbursement-based
fundmg to support the 1mplementat10n of green mfrastructure that manages stonnwater and
reduces pollutant discharge, and

WHEREAS, the approved projects-Rawson Homes Phase 2 and Elm Road
B10retention-reqmre execution of MMSD Green Infrastructure Funding Agreements to 1nit1ate
the reimbursement process and proJect obhgatlons formally,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that

The Mayor, D1rector of Admun1strat1on, and Director of Finance and Treasurer are hereby
authonzed to execute the Green Infrastructure Fundmg Agreements with MMSD for the
2025 Green Solut10ns Program projects, specifically Fundmg Agreements G98005P 178
(Rawson Homes Phase 2) and G98005P179 (EIm Road B1oretention), and all associated
documentat10n, mcludmg rennbursement forms, mamtenance covenants, and reporting
documents

2 The Crty shall mamntam the green Infrastructure assoc1ated with each project in
accordance wth MMSD's program guidelines for the required term

3 Thus resoluton shall take effect 1mmedately upon 1ts passage and publcat1on



2025- RES (RESOLUTION 2025 MMSD
GREEN SOLUTIONS FUNDING AGREEMENT)
Page 2

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin on thus 3rd
day of June 2025

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
on thus 3rd day of June 2025

APPROVED·

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

Green Infrastructure Funding Agreement G98005P 178
Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Rawson Homes Phase Two Project

1. The Parties

This Agreement is between the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (District), located at
260 West Seeboth Street, Milwaukee. Wisconsin 53204, and the City of Franklin (Funding
Recipient) located at 9229 West Loomis Road. Franklin, Wisconsin 53132.

2. Basis for this Agreement

A. Wisconsin law authorizes any municipality to establish an intergovernmental cooperation
agreement with another municipality for the furnishing of services (Wis. Stats. § 66.030 I).

B. The District is responsible for collecting and treating wastewater from locally owned
sewerage systems in the District's service area.

C. During wet weather. stormwater enters the sewerage system, increasing the volume of
wastewater the District must collect and treat.

D During wet weather, stormwater directly enters surface water, increasing pollution levels in
those waterways and increasing the risk of flooding.

E. Green Infrastructure (GI) such as constructed wetlands, rain gardens, green roofs, bioswales,
and porous pavements, works to reduce the volume of stormwater in the sewerage system and
the amount of pollutants discharged to surface waters.

F. The District's Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) permit includes a
goal of 50 million gallons of GI capture capacity.

G. The District wishes to expedite the amount of GI installed in its service area and this
Agreement includes plans to mstall GI that supports the District's GI goals.

3. Date of Agreement
This Agreement becomes effective immediately upon the date of last signature below and ends
when the Funding Recipient receives final payment from the District under this Agreement or
when the parties terminate this Agreement according to Section 14 of this Agreement.
4. District Funding
The District will reimburse the Funding Recipient for the cost of the GI Project described in the
attached project description (Project). up to $177.440.00. The District will provide funding after
the District receives the Baseline Report and the Maintenance Covenant.

t of Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Project- G98005PI78
Page 1 of 10



5. Location of Project

The Project will be located mn the public right-of-way of 37th Place from West Rawson Avenue
to West Madison Boulevard as further delmeated 111 the Project descript1on and Figure I as
attached hereto
6. Baseline Report

After completion of the Project the Fund mg Rec1p1ent wtll provide a Basel me Report usmg
forms provided or approved by the DIstr1ct The Baseline Report will include

A A site drawmg and topographical map showmg the Pro.1ect as completed with GI assets
defined,

B Des1gn specifications for the Project, including rainwater capture capacity (maximum per
storm) and other mformat1on regard mg runoff rate reduction or pollutant capture,

C A tabulation of the buds received, including bidder name and price;

D A copy of the executed construction contract(s) and a l1st of all permits collected during the
Project construction process,

E A legal description of the property where the Project 1s located, mcludmng parcel 1dentfication
numbers, 1f a conservation easement 1s required;

F Photographs of the Project during construction and upon Project complet10n,
G An operations and mamtenance plan including details on fundmg for operations and
mamtenance,
H An outreach and educat10n strategy, mcludmg a description of events or activ1t1es completed
or planned,
I An 1temzatton of all construction costs with supporting documentation,
J A Small, Veterans, Women, and Mmonty Busmess Enterprise (SWMBE) and Equal
Employment Oppo1tu111ty (EEO) Repott as attached and made part of this Agreement,

K An Economic Impact Repo1t showmg the total number of people and the estimated number of
hours worked on the design and construction of the Pro.1ect by the Fundmg Rec1p1ent, and any
of its consultants, contractors, and/or volunteers that worked on the Project; and

L Lessons Learned
7. Procedure for Payment

The Funding Recipient submut an mnvotce to the District for the amount to be reimbursed The
111vo1ce will document all costs to be reimbursed Invoices from consultants will provide their
hourly btlltng rates. if applicable, the hours worked, by mndvdual, and a summary of the tasks
accomplished
The Fundmg Rec1p1ent will send the Baselme Report and the 111vo1ce to

Andy Kammnskn, Senior Project Manager
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage D1stnct
260 West Seeboth Street
Milwaukee, W1scons111 53204-1446
AKammsk1@mmsd com

rt ot Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Project-G98003P178
Page 2 ot 10



The DIstr1ct will not provide reimbursement until the Project 1s complete and the District has
received all reqwred deliverables
8. Changes in the Project and Modifications to the Agreement
Any changes to the Project must be approved by the D1stnct 111 wntmg 111 advance The District
will not reimburse for work that 1s not described 111 the ongmal Project descnpt1on unless the
Funding Recmprent obtains prior written approval from the District

9. Modifications to this Agreement
Any modifications to thus Agreement will be m writing and signed by both parties

10. Project Maintenance
The Pundmng Recipient will maintain the GI for at least l 0 years If the GI fails to perform as
anticipated or If mamntamning the GI Is not feasible, then the Funding Recipient will provide a
report to the D1stnct expla111111g the failure of the GI or why mamtenance 1s not feasible Failure
to mamntam the GI will make the Funding Recipient ineligible for future District funding until the
Funding Recipient corrects any maintenance problems associated with the GI

11. Permits, Certificates, and Licenses
The Fund mg Rec1p1ent 1s solely responsible for compliance with all federal, state, and local laws
and any required penrnts, certificates, or licenses for the Project

12. Procurement
The Fund mg Rec1p1ent must select professional service providers accord mg to the ordmances
and polcres of the Funding Rec1prent The Funding Recipient must procure all non-professional
services, such as construction, sewer mnspecton, and post-construction restoration, accordmg to
State of W1scons111 statutes and regulations and the ordmances and policies of the Funding
Rec1p1ent Whenever v.ork valued over $25,000 1s procured without the use of a public sealed
bddmng process, the District may request, and the Funding Recipient must provide, an op1111on
from a licensed attorney representmg the Fundmg Recipient explaming why the procurement
complies with State of W1scons111 law and the ordmances of the Fundmg Rec1p1ent
13. Responsibility for Work, Insurance, and Indemnification
The Funding Rec1p1ent 1s solely responsible for plannmng, des1gn, construction, and mamntenance
of the Project, mncludmng the selection of and payment for consultants, contractors, and materials

The District will not provide any msurance coverage of any kmd for the Project or the Fundmg
Rec1p1ent as related to this Agreement
The Funding Recipient will defend, mdemnfy. and hold harmless the D1stnct and its
commissioners, employees, and agents agamnst all damages, costs, liability, and expenses,
mcluding attorneys' fees and related disbursements, ansmg from or connected with the plan111ng,
design, construction, operation, or mamtenance of the Project

14. Terminating this Agreement
The D1stnct may term111ate this Agreement at any tune before the commencement of
construction After the commencement of construction, the D1stnct may termmate this
Agreement only for good cause 111clud111g. but not limited to, breach of this Agreement by the
Funding Recipient The Funding Recipient may terminate thus Agreement at any time but the
Fund mg Recipient will not receive any payment from the D1stnct 1f the Fundmg Rec1p1ent does

Cit) ot Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Pro_1ect C,98005Pl78
Page 3 of JO



not complete the ProJect District reserves the nght to pursue any other remedies available under
the law 111 the event of such term111at1on
15. Maintenance Covenant
After the complet10n of construction of the ProJect, the District shall receive a Mamtenance
Covenant from the Funding Recipient The Maintenance Covenant will be l11rnted to the GI
installed through the Pro.1ect The term of the Mamtenance Covenant will be IO years The
Fundrng Rec1p1ent will cooperate with the District to prepare the Mamtenance Covenant

16. Exclusive Agreement
Tl11S Agreement 1s the entire agreement between the Funding Recipient and the District for the
Project other than the Mamntenance Covenant to be provided to the District upon completion of
the construction of the Project

17. Severability
If a court holds any part of this Agreement unenforceable, then the remamder of the Agreement
will continue 111 full force and effect

18. Applicable Law
The laws of the State of W1sconsm apply to this Agreement

19. Resolving Disputes
If a dispute arises under this Agreement, then the parties will try to resolve the dispute with the
help of a mutually agreed-upon mediator 111 Milwaukee County The parties will equally share
the costs and fees associated with the med1at1on, other than attorneys' fees If the dispute ts not
resolved w1th1n 30 days after mediatmn, then either party may take the matter to court

20. Notices
Al notices and other communications related to th1s Agreement will be mn writing and wall be
cons1dered given as follows
A When deltvered personally to the rec1p1ent's address as stated 111 this Agreement, or
8 Three days after be111g deposited in the Umted States mad, with postage prepaid to the

recipient's address as stated 111 this Agreement
21. Independence of the Parties
Thus Agreement does not create a partnership The Fundmg Rec1p1ent does not have authorrty to
make promises bmndmng upon the DIstr1ct or otherwise have authority to contract on the D1stl'lct's
behalf.
22. Assignment

The Funding Recipient may not ass1gn any rights or obligations under thus Agreement wrthout
the D1strict's prior written approval

23. Public Records

The Fund mg Rec1p1ent will produce any records 111 the possession of the Fundmg Recipient as
related to this Agreement that are subject to disclosure by the District pursuant to the State of
W1sconsm's Open Records Laws, Wis Stats } 1931 to 19 39 The Funding Recipient will

CIt ot Franklm Rawson Homes Phase 2 Project-- G98003P178
Page 4 ot 10



111demn1fy the District agamst all cla11ns. demands, or causes of action resultmg from the failure
to comply with thus requirement

MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN
SEWERAGE DISTRICT

By
Kevin L Shafer P E
Executive Drector

Date

Approved as to Form

V 1ncent R Bauer
Attorney for the District

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By ----------------
John R Nelson
Mayor

Date

By _

Danelle Brown
Director of Fmance and Treasurer

Date ------------------

By _

Kelly Hersh
Director of Adm1111stration

Cn, ol frank Im Rm,son Homes Phase 2 ProJect-G9800JP 178
Page'- ot 10



Green Infrastructure Funding Agreement G98005P 178

Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Rawson Homes Phase Two Project

Project Description

The proposed Project finishes work on the two-phase Rawson Homes Project with the City of
Franklin previously recervmng Green Solutions funding through Contract M03076P53 for work
on the 36 Street Bio filter portion of the overall project Figure I mcluded below 111d1cates the
rema111111g work to be completed on the overall project via fundmg through this Agreement to
capture stormwater runoff from the project areas and direct such runoff to discharge to the
previously constructed basmn on Madison Boulevard Stormwater runoff will be directed 111to the
previously constructed b1ofilter through a system of ditches, 111lets, and storm pipes

Schedule

The Fund mg Rec1p1ent plans to complete the project by December 31, 2026

Budget

The Funding Rec1p1ent has requested $177,440 00 for the project

Outreach and Education

The Funding Recipient will post educational s1gnage and describe the Project and 1ts benefits mn a
commu111ty newsletter or web page

Educational materials will acknowledge D1stnct fundmg for the Project

S1gnage will
I Be either designed and provided by the District or provided by the Fundmg Recipient and
approved by the District,
2 Be at a location approved by the District, and
3 Identify the District as fundmg this ProJect by name, logo, or both

It ot Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Project G9800P178
Page 6 ol lO



Figure 1
Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Rawson Homes Phase Two Project

--.
I

: !
ir,
l,.
I.
#
I !:::
: :c
}

'tf-.r•f ~
j,
I
I

i

I
I
I
't

..t·. r
I I
'·I

j
.1 J

I
I
1,.

i ~ ti
r

• +!
fi

I

t/,.
-,
I
L
I--~
I
t ,

·t~
Lr
£
f,,
I
I
l
t
I
l- ....
I ~
( :t,.,.
I .,,
I :I.

» #'
k

'! ,.

l

;_
- 'J

+-- 1

tit\ ol Fmnklm Rawson Homes Phase 2 Pro_1ect-G98005Pl78
Page7 of to



434 . $94op3n,4., ¢. py9 ts4 £ » t tt. M r
r$£i it fs A$ 2. ,.

INf

i,T-

Ruekert lvt,elke s;

I -l I

I 1I I
I I 11
1 i·- \i.o\ ;H I ·-_J____
I »f I II I I
I I I
I I II i I
I I I
I I I
J I I
I I I
I I
I I

\ I
I- .-1 I
jl I I

I I t
I I I
l I I
I I I

I I,- J I ( I -I g I}

I :::: 2 I l
I J> ;ft ... I
I r-;..; t I 1.

l l
r v

I I.l..•J r,, :z I I ll 3 J>. ...,
j o,-z 3 I I.z
I ti 1. I I4z
I #a rr; I I

a "' ,.,.,!":""
I I,. x

I 23° 5. -I II  :;, I
+4I -- I

I no
I"±pa I ,

I .,
p

I I
I (,. i .... I I
I z I I
I I I
I I "T3

I I
I r 8 + I Ia '-·I $ <.., r, I E4: ±.# r-
I Ir -+g I I

"'"' I l
7 Il'.•C- I I-Me ·f·o IfVf"l
X, I I0
$ I
? I I

I I·, I
I t· .I
I l
I ,_
I I
I lI l"I• 1f \ lI II I

1
.• ... I l

I

%
______ __...,_,.. ,_

_l_
at I\ 5 I

I
I

\tA't .H

- --- -- -3
)flNJ.I\ '1 I
uf00sirs r,,

I
I
I
I
.JI

I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

J!tl'IDIUUJH«.111.
w44# "uuw ti 44

en, ot Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Pro1ec1-G98005Pl78
Page 8 of IO ·



.-'f'
l l
l I
I I
, l.

~~
I

..,.J_.._

r'
I I
I l
I
I

' I
I
I.,.
I
I
I
I

I I
J....L._;
11
I I
t
I
I
I
'l

t I

'

J
)

"

3 I
I
I
,l
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

l
•\
' '\\
\
\
\

i
I

---;-!--,-;~,-

1

-...,,:..-,,,.,.,ua ....-.,,11~-.... '$~"'""' t1'1«Nll"''
$z«tp $0 $e

tr-t4w 3
t.wt4rt to 80$0%

R.,e~ul Mu,·lkt' LJ

ltt\ ol Frankhn Rawson Homes Phase 2 ProJect-C.98(){15Pl78
Page 9 of IO



SWMBE / EEO Data Report
Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Rawson Homes Phase Two Project

It is the District's policy to encourage equal employment opportunity practices on the part of its suppliers
ofgoods and services. Please use this form to provide employment data for your firm.

Number of Employees
(Report employees n only one category)

Race/Ethnicitv Male Female

Asian

Black or African Amer1can

Hispanic or Latino

Native American

Other

White

Total

Local Market Availability
State the percent ofminorities and females that are available in the labor market from which you draw
your workforce. These figures may be obtamed from your local Job Service, State Labor Department, or
the U.S. Census Bureau.

The labor market avalablty figures for the Mhw aukee-Waukesha Prmary Metropoltan Statistcal Ar ea
(PMSA)for 2025 are Mores 26%, Females 52%

Local Market Availability

Firm Name

Address

City/State/Zip

Contact Person

E-mail Address

Mmortties % Females %

tv of Franklin Rawson Homes Phase 2 Proyet- G98005PI78
Page 10 of ID



PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

Green Infrastructure Funding Agreement G98005P 179
Green Solutions - City of Franklin

Elm Road Bioretention Project

1. The Parties

This Agreement is between the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (District), located at
260 West Seeboth Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204, and the City of Franklin (Funding
Recipient) located at 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132.

2. Basis for this Agreement

A. Wisconsin law authorizes any municipality to establish an intergovernmental cooperation
agreement with another municipality for the furnishing of services (Wis. Stats. $ 66.0301).

B. The District is responsible for collecting and treating wastewater from locally owned
sewerage systems in the District's service area.

C. During wet weather, stormwater enters the sewerage system, increasing the volume of
wastewater the District must collect and treat.

D. During wet weather, stormwater directly enters surface water, increasing pollution levels in
those waterways and increasing the risk of flooding.

E. Green Infrastructure (GI) such as constructed wetlands, rain gardens, green roofs, bioswales,
and porous pavements works to reduce the volume of stormwater in the sewerage system and
the amount of pollutants discharged to surface waters.

F. The District's Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) permit includes a
goal of 50 million gallons of GI capture capacity.

G. The District wishes to expedite the amount of GI installed in its service area and this
Agreement includes plans to install GI that supports the District's GI goals.

3. Date of Agreement
This Agreement becomes effective immediately upon the date of last signature below and ends
when the Funding Recipient receives final payment from the District under this Agreement or
when the parties terminate this Agreement according to Section 14 of this Agreement.

4. District Funding
The District will reimburse the Funding Recipient for the cost of the GI Project described in the
attached project description (Project), up to $1,241,437.00. The District will provide funding
after the District receives the Baseline Report and the Maintenance Covenant.



5. Location of Project

The Project will be located along Elm Road 111 the City of Franklm as indicated 111 Figure 2
below and as more fully delmeated m the Project Description attached hereto
6. Baseline Report

After completion of the Project. the Fund mg Rec1p1ent will provide a Baselme Report us111g
forms provided or approved by the District The Baseline Report will include.

A A site draw111g and topographical map show111g the Project as completed with GI assets
defined,

B Des1gn specifications for the Project, including rainwater capture capacity (maximum per
storm) and other 111format1on regard mg runoff rate reduction or pollutant capture,

C A tabulation of the bids received, 111cludmg bidder name and pnce,

D A copy of the executed construction contract(s) and a list of all permits collected during the
Project construction process,

E A legal descnpt1on of the property where the Project 1s located, including parcel identification
numbers, 1f a conservation easement 1s requtred,

F Photographs of the Project durmg construction and upon Project completion,
G An operations and maintenance plan mncludmng details on funding for operations and
maintenance,

H An outreach and education strategy, mcludmg a descnpt1on of events or act1v1t1es completed
or planned;

An 1tem1zat10n of all construction costs wuth supporting documentation,
J A Small, Veterans, Women, and Mmonty Busmess Enterprise (SWMBE) and Equal
Employment Opportumty (EEO) Report as attached and made part of this Agreement,

K An Economic Impact Report showmg the total number of people and the estimated number of
hours worked on the design and construction of the Project by the Funding Recipient. and any
of its consultants, contractors. and/or volunteers that worked on the Project; and

L Lessons Learned
7. Procedure for Payment

The Fundmng Recipient submit an mnvoice to the District for the amount to be reimbursed The
invoice will document all costs to be re11nbursed Invoices from consultants will provide their
hourly b1llmg rates, 1f applicable, the hours worked, by mndvdual, and a summary of the tasks
accomplished
The Funding Rec1p1ent will send the Baselme Report and the mvo1ce to.

Andy Kammnskn, Senior Project Manager
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage D1stnct
260 West Seeboth Street
Milwaukee, W 1sconsm 53204-1446
AKammsk1@mmsd com

Elm Road Fundmg Agreement G98003P179
Page 2 ot 8



The District will not provide reimbursement until the Project Is complete and the D1strict has
received all reqwred deliverables

8. Changes in the Project and Modifications to the Agreement
Any changes to the Pro.1ect must be approved by the D1stnct 111 wntmg 111 advance The District
wIll not reimburse for work that is not described mn the or1gmnal Project description unless the
Fund111g Rec1p1ent obta111s pnor wntten approval from the D1stnct
9. Modifications to this Agreement
Any modifications to this Agreement will be 111 wntmg and signed by both parties
10. Project Maintenance

The Funding Recipient will mamntamn the GI for at least 10 years. If the GI fails to perform as
anticipated or if mamntamnmng the Gl 1s not feasible, then the Funding Recipient will provide a
report to the District expla111111g the failure of the GI or why mamtenance 1s not feasible Failure
to mamntamn the GI wll make the Fundmg Rec1p1ent 111e!tg1ble for future District funding until the
Funding Rec1p1ent corrects any mamtenance problems associated with the GI

11. Permits, Certificates, and Licenses
The Fundmg Rec1p1ent is solely responsible for compliance with all federal, state, and local laws
and any required penrnts, certificates, or licenses for the Project

12. Procurement
The Fundmg Rec1p1ent must select professional service providers accordmg to the ordmances
and pol1cres of the Fundmng Recipient The Funding Recipient must procure all non-profess1onal
services. such as construction, sewer 111spect1on. and post-construction restoration, accordmg to
State of W 1scons111 statutes and regulations and the ordmances and policies of the Fund mg
Rec1p1ent Whenever work valued over $25,000 1s procured without the use of a public sealed
bidding process, the DIstr1ct may request, and the Fundmg Rec1p1ent must provide, an op1111on
from a licensed attorney representmg the Fundmg Rec1p1ent explaming why the procurement
complies with State of W1scons111 law and the ordmances of the Fundmg Rec1p1ent
13. Responsibility for Work, Insurance, and Indemnification
The Fundmg Rec1p1ent 1s solely responsible for planning, design, construction, and rnamtenance
of the Project, mcludmg the selection of and payment for consultants, contractors, and materials
The D1stnct will not provide any msurance coverage of any kmnd for the Project or the Funding
Rec1p1ent as related to this Agreement
The Funding Rec1prent will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and 1ts
comm1ss1oners. employees, and agents agamst all damages, costs, ltab1ltty, and expenses,
111cludmg attorneys' fees and related disbursements. ansmg from or connected with the planning,
design, construction, operation, or maintenance of the Project
14. Terminating this Agreement
The District may tenrnnate this Agreement at any tune before the commencement of
construction After the commencement of construction, the District may termmate this
Agreement only for good cause including, but not limited to, breach of this Agreement by the
Funding Recipient The Funding Recipient may tenrnnate this Agreement at any t11ne but the
Funding Reciprent will not recerve any payment from the District if the Funding Rec1prent does

Elm Road Funding Agreement G98003P179
Page 3 0f 8



not complete the Project District reserves the nght to pursue any other remedies available under
the law 111 the event of such term111at1on

15. Maintenance Covenant
After the completion of construction of the Project, the District shall receive a Mamntenance
Covenant from the Funding Recipient The Mamntenance Covenant will be l11111ted to the GI
mnstalled through the Project The term of the Ma111tenance Covenant will be 10 years The
Funding Recipient wll cooperate with the District to prepare the Maintenance Covenant

16. Exclusive Agreement
This Agreement 1s the entire agreement between the Fundmg Rec1p1ent and the District for the
Project other than the Mamtenance Covenant to be provided to the District upon completion of
the construction of the Project
17. Severability
If a court holds any part ofth1s Agreement unenforceable, then the remainder of the Agreement
will cont111ue 111 full force and effect
18. Applicable Law
The laws of the State of W1scons111 apply to this Agreement
19. Resolving Disputes
If a dispute arises under this Agreement, then the pa1t1es will try to resolve the dispute with the
help of a mutually agreed-upon mediator 111 Milwaukee County. The parties will equally share
the costs and fees associated with the mediation. other than attorneys' fees If the dispute 1s not
resolved w1th111 30 days after mediation. then either party may take the matter to court

20. Notices
All notices and other communtcatons related to this Agreement will be in writ111g and will be
considered given as follows:
A When delivered personally to the rec1p1ent's address as stated 111 this Agreement, or
B Three days after bemg deposited 111 the U111ted States mail, with postage prepaid to the

rec1p1ent's address as stated 111 this Agreement
21. Independence of the Parties
Tl11S Agreement does not create a partnership The Fundmg Rec1p1ent shall not have authority to
make promises bmdmg upon the District or otherwise have authonty to contract on the District's
behalf
22. Assignment

The Funding Recipient may not ass1gn any rights or obligations under thus Agreement without
the DIstr1ct's prior written approval

23. Public Records

The Fundmg Rec1p1ent will produce any records mn the possession of the Fund mg Rec1p1ent as
related to this Agreement that are subject to disclosure by the District pursuant to the State of
Wisconsin's Open Records Laws. Wis Stats $8 1931 to 19 39 The Funding Recipient wll
indemnify the District against all claims, demands, or causes of action resultmg from the failure
to comply with thus requirement

Elm Road Fun<lmg Agreement G98005Pl79
Page 4 ot 8



MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN
SEWERAGE DISTRICT

By:-----------
Kevin L. Shafer. P.E.
Executive Director

Date:------------

Approved as to Form

Vincent R. Bauer
Attorney for the District

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:---------------
John R. Nelson
Mayor

Date:----------------

By:-----------------
Danie IIe Brown
Director of Finance and Treasurer

Date:-----------------

By: _

Kelly Hersh
Director of Administration

Elm Road Fundmg Agreement-C.98005PI 79
Page 5 of'8



Green Infrastructure Funding Agreement G98005P 179

Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Elm Road Bioretention Project

Project Description

The proposed Project 1s to mnstall b1oretention cells that run parallel to Elm Road wtth111 the nght
of-way (ROW) as mndicated mn Figure I below Plants within the bioretentron facilities will be
salt-tolerant and appropnately hardy for the southeastern Wisconsin clunate B1oretent1011 will be
sited on the side of Elm Road opposite pedestnan pathways All stormwater management
features will be provided w1th111 the public ROW and private property mvolvement 1s not
expected It 1s anticipated that the Project will result mn stormwater runoff capture capacity of
approximately 561,000 gallons

Schedule

The Funding Rec1p1ent plans to complete construction of the Project by December 31, 2027

Budget

The Funding Recipient has requested $1,241,437 00 for the Project

Outreach and Education

The Fundmng Recipient wll post educational sgnage and describe the Project and its benefits mn a
community newsletter or web page

Educational matenals will acknowledge D1stnct funding for the Project

Signage will
I Be either designed and provided by the District or provided by the Funding Recipient and
approved by the D1stnct,
2 Be at a location approved by the D1stnct, and
3 Identify the D1stnct as fundmg this Project by name. logo, or both

Elm Road Funding Agreement G9800»P179
Page 6 of8



Figure l
Green Solutions - City of Franklin
Elm Road Bioretention Project

Scale 2 Stieet labcb

Scale I t,1uni Libels

Sca'e 1 S1ree1 labels

Scale O Mum Labels

Sile-et LJtx!l'i

Sca!c O Street lal>cls

Adnltf llSlfilllVC

!A1Jt11C,p:t1 80lJt1dar1es

Notes

3rce's
".'"a1 Pa:cels

Legend

. . . .. -
s'

54.1···,. it.

Map Title

- 9I II ~) ""' JU) d .w· ,....."din: ;I.i t~ ,;u ' JJ,l 111.• ,, ·'" l ·11c ·· t: ,,;·u ···u )1\l' 4' !1; e err 0t

Dpt3i»er,:9taptrtu,eartu, '-" "lJ/ rt beaututna.et \'I, , ~ -• , ,: t,J:; ' I;'

MllWAUKH COUNTY GIS ANO LAND 1Nr0RMATION

Elm Road Funding 1\greement-G98005Pl79
Page7u!'8



SWMBE / EEO Data Report
Green Solutions - City of Franklin

Elm Road Bioretention Project

It Is the District's policy to encourage equal employment opportumty practices on the part of its suppliers
of goods and services Please use this form to provide employment data for your firm

Number of Employees
(Repm I employee~ 111 only one category)

Race/Ethnicity Male Female

As1an

Black or Afrcan Amer1can

Hrspan1c or Latino

Native Amencan

Other

White

Total

Local Market Availabihty
State the percent ofmmont1es and females that are available 111 the labor market from which you draw
your workforce These figures may be obtamed from your local Job Service, State Labor Department, or
the U S Census Bureau

The labor market avalablty figures for the Mlwaukee-Waukesha Pruary Metropoltan Statsteal A ea
(PMSA) for 2025 are Montes 26%, Females 52%

Local Market Availability

Firm Name

Address

City/State/Zip

Contact Person

E-mail Address

Mmontles % Females %

Elm Road Fund mg Agreement-C,9800)P 179
Page 8 ol 8



Attachment 1:

Green Solutions Funding Agreement G98005PXX: 2025 PROJECT WORKPLAN (1 of 2]

Project Name: Rawson Homes

Project Description:

Rawson Homes s a single-famly home community in Franklin, Wisconsin, that was built
between 1954 and 1958 Due to stormwater management issues caused by adjacent
stormwater runoff and a high groundwater table, localized flooding became an issue in this area
over tme An intergovernmental cooperaton agreement was signed between Franklin and
MMSD to help solve this through a comb1nat:1on of MMSD's Green Solutons and PPII funding
programs Reimbursements for work mn prior years have been requested of MMSD and
successfully provided to Franklin

The work included 1n this 2025 project work plan continues work that was previously approved
for MMSD reimbursement and 1s for the last piece of the previously reimbursed Rawson Homes
project Plans for this last piece of work are now complete and provided on the following pages

Gallons of stormwater captured as a result of this work were not calculated They are uniquely
intertwined with calculat10ns for pnor phases of this work Therefore, a regional approach to
reporting gallons captured 1s recommended, with the entlre project considered (rather than just
this last piece) That said, capturing stormwater to the maximum extent practicable was a
guiding principle mn the design and wll be mn the constructon of thus last project phase
Stormwater from the project areas will discharge to the previously constructed basin on
Mad1son Boulevard, which will route add1tonal area toward thus BMP.

Schedule: The schedule 1s not detailed now, although Franklin anticipates that this project will
continue through 2025, likely go out for bid between now and 2026, and be constructed in
2025-2026

Budget: The construction estimate, including construction administration of $19,011, 1s
$177,440 No Franklin cost share ts calculated in this amount or provided 1n this memo Still, 1t
will include cooperating with MMSD on project s1gnage and undertaking public outreach and
education as proposed below

Outreach and Education: Franklin will post educatonal sgnage at the project srte This signage
will acknowledge MMSD funding for the project In additon, Franklin wll describe the project
and ,ts benefits ,n a community newsletter or on its web page here
https //www franklinw1.gov/



Maps or Drawings (drawing 1 of 3)

l-

--E
t:r
I

'! 1.,, .I
. -I

I
I
I
I·. '- 1,
i

V:,:,
0,,
0>»« O

ml->:,:,oo
z
)>C
12
"'o
Nm

::0 •
0
::0
:!:'!z

,.

I
I ;

i
!

!
-'j-- < -

I I
1 o,

1
€,

~li'o.. ..__

.I C.

Ii
i -

I I I
i

I ,.,
---

I

i j ! iltAWSOUHOtllts Ofll,tt,AOAIWltOViMiNfS AttOWATeRMA.IN REUY Ruekert Mielke ~
j ' PAOftOSEP STORM Sl!:WfR Al T 2 '

'JI @ ! • ' .:2s 11\'n.:J..cmna 11.w,,.,. %

: ' l tO. )IWNOAftlOffl'aOl$Q!IIK)VUV- CNa G 4at Wat re fa V Mey

z ,, CtTY0,FRANKLIN
IULWAUt<£E COUNTY WISCONSIN $a " ..,



Maps or Drawings (drawing 2 of 3)

I I

1
I II I 11

l "' " i I .. ,
'\\AH' i I I

I I· I
I I I
I I II I• I I I

' I I I.J( NI I
/ii'!• ,., i t I I I

.., l I I
I I
I I II .. , l,_

t II ,, I II I r-I I
II I

--: I I I
I t II I If p» er. I 'I I
l ,. I I
I 1. z I 3

I I .3I .E

l I I
_,.,.,, I r :' ' t I /

r· I ,, -· ,.,
I I ::.J

,,.; . I t I I :./°V I ±.1 ·r I I ~-"'2 ,
,.:! ...--- '

,, . I I
L, -] I .,;;;;, "' :r· 3.,
E. I ):t•C .$..."" i I. e ,. I

I I
::. I -

• I
_, ,> .... I
° I !

I I
I !
I l

i I C LI 1! r II t Il 53 4 "":"i
I .'.:..·'I •

;,: ,'r _,;:,
,) -·, 42,,. .°,.,•..)

$ rr

"e.,
I ..
I z
I
4

I I..,. I
1I \ II II

I
I

Is i .. II II

I
- l.,.q ' ------ I ,.

I

1
I @I

/1,,.,-.4,l ,,,_,. tr t. "'"'-''"· t .,
Ruekert Mielke ......,,.. (t",H• fs ..,..

» pt#, t\
II Alo i ' # s e ......



Maps or Drawings (drawing 3 of 3)

$
I I
I I
I I
I I.
l,

I ,I
J . I ·--rr-., I I

"' I I0 I I.,
g I I
u I ,
,., I

1-' I l,._,,
' Ir

A,"°t:) ' IZn
s I

I
!•':q I

0 I»
I ,
.1..1

,-, ' I
;n I I

j I
I I
I I, I
'! I

I I
I I
f I

0.,,
0
r3
c

± er

-·a?
z

'.)

0
V•

<.,

$ 4pa- M # a 4t :4 tr4 q a

¢ $ t to A Ruekert Mielke '



Attachment 2:

Green Solutions Funding Agreement G98005PXX: 2025 PROJECT WORKPLAN [2 of 2]

Project Name: Elm Road Bioretenton

Project Description:

Thus project is being modeled after the 2022 work accomplished on adjacent S. Hickory Street,
which crosses Elm Road The typical cross-secton for that inttal Hickory Street work,
Incorporatng a bioswale, Is included on the project drawing at the top 1/3 of the page for
reference This drawing Is used to inspire the new preferred cross-secton on Elm Road that
incorporates green infrastructure

The current/preferred Elm Road project includes stormwater management via b1oreten1:lon
Three preliminary drawings that will be used to create more preme drawings of this are on the
last page of this workplan, and require explanaton

• Drawing on top 1/3 of "Maps or Drawings" Described above, thus cross-secton shows
the prior 2022 project on S Hickory Street Eligible aspects of that project were funded
by MMSD via Green Solutions funding, and reimbursement of constructon costs totaling
$901,300 was provided mn 2023 That project 1s complete and provided here as a model
for the preferred Elm Road alternatve

• Drawing mn the muddle 1/3 of "Maps or Drawings" This drawing is of a newly rendered
(2025) cross-secton for Elm Road based on the successfully completed S Hickory Street
project It includes b1oreten1:lon and no center boulevard within the existing 110' nght of
way (ROW) This cross-secton rs the preferred alternative for this project

• Drawing on the bottom 1/3 of "Maps or Drawings" Thus drawing rs of the previously
planned cross-section for Elm Road and 1s no longer preferred. It shows curb and gutter
and a boulevard with no bioretenton Thus cross-section is no longer the preferred
alternatve for thus project

While the drawings on the top and bottom of the cross-secton page that follows are useful, the
middle cross-sectlon 1s now proposed for the Elm Road project

The proposed or preferred alternatlve includes b1oreten1:lon cells that run parallel to Elm Road
within the ROW Details are unavailable because they depend on future design and will be
provided mn the grading and restoraton plan drawings Side slopes into the bioretenton facility
are expected to typically be 31, the bioretenton facility itself 30-35 feet in width (including side
slopes), and vary where functonally necessary and to introduce visual interest Plants w1th1n
the b1oretent1on fac1ht1es will be salt-tolerant and appropriately hardy for the southeastern WI
climate B1oretenton will be sited on the side of Elm Road opposite pedestrian pathways All



stormwater management features will be provided within the public ROW, and private property
involvement Is not expected

A feasibility study was conducted for thus project mn 2023 At that tme, the estmated
underground b1oretent1on storage capacity was approximately 100,000 CF, which was recently
revised to "'75,000 CF In MMSD terms, that translates to over 561,000 gallons of storage
Further analysis will be conducted to confirm this volume

Challenges with b1oretent1on on Elm Road include aesthetics for implementation along an urban
roadway with development on both sdes, conflicts with existing private utlites, and reduced
available room for boretenton due to conflicts with some driveway approaches These items
must be reviewed as part of future work and are considered challenges rather than barriers

Schedule: The schedule s not detailed now, although Franklin anticipates that this design will
be completed 1n 2025, allowing bidding and construction to occur mn 2026-2027

Budget:

Thus work plan Is for design and constructon

The design estimate 1s $135,000 The following paragraph provides construction cost
assumptions based on 12% of the preliminary construction cost estimate

The constructon base estmate 1s $937,500 Thus is based on costs associated with the prior
Hickory Street project, which include ~$375/LF of roadway and a 5% annual inflation factor
applied to the 2,500-foot-long Elm Road corridor Adding a 20% contingency to the base
estimate yields a total construction estimate of $1,125,000

Design, construction, and construction administration estimates total $1,400,000 1n 2025
dollars

No Franklin cost share Is calculated in this amount or provided in this memo Stll, rt will include
cooperating with MMSD on project s1gnage and undertaking public outreach and education as
proposed below

Outreach and Education: Franklin will post educatonal sgnage at the project site Thus sgnage
will acknowledge MMSD funding for the project In additon, Franklin will describe the project
and its benefits in a community newsletter or on its web page here·
https //www.frankhnw1 gov/



Maps or Drawings (drawing 1 of l)

,"
I

i;:

CITY Of FMANKUM
taWAUKU.COUHIY. WISCOHSIN

"':,:
0
"0,,
-<
"'...,,
mm...
1
'O
0
I!
"'m
0

6z

y.c
z

#

±

I
I
I
I I • ~~

''#
: En

<rt> : ~- ~ ;,; ~---

ti »e4
--...:::__ ,".,,.:,,_,!_·'I-

l--·--···-... ~
;

Lli

-0



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

Adopt a Resolution to Amend the 2015 Purchasing
Card Program

ITEM NUMBER

G.lo.
Background

In June 2015, the Common Council adopted Resolution 2015-7096 establishing a purchasing card program.
The program has individual limits of $3,500 per cardholder (one exception in the Police Dept which has a
$5,000 limit).

There are currently 21 active card holders. The cardholder's purchases range from $10 to $3,500. In more
recent times, cardholders have had issues with maxing out their card, or requesting a one-time increase to make
a purchase over $3,500. Selective increases in card limits would be an administrative improvement. Average
monthly use of the card has increased from $11,000 (in 2021) to approximately $16,500.

As part of our ongoing effort to streamline processes and strengthen internal controls, I am recommending
updates to our current Purchasing Card (P-Card) policy. Resolution 2015-7096 has not been updated since
implementation in June, 2015 and these updates aim to better align with organizational needs while reducing
the risk of misuse and improving oversight. The last recommendation was presented in October, 2021, in which
no action was taken.

Analysis

Having a Credit Card program policy offers several benefits to the City. A few benefits include:
•

•

Decreases administrative costs & reduces the need for cutting small dollar checks for routine purchases .
The City has seen a postage rate increase of 18 cents since 2021. A new postage rate of 78 cents will
take effect on July 13, 2025. The new rate will create a 23-cent increase since 2021. The City cuts
roughly 500+ checks every month.
The program provides the City with an annual rebate (1%). However, with the low credit limits, the
rebate is not generating any real benefit.

2016 - $269.67
2017 - $1,489.46
2018 - $2,194.92
2019 - $2,468.39
2020 - $2,369.28
2021 - $3,245.82
2022 - $3,502.89
2023 - $3,035.67
2024 - $3,960.69

• Enables quicker identification of unauthorized or noncompliant transactions.
• Accommodates urgent or time-sensitive purchases without delays from centralized procurement.

There are a few risks with having purchasing cards and those include:

• Risk of misuse or fraud

• Limited oversight in real time: allows uses to bypass pre-approval workflows

• Reconciliation gaps: users providing incomplete monthly documentation
• Policy noncompliance
• Potential for budget overruns



This was discussed at the May 27, 2025 Finance Committee meeting. Extensive discussed was held and the
following recommendations as amendments to the Policy/Resolution are stated below.

Recommendation

The Finance Committee recommended the following changes as an amendment to Resolution 2015-
7096 and the formal purchasing card policy:

1. Page I - #6 The following purchases are never permitted except with written permission by the Mayor,
subject to re-imbursement by the card holder where appropriate: Add the following after "Mayor," or by
the Director of Administration or Director of Finance/Treasurer if the Mayor is not available.

2. Page 2- Add letter n. Services from a "tax reportable" or "1099" vendor. A tax reportable or 1099
vendor is defined as an individual, sole proprietorship or limited partnership who is paid more than $600
in a calendar year for services.

3. Page 2- Add letter o. Purchases from companies outside of the United States.
4. Page 2 - #9 Required receipts/documentation provided for each purchase with monthly

statements. Repeated failure to provide this information would result in revocation of the card
privilege. Strike the sentence "Repeated failure to provide this information would result in
revocation of the card privilege" and add the following after "statements." - Full compliance is
expected. After 3 occurrences, the purchasing card will be revoked for a period of 6 months.

5. Page 3 - #4 Strike the entire statement and replace with "Ifyour purchasing card is lost or stolen, or
the cardholder detects that his/her card has been used fraudulently, he/she must contact US Bank
immediately at 1-800-344-5696, then notify the Director of Finance/Treasurer as soon as possible."

6. Page 3 - #8 Cardholders should use reasonable effort to ensure that purchases do not include sales tax.
Tax exempt certificates are available through the Finance Dept. Add the following after "Dept." All
online purchases that are not tax exempt will require proof that the purchase savings are sufficient to
make the expenditure for the best value of the City to be submitted to the Director of Finance prior to
purchase and approval must be given.

7. Page 3- Add #9 Any returns or credits made on purchases using the purchase card must be credited to
the cardholders account (no cash refunds). The cardholder must obtain and retain all appropriate credit
documentation.

A draft version with the changes & a clean version of the changes will be attached for reference and
review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A Motion to Adopt Resolution 2025-__, a Resolution to Amend Resolution 2015-7096, a Resolution to
Adopt Purchasing Card Policies and Procedures for the City of Franklin and Provide Additional Policy
and Procedure Guidelines.

Finance Dept- DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025-

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO 2015-7096, A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT
PURCHASING CARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

AND PROVIDE ADDITIONAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE GUIDELINES

WHEREAS, Department Heads use personal funds for mcidental City purchases, and

WHEREAS, vendor relationships are created for incidental purchases that require
expensive mfrastructure to process payments, and

WHEREAS, Purchasmg card programs have been established by several vendors that offer
means to consolidate these mnc1dental purchases onto one monthly billings, and

WHEREAS, these Purchasmng card programs offer part1cipatmg Wisconsm mu111cipalities
additional savmgs by directmg payments thru the Purchasmg card programs, and

WHEREAS, it is m the mterest of the City of Franklin to participate 111 a Purchasmg card
program

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a Purchasmg Card program be adopted by
the City of Franklin with the following Policies

1 City Purchasmg cards will be issued to Department Heads and other department staff as
requested by department heads with the approval of the Director of Fmance & Treasurer
and the Mayor

2 Purchasmg cards will be subject to appropnate limits based upon the employee's position
and job respons1bl1t1es Max1mum lm1ts as follows

a Per transact1on as determmed by the Director of Fmance & Treasurer
b. Dady- as determmed by the Director of Fmance & Treasurer
c Monthly $10,000 per cardholder
d Fmance Department would have available card with $150,000 lumt for payment

of certam products/services mcluded m the state contract vendor list Invoices are
still subJect to all budgetary controls on transactions

3 Splitting transactions to avoid transaction or daily limits are expressly prohbrted
4 Purchasmg cards to be used only for City purposes Personal purchases of any type are

never allowed
5 Each card holder 1s personally responsible for all use of that card except for fraud

protection provided by issuer until reported lost/stolen to the card issuer Card holder
agrees to stnve to obtam the best value for the City when usmg the card

6 The following purchases are never permitted except with wrtten permss1on by the
Mayor, or by the D1rector of Admmustraton/Director of Finance/Treasurer 1f the Mayor
1s not available, subject to re-mmbursement by the card holder where appropriate

a Alcoholic beverages [except10ns as may be granted mn the event of a special
cucumstance or an event where alcohol may be mcluded as a component of an
event or ticket pnce]



b Tobacco products
c Gift cards
d Controlled substances
e Capital eqmprnent and upgrades
f Construction, renovation or mstallation services
g Mamtenance agreements
h Personal items or loans

Purchases mvolvmg trade-111 of City property
J Rentals ( other than short term-autos and otherwise allowed by card issuer

program)
k Telephones, related equipment or services (unless otherwise penmtted by card

issuer program)
Any other 1tems deemed mnconsistent wnth City services or act1vrt1es

m. Cash advances
n Services from a "tax reportable" or "1099" vendor A tax reportable or 1099

vendor 1s defined as an mndrv1dual, sole proprretorshp or limited partnersh1p who
1s paid more than $600 m a calendar year for services

o Purchases from compames outside of the Umted States
7 Cardholders should avoid transactons that Include transactions fees for use of the card
8 Cardholders are required to sign an agreement 111d1catmg they accept these terms

Indrvduals who do not adhere to these polc1es and procedures risk revocation of the1r
card privileges and/or disciplinary action An mndrvdual perpetrating fraud or theft
committed through use of a card will be subject to disc1plmary action and/or a cnmmal
complamt

9 Required receipts/documentation provided for each purchase with monthly statements
Full compliance is expected After 3 occurrences, the purchasing card will be revoked for
a penod of 6 months

10 Department heads remam responsible for budgetary controls on expenditures

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that procedures for handlmg card transact10ns shall
mclude

Cards may be requested for prospective cardholders by wntten request to the D1rector of
Fmance & Treasurer

2 Statements will be rendered by the issuer to the Fmance Department, who will circulate
1ndrv1dual statements to card holders Cardholders are to provide item1zed receipts for
approval to Department Head (or 111 the case of the Department Head to then· supervisor)
for approval The approved statement 1s then forwarded to Fmance for tnnely payment
The bank program reqmres qmck payment terms to afford maximum City advantage of
program benefits, as such timely processmg of approvals 1s requested to be mn Finance
wthin ten days

3 In the case of meals, each receipt must mclude the name of the person(s) mvolved, and a
bnef descnpt10n of the busmess purpose of the purchase



4. If your purchasing card is lost or stolen, or the cardholder detects that his/her card has
been used fraudulently, he/she must contact US Bank immediately at 1-800-344-5696,
then notify the Director of Finance/Treasurer as soon as possible.

5. Finance department will review each report for appropriate or questionable charges and
consult with department head and/or Mayor on issues.

6. All monthly statements submitted for payment must include the dated approval of the
cardholder and Department Head (manual or electronic).

7. AII monthly statements submitted for payment must have the appropriate account
number(s) and the associated amounts.

8. Cardholders should use reasonable effort to ensure that purchases do not include sales
tax. Tax exempt certificates are available through the Finance Dept. All online purchases
that are not tax exempt will require proof that the purchase savings are sufficient to make
the expenditure for the best value of the City to be submitted to the Director of Finance
prior to purchase and approval must be given.

9, Any returns or credits made on purchases using the purchase card must be credited to the
cardholders account (no cash refunds). The cardholder must obtain and retain all
appropriate credit documentation.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of, 2025 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of. 2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7096

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT PURCHASING CARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, Department Heads use personal funds for incidental City purchases; and

WHEREAS, vendor relationships are created for incidental purchases that require
expensive infrastructure to process payments, and

WHEREAS, Purchasing card programs have been established by several vendors that
offer means to consolidate these mcidental purchases onto one monthly billings, and

WHEREAS, these Purchasing card programs offer participatmg Wisconsin municipalities
additional savings by directing payments thru the Purchasing card programs, and

WHEREAS, it 1s 1n the interest of the City of Franklin to participate in a Purchasing card
program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a Purchasing Card program be adopted
by the City of Franklin with the following Policies

1. City Purchasing cards will be issued to Department Heads and other department staff as
requested by department heads with the approval of the Director of Finance & Treasurer
and the Mayor.

2. Purchasmng cards will be subject to appropriate limits based upon the employee's position
and job responsibilities. Maximum limits as follows:

a Per transaction - as determined by the Director of Finance & Treasurer.
b Daily - as determined by the Director of Fmance & Treasurer.
c Monthly $10,000 per cardholder.
d Finance Department would have available card with $150,000 limit for payment

of certain products/services included in the state contract vendor list. Invoices are
still subject to all budgetary controls on transactions.

3. Splitting transactions to avoid transaction or daly limits are expressly prohibited
4. Purchasing cards to be used only for City purposes. Personal purchases of any type are

never allowed.
5. Each card holder is personally responsible for all use of that card except for fraud
protection provided by 1ssuer until reported lost/stolen to the card issuer. Card holder
agrees to strive to obtamn the best value for the City when using the card,

6. The following purchases are never permitted except with written permission by the
Mayor, subject to re-Imbursement by the card holder where appropriate:



a Alcoholic beverages [exceptions as may be granted 111 the event of a special
circumstance or an event where alcohol may be included as a component of an
event or ticket pnce].

b. Tobacco products.
c. Gift cards.
d. Controlled substances.
e Capital equipment and upgrades.
f. Construct1on, renovation or Installation services.
g Maintenance agreements.
h Personal items or loans.
• Purchases Involving trade-in of City property.
j. Rentals (other than short term-autos and otherwise allowed by card issuer

program).
k. Telephones, related equipment or services (unless otherwise permitted by card

issuer program).
l. Any other items deemed inconsistent with City services or activities
m. Cash advances

7. Cardholders should avoid transactions that mclude transactions fees for use of the card.
8. Cardholders are required to sign an agreement mdicating they accept these terms.

Individuals who do not adhere to these policies and procedures risk revocation of their
card privileges and/or disciplinary action. An individual perpetrating fraud or theft
committed through use of a card will be subject to disciplinary action and/or a criminal
complaint.

9. Required receipts/documentation provided for each purchase with monthly statements.
Repeated failure to provide this information would result in revocation of the card
privilege

10. Department heads remain responsible for budgetary controls on expenditures.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that procedures f01 handling card transactions shall
include:

1. Cards may be requested for prospective cardholders by wntten request to the Director of
Finance & Treasurer.

2. Statements will be rendered by the issuer to the Finance Department, who will circulate
individual statements to card holders. Cardholders are to provide itemized receipts for
approval to Department Head (or 111 the case of the Department Head to their supervisor)
for approval The approved statement is then forwarded to Finance for timely payment.
The bank program requires quick payment terms to afford max1mum City advantage of
program benefits, as such tmmely processing of approvals is requested to be in Finance
within ten days.

2



3. In the case of meals, each receipt must include the name of the person(s) mvolved, and a
brief description of the business purpose of the purchase.

4. Card holders should immedmtely notify the Director of Finance & Treasurer of any
transactions they do not recogmze.

5. Finance department will review each report for appropriate or questionable charges and
consult with department head and or Mayor on issues.

6. All monthly statements submitted for payment must include the dated approval of the
cardholder and Department Head (manual or electronic)

7. All monthly statements submitted for payment must have the appropriate account
number(s) and the associated amounts.

8 Cardholders should use reasonable effort to ensure that purchases do not include sales
tax Tax exempt certificates are available through the Finance Dept.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 2nd
day of June, 2015 by Alderman Dandrea

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
this 2nd day of June, 2015.

OVED:

RO
ziST:
..a&no22atouwu.di
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 5 NOES 0 ABSENT 1 (Aid. D. Mayer)

3



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7096, A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT
PURCHASING CARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

AND PROVIDE ADDITIONAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE GUIDELINES

WHEREAS, Department Heads use personal funds for incidental City purchases; and

WHEREAS, vendor relationships are created for incidental purchases that require
expensive infrastructure to process payments, and

WHEREAS, Purchasing card programs have been established by several vendors that offer
means to consolidate these incidental purchases onto one monthly billings, and

WHEREAS, these Purchasing card programs offer participating Wisconsin municipalities
additional savings by directing payments thru the Purchasing card programs, and

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City of Franklin to participate in a Purchasing card
program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a Purchasing Card program be adopted by
the City of Franklin with the following Policies

1. City Purchasing cards will be issued to Department Heads and other department staff as
requested by department heads with the approval of the Director of Finance & Treasurer
and the Mayor.

2. Purchasing cards will be subject to appropriate limits based upon the employee's position
and job responsibilities. Maximum limits as follows:

a. Per transaction as determined by the Director of Finance & Treasurer
b. Daily as determined by the Director of Finance & Treasurer
c. Monthly $10,000 per cardholder.
d. Finance Department would have available card with $150,000 limit for payment

of certain products/services included in the state contract vendor list. Invoices are
still subject to all budgetary controls on transactions.

3. Splitting transactions to avoid transaction or daily limits are expressly prohibited.
4. Purchasing cards to be used only for City purposes. Personal purchases of any type are

never allowed.
5. Each card holder is personally responsible for all use of that card except for fraud

protection provided by issuer until reported lost/stolen to the card issuer. Card holder
agrees to strive to obtain the best value for the City when using the card.

6. The following purchases are never permitted except with written permission by the
Mayor, or by the Director of Administration/Director of Finance/Treasurer if the Mayor
is not available, subject to re-imbursement by the card holder where appropriate:

a. Alcoholic beverages [exceptions as may be granted in the event of a special
circumstance or an event where alcohol may be included as a component of an
event or ticket price].



b. Tobacco products
c. Gift cards
d. Controlled substances
e. Capital equipment and upgrades
f. Construction, renovation or installation services
g. Maintenance agreements
h. Personal items or loans
1. Purchases involving trade-in of City property
J. Rentals (other than short term-autos and otherwise allowed by card issuer

program)
k. Telephones, related equipment or services (unless otherwise permitted by card

issuer program).
I. Any other items deemed inconsistent with City services or activities
m. Cash advances
n. Services from a "tax reportable" or "1099" vendor. A tax reportable or 1099

vendor is defined as an individual, sole proprietorship or limited partnership who
is paid more than $600 in a calendar year for services

o. Purchases from companies outside of the United States.
7. Cardholders should avoid transactions that include transactions fees for use of the card.
8. Cardholders are required to sign an agreement indicating they accept these terms.

Individuals who do not adhere to these policies and procedures risk revocation of their
card privileges and/or disciplinary action. An individual perpetrating fraud or theft
committed through use of a card will be subject to disciplinary action and/or a criminal
complaint.

9. Required receipts/documentation provided for each purchase with monthly statements.
Repeated failure to provide this information would result in revocation of the card
privilege. Full compliance is expected. After 3 occurrences, the purchasing card will be
revoked for a period of 6 months.

l 0. Department heads remain responsible for budgetary controls on expenditures.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that procedures for handling card transactions shall
include:

l. Cards may be requested for prospective cardholders by written request to the Director of
Finance & Treasurer.

2. Statements will be rendered by the issuer to the Finance Department, who will circulate
individual statements to card holders. Cardholders are to provide itemized receipts for
approval to Department Head (or in the case of the Department Head to their supervisor)
for approval. The approved statement is then forwarded to Finance for timely payment.
The bank program requires quick payment terms to afford maximum City advantage of
program benefits, as such timely processing of approvals is requested to be in Finance
within ten days.

3. In the case of meals, each receipt must include the name of the person(s) involved, and a
brief description of the business purpose of the purchase.



4. Card holders should immediately notify the Director of Finance & Treasurer of any
transactions they do not recognize. If your purchasing card is lost or stolen, or the
cardholder detects that his/her card has been used fraudulently, he/she must contact US
Bank immediately at 1-800-344-5696, then notify the Director of Finance/Treasurer as
soon as possible.

5. Finance department will review each report for appropriate or questionable charges and
consult with department head and/or Mayor on issues.

6. All monthly statements submitted for payment must include the dated approval of the
cardholder and Department Head (manual or electronic).

7. All monthly statements submitted for payment must have the appropriate account.
number(s) and the associated amounts.

8. Cardholders should use reasonable effort to ensure that purchases do not include sales
tax. Tax exempt certificates are available through the Finance Dept. All online purchases
that are not tax exempt will require proof that the purchase savings are sufficient to make
the expenditure for the best value of the City to be submitted to the Director of Finance
prior to purchase and approval must be given.

9. Any returns or credits made on purchases using the purchase card must be credited to the
cardholders account (no cash refunds). The cardholder must obtain and retain all
appropriate credit documentation.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2025 by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of.2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax
Rescission and Refund for TKN 832-9925-001

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

G.+.
BACKGROUND
Per W1scons111 State Statutes, the removal of property taxes needs to be authonzed by the Common Council
Statutes enumerate specific conditions under whch a rescission/refund 1s appropr1ate and necessary There
1s currently one property that was 111correctly assessed for the 2024 tax year Due to a palpable error, the
value has been reduced by $3,900

ANALYSIS
Parcel 832-9925-001
Owner Dame! & Lisa McGarry
Address 3208 W. Acre Ave.

Per the City's Assessor, the mt1al 2024 assessment was 1correct. The Caty Assessor confirmed a correct1on
to the acreage corrected per plat of survey and GIS confirmation This correct10n reduced the assessment by
$3,900.

FISCAL NOTE
The impact of the above resc1ss1on/refund 1s hkely a bad debt expense for the City 111 the amount of $57 08
There 1s a formal process that allows the City to notify the Department of Revenue (DOR) of resc1ss1ons 1
October of each year, and, as long as the total of all resciss10ns. for the tax year, for the City of Frankhn,
meet the statutory dollar threshold, $250 or more per any smgle property, the chargeback will be authonzed,
and the other taxing entutes wll be responsible for their share Staff wll not need to submit any
documentation to the Department of Revenue due to the refund amount bemng below the statutory dollar
threshold

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council authonze thus resolution to part1ally rescind and refund the above noted taxes
as outlined Due to the 2024 property tax bill bemng paid m full, the $57 08 wll be refunded back to the
property owner

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Resolution No 2025- .A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Resc1ss1on
and Refund for TKN 832-9925-001, and direct staff to directly refund the ong111al property owner.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN. MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025---

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND
FOR TKN 832-9925-001

WHEREAS, the followmg property taxes were assessed unproperly, per Wisconsm State
Statutes 74 3 3 (I)(c), which states that the property is exempt by law from taxation, and a partial
resc1ss1on and refund of the tax due 1s appropr1ate:

Daniel & Lisa McGarry
3208 W Acre Ave
Frankl111, WI 53132
(Parcel #832-9925-001) $57 08

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the proper Crty Officials are hereby author1zed and directed to rescmnd and refund to the
original property owner m the sum of $57 08, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper City shall have a bad debt expense 111 the amount
of $57 08, pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes 74 41, which has a $250 statutory threshold

Fundsfor thus purpose are appropriatedfrom thefollowngAccount Numbers
01-0000-1./15 Mdwaukee County SO
01-0198-5543 Cty ofFranklmn $57 08
01-0000-1412 MATC S0
01-0000-I411 Oak Creek-Franklm School Dstrct S0
01-0000-1413 MMSD SO

Resolution mtroduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
th1sday of,2025

Passed at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm this __ day
of ,2025----------

APPROVED·

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Simley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2024

CITY OF FRANYLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY

LISA MCGARRY
DANIEL J MCGARRY
3208 W ACRE AVE
FRANKLIN WI 53132-8419

MCGARRY, LISA
BILL NUMBER: 362423
IMPORTANT Correspondence should refer to parcel number

See reverse side for important information
Be sure this description covers your property This description is
for property tax bill only and may not be a full legal description

ACRES O 937

COM 1642 20 FT W OF ELI & 909 93 FT S OF N LI
OF SE 13

Parcel# 8329925001
Property Address 3208 W ACRE AVE Alt Parcel#
Assessed Value Land Ass d Value Improvements Total Assessed Value Ave Assmt. Ratio

Net Assessed Value Rate127,300 340,500 467,800 0 9965 (Does NOT reflect credits) 0 014632952

Est. Fair Mkt Land Est. Fair Mkt Improvements Total Est. Fair Mkt. A Star in this box School taxes reduced by127,700 341,700 469,400 means Unpaid Prior $ 740 32
Year Taxes school levy tax credit

-6 1°
- 8 2%

-20 6%
-5 5

6,564 49
159 60

6,845 31
66 55

214 27
6,564 49

2024 % Tax
Net Tax Change

1,474 70 -2 4%
1,792 96 -1l 3%
2,621 15 -12 1%

580 69 -2 0%
375 81 -2 7,

2023
Net Tax

1,511 63
1,816 12
2,982 25

592 65
386 13

7,288 78
72 53

269 96
6,946 29

2024
Est State Aids

Allocated Tax Dist
4,354,589
3,538,487
9,491,019

4,549,722

Full Payment Due On or Before January 31 2025
$6,724 09

Or pay the following installments to
3334 71 DUE BY 01/31/2025
1694 69 DUE BY 03/31/2025
1694 69 DUE BY 05/31/2025

INet Property Tax
2025 GARBAGE & RECYCLIM

t-------------------..

2023
Est State Aids

Allocated Tax Dist.
4,350,816
3,420,529
8,933,770

4,518,534

21,223,649 21,933,817

First Dollar Credit
Lottery & Gaming Credit
Net Property Tax

Total

Make Check Payable to
CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728
414-425-4770

Taxing Jurisdiction

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
CITY OF FRANKLIN
OAK CREEK-FRANKLIN SCHOOL
MMSD
MATC

FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY

6,724 09

-·one-- FOR FULL PAYMENT
Pay By January 31 2025

»» $

G
co
g

Warning If not paid by due dates installment optton 1s lost ~
and total tax 1s delinquent subject to interest and if applicable o
penalty Failure to pay on time See reverse
.._ _

Year
Increase Ends

Total Additional Taxes
Applied to Property

PAYMENT

BALANCE
DATE

Total
Additional Taxes
1· 4

FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
Voter Approved Temporary Tax Increases

Taxing Jurisdiction
F KEEK FE IKLI! H •
F REEK FRANKLAII HO L

y
PLEASE RETURN LOWER

PORTION WITH REMITTANCE V

REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2024

Total Due For Full Payment
Pay to Local Treasurer By Jan 31 2025

CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728

Bill#
Parcel#
Alt Parcel#

362423
8329925001

$6,724.091

OR PAY INSTALLMENTS OF

2ND INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer

$1,694.69
BY March 31 2025

[] Check For Bill ing Address Change

LISA MCGARRY
DANIEL J MCGARRY
3208 W ACRE AVE
FRANKLIN WI 53132-8419

1ST INSTALLMENT
Pay to Loca! Treasurer

$3,334.71
BY January 31 2025

3RD INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer

$1,694.69
BY May 31 2025

FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY
PAYMENT

BALANCE

DATE



Name Daniel & Lusa McGarry
Parcel ID 832-9925 001
Assessed Value  Original $467,800
Assessed Value  Revised $463,900
Payments Due -3,900
Lottery Credit/First Dollar 0 00 0 00 0 00
1/31 3,422 66 3,394 12 28 54
3/31 1,71133 1,697 06 14 27
5/31 1,711 33 1,697 06 14 27

6,845 31 6,788 23 57 08
State

2024 Ongnal Adjusted Report
Rate Amount Amount Difference Difference

GLA/R Acct
State Tax 0 0000000 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
Milwaukee County 01 0000 1415 3 1524053 1,474 70 1,462 40 12 30 1110

Sales Tax Credit 0 0000000 0 00 0 00 0 00
City of Franklin 01 0198 5543 3 8327391 1,792 96 1,778 01 14 95 13 49
MATC (VTAE) 01 0000 1412 0 8033489 375 81 372 67 3 14 2 83

2 Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418 7 1856896 3,361 47 3,333 44 28 03 25 29
State School Levy credit -1 5825460 -740 32 -734 14 -618

MMSD 0100001413 1 2413147 580 69 575 85 4 84 4 37

14 6329516 6,845 31 6,788 23 57 08 57 08

Milwaukee County is entitled to the Sales tax credit
The School levy credit is proportioned among all taxing districts
The State when calculating the amounts wll calculate the TIF mmpact and include that wth the City total
Franklin Schools 010000 1411 8 7803398
Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418 7 1856896
Wh1tnall Schools 01 0000 1419 7 2005082
No Sewer 0 0000000

TOTAL



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax
Rescission and Refund for TKN 928-1022-000

MEETING DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

C.18.
BACKGROUND
Per Wiscons111 State Statutes, the removal of property taxes needs to be authorized by the Common Council
Statutes enumerate specific cond1tons under wh1ch a resc1ss1on/refund 1s appropr1ate and necessary There
is currently one property that was 111correctly assessed for the 2024 tax year Due to a palpable error, the
value has been reduced by $27.700

ANALYSIS
Parcel 928-1022-000
Owner Bahareh Modaber
Address 3128 Hidden Oaks Dr.

Per the City's Assessor, the imtial 2024 assessment was 111correct The City Assessor confirmed a correction
to the square footage of the basement which was discovered while the Assessor was updatmg sketches.

FISCAL NOTE
The nnpact of the above resc1ss1on/refund is likely a bad debt expense for the City 111 the amount of $95 80
There is a formal process that allows the City to notify the Department of Revenue (DOR) of rescissions 111
October of each year, and, as long as the total of all rescissions, for the tax year, for the City of Franklm,
meet the statutory dollar threshold, $250 or more per any smgle property, the chargeback will be authonzed,
and the other taxing entities wll be responsible for their share Staff will complete the statutory submittal
and make the request to be reimbursed by the other taxing entities for their prorated shares totalmg
approximately $309 53

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council authonze this resolution to partially rescind and refund the above noted taxes
as outlined Due to the 2024 property tax bll bemg pad m full, the $405 33 wll be refunded back to the
property owner

COlJNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Resolution No 2025- ,A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission
and Refund for TKN 928-1022-000, and direct staff to file the chargeback request with the DOR to seek
compensation from the other taxmng author1t1es

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025----

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND
FOR TKN 928-1022-000

WHEREAS, the following property taxes were assessed improperly, per Wisconsin State
Statutes 74 33 (1) (a), which states that a cler1cal error has been made m the descnpt10n of the
property, and a partial rescission and refund of the tax due is appropnate

Bahareh Modaber
3128 W Hidden Oaks Drive
Franklin, W1 53132
(Parcel #928-1022-000) $405 33

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the proper Crty Officials are hereby authorized and directed to rescmd and refund to the
property owner 111 the sum of $405 33, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper City Officials authorized and directed to seek
compensat1011 from the other taxmng authorrtes, 1f appl1cable, per Wisconsin State Statutes 74 41

Funds for thus purpose are appropratedfrom thefollowng Account Numbers
01-0000-1415 Milwaukee County $7880
01-0198-5543 Cty ofFranklm $95 80
01-0000-1412 MATC S20 08
OJ-0000-1411 Oak Creek-Frank/111 School D1Mnct SJ 79 62
01-0000-1413 MMSD S3103

Resolut10n mtroduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm
thus day of2025

Passed at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm thus day
of_,2025

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Slmley J Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2024

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY

BAHAREH MODABER
3128 WHIDDEN OAKS DR
FRANKLIN WI 53132-6902

MODABER, BAHAREH
BILL NUMBER: 366817
IMPORTANT Correspondence should refer to parcel number

See reverse side for important information
Be sure this description covers your property This description is
for property tax bill only and may not be a full legal description

ACRES 0 451

HIDDEN OAKS SE 1/4 SEC 25-5-21 LOT 22 AND AN
UNDIVIDABLE

Parcel# 9281022000
Property Address 3128 W HIDDEN OAKS DR Alt. Parcel#
Assessed Value Land Ass d Value Improvements Total Assessed Value Ave Assmt. Ratio

Net Assessed Value Rate152,700 643,000 795,700 0 9965 (Does NOT reflect credits) 0 014632952

Est. Fair Mkt Land Est Fair Mk!. Improvements Total Est Fair Mk! A Star In this box School taxes reduced by153,200 645,300 798,500 means Unpaid Prior $1,259 23
Year Taxes school levy tax credit

Full Payment Due On or Before January 31, 2025
$11,736 48

Or pay the following installments to
5948 04 DUE BY 01/31/2025
2894 22 DUE BY 03/31/2025
2894 22 DUE BY 05/31/2025

21,223,649 21,933,817

First Dollar Credit
Lottery & Gaming Credit
Net Property Tax

Taxing Jurisdiction

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
CITY OE' FRANKLIN
OAK CREEK-FRANKLIN SCHOOL
MMS D
MATC

Total

Make Check Payable to
CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728
414-425--4770

2023
Est. State Aids

Allocated Tax Dist
4,350,816
3,420,529
8,933,770

4,518,534

2024
Est State Aids

Allocated Tax Dist
4,354,589
3,538,487
9,491,019

4,549,722

2023 2024 % Tax
Net Tax Net Tax Change

2,313 62 2,508 37 8 4
2,779 67 3,049 71 9 7%
4,564 50 4,458 42 -2 3

907 09 987 71 8 9%
590 99 639 22 8 2°

11,155 87 11,643 43 4 4%
72 53 66 55 - 8 2a

11,083 34 11,576 88 4 5

'

Net Property Tax 11,576 88
2025 GARBAGE RECYCLIM 159 60

FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY

11,736.48

PLEASE RETURN LOWER
PORTION WITH REMITTANCE...,

-om».· FOR FULL PAYMENT
Pay By January 31 2025

» $ 0
Warning If not paid by due dates installment option 1s lost ~
and total tax rs delinquent subject to interest and if applicable o
penalty Failure to pay on time. See reverse ct,
l

Year
Increase Ends

r

Total Additional Taxes
Applied to Property

1

PAYMENT

BALA NCE

DATE

Total
Additional Taxes
i

FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
Voter Approved Temporary Tax Increases

Taxing Jurisdiction
K REEK-FRI!KLI HO)L
.K KEEK-FRAIF LI!! HO L

REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2024

Total Due For Full Payment
Pay to Local Treasurer By Jan 31, 2025

CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728

Bill#
Parcel#

Alt Parcel #

366817
9281022000

I
$11,736.48/

OR PAY INSTALLMENTS OF

2ND INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer

$2,894 22
BY March 31 2025

[]Check For Billing Address Change

BAHAREH MODABER
3128 WHIDDEN OAKS DR
FRANKLIN WI 53132-6902

1ST INSTALLMENT
Pay to local Treasurer

$5,948.04
BY January 31 2025

3RD INSTALLMENT
Pay to local Treasurer

$2,894.22
BY May 31 2025

FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY
PAYMENT

BALA NCE

DATE



Name Bahareh Modaber
Parcel ID 928-1022-000
Assessed Value  Original $795,700
Assessed Value  Revised $768,000
Payments Due -27,700
Lottery Credit/First Dollar 66 55 66 55 0 00
1/31 5,821 72 5,619 05 202 67
3/31 2,910 86 2,809 53 101 33
5/31 2,910 86 2,809 53 101 33

11,643 43 11,238 10 405 33
State

2024 Orginal Adjusted Report
Rate Amount Amount Difference Difference

GL AVR Acct
State Tax 0 0000000 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
Milwaukee County 01 0000 1415 3 1524053 2,508 37 2,421 05 87 32 78 80

Sales Tax Credit 0 0000000 0 00 0 00 0 00
City of Franklin 01 0198 5543 3 8327391 3,049 71 2,943 54 106 17 95 80
MATC (VTAE) 01 0000 1412 0 8033489 639 22 616 97 22 25 20 08

2 Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418 7 1856896 5,717 65 5,518 61 199 04 179 62
State School Levy credit -1 5825460 -1,259 23 -1,215 40 -43 83

MMSD 01 0000 1413 1 2413147 987 71 953 33 34 38 31 03

14 6329516 11,643 43 11,238 10 405 33 405 33

Milwaukee County is entitled to the Sales tax credit
The School levy credit is proportioned among all taxing districts
The State when calculating the amounts will calculate the TIF mmpact and include that wtth the City total
Franklin Schools 0100001411 8 7803398
Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418
Whitnall Schools 010000 1419
No Sewer

TOTAL

7 1856896
7 2005082
0 0000000



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2025 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL

FUND TO TRANSFER $10,000 OF SEVERANCE
PAYMENTS APPROPRIATIONS TO THE
SENIOR CITIZEN TRAVEL PROGRAM

MEETING DATE
June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
On May 20, 2025, the Common Council discussed the Semor Citizen Travel Program The 2024
Annual Report was grven on May 6, 2025 and further discuss1on was held on May 20, 2025
The Council determmed a budget transfer 1s appropr1ate 111 response to the request by the Senior
Crt1zen Travel Program

FISCAL NOTE
Thus budget amendment 1s necessary to allow for appropr1atons to be spent by the Sen1or C1tzen
Travel Program 1 2025

The GL Accounts assoc1ated with thus amendment are

Expenditures
01-0199-51 14 Severance Payments
01-0521-5721 Sen1or Cruzen Travel

Decrease
Increase

$10,000
$10,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt Ordmance No 2025- , an Ordnance to Amend Ordmance 2024-2649, an Ordmance
adoptmg the 2025 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Transfer $10,000 of Severance
Payments Appropnat10ns to the Semor Citizen Travel Program

Fmance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO 2025----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2024-2649, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2025 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO TRANSFER $10,000 OF
SEVERANCE PAYMENTS APPROPRIATIONS TO THE SENIOR CITIZEN TRAVEL

PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklm adopted the 2025 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 19, 2024, and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has authorized the budget amendment to allow the
Senor CItzen Travel Program flexbhrty wthmn their program, and

WHEREAS, budget appropriations are needed to support the expenditures related to the
program, and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Umts should be adjusted for the above items as
listed below, and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City ofFranklm does hereby ordam as
follows

Section I That the 2025 Health Grant Fund Budget be amended as follows

General Fund- Fund 01
0199 Severance Payments
0521 Senior Citizen Travel

Decrease
Increase

$10,000
$10,000

Sect1on 2

Sect1on 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis Stat§ 65 90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment wthmn fifteen days of adopt10n of this
Resolution on the City's web srte

The terms and prov1sons of thus ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordmance be found to be mvahd by a court of competent
Junsdict10n, or otherwise be legally mnvalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be 111 force, the remaining terms and prov1s1ons shall
remam 111 full force and effect

All ordmances and parts of ordmances 111 contravention to this ordmance are hereby
repealed

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2025



ATTEST

Shurley J Roberts, City Clerk

APPROVED

John R Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATION
AL BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Open Records Requests

MEETING
DATE

06/03/25

ITEM NUMBER

G. p.
At the direction of the Mayor, I have comp1led a chart of open records which the City has received since
May 1, 2023 This has been prepared to the best of our ability as the clerk has changed smnce May 1, 2023

Background: In accordance with the state Open Records Law (e g, Wis Stat § 19 31-1939 111
Wisconsm), I am presentmg a public record chart to the Common Council for presentation and discussion
Thus l1st of open records have been requested by multiple mndrvduals/organ1zatons

Key Concepts Under the Law:

• Presumption of Openness Government records are presumed open to the public unless there 1s a
clear statutory except1on

• Who Can Request Records: Anyone may request records, no residency or purpose reqrnrement
ex1sts.

• What Constitutes a Record: All matenals-regardless of form-created or mamtamed by the city 111

connect1on wth official busmness Thus mcludes emauls, texts, handwritten notes, and electron1c
documents

• Timeliness Requests must be responded to "as soon as practicable and without delay "
• Fees. The city may charge for actual, necessary, and direct costs of locatmg and copymg records

Fees are charged at the rate of the lowest employee m that department.
• Redactions Permtted where statutes or balancmg tests require confidentiality ( e g , personal medical

mfo, law enforcement data, attorney-client pnvileged commumcatlon)

Council Member Responsibilities:

Council members are considered "authonties" under the law when conductmg official busmess. This
mcludes use of personal devices and email accounts All commumcat10ns related to city matters may be
subJect to open records requests

Best Practices for Compliance:

• Use city-provided email accounts for all official business
• Avoid mxmng personal and official communication
• Retamn relevant records per the City" s records retention schedule
• Forward constituent commumcations mvolvmg city busmess to the clerk for proper retent1on
• When 111 doubt, consult the City Clerk or Legal Department

There are 5 1ndrv1duals mn the community whose request(s) total over 196 submittals The hst wll be
available by request to the Clerk

Addiuonally, there a handful of fulfilled requests that have not been paid for or picked up



When our IT department does a query for a request and I have to locate what the requestor 1t requesting,
fees may be mmposed 1f the fee total 1s above $50 Best practice 1s 1f there are a lot of records that need to
be located, a fee 1s unposed upfront

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to place on file

MAYOR NELSON



5
0
0-.
i:i:i
~
if1
Q
~
0uaa
0-.
0

Q)

,s
'+-<
0
Q)

E
0en
Q)
"'O
;:l
c3.s
"'O
:i
0
C)

~
"'O
.8
C.g
enen
;:l
C)
en:.a
Q)

£
'+-<·-

N

5 'tj
0 C
~ ·-di:i.. crjs

Q

i:i:i M
f-- N---<t'. .-

0Q ---lr)0
*



(]

N



(





Lu



DO





• • • • •

00



0»



ov





Q
i:i:i
C/'J.
0
,_Ju

0
----lr)0
*

VJ
c:::
.2g.....
VJ

9
Cl

- {

N
rl



tr)





C--•

#
rr.i

LI)
rl



\.D
.--i



p.
rl



00
,-t



o Q Q aw LL] L] w
r:/1 n 00 r:/1
0 0 0 0
-l -l -l -lu u u u

I I I In n n M
N ~ N N--- --- ---r- N "<t" "<t"
0 0 0 ---- --- --- ---V) V) V) -0 0 0 ......

0)
rl

•••

Cl)·-

• •

Ee

• •••

C/)
(1)
C/)

;:::J

u::n
(1)
(1)
r:/1

(1)

a:! NE(1) ;j
(1) ..c:
- c.>u
~

n
01----0--V)
0

n
01--n0
--V)
0
*



c::
Q)

a a 0
CJ.l CJ.l 0
rf1 If)_ ....,
0 0 ....,

c::l l Q)u u en
I

I I aM M
N N CJ.l-- -- ulf) lf)
0 0 0-- -- llf) lf)
0 0 u

Ee
en-'EQ)
i-..
0
C/l....,
:><:
Q)....,
C/l

• • • • •

M
~
lf)
0-tr)0

z
5
csa

0
(



...c:-a
'"O Cl)-:::r::

0 0 0 <4¢4.
i:.Ll i:.Ll i:.Ll 0 0
VJ VJ VJ - '"O
0 0 0 - 1-.s::: C<j
....l ....l ....l a) 0
u u u <1 co

I I I 08M en en
{ N N i:.Ll 1-.--- - - VJ Cl)lr) \0 lr)
0 - 0 0 .D

--- - - .....:i alr) lr) lr)
0 0 0 u co

• •

("<)
y-lr)0-lr)0

•

n
)-u0-lr)0

M
N•00
0--lr)
0
*

..-I
N



N
({



(Y)
({



s::t
({



LI)
(J



\.D
(]



§
(/:,

0



0 0
(lJ (lJ
if1 if1
0 0
....l ....lu u

I 0 I
("') ("')
q (lJ ]

--- if1 ---lr) 0 s::t"- ]--- ....l ---\0 lr)
0 u 0

•
i:::
0
UJ

0
Q)

2
if1

•
i:::
0
UJ

6
Q)
;;;.
9
if1

•

00
N



Cl
I]
r/1
0
....:iu

I
M

~
0o
0

Cl
LL]
r/1
0
....:iu

I
M
~
\0--lf)0

Cl
L]
r/1
0
....:iu

I
en
N----lf)0

Cl
L]
r/1
0
....:iu

I
M

~--lf)0

CJ)
N

•

~
(I)

8
8
;::len
en
il

(I)
~
0

"O
en

"g
g
(I)

{:i
bl);
-~
..c:
B
"O
kzg

..:.:I
0
...9
(I)>

0
Cl
;:)
(I)

{:i

••••••



Q
w.J
r:/1
0
.....:lu

I
tns
~
l(')
0

a
w.J
r:/1
0
.....:lu

0
I)
r:/1
0
.....:lu

0
(Y)

.......
-----l(')
0
*



l
(Y')



N
(n







If)
()



O
("()



u·-::0g_

rJl
bl)
c::sbl)

r;
ti
;:l
a
.9
<Fl
Q)
u·;;:
I-<
Q)
<Fl

±>
G
4-<
0

dlcol



it cl

C/l
(I)
Vl·-seo,

en
i::
0en
I-<
(I),

c...,.
0

col

00
("()



0.s.....
(.)
(1)
0..
CFJ.s

il

r--,
r--
O
0
N

I
N

0)
()





Cl Cl Cl Cl
UJ UJ UJ UJ
r:/J r:/J r:/J r:/J
0 0 0 0
....J ....J ....J ....Ju u u uI I I I
M ( en n
~ q N N

---- ---- ----0 l.r) r--- \0en q - ~---- ---- ----l.r) l.r) l.r) l.r)
0 0 0 0

rl
'Sf"

•••

N
N
0
N
"Cl
5-q
0
N
E
0

ct:
rn
Q)
>--.
UJ
3
1

•

4

rn
q

----NN
----1.r)
0



a
i:.r.l
rzJ
0
lu

Cl
i:.r.l
rzJ
0
lu

I
"'1"g
!
(")
0

N
s:t

• • •

(")

a..
\0
]•in
0

• • • • • • •



i
0 0 a a <C
CJ.J CJ.J i:.il CJ.J 0
r./'1 r./'1 VJ VJ ..........0 0 0 0 =.....l .....l .....l .....l 11>
u u u u r./'1

I
I I I I 0M M n n
N N ] ~ CJ.J
---- ---- ---- VJ .2».... 0 0 0 0M 0 M N

---- ---- ---- ---- .....l Cl:!
lr) \0 lr) - $a

0 0 0 - uu

• • • •••• • •• •••



s
<fl

3 Cl Cl
0 i:..J i:..J..... r:/) r:/)..... 0 0C:
(I) ....J ....J
<fl u uI

Cl Cl Cl I I Cl
i:..J i:..J i:..J M enq ~ i:..J
r:/) rr.i r:/) ---- r:/)
0 0 0 0 00 0..... 0
....J ....J ....J ---- ---- ....Ju u u 0 \.0- 0 u

OJ)

.5.....
(I)
(I)a

n

(I)
<fl
(I)

5

n
N

---N0
----1.0
0
*

n
~oq
0
----1.0
0
k

n
N

---N0
---O0
*

n
N
0
~
'-r)
0
---O0

n
~
\.0
0

---o0

n
N
----00
------o
0



......-l,O0

0
i:il
r:.r:i
0
....:Iu

I
M
~......
~
l,O
0

0
i:il
r:/')
0
....:Iu

In
?-
~
0

0
i:il
r:/')

0
....:Iu

I
M
Q
l,O

~
0

0
i:il
r:/')

0
....:Iu

I
M
~
N
~
l,O
0

0
i:il
r:.r:i
0
....:Iu

I
M

3
~
0

0
ci:i
r:/')

0
....:Iu

I
M
~
l,O

~
0

LI)
o:::I"

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

=0
VJ=,..c::
0-,
Q)
0-,

rri
q--N-l,O0

rri
N
----rn
~
l,O
0

rri
q

-----1,0
N
-----1,0
0



a
u.l
r/J
0
....Ju

I
M
c::!
00
?
00
0

a
u.l
r/J.
0
....Ju

In
23
$
0

a
u.l
r/J
0
....Ju

I
s::f"
c::!r-
e::!n
0

lO
o:::t

• • • • • • •

M
N
----00
N
----\0
0

n
N
----0n
----\00



• • •

a
[.IJ
[/l
0
....Ju

I
('<)

~
00g
0

•

ti)

t::
0
0..e
3
0..
(I)
ti)

o
L
rzi

3u

•

ci
0..
.8.....
s:::
(I)
ti)
Ia
cl
rzi
0
....Ju

a
[.IJ
u
0
....Ju

I
ene------r--
0

• • • • •

a
[.IJ
rzi
0
....Ju

n
N
----\0
0
---r--o

Mo
----O
0
----r--
0



0
u.J
r:/j
0
..Ju

I
Me
00
::2
00
0

o
u.J
r:/j
0
..Ju

I
Me
Ms
0

0
UJ
r:/j

g
¥g
8
M
0

M
!r-----r---0

M

~
00--r---0



• • • • • • • •



o
LO

• • • • • • • • •



l
Lu

• • • • • • • • • • • • •



N
LI)

O
9
0s::
s::
(])

£
3
5
0

tr)
0
O.......

•

3
0

3
0..
s::
0
ti)

5z

•

ti)

t::
0
0..
r:/)

••

n
N
----0
N
----r---
0

N

---r---
0
*



aw
V)

0
...Ju

Cl'"soe
...J 00
Uo

aw
V)

3u
I

M
~-?
00
0

rn
N
----00
N
----r--
0

eg
2 "'oo a

n
MNN ..___n-o
0 ---
---- 0000 0

3

ci
0...
.8-c::
Q)
(/J
Iaw

V)

0
...Ju

t
@
n
0
----00
0
*

M
L()



Cl
u.:i
r:r.i
0
....lu

I
("()
N
0
~r-g
00
0

o
ClJ
r:ri
0
....lu

Q
u.:i
rFJ
0
....lu

I
("()

~-•00
0

a
u.:i
r:ri
0
....lu

I
("")

2-•00
0

a
ClJ
r:r.i
0
....lu

I
("()

~----000

a
ClJ
r:ri
0
....lu

I
("'j

~----000

st
LI)

•

rFJ
0
00
-.:I"
00
"'Og
)
0
If)
00
If)
'-D
-.:I"
00

°'--.:I"
00

00
t-
..::1'"
00....g
;
S d
r:/'J ;.=
u
(1) c::
A3 s
cj i:.i..
~ c::
~ ....l

4-< "'O
O 0

e &
'. 50 (1)ua

••••

0
00
0u

I
0
V)
0
/
'"ds

• • • • • • • ••

("()
oy•-.:I"
0-00
0

----000
("'j
q---'-D--000



Cl
LL]u
0
..Ju

I
Me
00
~
00
0

Cl
Ll
..J
..J
LIuz
<t'.u

In
a3
~
00
0

Cl
LL)
ifJ
0
..Ju

If)
If)

Cl)g
0
E

••••

u
r:--
00
Oo

I
0
0
0

I

°'N.-
0

I
0
'tj
r:--
Q)
(.)

~
0..
i-..g
"O
#u
"O

i-..
0
(.)
(1)

~
>--.
t::
(1)
0..g

0..

.
----00
0

......
----00
0



0
i:ilrn
0
....:Ju

I
M
Q
N
~
00
0

I-<
0
~

::E
ta
Q)
0

lD
LI)

n
~
0
~
00
0

n
N
-----0
N
-----00
0
*



.....
0r:su,_
0
(/)
(/)
(l)
(/)
(/)
c3
(l)
..c
f--

(l)
..0.....
0r:

'"Or:c

•

(l)
b/}
c,
E
0,_

u..

r:
0·;::;
(/)
(l)
:::s
CT"
(/)

..c.....

r:
(l)
(l)
..0
(/)
(/)
(l)

0
C:·,.
2c



00
LI)

0

2

1

(1)

~
0.

E
0._

LL..



Cl
l
if)

0
.....Ju

I
tn
~
M
~
00
0

•

Cl
LL)
if)
0
.....Ju

In
?n
~
00
0

• •

Cl
~
if)

0
.....Ju

I
M
~
0
2
00
0

• •

Cl
LI]
VJ
0
.....Ju

I
M
~
N
~
00
0

• • • •

(J)
LO

M
@-~
00
0

n
@-N
----00
0

n
!-N
----00
0



Q
I]
C/)
0
....Ju

OMw ~
C/) 00
0-
....J 0\
Uo

C"") C"")

! e
N N
!
00 00
0 0

Qw
C/)
0
....Ju

I
C"")

~-0\
0

s::
0
fl)

0
Q.)
>e

C/)

C"")
N-No
----00
0

Q
LI
C/)
0
....Ju

I
C"")ae
00
0

Qw
C/)
0
....Ju

C"")

~-q
----00
0

0
\D



0.....
>-.-.....

Cl O Cl Cl(1)

UJ 1-,o UJ UJn :-a r/1 n
0 ..... 0 0c::....J (1) ....J ....Ju <Zl u uI

Cl I Cl I In en enUJ ] UJ N q
rn - rn - -0 °' 0 >-. en l/")- - N q-....J - ....J (1) - -°' 00 00u 0 u~ 0 0

n rng
og

00 00
0 0



Qw
rJl
0
.....:lu

I
e
~
0
M---000

s:::
0
C/l

.E
0-.

±
n
~
°'N---000

Q
i:iJ
rJl
0
.....:lu

I
M
~-0
0\
0

0'"O •ro c.>
Cl) s:::--Q)
Q

M
q

---0\
~
00
0

2>
Q)
~
B
c
Q)
rn
I

Cl
UJ
rJl

3u

en
N-°'N-00
0
*

0
s:::
2
0
~

Ig
0

rFJ
rn
~
k
(!)

Cl - M

N
U)



a
i:rJ
rzi
0
....Ju

I
("')

Q-
~
0

a
i:rJ
rzi
0
...Ju

I
("')
N...._-g
0

a
i:rJ
rzi
0
....Ju

I
("')

~-0a
0

a
i:rJ
rzi
0
...Ju

I
("')

3
£
0

zg
co
0e

••••••• • • ••

[JJ

:::
0·-.....[JJ
Q)
::I
cr'
0

--e
[JJ
Q)
>--.
Q)

as·-[JJ
$
Q)
[JJ
Q)s

4-,
0

%
0

i:o
Q)

£5
O
5
0..c
C/l

;;::.
E
Q)
0..
0
i-
0..
"O

~·a
0
Q)

5.....g
(.)

o/)

.5
3s
e
d 0
::sU
G
0 coLL

("')
N...._-("')...._
00
0

("')

~-("')...._
00
0

("')
N...._-("')...._
00
0

("')
N...._-("')...._
00
0

("')
N...._-("')...._
00
0



> 2>
Q) a)

Cl Cl A ~
L] LL] 0 0
[/) n ..... .._.
0 0 ..... .._.

c::: c:::
....J ....J (I) (I)

u u (JJ Cl)
I I

I I Cl ClM n
N ! [I) ]- [/) u00 - 0 00 0- - ....J ....J- 0-,- 0 u u

• • • •

,::j"
\.0



z
Q)u
8

LI)
\.0



a a a a
Ci) Ci) Ci) Ci)
u rf1 n (fJ

0 0 0 0
..J ..J ..J .....J
u u u u

I I a I a I a-.::I" en M e,
N ~ Ci) Q Ci) q Ci)

-----
(fJ ----- (fJ ----- u00 00 00 N

0 0 0 0 0 q 0
----- ----- .....J ----- .....J ----- l1 0 0-, 0
0 0 u 0 u 0 u

• • • • • • • • • • •

\.0
\.0

(
a..
00
0..
0-,
0



bl)-~
1-,u
"O

a a 3
CJ.l CJ.l 0
rJ:J rJ:J .....
0 0 .....

t::.....:i .....:i d2u u rn
Ia I I aM MCJ.l N ~ CJ.l

rJ:J --- rJ:J
0 N 00 0N ......
.....:i --- --- .....:i°' °'u 0 0 u

u

r-
\.0

#5
i:::
5
csa



Cl
LL]
t:/1
0

Cl
....Ju

I,
Cl I

t:/1
LI

("')

0
t:/1

N---
....J

0 0

u ....J
,......
---u --

•

(n
q

---00

• • •

00
O



• • • • •

o
Cl.lrr:,
0
..Ju

CJ)
I.O

s:::
0
fJl

5
fJl <l)<l)

5 D>
<l).,_....., rr:,

("')
q

------O ("'),........ q
------O ------O0 ,........

------O0



Cl Cl Cl Cl
uJ uJ uJ uJ
r:/1 r:/1 r:/1 r:/1
0 0 Cl 0 0
....J .....J uJ .....J .....Ju u E-- .....J u u

I I r:/J .....J I I
('1') n uJ uJ n -.:!"
o) e } N--- ::::> u --- ---I.O q oz ) en
N q I 0--- --- uJ < --- ---°' °' 0 q
0 0 , O 0 0

0
[.

• •

.....
r:/1
.sr--
N
r:/1

•••••• • • • •

s::
0
Cl)

0
Q)
;>
2
r:/1

('1')
N---0
N---0
0

(
q

----......
N

----O0



("')
q

---("')
]

----0\
0

a
i:...l
r./)_
0
....:lu

5
i::a
ellsa

a
i:...lu
0
....:lu

]
a

ell
5a



Cl
Cl u.l
u.l lf.J
lf.J 0
0 ....:i
....:i C?
)

1 ]
c O
~~
00 Ng°' 00 ......

• • • • • • • • • • • •

Cl
L
lf.J
0
....:iu



0
Cl.)
(:/)

0
.....:iu

0
Cl.)
(:/)

0
.....:iu

0
Cl.)
(:/)

0
.....:iu

:

l·±-c

-0
(!)
ctj
(!)
'e
C:
(1)
(1)

..0
(/)
(/)
(1)

C:
0

--0
C:

0
c
C:
c
0

,
1
----I0
----0

*

0
c3
C:c
0

*

r,
I
---,0
----0



•

'c'"O
0
+-'
if)
::I
(.)
<l)
..c
+-'
<l)
..0
+-'
0
C

'"O
C
c3

C
c3

'"O
0
+-'
if)
::I
(.)
<l)
..c
+-'
<l)

f
..c
+-'
0
..0
+-'
0
C
C
c3
(.)....
0
if)
if)
<l)
if)

G
<l)
..cr-

._
G
:::)
0wor.
w
I
}-



:;

,
E

=

2
.5

,
;
2

t:
i
:,

0 0
u.l u.l
VJ VJ
0 0
_:J _:J
u u

I I, ,
N N--- ---, l/")- 0

--- ---0 0- -

bf)
C: .....- -0
Q.) C:·-co 0

.:,,.: c3.... C:crj crj> 0
(''") M
N N--- ---t t
0 0--- ---0 0- -

11),...._



0
L
r:/1
0
...:Iu

I
M
~
t"--e--

0
LL
r:/1

3u
I
M

~
£-

0w
r:/1
0
...:Iu

Ien
!
0
~--

0w
fZl
0
...:Iu

I
M

3-0-

.b
Q)
~
.8....
i:::
V
Cll
I

0w
fZl
0
...:Iu

-

I-<

<-8
g
u

•

I-<

<-8
E
0
0.
V
~

Cll
i-.
0enen
Venen

<I::
;S
c.+-.
0 ->-. 0?
0 00
U 00< g

c-ri
~
0\
0
-----0-



Cl
i:iJ
rF1
0
....Ju

I
M
~
M.....
0.....

Cl
i:iJ
rF1
0
....Ju

N

ci
1d
"O

s:::
0en
5p..s
0
CO
en
(I)

aen
0
s:::
(I)
..0
.8
$
(I)
p..g
%s
V)

i
1d
"O

s:::
0z;::s
a
;>
(I)s
0
O
.5
0s:::
(I)
..0
.8
z
0.
%
$
£

C'--·.....
C
(I)

!::
0
CO
ena
en......

00



Cl
t:I.J
r.r.i
0
....:iu

c:drn
:J
g
E
%
'Cl

t:I.J
r.r.i
0
....:iu

00p.

O
0
Cl)
Cl)

2
0
~--o5

I
Cl)·a

5i»
t<:! Q)
I,-, -Cl t<:!on>
0 ·--, N





o
00



(")
N
-----qN
-----0

* *

- N l/"l

rl
00



a
c.r.:i
r/"J
0
..Ju

M
C"l
----M
C:!
0-

o
c.r.:i
r/"J
0
..Ju

I
("'")

~
C:!
0-

(J
00



ii) 'tj
ii) rs ±> 5c,:jz § c,:j

z 0 su Cl

("')
N
-----\0N
-----0,.......
*

M
00



<t
00



IJJ
4

(.)·-£
0..
c3

IJJ....r
(I)

E
IJJ
IJJ
(I)
IJJ
IJJc

4--<
0

*

I.I)
00



en
i-..
0enen
Q)
enen

-<I'.'.

Cl
UJ
ifJ
0
.....Ju

In
c:!
M,_-,_,_

(n
N-r--@
0,_

• • •

\.D
00



a
(J.J
f/1
0
....:Iu

I
('<')

3------

r--
00

N-N-
s:::
$g
5

Cl)
;>
9
f/1

ta
]
i:.i...u
5
t3
0
O
f/1

•
·s
O's
5::r:

crj

5z

••

Cl)

£
g
enen
Cl)u
8
Cl)
'"d

Cl)
0..

.§

('<')
q

---°'q---0-
('<')
q---0
('<')

---0-



0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

In
~r---
0
-----

•
u
0
C/l
C/l

2u
:E--o3

0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

I
M

~e--

0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

I
en

3
Q--

C/l
(I)g

I

0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

In
~
'°0-----

0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

I
M
No
0
-----

• • • • •

0
UJ
if).
0
.....:lu

In
~
l/')
0
---N-

"dg
co

•

s:::
0
C/l

0
(I)
>
11).....
if).

00
00



g
E
(1)u
I

Cl
i:.i.lu
0
,_J
u

Cl
i:.i.l
r:/)
0
,_Ju

Cl
i:.i.l
r:/)

3u
I
h
~
00g
0

CTl
CX)

• • ••• • • •• • • •



.b >
5 5
~ ~ Cl Cl
.8 0 i:.I.l i:.I.l..... r:/) r:/)

E ..... 0 0i::
Q) 2 ....l ....lrJJ u u uI I

Cl Cl I I
-.::I'" -.::I'"i:.I.l i:.I.l e ]

r:/) r:/) ---0 0 ("') ("')
0 0

....l ....l --- ---q ]u u 0 0

• •

0
(J)

n
("')~

H
<n ,........
,..... ----- ,.......,..... ,.......
,..... *



o
L]
fZJ
0
.....Ju

I
-.:I'"
~
(n
0-q0

rl
Cl)

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •



Cl Cl Cl Cl
LL] a LI] LL]
r:/1 r:/1 r:/1 r:/1
0 0 0 0
....J ....J ....J ....Ju u u u

I I I I Cl("f') ("f') "'i" ("f')
N ~ N N z,
--- --- --- r:/1l/") o °' l/")
0 0 ..... 0 0--- --- --- --- ....JN y N q- - 0 - u

N
en

C
0
C/l
1--<
d0
0.......
~......
C
0u
d
C/l·sz
Gs
C/l

Eu
3a••••• •••

.Pu

•

1--<
<-8
("f')
N
0q
0.....

C/l
b2r

0::
bl)r

'E
0
0..
C/l:.a
Ee

••
a=:.a
0..

g
0
E=

("f')
o---00
0
---N
*



Cl Cl Cl Cl
CJ.l CJ.l CJ.l
r:/) r:/) CJ.l r:/)
0 0 r:/) 0
.....:i .....:i 0 .....:iu u .....:i uu Cl Cl II I

-.:I"(") -.:I" Iq q -.:I" CJ.l CJ.l e...__ ...__ q r:/) r:/) O-.:t V") ...__
0 0- - -.:t -...__ ...__ q l .....:i ...__

q - ...__ -- 0 - u u 0

• •

I-<
0

2
Q)
D>
9
r:/)

•

s:::
0en
6
Q)
D>
9
r:/)

•

en
d0--g

..c:u
5
..0
0

0:::

5
5
3
§

Cl

*

• •



o
i:i:i
r:/1
0
....Ju

I
s::t'
~eg
0

0
i:i:i
r:/1
0
....Ju

I
s::t'
~
I/")-..-0

• • • • • • • • • • •

~
0
:>. 'i::;11)

0 --g£ 0
....J t) .t=

1-, E E0 0 (I) .....u ~ t:1-......J
M s::t'
N N
---- ----ed N
N 0

---- ----N -- 0



0 o o
i:.r.l i:.r.l i:.r.l
if.J. if.J. if.J.
0 0 0
......l ......l ......lu u u

I I I o-.::j- -.::j- -.::j-
y N e8 i:.r.l-- -- if.J.tr) tr) en 0- - 0-- -- -- ......l- - N u0 0 0

• • • • •

Lf)
O'\

-- ± .....- E 3·-Q) bJ) ·- i:::::c: i::: s a 5s 0 i::::
i::: 0 ;:l 0 00 s& cQ) ;>-. O" "'O i::: s5c.,:11--< ..... Q) 1--< 0

crj ·- Q) ..c:4U ox A O 0
-.::j- se::t" -.::j-
N N q-- -- -- se::t"-.::j- se::t" tr) N0 0 - ---- ----- ----- \0- - - -0 0 0 ------0

*



Q Q
r.i.l r.i.l
r:/') r:/')
0 0
....J ....Ju u

Q I I Q-.::t" -.::t"r.i.l N ~ r.i.l
r:/') - r:/')
0 \C) \C) 0~ N
....J - ....J,_. ,_.u 0 0 u

• • • • • • ••

.....
~

i::
"Cl 0
i:: _o r:,:,

5 ·- Q) C+-. c3 3 5' • o .4 ·-c3 Q) r:,:, 2 0 Q)s 5 o E Q) >
co ot trj t:: Q)

Q uer:::uu 0 -/:I.., r:/')

-.::t" -.::t" t
N N N
---- • --.::t" ('<) ('<) -.::t"

N N q N

---- - ---- -00
,_. ...... ,_.

,........ 0 0 0..,........
0



Cl
l:.il
r.r.:,
0
.....lu

I
s::I"g
eq
0

• • • • • • • • •



=0

bl)
;

:.a
::l
5.s

•

:Eu
8

..c: cil

.9 3
ci::: co

('"<)
N
0q

•

('"<)
N
0
N

• • •

a
U.l
r:/)

0
.....Ju

I
t

~e
N
0

•

00
CJ)



a
CJ.l
r:/'J.
0
...Ju

I
-.::t"
~
lr)-----n0

0)
0)

•

t
N
---Ir)
0
---q0

• • • • • •



0
Er/J (I)o

.....l >-.
U d

I 0,.
'tj- I
y
---- tr)0 .
1 o---- ,.N ,-
0 EA

0
UJ
r/J
0
.....lu

0
UJ
r/J

3u

•

0
0
..-I

tq
---\00
----N0

,.
]

---\00
----N0



Cl
u.l
r:F1
0
...lu

0
t.I.J
r:/'J
0
...Ju

•

rl
0
rl

ll) .....Q) 5 'O
§ c:: c::·- 5ll) du c3 3
c:: s s50 0 0......,

-.::t"
N
---c--- "" ""0 N oq---N --- ---tr) \00 - ---- ---N N

0 0



.....
0

a s:::s::: a
CIJ ('j CIJ
r./) O r./)o= 0...J lr) ...Jo « ua I I- a I"Sf" Q) "Sf"CIJ 2a y

VJ r./) ---0 lr) 3 5 0 lr)

2 o a 0
...J ...J ---o! .c Mu ) u 0

I- C/l<-8 s:::
0

"O s
#s
8o
0 "E

sos .e
bl) (rj
s::: o:i

·;:: (1.)

3s..c: ;....
0 <-8
C/l Q)a.

.5
E

Q) ('jsz

•

C/ls:::
0
E
E
0u

• • •

<t::
C/l s:::
Q) 0
- "'Ota 1-..c: 0uo

ho
$
§
Q)

Es
N
lo

• •

(J
0
.--i



Cl
El
fFJ
0
.....Ju

I
-s:t-
~
00
~
N
0

M
0
,-;

• • • • • • • • •

iu



Cl Cl Cl
w;J w;J w;J
if) if) if)
0 0 0
....:l ....:l ....:l

"O u u u
3 I I I

g '<f" '<f" '<f"
( q ]

co --- --- ---\0 00 '<f"
0 0 ...... ......--- --- ---0 e en en

f-- 0 0 0

<:I"
0
rl

• • • • • •

<¢
q
---<t0---n
0

• •



Cl Cl 'Sj-

U.J U.J ~
Vl Vl 'Sj-

0 0 ,_

---....:i ...J t'-
u u 0

I

Cl I Cl Cl Cl I Cl Cl Cl-tj- s::t-U.J ~ U.J U.J U.J N L U.J U.J
Vl Vl Vl Vl --- Vl Vl Vlt'- l/")
0 0 0 0 0 - 0 0 0
....:i --- ....:i ....:i ...J --- ...J ...J ...Jen nu 0 u u u 0 u u u

•

rna
t+-<
0
rn
i:::
0

3
0.....

D>
Q)

"Cl
0
Os
0,
0

If)
0
.-t

Irn
Q)g-

'Sj
q-O0-(0

-tj
q•0--.
0-n0



a
i:.r.:i
if.)

0
....Ju

a
i:.r.:i
if.)

0
....Ju

a
i:.r.:i
if.)

0
....Ju

I
"<:I'"
Q
"<:I'"-
-----1.f)
0

\.0
0
rl

"<:I'"q
I
]-I
(")
0

s::
0
ti)

.E
0-.
~
0

s::
0
ti)

5
(I)
D>
9
if.)



a
c.il
r:/)

0
....:lu

Q)a
cns::
0zr
0
'rj
Q)
en
(1)

£5

\D-Ir--
cn
Q)
bl)
c3
0..

3
0
O
o

I-

s::
0cn
0
Q)
>
9
r:/)



0....
. 5

00
0
,-f

Q)

--g
Ee



a
J:.IJ
r/)
0
....Ju

I
-.:::t"
~
00----n0

s:::
0en
5
Q)
D>
9
r/)

0)
0
.-t



i:::
0
fZl

6
(l.)
D>
9
if)



a:l a:lQ) rr, .....:;3 Q) .....a "O 0 0
u.:i (I) ol)•._;:j

C C..... cd :.=: '-
r.r:i g (I) ti:! 0 rr, .2
0 ..... .=G rr,
....J c:: (I) ..... (I) 0 a:l ·- 6u 0 Us=5 o0

I - 5 ..... ~::ic::-c; ::r: (I) a00

~ ..... c:: 5 °·q ..... ti:! (I) ,,-.,

E c:: u.:iI <4; E; 0 n 0 '1j r.r:is;t- e >$3 o.e (I) ;.. 0N 0 a 0I ci::: .-<;:::: rr, ~ '- ~ (lj 0 0 ....J('f') 00 ou<e:<e: o;:;'.,,-:S 2 rr, e u

rl
rl
rl







st
rl
rl

"Cl

I
'0
§



:i
..0
~
Q)
"O
Q)
Q)
i::.,_.
0r;
VJ·-

LO
rl
rl



11)

~
C E
0 0

E 2 u
E gE

13E 11)

aog >--.cg..:.:: -
.~ .~ .g 8 :::1 ..:.:: .a ti .a



E

E
0
(.)

EE O Co ?I ;
0 O 0

,....; 0 (.)
'al3i



'tj
;a
rosa



0
[L
r:FJ
0
>-4u

0
cl
r:FJ
0
>-4u

0
I]
r:FJ
0
>-4u

0)
rl
rl

s=
0
00s=..c:
0-.
~
0

"""~
00
0
----"""0



o
[.I.J
lJl
0
....Ju

o
[.I.J
lJl
0
....Ju

0
[.I.Jn
0
....Ju

0
N
rl



a
(.lJ
(fJ

0
.....lu

00
00
00

I I
("f')s::j"
00
00

t/) .- .-

64±
~ s::i- s::i
Cll t- t

i:i., ::j:j:: ::j:j::

c$
0-5
3
E
0
G



OOOOOONOOOOO--NOOOOOOOOOOO -ooo
00000000000000000000000000 0000
00000000000000000000000000 0000

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
I 00 0 DOD 0o OD On no 00o ct o o

00000-~~~oooooooooooooN~oooooooooooooo 00--
000000~~~000~~~~~0~~~~~~~~ 0000
------000000~~~000000000000000000000000000~~~~~

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I ---t I I I I
t <t f ¢ t ¢ 0 o 0 # t t t ¢ ¢ t v u co ? t ¢ r t
<t t <f t t t u nt t t + <t t t t t t t t t no n n
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
**************************~****
5606,6,65G
u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u 2 ? • o • 2 co o o o#t 0 ? 2 ok kt a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a O a a a a~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~~. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ . . . .

N
N
.-I



"'1" "'1" "'1" "'1" 0N N ] N i:.i.l- - I •0 o \0 N CZ)- - - - 0.. - I -"'1" t--- l/"l t--- ....J
0 0 0 0 uI I I Ia 9 o o I

"'1"
i:.i.l I UJ LI) ]
CZ) if) CZ) CZ) -0 0 0 0 0

]
....J ....J ....J ....J -l/"lu u u u 0

Q)a
r./l;
0zr
0
"O
Q)
rJl
Q)

£
E..c:
~
i:::
0 ('I")

N
.-i



t t
I 1

---- I
0\ \0
0 ----- Ic--- c---
0 0

I I

0 0
L, c--- L c---if] if]
0 s::t: 0 s::t:
l I l -V) V)u EA u EA

-0
c3
Q)....

(rj
::l
0>

0
C:
::l
0u
C:
0
E
E
0u

C:
0
bl)
C:

·.::,
<I)
<I)

E

>
0....
0..
<I)
C/)
c3
<I)

0..

~
cd r.t3

+-'
C/) C:
-0 <I)o Eu ::l
<I) (.)

0::: 0
C: -0
<I) -0
0.. C:0 ro
C: §

z
3€
?

C:
0
C/)

)
Q)

Q) C:
C: C:
c3 2

4



3 E "O
;- ;- - ...::.:: Q) Q)"O if! 0 ..s:: Q)
N N Q) s =- - .....
0 q rn U .. >- - Q) 2 a OU o- - :::I • rn i-.f-<-..s::\Ci t-- er.-:;: 0 d :::I....,
0 0 d2 n - 2 . O 4I I i-. o Oc o.•a o I 0,. I

i:.w i:.w t o 'q'" 0 0 >.t
rz:i rz:i ,82E
0 0 +0o "o

!> # °....:i ....:i O O ; ,u u 0 EA O ..S:: c.l:1 i3 e .-:;::

I.I)
N
..-I



>,

-::I" -::I" -::I"
5

Cl ~ '<:I'"(o N N NUJ I I I .8 --r.r.i 0 0 0 -::I"
0 3 N N - NI I I C --...J o o o 2 \0
u 0 0 0 Cl'l 0

I I I I I
I Cl Cl Cl Cl 0'<:I'"
! UJ UJ UJ UJ UJ
'<:I'" r.r.i r.r.i r.r.i r.r.i r.r.i
~ 0 0 0 0 0
O'I ....J ....J ...J ....J ....J
0 u u u u u

1.0
N.....

g C..g - 9- @0 ~do '5a' > e 5 C5 I e :z ·- <..:;;
0 <.) > o - 3 c., Q..
; = 2 e 3 ~o go s <.)» • .s:: e ·c5 .s:: %-, f--, u UJ o UJ

-::I"
-::I" -::I" -::I" -::I" ~ "<:f"e N N N N-- oi - - -f') O'I O'I (q "<:f"- - - - - N- - -- - \0 -\0 \0 1,0 O 0 \0
0 0 0 0 * 0



Cl 'tj'- 'tj'- 'tj'- ::r:i:.r.:i N N N.. - • }u N - 0 -0 - t:') - •• • •..J c--- c--- c---
u 0 0 0 0I I I

I Cl Cl Cl Cl Zi:.r.:i'tj'-
N i:.r.:i i:.r.:i i:.r.:i i:.r.:i ..J i:.r.:i• u r./) r./) IJ) 1 OO 0 0 0 0 -O~o ..J ..J ..J ..J ~~
0 u u u u - 0..

-·@a
(I)

"Os
r
0r,:,
1-.
(I)
0..

6r,:,sg

r,:,
r,:,

%--g

;
0r,:,

0
(I)
;>
9
VJ

r,:,g
0

o:l

-.:::I'"
N--N
0--c---
0

""1"
N..
00
0--I
0





a
J:.il
if]
0
....Ju

""'"a-r=:::
0

Ia
J:.il
if]
0
....Ju

- --- --["- t"-
0 0

I Ia a
J:.il J:.il
ifJ O ifJ
0 <"'! q....J .- ......u GI'¼ u

""'"e
0
M
r=:::
0

Ia
if]
0
....Ju

CJ)
N
rl

N
"3
5
if]

""'"N--0\0--["-0

""'"q--0

0 0
o g
~ ong--
« @)
<¢



""" o ,q- oN LIJ e LIJ--V) Cl) V) Vl Cl)- 0 - ii.> 0-- -- 'E.I"-- ...J I"-- 0 ...J0 u o uI
0 I 0 1-, I~ KLIJ 8 CJ,J ,.£
Cl) V) Cl) 0 V)0 - 0 Ir) e...J -- ..J....:I"-- °'u 0 o 0

£>u
g

±g
Cl) ii)

·c: E..c as
UCO

8s
~
0

z
2
0

0m....



A«
0
D
0

..J

rlrn
rl



t
?
("')

3
0

Ia
WJ
rF1
0
...Ju

(I)
i::
0
(I)

E
0
Cl}

G
(I)

E

N
("I")
..-I



-.:t" -.:t"
N (q- -00 ~- ~-[' ['
0 0

I I oo a
U.l U.l tJ,J
r.r.i r.r.i r.r.i
0 0 0
...J ...J ...Ju u u

-s
<...,
0
Q)
C
0
g
.5

-.:t"
~
00--['
0

-.:t"
~
00--['
0



"'1" "'1" "'1" "'1" "'1" "'1"q q ~ q q N- - - - -n (") n "'1" in r---q q ~ q 0 0- - - - -r:- r--- r--- r--- 00 00
0 0 0 0 0 0

I I I I I I
Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl
I, L I] I a] L) LL
C/)_ C/)_ C/)_ C/)_ u C/)_ C/)_
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
.....:i .....:i .....:i .....:i .....:i .....:i .....:iu u u u u u u

"'1"oq...q
q
---r---
0

"'1"
N•N
N---r---
0

"'1"
N--nN---r---
0

"'1"q•00
q

--r---
0



Cl
uJ
r/)

0
lu

I

""'"~
Ne
00
0

(]

VJ

.E
0-,
e
0
[-

Lf)
("I")
rl



t

~s
0

I

0
t.rJ
r/)
0
...Ju

""g
s
9
0
t.rJ
r/)g
u

...:to--0-000



0
'-1.J
r:/)

0
....Ju

I
-.::I"
~
l.r)

~
O'I
0

-.::I"
N

--...-
0
---000

'Sf"
I---1.r)
0...___
00
0

'Sf"
N

--o0
---000



0 0 0 0
u.l u.l u.l u.lu u u u
0 0 0 0
...J ...J ...J ...Ju u u u

I I I I
-.:t" -.:t" -.:t" -.:t"
N ~ ~ Q
----N 0 0 O's- ~ - 0

---- ---- ----00 00 O's O's
0 0 0 0

N

"O
(I)
::l
C/l
.2

(I) -~• >
(I) 0
0 .b..c (I)

0.. 0..

-----00
0



(I)
;;;.
0s
.8
(I)

...:.:::
CCI.....
d=0...c:u

0
(.I.J
(/J

0
-lu

I
-::I'"

G
3
0

-::I'" -::I'"
N N
---- ---r---- ,.......
,....... N

---- ----00 00
00

-::I'"
N

----NN
----00
0



Q)
,.0

.....
0..

.;.; 5= u
Q) Q)z en E I,..

§ :::l E:::l u I,..
0 Q) OJ o lPE .....

f-- Cl =Crj Q) ..
¢ # ..... ..... 0
"'C:S"'C:SCl ro u 8 u

Crj Q)a ±5 ± rJl±k5=gs Crj
Q)

<<Goo 5:::

Cl
LL
IJJ
0
.....:lu

'tj'
N
---(")
N

-----00
0

Cl
LL]
IJJ
0
.....:lu

I
'tj'-
Q
(")

!
00
0

'tj'
N
---c-ri
N
-----00
0

Cl
L)
IJJ
0
.....:lu

I

ti
'-0g
00
0

Cl
=0.....,

'tj'
N
----'-0
N
-----00
0



Q
u:i
r/1
0
....lu

I
'tj-

~
0\
0a,;
0

3
!:)l)
Q)

er:
.8...
t::
Q)
rn
Io

u:i
00 •o>
-1 6u::.:::

o
u:i
(/1
0
....lu

I
'tj-
01-0.....a,;
0

"Sj-
01
----00
01
----00
0



'-H
0
(IJ

a a a a i-
3

L LI L LL] CO jr:/1 r:/1 IZJ r/1 i:: 00 0 0 0 (IJ i,;:::
.....l .....l .....l .....l q,
u u u u .s 0

I
I I I I o "'"st" "st" "st" "st" 3N N e q LE] 0-- -- -- r/1 "'0 0 V) "st" 0 "'0 - N q (I.)-- -- -- -- .....l "'°" °" °" °" 30 0 0 0 u







(!)

-:5
s:::
(!)
>
i

r/)
crj

~
r/).....
O
crj
0..

£



\.D
t
rl



a
i:.Ll
if:!
0
-lu

I

"""~
~
0

a
i:.Ll
if:!
0
-lua±

if:! ---o
-l -o



00
t
rl



Cl
i:.r.Ju
0
lu



Cl
LLl
r:r:i
0
....:Ju

I
-.::I"
~
M......

°'0

Cl
i:i;- rJi
Cl :E.....LLl '+-<
r:r:i 0
0 ~
....:J tau u

2>
"'ct

% 9
:J :.a
3
LLl "Cln
0 8.....:J C/l

0

,:a ,:a
t:: C r;a ......

;>-. ~ d
(I) 0.. 3 3- 0....c: 0 5 C

2 3
Cl Cl

"T "T
"T N N
N ----- ----------

n n
N ...... .............

----- ---------- °' °'°' 0 0
0 * *

0
Lf)~



crj_.
0=
G
~
I

Cl
i:..J
C/)
0
....:l O"u ~

Cl
i:..Jen
0
....:lu

I
s::t"
~
s::t"
Q
0-,
0

Cl
i:..Jen
0
....:lu

I
s::t"s
~
0

rl
lfl
rl

s:::::
0

%....,
Q)

~
Cl

5
s:::::

c3
crj

§
Cl

]
c3

crj

§
Cl

s::t"
N---00----0-,0



=0.....-~
0...
0
Vl

<('.

8
£
r:/)
Vl
E
0

o::l

•ti 0..... bO
1= =u ·a
cl:! (l.)...... ....:i3<

- N ("')

=';;j=0
0
Vl

~



cs
Vl

0 5
i:.iJ 9if.J.
0 ....,

C:....J (I)

u Vl
I

I 0 o 0 0 0 0-.::I'"
] i:.iJ i:.iJ i:.iJ i:.iJ i:.iJ i:.iJ--- if.J. rF.J rF.J rF.J rF.J if.J.-.::I'"
N 0 0 0 0 0 0
--- ....J ....J ....J ....J ....J ....JO'I
0 u u u u u u

("I')
LI)
.-t



0
UJ
rri
0
....Ju

0
UJ
rri
0
....Ju

o
UJ
rri
0
....Ju

"Sf"
~a
0---0,.......

0
UJ
rri
0
....Ju

"Sf"
~q
0---0

0
L
rri
0
....Ju

E
0
di

6
9
0;
[/)~

0
E
Q)

E

,;;f
Lf)
rl



.:::
"O
"O
9 o o 0 0 0
E UJ UJ UJ UJ UJ

if.l if.l if.l C/1 C/1
,:Ii 0 0 0 0 0rn
:J ....:l ....:l ....:l ....:l ....:l

I u u u u u
0 o o 0 0 I I I I I

-.::I" -.::I" -.::I" -.::I" -.::I"
UJ UJ UJ UJ UJ N N N ~ eC/1 C/1 C/1 C/1 C/1 • • ..- - -.::I" 0 N0 0 0 0 0 t") - - 0 -....:l ....:l ....:l ....:l ....:l • .. .. • •0 0 0 0 0u u u u u - - - - -

-.::I"
]•N
0
----0

-.::I"
N..
N
0•0-

-.::I"
N-N0
----0-

-.::I"
N..
N
0
----0-

-.::I"
N•t")
0-0-

.8 a«
0
±>
5

<1)

E
E-

LI)
LI)
rl



8.£
lr) ~

o =u 02if.} (I)
• :::l

;:) 0
lr) ~

Cl
u.l
if.}

0
.,_Ju

I
""f"s----



0
uJ
V)
0
....Ju

I
'tj-

~-tn,-0-

0
uJ
V)
0
....Ju

I
'tj-e-->-

(I)

taa
"C
(I)
;:::s
Cf)
Cf)-
]

(I)

5z
Cf)
Cf)
(I)s=.....
Cf)
;:::s

co
I-<

#
!:ls=
0u
n

r-
L/)
.-I

[)
,.0

§
z

'tj
N
----0\
0
----0-

5s=
c3
3s
0

Ez
- ,.0(I) s=
::l (I)E r/l
ti:! 0u

Cf)s=.....--0u
Vl

'E
..c::u



lr)

a
UJ
r:/)

g
u
%->-



Q
Q 0..
c.il 0
if) .,_,
0 .,_,

c:::l (!)

u rJ)
I aI os::t" c.il c.ilq

--- if) if)s::t" 0 0Q -J l0 u u-

Cl)
LI)
.-I

*



r
0
0
Cl)

(l)
Cl)

i:::
0
0..
Cl)e

......
(.)
(l)
0..
¢
(l)

(l)

§
0

,.0a
~
5
0z

0
\.0
rl



a 'tj'" o
u.l 1 u.l---r:/1 0 r:/1
0 M 0---.....l 0 .....lu - uI

I o I
'tj'" tr,
y u.l ~--- r:/1'tj'" 0 t-- ---- .....l ---- -- u 0

'tj'"
N---Nq
---0-

'tj'"
N

---q
~
0-



(I
\.D
.--t



(I)
..D

-Gs::
;:I
0u
s::
0
E
E
0u
(I)..c.....
ca..c.....

(Y)
\.0



i:::·a
0
N

#
3

E--<
(!)
(.)
c::
ellc::
--0....
0

0
5>
(!)

Cl

enc::
0-~
::l
0en
(!)....
--0c::

ell
en
(!)
(.)
c::cc::

"E
0
lr)

I
0\

--0 (!) (!)
E cil .r:i
......., ·c -

2• ...c
::l 0. en
en 0.
en ell
t......
crj
E 2

en c::
3>
c:: :l

::> 0
en
(!)....

>-. --0o
--0 ell
0 .2¢en ,_
en (I)ro -
-0

2 15-5 0.
ell

>-. 0.
• n
a
2z
D.
en ro

(.)
2
• CC

0
o...c ...cen ....,



Cl Cl Cl Cl 'tj-

LL U.l U.l U.l N---[/] rJ'J r/) r/) 0
0 0 0 0 N---.....:l .....:l .....l .....l 0
u u u u -I

I I I I Cl'tj" ""1" ""1" 'tj"

~ q q N U.l
--- --- --- if.)1 \0 \0 N- N - 0 0--- -- -- -- .....l- 0 (Q N- - .- .- u

Lf)
I.O
t""'I

'tj
N---N
~
0-

'tj
]-n
I---0-



a
i:il
1ZJ
0
....:iu

Ny
0
N
("')
N
<n

i::::
0·.g
"O
§
0

i:.r...
u
0
CZ:::
.8
I-<
9.....
Q)

:,,:
Q)

0..
E
0u
~
0
0..

1ZJ
~u
2
23

5
i::::
c3
cljsa



r-
lO
rl

-G
§
0u
i:::
0
E
£
0u
(I)

,s
"E..c:
+-'

(I).o

......;
i:::
(I)

E
(I)eg
i:::

u;J



rns::
0

3
0rn
Q)
I-<

rn
Q)

§
s::z
0

00
l.O~



O"l
\0
rl

''"8
0
0

%
s::
0·;::
0
(I)

i

O
0
0
-l
s::.g.....
CO
(I)

[ij

z
s::
(I)

0
i...
(I)
.D

£5
;>
0z

ts.c
Q., s::S 0a
.c -2uo



d2
,£

-8 o·- ...> -c,o• a
%
0E:: -g

0..
ei

eh
C·-...en
V__,
;>,e::,
0
0

<¢
-c,
§
0
5
0
.....J
0..c...

. 5
-c,
Ven::,
en..:a.:
0
@2

0





+-'
0
+-'

Cl Cl +-'
i:::::

(IJ LL <I)

ifJ ifJ VJ

0 0 VJ
3

,_J ,_J >u u I
I I Cl o o-.:I'" -.:I'"

Q N (IJ l (IJ- - ifJ ifJ ifJ-.:I'" 0 0 0 0- -- - ,_J ,_J ,_J- N- - u u u

u
00
n
0r-
'-+-<
0

~
i:::::
5
a:!s
Cl

-.:!'" -.:I'"
~~
-.:I'" -.:I'"
00--- -- - *



E
Q)
O
s:::
0u
~

:;E



M

V)

3

<"'i



• ••.
v {}



\.0r--
rl

,.,;

ci
0
N
VI
0
QJ

£
:i::
0
E
2
.8
C
QJ

~
8
..c:u:::,
.8
QJ

£
C:
0
C:

£:::,
.0
:i=
0
C:
:i
f-

i

C:
QJ
g
~
-0
%
0u
0a.
QJ

£
.8
E
:::,

£
.8
C

.8
5
.0
ciiu
C:c
QJ

£
V,
V,
QJa.
;>j'
QJ
ci
E
0u
V,

bO
.!:cs
t-
0a.g
C
QJ
..c:
5'.

. . . .

z
"'E

.l'.! E
:i :::,
v, VI
QJ bO
a: 0
bO ...J

.£ C
- QJ0 :>> LU

• •

-0
~ V,
0 .a ~
5 E
.!:!? V'I ~g_ g 0

"' cuQJ CD N
£
E :;:: •s%
u_ .0

-0

±
V,

5a.g
"iii
C
0
5
5
-0
"'>c:
"'c
'§_
-0
C

"'
u
QI
3
.8
"'C:
0z
0
t
0a.
QIa:
u
QI

cii
V,

c:'
QJ
g
8

Cg
:::,
.0...
QI

==0c..
QJ

£
V,
V,g
a.
-0
C

"'0
0
-0
V,
V,
QJuu
"' C:QJ QJ
£ g

%
a. -0
0 QJ=G0 u
... V,
QJ =
C 0
C a.
"' QJu ..c:
V, -
QJ >-£ g

%
C -0

3 -g
>- "'-0 QJ
o .E!

G
G
QJ .S:
:> -ro :=
..c: 3
5 ru
>- C
=
di
5gz f-

"O
QI
V,
0u
QI
>
nJ
:c
2
0c..
QI
.c.......
QI

t-r
V,

t::
0
C.
QIex:
l>.0
C·.;::;
C·.::c..

J
0

r:/1
r-<z
UJ
>UJ
.....J
.....J
<t'.
0
~=0:c
r:/1





"O I-<

·- 0 a a Cl Cl"O ....
> G 1:1.J 1:1.J 1:1.J 1:1.J
(I) :::l r:/'J r:/'J r:/'J r:/'J..s:: O' 0 0 0 0.... (I)
en I-< ....J ....J ....J ....Jcrj (I) u u u uI

Cl ..s:: I I I I.... t t t t1:1.J = ! e ~ N
r:/'J ---a. & 0 N en M0 - - - -....J .... 0.. --- --- --- ---0 Q) N - - -u ; r3 - - - -

00r-v

f ¢
NN--- ---N N
t--- ---- -- -



Cl Cl
] LIu n
0 0
....:i ....:iu u

I o I a-.:::t- l.r)
N LI] N L,
---- u ---- u0 0- 0 N 0
---- ....:i ---- ....:iN -- u 0 u

• • •

-.:::t- -.:::t
N N--- ---N 00- ---- ---- -- -



----
0
0..- rn- Q)

Q Q Q Q s... Q o
u.J W.J u.J u.J 0 W.J u.J
r/). r/). r/). r/). "3 r/). r/).
0 0 0 0 0 0 0l l l l Q) l l0:::u u u u ' u uI I I I Q I I'tj- 'tj- 'tj- 'tj- 'tj- 'tj-y ~ Q q u.J q ~---- ---- r/). ----r--- lf') a 'tj- 0 r--- 00N q 0 0 q ----- ---- ---- ---- l ---- ----- - N Q q N- - - - u - -

0
00
rl

'tj- 'tj-
! @
lf') '°!Q- -- -

z
c3
cs

Q

'tj
N
------00
0
----q-*



0
f
tr)
n

*

rl
00
rl



([
00
rl



r/j.....
3
r/j
>-.
r/j

0
i:lJ
r:/1 .90 Q).....Ju sI
-s:t" 0N

0 i-00 ql &- -- s::: gN (I) co- r/j

§
(I)

8

s:::
0
r/j

0
(I)
>
9
r:/1

-s:t"
N•N

*

("(')
00
.-I



0w
[/J

0
.....Ju

I
V)
(A

-----00

<::t
00
.-t

..:.::
0 -0
0 C:

ro

t/J
Q) ....
9o
E cil-0

=aen
.5s

C:
0
t/J

0
Q)
>
Q)
+-'
[/J

*



tn Clo ....; in
] 1:1.J i::: i::: 3 N- (I) -\0 rr.i 'O 5 \0
0 o- 0. '-f) 0::I •- ...J g o -- 0 ...::0:: ~ e
0 uu o o 0

I
'O ·- (I)

Ia I I
(I) 0. .::: Cl'-f) s::t'

1:1.J NN ..c: - I- 1:1.J
Cl) -- -+,J == '"C rr.i
0 s::t' '-f) i::: • 0- -...J - - (I) (I) ~ ...J- -u 00 g. ::r: i+:: u

i:::
0en

6
d0
D>
2
Cl)

LI)
00
rl



a ( in n (

i:.r.l q ~ Q 0 cy

--- --- ---r./1 o o O :i 0
0 0 0 0 bO

,......
--- --- --- ---.....l - - - (I) -u 0 0 0 0::: 0

I I I di I
I a Cl Cl Cllr)
] i:.r.l i:.r.l i:.r.l i:.r.l "'O i:.r.l.. r./1 r./1 r./1 r./1 C: r./1] 0 0 0 0 0 00--- .....l .....l .....l ,1% .....l,......
0 u u u 0 u

\.0
00
..-I

.:e;r
5
~s

Cl

0



.ee
tr) tr) tr) Q) ;;_ ae N N -- - 57 Q)0 0 0

·- 0 .g- - - 0 Q)- - - d .!:: 0- - -0 0 0 Q-o Cl,.
I I I I -0 Ia a 0 a Q) a

c.I.l c.I.l c.I.l c.I.l -0 c.I.l
r.r.i r.r.i r.r.i r./) 0 r.r.i
0 0 0 0 0 0
....:l ....:l ....:l ....:l ~ ....:lu u u 0 u

r--.
00
rl

tr)
N-0-•-0

'Tj
0
5
c3sa
tr)

~
0-..-0
*

'Tj
0
5
3sa



Cl)

£5

Cl)
(.)
i:::
Cl)
3

i:::
0
0..
Ul
Cl)

E
0
(.)

q

g

l/") \0

00
00
.-i



00 O

0
UJ
rr.i
0
....Ju

Iu
Q
s:::t"

0)
00
..-I



0
0)
.-;



lf) a aN r.Ll (.I.J•lf) (/) (/),...... 0 0•,...... ....:l ....:l
0 u ua I a a I

lf) lf)
(.I.J ~ (.I.J (.I.J q
(/) (/) (/) ...
0 ""'" 0 0 ""'",...... ,......
....:l • ....:l ....:l ..,...... ,......u 0 u u 0

v
CJ)
rl

lf) lf) lf)

~~~
C") ""'" ""'",...... ,...... ,......------,...... ,...... ,......
000 0 0



-:;:;

Cl
Cl Cl ,
i:.r.J i:.r.J .8u r:/1 .....0 0 C
.....l .....l <I)

u u u
I

Cl I I Cltr) tr)
i:.r.J e ] i:.r.J -dn --- u :r--- 00 ,...... I 0 0
.....l --- --- .....l ~,...... ......u 0 0 0

...... 1

N
Cl)
....-1

0

tr)
N--,......
q

--,......
0



a
0
di
(l)
Cl)·s
s:=

4-<
0

M d d d i

m
(J)
..-1



cs



Cl
LL
r:/)

0
....Ju

I
o.n
~
00
~.....
0

o.n
q

------s::i-q

----.....
0

I

Cl
LlJ
r:/)

0
....Ju

o.n
)

----t--
q

----.....
0

t.n
(1)
.-I



a a 0 o 0 0
Ul Ul Ul Ul CIJ Ul
r/J. r/J. r/J. r/J. r/J. r/J.
0 0 0 0 0 0
..J ....J ..J ..J ,_J ,_Ju u u u u u

I I I I I I
lr) lr) lr) lr) lr) lr)
N ~ 1 ~ ~ ~--- ---r- 0 ,...... D. r- ""1"
N ("f') ("f') 0 0 ,......
--- --- --- --- --- ---,...... ,...... ..... q q q
0 0 0 0 0 0

\.0
en
rl

in
N---r-
N
------..-
0

r
0
C/l

5
Q.)
D>
Q.).,_,
r/J.

in
@

°'q....-
0 0 0

in
N•("f')
0
--N0



QQ
uJ uJ
fZ1 fZ1
00
....:i ....:iuu

I I
tr) tr)

~~
N rri-~ev
00

r--
0)
rl

:
0
Cl)

0
d0>
9
fZ1

tr)
N---r---
0--N0

tr) tr)
NN--- --,....... _
,....... _
--- ---N N
00



a a a ac.u c.u c.u c.u
r:/) r:/) r:/) r:/)

0 0 0 0
l l l -lu u u u

I I I I
Ir) Ir) Ir) Ir)
N ~ N ~........ ........
M °' Ir) -- - - 1........ ........ ........ ........
N N M N
0 0 0 0

Ir)
N........
N
e........
N
0

s:::
0rr,

6
(I)
,>
9
r:/)

Ir)
N...__
N
d........
N
0
*

rr,
O
1--<
0
O
(I)

0:::
s:::
(I)
p,.
0

rr,
rd
1--<
0
O
(I)
1--<

00
CJ)
.-i



0
i:.il
r/]
0
..Ju

I
V)e
'<::I"e
N
0

-0_g
O
r/]

0
i:.il
r/]
0
..Ju

I
V)g
%
0

N V)



Cl
i:.i.:i
rfl

0
-lu

I
Ir)

~
Ir)

~
N
0

Cl
i:.i.:i
rfl

0
lu

I
Ir)

Q
\0a
0

Cl
i:.i.:i
rfl

0
lu

I
Ir)

Q
\0
~
N
0

1
(I)
,.D
E::sz
(I)
rn
3u

,
(I)
O
i::
(I)

5>

0
0
N

Ir)
q-\0N--N0

Ir)
N-\0
~
N
0



o
u.J u.J
if1 if1
00
.....J .....Juu

I I
lr) lr)g
\0 r---g
N N
0 0

Cl
u.J
if1
0
.....Ju

I
V)

~s::
lr)
0

• •

rl
0
N

lr)

~
00
q•q
0



Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl
) L) L) LI LI] I]
r/1 r/1 r/1 rJ1 rJ1 r/1
0 0 0 0 0 0
....l ....l .....J .....J .....J .....Ju u u u u u

I I I I I I
Ir) Ir) Ir) Ir) Ir) Ir)

~ N e N N N
R ---- ---- ---r--- r--- - N "°- - - q - 0

--- --- --- --- --- ---C"') C"') C"') C"') C"') Ir)
0 0 0 0 0 0

(4
0
N

Ir)

~
00
~
)
0

s:::
0
f/l

5
(I)
D>
9
r/1



a a a a a a a
I L] LI] I] LL] L I)
r:./1 r:./1 r:./1 r:./1 r:./1 r:./1 r:./1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
....J ....J ....J ....J ....J ....J ....J
u u u u u u u

I I I I I I In v v V) V) V) /
N y N ! ! ~ N

--- --- --- ---r-- 'tj- ...... r-- ...... - 'tj-
0 - ...... - ...... N ---- --- --- --- --- --- ---n M ("') ("') ("') ("') M
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

("I")
0
N

V)
N---00
0

---("')
0

u n n
NNN
---- --- ---...... - r<l............ -
---- --- ---n n
00 0



Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl Cl Clc.l.l c.l.l c.l.l c.l.l c.l.l c.l.l
VJ. VJ. VJ. VJ. VJ. VJ. c.l.l
00 0 0 0 0 VJ.
.....l .....l .....l .....l .....l .....l guu u u u uI I I I I I ul/') l/') z l/') l/') l/') l/') I

C::!C::! N C::! q y l/')...... --- --- --- qt"-- O'I <4¢ O'I \,Q \,Q ,_ ---- ,_ - ,_ 0 q #--- --- 0 --- --- --- --- ---en en M ¢ l/') n en
0 0 <<¢ 0 0 0 0 0

• • • • • • • • •

t
0
N

l/')
Q---0
q--M0

l/')

C::!
0
q--(0



aa
I LL
if.J if.J
00
..J ..Juu

I I
Ir) Ir)

~ 23
NM-M -.:I"
0 0

a
L,
if.!
0
..Ju

I
Ir)

Q
Ir)

~
M
0

Q)
Q)
>-.
0a.
s
Q)

I.I)
0
N

rn
;:$
0--a
if.!

ti
8(l)

0:::

rn
Q)
rns
0..
~

3u

--a
i::
0rn~
Q)
0..



Cl

• • • •

(I)
<fl
c3..c:
O
5
0.,
..c:g
(I)

'-+-<
0
i:::
0

£
I-<
0
<fl
(I)
"O
I-<
0
<fl-3
Eg
(I)
i:::
3
• • •

0
UJ
if.!
0
....Ju

I
l/")

2
~
("')
0

\.0
0
N



p.
0
N



0
i:il
lf.J
0
..Ju

I
lf)

~
lf)

~
0

lf)
co]•lf)
o1..
r'")
0

E-<z
Cl

00
0
N



o
uJ uJn u
00
.....:i .....:iuu

I I
Ir) Ir)
N N
R oo-
3

0)
0
N

lrl Ir)
NN--- ---N rri
00--- ---""" """00



5
s:::::a
c,js

Q

- c---i

0
.-I
N



rl
rl
N

V) o 00 O



0
[.iJ
n
0
....Ju

.
-----(")
0

N
t""I
N



("(')
rl
({



0
tJ.l
rJ'.J
0
....Ju



LI)
..-I
N



0
Q
0oo y

<.D
.-I
(J



p.
rl
N



00
t-1
()



(J)
..-I
N



Q
LL]
ifJ
0
..Ju

I
V)

~
V)g
0

'""
Q)

Q) ,:S
Q) - Q)i:::·- -- t""' "O~

I
z ·;;i:::

Q) ::::i 0
(I) 0 A,:S ~ Q)

] rnttj ~ -< ('j

,:S Q)
LL] - p.

I-, o t""'
,.8 - "dQ z Q)
b - ::::i I-<
i::: co ('j·- - - fr..::.: t""' 00 ...- I-,z 0.. N0 .. c N...- "O ::::i ......,
(I) ·-

LL]
0

0
&l ..0 Q 0

Q) Q ~ rn
(I) ...c: ('j- -< ~± co
ttj 0 - -

2t""'§_§ - ctjz .......
,.8 Q) ::::i I-<

0
(I) 0.. - c-:S E t""'z ('j

'-+-< 0 E0 C.) Cl
(I) Q) - E-...c: 0 ::;0........, rn
£g ttj 0

"O·-....... ·-:x: rn 0.. ..0
Q) Q) ·i:: Es5 ttj coe rn Q)

Q) .......a ·-(ll C.) I·- Q)

a - ;.§0 ('j s- ::; Q) ('jQ) .......(ll - '-+-<co ::l -- -



,--t
N
N0

..... (I)
n D>
3() ()
oro '-+-<
;
(I) .....
0.. Cl)

0 8

Cl)

9
0
E ~o __
I-< "'O
0.. i::
Cl) (I),
0 Cl)

5:i (I)

g..... E
"'O ~
:E 0on



Q
t:JJ
r:/J
0
....:iu

I
lr)ss
0

N
(
N

r;
0
Cl)-<I)z

..c:
0..
<I)
en
0.....,



Cl
[lJ
lf.J
0
...Ju

I
tr)

Qr-
Q
s::t"
0

• •

U)

"d
I-<
0
O
Q)p
as:::.g.....:.a
"d
--<
ad
t
0
0..

2
Q)
.g-0
0..

• • •

U)

]
0
2
s:::
Q)
0..
0
,:S=Q)
0

5
"E
0
0

8
.s

Q)za
b[J
s:::
G
..0

..:!:;

3
0
b[J
s:::.....
U)
U)

8g
0..

tr)
N
----N
N
----s:::t"
0



• • •

i
0
0

LL,

u
~co
OI)
C
G
{I)z

!.+-..
0

%u
C- • • • • • • •

'<:t
N
N



0
i:.rJ
r:/1
0
....lu

I
V)

~
C")

£

L/'l
N
N

• • •

rn·a
0
0

....l

rn
'E
0
t.)

2
i:::
(I)
0-,
0

-B=(I)
<J

5
'E
0
<J

8
i:::·-(I)g
s
bl)
i:::
G
.D

• • •

rnt:
0
0..

%
(I)
t.)·-0
0...

• •
•

'""0



• • • • • • • • • •



Cl
i:.i.J
{fl
0
...Ju

I
lr)

!s
0

Cl
i:.i.J
{fl
0
...Ju

I
lr)

~g
lr)
0

r--.
N
N

5
,..0

£>
0z



00
N
N

5
' ;,,-.s I 5o. I

E- I co

V) V)
N N--- ---r-- r--
] N--- ----s:t" -s:t"
0 0



Q
UJ
r:FJ
0
....Ju

I
I.()

2
0---1.()
0

Q
UJ
r:FJ
0
....Ju

I
I.()

2e
I.()
0

CJ)
N
N

§
Cf.I

5
(1)
:>
9
r:FJ

I.()

Q
00
q

----.::t"
0

i::
0
Cf.I

0
(1)
D>
9
r:FJ

I.()
q---00
N

----.::t"
0



0
("()
N

V)
N
------0
----V)
0

V)

~
N
0
----/0



a
u:i
if).

0
lu

I
lr)

~-
-----lr)
0

lr)

[:::!
O
0
----lr)
0

a
u:i
if).

0
lu

I
lr)

€
0
----lr)
0

lr)
N

----o0
----lr)
0

,-t
(Y)
N



.... o 0
0 c.t.J u:Jc:: r./1 r/':ic:: 0 0o::I
C) ..J ..JI
Vl u u
£ I I

l/') \I)

c:: es s'§ a::::: -........
\I) ..c \I) \I)- C) 0 0

z
o::Iu

\I)

2
S2
\I)
0

rJi..::.::
5
Q)

?J>
1-,g
Cll
"'ljc::

::lg
00
Q)
>
0a
1-,

0
"'ljc::

::le
00
6
§
<.a-,
0
Cll

'E
0
C)

f
2
<C-N

r,j
c::
0-~
0·;;:
.g
0
C)

g
5sco
0za
?
Cl)
E:::>
0
2
<¢

l/')

2
S2
l/')
0

N
rt')
N



5r
c3
3sa
tr)
N--O0-tr)
0
*

a
al
C/':J
0
lu

I
lr)e
'tj"---lr)
0

lr)
N
-----°'0
----lr)
0

("I")
("I")
N



• ■ • • • ■ ■

~
0
ti)

a
E;5 z
0
-lu

I
l/)eg
n
~
l/)
0

:.a
(..)

8a
i::: ti)

&5 "C:)
V !a
> -5
~ .....,,,, ~

s::im
N

~
Cl
>£
0u

:
0
ti)

5
V>
2
ifJ

l/)
('.)-°'--l/)0

i:::
0
rJ')-0z
.E
0-,

l/)
('.)-0
('.)-l/)0

i:::
&-Vz
.E
0-,

l/)
('.)

-----0
('.)-I/)0



LI)
cY')
N

s
E-G

o:i
c,;j:
ci5

]

---lr)0

lr)
N
----qq
---lr)0

lr)
N
-----N
N
---lr)
0

j
if)

rJJ·c
0

o:i



»
NN
---- ----00 °'q
---- ---no
00



I'
m
N

0
<I)

Q)

E

• • •• • •• •

..~-3
2
~....=d2
"t:I....
)=-



lr)

~
Q
lr)
0

I

Cl
UJ
if.}

0
...Ju

lr)
N--°'@
lr)
0

00
(
N



en
m
N

~=0·-~=-CJ
4

i;.;i

• • • •

..n-£
Q



• • • •

0
t
(



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Andrew Pelkey Open Records Request for Pubhc
Records Related to Common Council Consideration of
Code of Conduct Complamts and Wis Stat $ 905 03

Lawyer-Client Prvlege and WIs Stat $ 19 35(1) Rught
to Inspection The Common Council may enter closed
sess1on pursuant to WIs Stat $ 19 85(1)(f), considering

financ1al, med1cal, soc1al, or personal hustor1es or
disc1pl1nary data of specific persons, preliminary

consideration of specific personnel problems or the
mvestigation of charges against specific persons except
where par (b) applies which, 1f discussed m public,

would be hkely to have a substantial adverse effect upon
the reputat10n of any person referred to m such histories
or data, or mvolved 111 such problems or mvestlgations,
and pubhc records 111 relat10n thereto and Wis Stat. $

905 03 Lawyer-Chent Pnvilege and Wis Stat $ 19 35(1)
Right to Inspection, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed

therem as 1t deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

June 3, 2025

ITEM NUMBER

A motion to enter closed sess1on pursuant to Wis Stat § 19 85(1)(£), considering financial, medical, social, or
personal hstor1es or disc1plunary data of spec1fic persons, preliminary cons1derat1on of spec1fic personnel
problems or the investigation of charges agamnst spec1fic persons except where par (b) applies which, 1f
discussed 111 pubhc, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputat10n of any person
referred to 111 such lustories or data. or 111volved 111 such problems or mvest1gat10ns, and public records 111
relat10n thereto and Wis Stat $ 905.03 Lawyer-Chent Privilege and Wis Stat $19 35(1) Right to Inspection,
with regard to the Andrew Pelkey open records request, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter
to act on such matters discussed there111 as 1t deems appropriate

Legal Services Dept Jw



BLANK PAGE



Approval

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Potential commercial/mdustnal/manufactunng
development(s) and proposal(s) and potential

development(s) agreement(s) m relat10n thereto for,
mncludmng, but not limited to the propert(res) at the
southwest corner of South Oakwood Park Dnve and
West Ryan Road The Common Council may enter
closed sess10n pursuant to Wis Stat $ 19 85(1)e),
for market compet1t10n and bargammg reasons, to

deliberate and consider terms relatmg to
potential commercial/mdustnal/manufacturing

development(s) and proposal(s) and the mvestmg of
public funds and governmental actions in relation

thereto and to affect such development(s), mcludmg
the terms and prov1s1ons of potent1al development
agreement(s) for, mncluding, but not limited to the

propert(1es) at the southeast corner of South
Oakwood Park Dnve and West Ryan Road,
and to reenter open sess1on at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed

theremn as 1t deems appropr1ate

MEETING DATE

6/3/25

Aid. District 4

ITEM NUMBER

Department of City Development and Engmeenng, Admm1stration and Legal Services departments staff
will be present at the meetmg

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A moton to enter closed session pursuant to Wis Stat $ 19 85(1)(e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to potent1al
commercial/mdustnal/manufactunng development(s) and proposal(s) and the mvestmg of public funds
and governmental act1ons mn relat1on thereto and to effect such development(s), mcludmg the terms and
provisions of potential development agreement(s) for, including, but not l1muted to the propert(1es) at
the southeast corner of South Oakwood Park Dnve and West Ryan Road, and to reenter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therem as 1t deems appropnate

Economic Development yr, Legal Services Dept Jw



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REVISED REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
06/03/2025

ITEM 02/NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
June 3, 2025.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the License Committee Meeting of June 3, 2025.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
*REVISED - License Committee Agenda*

Franklin City Hall Aldermen's Room
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI

June 3, 2025 -4:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Extraordinary Xaverian Missionaries - Annual Festival
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Fr. Alejandro Rodriguez
Special Event and Location: Xaverian Missionaries
Temporary Class B 4500 W. Xavier Dr.
Beer Dates of Event: 6/21/25 and 6/22/20255 p.m.

Extraordinary ROC Ventures - Fireworks post Milkmen Games 
Entertainment & 2025
Special Event Person in Charge: Christ Conley

Location: 7035 S. Ballpark Dr.- Franklin Field
Dates of Event: 7/18/25 (The 7/18/25 date was on the
original application, but was inadvertently missed by
the clerks office.)

Operator Danielle Biersack
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
New

Operator Glen Cole
2025-2026 Luxe Golf
New

Operator Milan Djurina
2025-2026 Croatian Park
New

Operator Brennen Domenget
2025-2026 Crossroads II Pizza & Subs
New

Operator Gloria Grabarczyk
2025-2026 Franklin Lioness Club
New

Operator Caroline Wayer
2025-2026 On Cloud Wine
New



License ommittee Agenda
Aldermen's Room
June 3, 2025

Operator Richard Bradley
2024-2025 Rickey's Double Barrel Inn
New

Operator Richard Bradley
2025-2026 Rickey's Double Barrel Inn
Renewal

Operator Allison Anderson
2025-2026 Crystal Ridge
Renewal

Operator Kayla Begley
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Judith Burbey
2025-2026 Andy's on Ryan Rd
Renewal

Operator Charleen Cassidy
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Matthew Christman
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Alec Gilbert
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Oskar Gonzalez
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Halina Grochowski
2025-2026 No Location
Renewal

Operator Amber Helm
2025-2026 The Landmark
Renewal

Operator Barbara Hughes
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Page 2 of4



License ommuttee Agenda
Aldermen's Room
June 3, 2025

Operator Lori Kochan
2025-2026 Swiss Street Pub & Grille
Renewal

Operator Mark Leto
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Amber McCall
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Richard Neumann
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Nithin Pampati
2025-2026 Andy's on Ryan Rd
Renewal

Operator Tarhemen Raines-Bass
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Nicholas Schneider
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Jaskiran Singh
2025-2026 7-Eleven #35834C
Renewal

Operator Jessica St. Louis
2025-2026 The Landmark
Renewal

Operator Elizabeth Stroh
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Kathryn Theis
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Operator Clarissa Tiedke
2025-2026 Target Store T-2388
Renewal

Page 3 of 4



LIIIstUUIIIIILE HAIIuA

Aldermen's Room
June 3, 2025

Operator Denise Widenski
2025-2026 Kwik Trip #287
Renewal

Operator Julie Wiltzius
2025-2026 Irish Cottage
Renewal

Day Care Kindercare Learning Centers LLC
2025-2026 DBA Falk Park KinderCare Learning Center

7363 S 27 st
Michelle Swikert

Temporary Franklin Lioness Lions Club:
"Class B" Wine St. Martin's Labor Day Fair

Person in Charge: Gloria Grabarczyk
Dates ofEvent: 8/31/25 through 9/1/25
Location: St. Martins Rd & Church St

*Temporary Franklin Place Memory Care
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Shelly Mrozinski and
Amusement Brandon Van Vors

Event: Franklin Place Car Show
Location: 9201 W. Drexel Ave
Event Date: 06/7/25
Time: 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM

3. Adjournment Time:

Notice 1s given that a mayor1ty of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather Information about an agenda item over which they have
decrs1on-making responsibility Thus may constrtute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal act1on at thus meeting.

Page 4 of4



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

6/3/2025

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated May 16, 2025 through May 29, 2025 Nos. 202819 through Nos. 202980 in the
amount of $ 2,346,817.60. Also included in this listing are EFTNos. 6083 through EFT Nos. 6097, Library
vouchers totaling $ 31,618.67, Tourism vouchers totaling $ 21,944.14 and Water Utility vouchers totaling
$ 1,065,960.46. Voided checks in the amount of $ (14,257.98) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated May 16, 2025 through May 28, 2025 in the amount of$ 584,226.79 are
provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing. These payments
have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

Attached are property tax disbursements, EFT Nos. 555 through Nos. 556 dated May 19, 2025 and
May 26, 2025 in the amount of $ 3,106.46. These payments have been released as authorized under
Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

The net payroll dated May 30, 2025 is$ 474,328.12, previously estimated at $ 485,000. Payroll deductions
dated May 30, 2025 are$ 507,035.80, previously estimated at$ 621,000.

The estimated payroll for June 13, 2025 is $ 444,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$263,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date ofMay 29, 2025 in the amount of$ 2,346,817.60

• Payroll dated May 30, 2025 in the amount of $ 474,328.12 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 507,035.80 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated June 13, 2025 in the amount of $ 444,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 263,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED


	Common Council Meeting Agenda Packet (Revised) 6-3-2025 (1 and 2 so far)
	CC Meeting Packet (Part 1) 6-3-2025
	CC Meeting Packet (Part 2) 6-3-2025

	CC Meeting Packet (Part 3) 6-3-2025

